

AGENDA 
VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 
PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 
Village Hall Auditorium 


9915 – 39th Avenue 


Pleasant Prairie, WI   
June 3, 2013 


6:00 p.m. 


 


1. Call to Order 


 
2. Pledge of Allegiance 


 
3. Roll Call 


 


4. Minutes of Meetings – May 20, 2013 
 


5. Public Hearing 
 


A. Consider 2013-2014 Liquor License Renewal for the Holiday Inn Express, 7887 94th 
Avenue. 
 


6. Citizen Comments (Please be advised per State Statute Section 19.84(2), information will be received from the public 


and there may be limited discussion on the information received.  However, no action will be taken under public 
comments.) 


 


7. Administrator’s Report 
 


8. New Business 


 
A. Receive Recreation Commission recommendation and consider the 2012-2016 


Recreation Master Plan. 
 


B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #13-20 to amend 


The Prairie Ridge West Commercial Development Planned Unit Development for signage 
modifications for the proposed 9,000 square foot multi-tenant building to be known as 


The Plaza at Prairie Ridge. 
 


C. Consent Agenda (All items listed under the Consent Agenda are considered routine and will be enacted by one 


motion.  There will be no separate discussion of these items unless a Board member so requests, in which event the item 
will be removed from the General Order of Business and considered at this point on the agenda.) 


1) Approve Renewal of Towing Licenses. 
2) Approve Renewal of Keno Outdoor Theater License. 


3) Approve a lot line adjustment for the property at 3300 99th Street and the adjacent 
property (92-4-122-243-0145) with a detached garage. 


4) Approve Operator License Applications on file. 
 


9. Village Board Comments 
 


10. Adjournment 
 


 
The Village Hall is handicapped accessible. If you have other special needs, please 
contact the Village Clerk, 9915 – 39th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie, WI (262) 694-1400 







VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE VILLAGE BOARD 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE WATER UTILITY 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE SEWER UTILITY 


9915 - 39th Avenue 


Pleasant Prairie, WI   


May 20, 2013 


6:00 p.m. 
 


 A regular meeting of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board was held on Monday, May 20, 2013.  


Meeting called to order at 6:00 p.m.  Present were Village Board members John Steinbrink, Monica 


Yuhas, Steve Kumorkiewicz, Clyde Allen and Mike Serpe.  Also present were Michael Pollocoff, Village 


Administrator; Tom Shircel, Assistant Administrator; Jean Werbie-Harris, Community Development 


Director; Kathy Goessl, Finance Director; Dave Smetana, Police Chief; Doug McElmury; Fire & Rescue 


Chief; Mike Spence, Village Engineer; John Steinbrink Jr., Public Works Director; Carol Willke, HR and 


Recreation Director and Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk.  Two citizens attended the meeting. 


 


1. CALL TO ORDER 


 


2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 


 


3. ROLL CALL 


 


4. MINUTES OF MEETINGS - MAY 6, 2013 


 


 ALLEN MOVED TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE MAY 6, 2013 VILLAGE 


BOARD MEETING AS PRESENTED IN THEIR WRITTEN FORM; SECONDED BY 


KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 


 


5. PUBLIC HEARING 


 


A. Consider 2013-2014 Liquor License Renewal Applications. 


 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


Mr. President and members of the Board, I will list for the record the renewal applications that 


are on the agenda tonight.  There’s two of them that aren’t, and we’ll discuss that later.  So these 


would be for the licensing year July 1, 2013 through June 30 next year.  And for brevity I’ll just 


read the trade name and the addresses of the licensed establishments that are on the agenda 


tonight.  But note that if and when the licenses are granted and approved and issued they will be 


issued in the name of the agent of the corporation or an individual and only for the premises that 


are described where alcohol can be stored, served, consumed or sold. 


 


So the first class would be the Class A fermented malt beverage, Pantry 41 Citgo, 7511 118th 


Avenue; PDQ Store #352, 8800 75th Street; Stateline Citgo, 12720 Sheridan Road, Truesdell 


Mini-Mart, 8531 75th Street; Walgreens, 7520 118th Avenue.  Then we have our Class A 


fermented malt beverage and Class A intoxicating liquor licenses.  That would be for Ayra’s 


Liquor Store at 4417 75th Street.  And just note there’s one outstanding community development 


department zoning violation regarding landscaping and parking lot patching.  And that is actually 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


2 


the only outstanding building, zoning or fire code violation we have on the agenda tonight so just 


make note of that for the applicants that we’re talking about tonight.  Then we have the Target 


Store at 9777 76th Street. 


 


Then we go for our Class B fermented malt beverage just at Big Oaks Golf Club, 6117 123rd 


Place.  Then we have our Class C wine and Class B fermented malt beverage, and that’s for 


Honada Sushi and Hibachi at 8501 75th Street.   


 


Then we go to our combination Class B liquor licenses that would be a Class B fermented and a 


Class B intoxicating.  Chancery Pub & Restaurant, 11900 108th Street; Chili’s Grill and Bar, 


6903 75th Street; Earl’s Club, 7529 88th Avenue, Famous Dave’s, 9900 77th Street; Gordy’s 


Prairie Pub, 3812 Springbrook Road; Halter Wildlife, 9626 113th Street; The Olive Garden, 


10110 77th Street; Ray Radigan’s, 11712 Sheridan Road.  And, once again, note the 


delinquencies regarding utility bills, real estate, taxes, personal property taxes, sewer surcharge.  


Mr. Radigan is aware of these as he is every year.  And I actually did talk to him last week, and 


we discussed what he had outstanding.  And I told him that if any of that was not paid before June 


1st there would be additional interest charges, and he’s aware of that.  But also the finance 


department is requesting that he pay those delinquencies with a cashier’s check, money order or 


cash because he’s bounced a few checks in the last year.  So he’s well aware of that, and he 


always pays up because he does want his license. 


 


Ruffolo’s Special Pizza, 11820 Sheridan Road; the Starlite Club, 8936 24th Avenue.  Then we 


have Mikey’s at 10936 Sheridan Road, and they just have a little personal property outstanding.  


They’ll pay that tax.  The Village Supper Club, 10909 Sheridan Road; the Wooden Nickel, 11606 


Sheridan Road.  Once again, Mr. Nickel has some delinquencies as he has pretty much every 


year.  And I’m also going to request that he pays those funds and his license fees in a cashier’s 


check, money order or cash because he did bounce his check last year, and it took me a couple 


phone calls and a letter before I actually had those funds in my hand, and we won’t do that again 


this year because actually the license is already issued.  And, of course, you can threaten to bring 


them back, but he needs to pay those, and he will pay those with that type of payment. 


 


So the premise descriptions have all stayed the same this year.  And, again, we talked about the 


building, zoning or fire violations.  As always anything between now and the time the licenses are 


issued will have to be paid.  If anything comes up in the meantime I will wait until after June 1st 


because of these delinquencies, again, will accrue interest, and then approval letters go out the 


first week in June.  Everybody needs to pay their fees, pick up the license that last week in June.  


It’s the same thing that we’ve done for many years.  Just a few of those items where they need to 


bring a cashier’s check this year.   


 


I have discussed the renewals with Chief Smetana, and he’s given his approval to renew these 


applications.  He’s reviewed them, his staff has reviewed them.  And I’ve also talked with Chief 


McElmury.  There are few minor fire alarm and sprinkler fees that we just discussed today.  


Again, those will also be added.  It’s something that needs to be paid before anything is issued. 


 


The renewal application for the Holiday Inn Express will be at the June 3rd meeting.  They were 


a little late getting their application in, and I needed 15 days for the application to be in my office 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


3 


before we acted on it.  And the license renewal for BP will not be considered by the Board until 


first the Plan Commission has their meeting regarding the conditional use permit violations on 


May 28th.  And then we do have to give notice, and so the earliest and the only time one meeting 


in June will be June 17th. 


 


As a side note, and nothing we need to really discuss tonight, but BP does owe a lot of fees.  A 


letter will be going out to them after May 28th just to give them that time instead of just dumping 


it all on them June 17th and saying, okay, now you have a week to pay everything and get your 


license.  So we’ll make a little note of that ahead of time just because the application will be on 


the agenda late.  So, again, any fees, any delinquencies, publication fees, fire sprinkler alarm fees, 


anything that comes up for anything that’s listed here it will be updated, and those would all have 


to be paid just as always before the license actually goes out of our office.  So I would 


recommend approval of all these applications subject to exactly what I discussed, yes.  And it is a 


public hearing. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Once again, this being a public hearing I will open up to public comment or question. 


 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


No signups tonight. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Anyone wishing to speak?  Anyone wishing to speak?  Anyone wishing to speak?  Hearing none I 


will close the public hearing and open it up to Board comment or question. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


I’d move approval of the licenses subject t the satisfaction of the delinquencies that were stated 


by the Clerk. 


 


Clyde Allen: 


 


Second with the understanding that the two will be paid by cashier’s check. 


 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


Exactly, and if it becomes a problem next year then I’ll just start requiring everybody to do that.  


But right now we’ll just take care of these two this way. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Mike, second by Clyde.  Any further discussion?   


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


4 


 SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE THE FOLLOWING LIQUOR LICENSES, TO BE 


ISSUED IN THE NAME OF THE AGENT OR INDIVIDUAL, FOR THE SPECIFIC PREMISES 


LISTED, AND SUBJECT TO THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH BY THE VILLAGE CLERK: 


 


CLASS "A" FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 
 


NAME & ADDRESS                        TRADE NAME 
 
Roadside Petroleum, Inc.    Pantry 41 Citgo 
Surendra Singh, Agent     7511 - 118th Avenue 
7511 118th Avenue     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 7511 118th Avenue 
 
PDQ Food Stores, Inc.                 PDQ Store #352     
Kathy Loberger - Agent      8800 - 75th Street  
P.O. Box 620997     Kenosha, WI  53142 
Middleton, WI 53562     
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 8800 75th Street 
   
Graham Enterprise, Inc.          Stateline Citgo 
Anthony Buches - Agent            12720 Sheridan Road 
12720 Sheridan Road                   Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158  
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 12720 Sheridan Road 
 
Truesdell Mini-Mart, Inc.             Truesdell Mini-Mart 
Steve Schuler - Agent                   8531 75th Street 
7831 45th Avenue                      Kenosha WI  53142 
Kenosha, WI 53142 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 8531 75th Street 
 
Walgreens Co.     Walgreens #07935 
Liquor Renewals – License Adm.   7520 118th Avenue 
Patricia Briggs – Agent    Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
300 Wilmot Road      
Deerfield, IL  60015 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 7520 118th Avenue. 


 
 
 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


5 


CLASS "A" FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 
AND “CLASS A” INTOXICATING 


 
Ayman LLC      Ayra’s Liquor Store 
Akil Ajmeri, Agent     4417 75th Street 
2714 4 ½ Mile Road     Kenosha, WI  53142 
Racine, WI  53402 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 4417 75th Street 
 
Target Corporation     Target Store T2251 
Shane Richard Chesick – Agent   9777 76th Street 
1000 Nicollet Mall TPN-0910    Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Minneapolis, MN  55403      
 
Premise Description: Indoor first floor located at 9777 76th Street 
 


CLASS "B" FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 
 


NAME & ADDRESS                        TRADE NAME 
 
Jose N. Reyes - Agent              Big Oaks Golf Club 
Timber Ridge Ventures LLC     6117 123rd Place 
6117 123rd Place     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158                 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
Premise Description: One story clubhouse and golf course located at 6117 123rd Place 


 
CLASS “C” WINE AND CLASS “B” FERMENTED 


MALT BEVERAGE 
 
NAME & ADDRESS     TRADE NAME 
 
Honada Sushi Corp.     Honada Sushi & Hibachi 
Lizhu Cao, Agent     8501 75th Street, Suite G 
8501 75th Street, Suite G    Kenosha, WI  53142 
Kenosha, WI  53142 
 
Premise Description: One story building only located at 8501 75th Street, Suite G 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


6 


CLASS "B" FERMENTED MALT BEVERAGE 
& “CLASS B" REGULAR INTOXICATING LIQUOR 


 
NAME & ADDRESS                       TRADE NAME 
 
Restaurant of Pleasant Prairie, Inc.   Chancery Pub & Restaurant 
Adam Modrow, Agent     11900 - 108th Street 
7613 W. State Street     Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
Wauwatosa, WI 53213 
 
Premise Description: Restaurant at 11900 108th Street and hotel rooms and banquet facilities 
located at 11800 108th Street 
 
ERJ Dining III, LLC     Chili’s Grill & Bar 
Paul Thompson – Agent    6903 – 75th Street  
1903 Stanley Gault Parkway    Kenosha, WI  53142 
Louisville, KY  40223      
 
Premise Description: One story building, excluding parking lot, located at 6903 75th Street 
 
Earl's Club, Inc.                      Earl's Club 
John C. Willkomm - Agent              7529 88th Avenue 
3490 169th Avenue                      Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158  
Kenosha, WI  53144 
 
Premise Description: One story building, basement, deck and horseshoe/volleyball/picnic area 
contiguous to building, excluding parking lot, located at 7529 88th Avenue 
 
*Team R’ n B Wisconsin LLC    Famous Dave’s 
Peter Benedict - Agent    9900 77th Street 
6600 N. Ballard Road     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Appleton, WI  54913 
 
Premise Description: One story building including outdoor covered fenced-in patio located at 
9900 77th Street 
 *Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License 
 
Prairie Pub LLC              Gordy’s Prairie Pub  
Linda DeBartolo - Agent    3812 Springbrook Road 
8217 60th Avenue                Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Kenosha, WI  53142 
 
Premise Description:  First floor and basement of building and picnic area south/east contiguous 
to building located at 3812 Springbrook Road. 
 
 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


7 


Halter Wildlife, Inc.  Halter Wildlife    
John F. Burke - Agent     9626 113th Street 
9626 - 113th Street     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158     
 
Premise Description: Two story lodge and storage shed located at 9626 113th Street 
 
*GMRI, Inc.      The Olive Garden Italian Restaurant #1845 
Jeffery Zimmerman – Agent    10110 77th Street 
1000 Darden Center Drive    Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Orlando, FL  32837 
 
Premise Description: One story building located at 10110 77th Street 
*Reserve “Class B” Intoxicating Liquor License 
 
Ray Radigan's Inc.     Ray Radigan's 
R. Michael Radigan - Agent    11712 Sheridan Road 
10510 Lakeshore Drive     Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
 
Premise Description: Building only located at 11712 Sheridan Road 
 
Frank J. Ruffolo     Ruffolo Special Pizza III 
6218 - 31st Street     11820 Sheridan Road 
Kenosha, WI  53144     Pleasant Prairie, WI 53143 
 
Premise Description: One story building and basement, excluding parking lot, located at 11820 
Sheridan Road 
 
JAAD, LLC                      Starlite Club 
Angela Daniels - agent                      8936 24th Avenue 
8934 33rd Avenue                 Kenosha, WI  53143 
Kenosha, WI  53142 
 
Premise Description: One story building and basement excluding parking lot, located at 8936 
24th Avenue 
 
Uncle Mike’s Top Shelf Pub LLC   Uncle Mike’s Top Shelf Pub 
David Schulte - Agent     10936 Sheridan Road  
8834 42nd Avenue     Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158 
Kenosha, WI 53142 
 
Premise Description: Building, basement and outdoor patio/picnic area within fencing 
contiguous to building, excluding parking lot, located at 10936 Sheridan Road 
 
 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


8 


PAS Village Inn, LLC     The Village Supper Club 
Susan Neahous – Agent    10909 Sheridan Road 
10909 Sheridan Road     Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158 
Pleasant Prairie, WI  53158     
 
Premise Description: First and lower level of building, excluding parking lot, located at 10909 
Sheridan Road 
 
SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 
6. CITIZEN COMMENTS 
 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


There were no signups tonight, Mr. President. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Anyone wishing to speak?  Hearing none I’ll close citizens’ comments. 


 


7. ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORT 
 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


Nothing tonight, Mr. President. 


 


8. NEW BUSINESS 


 


 A. Consider an award of contract for the STH 165 Water Tower painting project. 
 


John Steinbrink, Jr.: 


 


Mr. President and members of the Board, Public Works had advertised and bid out painting of the 


water tower on 165 approximately the 5700 block.  We received four bids as a result of that RFP.  


Low bid was L & T Painting for $304,800.  They were pre-qualified.  They had done quite a bid 


of painting within Wisconsin.  Dixon Engineering has been our consulting engineer with this 


project.  They’re very familiar with all four of the bids.  The bids range pretty widespread.  One at 


$304,000, one at $323,000, two higher ones at $506,000, and the highest one at $561,000.  I 


asked them really why you would have a spread that high on it, and he said it’s really a function 


of who’s looking for work and who will take work at a high price.  Engineer’s estimate that we 


had was around $320,000, so by the time you add the consulting engineering in with the $304,000 


we’re pretty much right on where we planned on being. 


 


So we plan on painting the interior, the exterior, the wet interior and making some improvements 


on there, raising the aviation lights, making all the lights LEDs with a 50,000 life span on it, 


improving the electrical on it, and some cathodic protection improvements on there.  So with that 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


9 


I would recommend the award to L & T Painting for $304,000.  And I can answer any questions 


at this time. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


So moved. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Monica, second by Steve.  Any comment or question?  Clyde? 


 


Clyde Allen: 


 


Thanks, John, good explanation.  Just a question, the exterior overcoat, just in that portion alone 


the spread is huge.  What is the difference on doing the overcoat? 


 


John Steinbrink, Jr.: 


 


I really don’t know.  I mean I think it’s really, like I say, they’ll take work if you pay them 


enough, and that’s what Dixon had said.  It sounds like Classic Protective Coatings does stuff like 


that.  They bid every job, if they’re really busy they’ll just bid it high in hopes that there’s not too 


many people that bid it and hopefully they get an award.  But, like I say, L & T Painting is pre-


qualified.  They’ve done a ton of towers within Wisconsin.  And they seem to be a very reputable 


company, and they are pre-qualified. 


 


Clyde Allen: 


 


Okay.  Right, I didn’t question when you said pre-qualified.  It just seemed the exterior overcoat 


just why the spread is so big in just that one category. 


 


John Steinbrink, Jr.: 


 


I guess I really don’t have a more formal explanation. 


 


Clyde Allen: 


 


Okay. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


We have a motion and a second.  Any further discussion?  Steve? 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


10 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


One question for John.  John, that’s epoxy painting inside the tank? 


 


John Steinbrink, Jr.: 


 


Yeah, we’re going to have the same type of painting and prep that’s approved.  There’s actually a 


different method that you use for the interior wet versus the exterior dry and the interior dry.  So 


it’s  a tnemec based paint.  One of the things that’s an improvement based off what we had with 


the paint in years past, if you kind of notice some of the towers, I think the 165 tower has it, 


Timber Ridge tower has it, you get like a blotching effect.  It kind of looks white.  What that is 


caused from in years past, and everyone’s changed their process and improved it since then, but 


when those towers were painted 15 or 20 years ago they put the paint on and then they put a clear 


coat on.  When they put the clear coat on there was really no clear indicator of what was covered.  


So the areas that were missed with the clear coat the UV rays actually faded the paint that was on 


there.  And so that’s kind of why you get that blotchy look.  The new tnemec paint has that sealer 


built right into it.  So once you paint it it’s covered.  And so they’ve improved the process, and 


it’s a very good paint that they use. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


We have a motion and a second, no more discussion.   


 


 YUHAS MOVED TO AWARD A CONTRACT TO L & T PAINTING IN THE AMOUNT 


OF  $304,800 FOR THE STH 165 WATER TOWER PAINTING PROJECT; SECONDED BY 


KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 


 


 B. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #13-15 to 


amend The Courtyard Junction Condominium Planned Unit Development to 


remove the requirement "at no time shall more than 20% of the completed units be 


rented as individual apartments."  
 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Mr. President and members of the Board, before you is Ordinance text amendment 13-15.  It’s the 


request of Mike Dilworth, agent for Courtyard Junction.  Courtyard Junction is a condominium 


planned unit development community.  Specifically, they are requesting a modification in their 


planned unit development.  This is for all the apartments that are identified as properties located 


at 5732, 5744, 5766, 5788, 5812, 5822, 5846, 5906 and 5920 80th Street. 


 


Specifically, Courtyard Junction was an apartment development when in February of 2008 they 


had proposed to modify the development as a condominium development.  And at that time there 


were seven 12-unit buildings and two 6-unit buildings or a total of 96 units.  They range in size 


from 1,135 square feet to 1,193 square feet, and it’s on a just over 11 acre property on 80th Street 


in the Village.  Specifically, they are requesting modification of the PUD in order to modify one 


of the provisions that address how many of the units can be rental units within this development. 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


11 


 


Again, as part of the original conversion to a condominium development they believed that all of 


them would be owner occupied.  In 2008, 2009, 2010 things didn’t go very well for them trying 


to convert them to owner occupied units.  And, in fact, they only did convert or sell 24 of those 


units to owner occupied.  The remainder, or 72 units, still are with the original owner and they are 


rental units.  So specifically what they are asking for is a modification of the planned unit 


development provision that states that no more than 80 percent of the units can be rented in this 


particular development.  So this would include both the ones that are owner occupied, the 24, as 


well as the 72 rental, they would like to convert it so the option would be available so that all of 


them could be rented at any one point in time. 


 


They brought this matter before the Plan Commission.  There was a public hearing.  The Plan 


Commission recommended support subject to some conditions, one of which is that this 


development always remain a condominium platted development, that that plat is not vacated.  


And then there were some other provisions that they had discussed that this particular 


modification or change to allow rental for this condominium development would not be precedent 


setting, so it would not create a standard for any other developments within the Village of 


Pleasant Prairie.  And then it was also subject to the Board approving this text amendment.  As 


part of this approval they would also have to, if they haven’t done it already, modify their 


condominium declarations to reflect this same provision. 


 


Ordinance 13-15 that you have before you strikes out all of those specific references to the 


percentages for those being allowed to be rented.  It also strikes out any provisions that refer to 


the declarant of the original development.  So that whether you’re an owner of one of the 24 or 


you’re the owner of the remainder of the 72 that the units can be rented.  Again, let me remind 


you that the 72 are legal nonconforming.  They’re rented now.  They never converted to owner 


occupied.  So it’s becoming a legal nonconforming situation into a conforming situation by 


allowing them to rent them all at this particular development site.  With that, if there’s any other 


questions I’d be happy to answer them.  And there is a representative here from Courtyard 


Junction that would be happy to answer any questions. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Jean, the question was raised because I think you notified the owners that are there, but there was 


a low response or turnout, but you do know that they were all notified and did receive notification 


because I think it was just my mail and not by certified mail. 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Paulann, can you come up? 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Give us your name and address for the record. 


 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


12 


Paulann Philips: 


 


Paulann Philips.  I represent Mike Dilworth, and I’m also a Board member of Courtyard Junction. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


And how did you notify the owners? 


 


Paulann Philips: 


 


We sent a letter requesting a special meeting.  All of the condo owners were invited and six 


attended. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


You have a homeowners association there? 


 


Paulann Philips: 


 


Yes, we do.  In fact -- 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


And the fees are what? 


 


Paulann Philips: 


 


$139 a month.  So we still would pay condo fees monthly regardless. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Even the rentals have to be $139 also? 


 


Paulann Philips: 


 


Yes, we’ve been paying the monthly condo fee all along since we’ve converted in February of 


2008.   So isn’t that we’re not going to be paying the condo fee.  It just gives an opportunity if we 


would choose to sell to an investor that they could continue to rent out the units.  And we have 


maintained the same budget.  We haven’t had to do a special assessment.  It stayed $139.  I don’t 


know why it wasn’t $140, but it stayed $139 since it started. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


What would these rent for approximately?  Can you share that with us? 


 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


13 


Paulann Philips: 


 


We have rents at -- I’m not in the property management division, but I believe right now $935 to 


$955 they’re renting per month, and we have no vacancies right now. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


With the market and the way it is today I can see this. 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


I also wanted to mention that we also sent notification out on April 29th to the owner as well as 


all of the owner occupied units in the development as well as the adjacent property owners.  So 


we also sent notification regarding the same matter. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Alright, thank you. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Move approval of Ordinance 13-15. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Mike, second by Monica.  Any further discussion.  Clyde? 


 


Clyde Allen: 


 


Just a comment to clarify that to reiterate that there would be no precedent setting, that this is 


done based on the economic impact at the time as to what transpired to make these rental units. 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


I think the conditions are that this development started as apartments, converted to condos, and 


now they want to be able to rent it as though they were apartments before.  So in some instances 


we have condos, they started as condos, and that was when the Plan Commission approved those 


increased densities.  One of the gives from the developer was that it wouldn’t turn into an 


apartment development.  This started off as an apartment development.  So in actuality they’re 


going back to what they were except that now that it’s been condos we need to preserve the rights 


of the people who purchased a condo coming in here.  So this is unique in the sense that it started 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


14 


as an apartment complex, we approved it as such, and so now they’ll function that way, but we 


don’t want to see the condo plat eliminated. 


 


Clyde Allen: 


 


So it is a unique situation so it would never be precedent setting.  Thank you. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


You know if you moved around the corner you wouldn’t have to mow grass or shovel snow 


again.  Okay.  Further comment or question? 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Just one.  Lexington Village could end up in the same way here. 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Maybe Paulann could address that. 


 


Paulann Philips: 


 


We converted that in [inaudible] of ‘06.  And we sold out of the units in 2008. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Right, you sold them all, but I’m just saying if the market dictates you could ask for the same 


request at Lexington, couldn’t you? 


 


Paulann Philips: 


 


We could but we are not. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion and a second.  Any other discussion?   


 


 SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION  


RECOMMENDATION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE #13-15 TO AMEND THE COURTYARD  


JUNCTION CONDOMINIUM PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT TO REMOVE THE 


 REQUIREMENT "AT NO TIME SHALL MORE THAN 20% OF THE COMPLETED UNITS  


BE RENTED AS INDIVIDUAL APARTMENTS."; SECONDED BY YUHAS; MOTION  


CARRIED 5-0. 
 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


15 


 C. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #13-16   


adopting the Village of Pleasant Prairie Park and Open Space Plan 2013-2018 as a 


component of the 2035 Comprehensive Plan. 
 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Mr. President and members of the Board, the Village of Pleasant Prairie Park and Open Space 


Plan 2013-2018 was put together by the Village Park Commission and staff and consultants.  This 


is a park plan that has been worked on over the last couple of years, two or three years by the 


Park Commission and the staff.  And it was presented to the Village Park Commission at their last 


meeting for adoption.  A public hearing was held by the Village Plan Commission at their last 


meeting, and it was recommended for adoption as part of the Comprehensive Plan. 


 


Specifically, this plan satisfies the requirements for the State for updating our local 


Comprehensive Park Plan in meeting the requirements to maintain eligibility for grant funding 


and for the acquisition and development of park and recreational facilities through the State 


stewardship and federal [inaudible] programs.  And it also assures that park planning goals, 


objectives and policies are current.   


 


This is a pretty detailed plan.  Primarily what was done was a lot of the information that is in here 


was compiled through a survey that was completed and the analysis of the survey that was 


completed by the consultant.  And there was information inserted that updated all the population 


and demographic information.  We updated all the park and recreational information, and we also 


included a number of conceptual plans that have been approved by the Park Commission, Plan 


Commission and Board over the last ten years. 


 


There are a number of recommendations as part of the last chapter that identify the various 


program policies, recommendations and actions that could be taken by the Park Commission as 


well as other departments of the Village.  One of the things I’d like to point out is that all of the 


programs and recommendations in this park plan are really based on a case-by-case basis of what 


funding might be available to the Village, what donations might be available or acquisitions or 


donations that are made as development continues to proceed through the Village. 


 


The Park Commission understands that the budget is very limited with respect to having the 


frozen levy limits for the Village.  And they understand that very few items will be probably 


budgeted for approval over the next couple of years.  But it’s a good plan that outlines a number 


of the different programs and different activities, and a number of the items that aren’t just capital 


intensive but other types of activities that the community as well as the Village could be involved 


in in pursuing park and recreational activities and supporting those types of activities in our 


community. 


 


I can go through it page by page if you’d like me to, but we’ve already done that before the other 


Commissions, and they both endorsed and supported this plan.  And we’re looking to adopt it as 


part of our Comprehensive Plan amendment.  I understand that the park department and public 


works department are looking for approval and consideration by the Board this evening as they 


are looking to submit some application for some future grants this spring. 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


16 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Everything was presented to Board members, so if you have a question now would be the time to 


ask. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


It was very well presented in the Planning Commission last week.  As a consequence I’m going to 


make a motion to adopt Ordinance 13-16. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Steve, second by Monica.  Any further discussion?  Hearing none, this is a roll call 


vote. 


 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


Yes, sir.   


 


 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 


RECOMMENDATION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE #13-16   ADOPTING THE VILLAGE OF 


PLEASANT PRAIRIE PARK AND OPEN SPACE PLAN 2013-2018 AS A COMPONENT OF 


THE 2035 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN; SECONDED BY YUHAS; ROLL CALL VOTE – 


STEINBRINK – AYE; YUHAS – AYE; KUMORKIEWICZ – AYE; ALLEN – AYE; SERPE – 


AYE; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 


 


 D. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinance #13-17 to 


amend Section 420-41 A and C of the Village Zoning Ordinance to clarify 


requirements of a home occupation permit. 
 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Mr. President and members of the Board, before you is Ordinance text amendment #13-17 to 


amend Section 420-41 A and C of the Village zoning ordinance, and this is to clarify the 


requirements of the home occupation permit.  Again, we’re not modifying and changing, but 


we’re just clarifying the existing ordinance.  This was recommended for consideration by the 


Village Board by their initiation of the original Resolution 13-08, and the following amendments 


I’ll present to you now. 


 


Just to clarify, the home occupation shall be carried out by the property owner or occupant at their 


primary place of residence, and the home occupation use shall be clearly incidental to a 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


17 


residential use of the principal or accessory structure.  In the ordinance now we’ve decided to 


clearly define what primary residence means.  Number one, the place where the owner or the 


occupant’s habitation is fixed without any present intent to move and to which when absent the 


person intends to return.  Two, the primary residence of a person performing the home occupation 


is the main home that the person lives in for the majority of the year as defined by the Internal 


Revenue Service.  A person shall not have more than one primary residence for the purpose of 


creating or operating a home occupation. 


 


Three, when a person’s spouse and/or family resides in one place and the other spouse’s business 


is conducted at another place, the former place establishes the place of primary residence for the 


purpose of determining whether a home occupation may be conducted at the requested premises.  


And, number four, no person gains the right to conduct a home occupation at a residence while 


living there for temporary purposes only. 


 


This is a modification that we have added, and this states at the bottom that there shall be no more 


than two home occupations conducted from the same premises provided that the combined home 


occupation usage does not exceed 25 percent of either the principal or the accessory buildings on 


the premises, and all other home occupation requirements set forth in the ordinance sections are 


being met.  There was a public hearing before the Village Plan Commission where this was 


considered as part of a public hearing.  The staff and the Plan Commission recommend approval, 


and I’d be happy to answer any questions that you may have with respect to Ordinance 13-17. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Jean, what is the signage allowance for a home occupation? 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Two by two, two foot by two foot, four square feet unlighted sign.  It has to be on the primary of 


residence or on the accessory structure.  It can’t be posted out at the street. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Is there any restriction on the amount of employees that could work out of this home? 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Yes, there is, and I believe its two employees other than the person that lives there.  There is a 


specific provision. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


And that would include then parking as well, automobiles on the premise? 


 


 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


18 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


I don’t believe that there is a provision with respect to the number of vehicles that could be 


parked on the premises. They have to be parked on an all surface driveway, gravel parking area.  


But I don’t believe we have a limit on how many vehicles that can be parked. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


And how would we inspect these places for compliance? 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Well, initially they would submit an application.  But one of the things that I do is I go to the 


premise to identify exactly what portion of the house is being occupied by the home occupation.  


If there’s some question in my mind with respect to how they’re operating, then we take a look at 


what area is being occupied, we look to see if that is their primary place of residence.  We check 


their driver’s license, we check their utility bills.  Sometimes I contact the police department for 


them to do some additional checking to see where the motor vehicles are registered.  So there’s a 


number of background things that we check if, in fact, it appears that they aren’t actually living 


there or they’re only living there part time.  And we go through all that analysis.  Typically, to be 


honest with you, a lot of complaints might arise from residents nearby or neighbors nearby that 


would lead us to believe that there may be a question or concern as to how the home is being used 


and it may or may not be used as a primary residence. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Move approval of 13-17. 


 


Clyde Allen: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Mike, second by Clyde.  Any further discussion?   


 


 SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 


RECOMMENDATION AND ADOPT ORDINANCE #13-17 TO AMEND SECTION 420-41 A 


AND C OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE TO CLARIFY REQUIREMENTS OF A 


HOME OCCUPATION PERMIT; SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 


 


 


 


 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


19 


 E. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Resolution #13-11 for a 


Floodplain Boundary Adjustment on a 91 acre vacant property located on the east 


side of 88th Avenue south of Bain Station Road. 
 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Mr. President, I would ask that Items E and G be taken up at the same time, and that Item F has 


been requested to be withdrawn at this time.  There are some details that they are still working out 


with respect to the certified survey map.  So I’d ask that E and G be taken up at the same time, 


it’s the same property owner. 


 


 G. Receive Plan Commission recommendation and consider Ordinances #13-18 and 


#13-19 amend the zoning map to add a PUD Planned Unit Development Overlay 


District and a zoning text amendment to create the specific Planned Unit 


Development (PUD) District on the vacant 91 acre property generally located 


approximately ¼ mile south of Bain Station Road on the east side of 88th Avenue 


for the proposed 1.2 million square foot warehouse and distribution facility to be 


known as Majestic Badger Logistic Center. 
 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Mr. President and members of the Board, this is a request for the Majestic Badger Logistic 


Center, again, located about a quarter mile south of Bain Station Road on the east side of 88th 


Avenue on a vacant 91 acre property as shown on the slide.  Specifically, Badger had requested a 


number of previous approvals which have been granted by the Village Plan Commission and the 


Village Board.  There was an amendment to the Village’s Comprehensive Plan back in October 


of 2012 where we modified the Comprehensive Plan to allow for industrial development for their 


entire property.  A conceptual plan was also considered that night which identified that a 1.2 


million square foot warehouse distribution building facility would be located on the property. 


 


There were some zoning text and map amendments that were presented because the very northern 


portion of their property was zoned A-2, and we were bringing that into the M-2, General 


Manufacturing District.  The floodplain and the C-1, Lowland Resource Conservancy Districts 


remained unchanged at the time.  And the site and operational plan was conditionally approved 


by the Plan Commission at the May 13, 2013 for the approval subject to a number of conditions.  


And a couple of additional conditions have arisen since last week, and I’d like to talk through 


those conditions because they will be conditions of the approval this evening as well. 


 


Again, the facility that they’re looking to construct technically 1,180,480 square foot warehouse/ 


distribution facility.  It’s being designed so that the building can be divided into up to four tenant 


spaces.  Ongoing access to the Village’s sanitary sewer line that runs through the site will be 


enhanced through a gravel maintenance path access to get to each of the manholes and to the 


main line. 


 


This is a generalized site plan for the development, and north is actually in this direction.  So 


going north 88th Avenue, again, the building fits into the east.  There is an entrance at the north 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


20 


end, another entrance at the south end that has a guard house.  There will be docks along the west 


side as well as docks along the east side.  There will be some parking on the very north end and 


the south end for vehicular traffic for the employees and such and another car parking lot to the 


north.  Truck parking, additional truck parking, will be at the very northeast side of the side.  And 


then this is the railroad just to the east as well as the ATC We Energies transmission line area. 


 


Part of one of the requests this evening they are seeking a floodplain boundary adjustment.  As 


you can see they’re looking to do some modifications and doing some filling in certain areas.  


And they’ll be doing some cut in other areas.  Again, they are working through the process.  


There was some slow down at the Wisconsin DNR with respect to reviewing their formal request 


for the floodplain boundary adjustment.  Even though that has not been finalized, we’ve added all 


of our conditions including some additional ones this past week that our engineering department 


has given them.  So we are seeking a request for an approval of the floodplain boundary 


adjustment subject to all these comments and conditions as outlined in the staff memorandum. 


 


Again, specifically they’re looking to remove 98,173 cubic feet of floodplain and to create 99,144 


cubic feet of floodplain to compensate for the floodplain.  They are not required to do an equal 


area, equal volume as we once were.  It’s basically based on an equal volume calculation, and 


they meet that test or that requirement. 


 


As I mentioned, site access and parking, one of the things that we had talked about at the Plan 


Commission meeting and I just wanted to clarify for the developer is that based on their site plans 


and based on the fact that a planned unit development is being required for this project due to the 


zero lot line setback at this very southeast corner, that we are asking for additional setbacks to the 


residential/agricultural land to the north.  And so we are looking for a 70 foot setback.  Their plan 


shows 68 feet 10 inches, so they’ll need to set it back an additional two inches.  And then at this 


location right here according to the plans it was all measured at 90 feet according to all the site 


plans that had been provided to me.  So we are, again, asking for 90 feet here and 70 feet here. 


 


In addition, some of the additional items that they’re adding on this north end is they are going to 


be putting in some significant evergreens and trees to help buffer as well as putting in a berm and 


then a chain link fence that’s vinyl coated.  So there will be a number of layers of berming or 


buffering in between.  In addition, just to the west of that, this area is owned by Kenosha County.  


The western portion is actually Kenosha County Cemetery.  And then this area right here is 


actually open.  Currently I believe it’s being farmed to some extent.  There is not going to be any 


direct access, so there needs to be some further discussion with the Village as to what’s going to 


happen with respect to this particular property because it really does become landlocked with the 


cemetery in the front and then the development to the south with having that access road coming 


in. 


 


This is just another illustration of the landscape plan.  Obviously at this scale it’s very difficult to 


see.  They are doing a repeating pattern of berming, landscaping, trees, and then there’s going to 


be a series of retaining walls as well along certain portions of the development.  I do have the 


plans with me if there’s any Board members that have any additional questions.  But we do have 


the details and the blow ups of these particular plans.  Again, this shows the landscaping on the 


north end and the berming.  The islands are being landscaped as well.  There will be some 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


21 


landscaping on either side right here.  And then this is intensively landscaped all along this whole 


88th Avenue east side along with some additional treatments at the corners of the building as you 


enter into the site. 


 


The current zoning of the property is M-2, General Manufacturing District.  Again, there’s some 


C-1 Lowland Conservancy and FPO Floodplain Overlay District.  The conservancy elements will 


remain unchanged at this time, but what they’re requesting is a PUD overlay.  And, again, the 


purpose for the PUD overlay is to grant some modifications to the zoning ordinance with respect 


to some dimensional variations.  And, again, that dimensional variation that they’re looking for is 


at this corner.  Due to this amount of green space and the railroad tracks the staff is 


recommending that there be a zero setback at that location.  But, again, in exchange for that they 


are going to be graveling all of that area that’s identified for the sanitary sewer to provide access 


for the Village to get to those manholes.  They’re going to be increasing the setbacks at these two 


locations for the parking lot for the trucks as well as the vehicles.  And they’re going to be 


intensively doing some screening in addition along 88th Avenue. 


 


I’ve also asked them to do some additional articulation bump outs at these two corners with 


respect to the architecture of the building and to look at adding some additional striping and 


darkening the colors.  Again, this is a development that’s going to be across from future 


residential, but right now there is residential and farm users that are directly to the west of this.  


And we feel that even though there’s going to be a lot of screening along 88th Avenue we want 


them to improve the appearance and corners and the visual appearance of what’s facing to the 


west. 


 


They have at this point asked for the certified survey map to be withdrawn until we can get all of 


the easement language and all of the final documents placed correctly on the certified survey 


map.  Maybe they’re working with respect to a further land division, I’m not sure.  They’ve just 


asked for this to be withdrawn at this time and be brought back at a subsequent meeting to the 


Plan Commission and to the Board. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Do you want this tabled or withdrawn? 


 


--: 


 


Tabled. 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Do you want to come up and just address that real quick just so that it’s on the record because I 


don’t have anything. 


 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


Does it have to go back to the Plan Commission, too? 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


22 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


No, it went to the Plan Commission. 


 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


But does it have to go back to the Plan Commission? 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


If we withdraw it.  It depends if it gets withdrawn or -- I’m not sure exactly what they are 


requesting. 


 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


If you table an item it would be tabled just to the next meeting. 


 


--: 


 


Which is when? 


 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


Which would be June 3rd, which everything would have to be done by May 28th.  So if you 


postpone it, but if it’s going to go back to Plan Commission then we can postpone it, it stays off 


the agenda until it’s ready to come back. 


 


Josh Wheeler: 


 


Okay, well let me ask you -- Josh Wheeler, Vice President Majestic Realty, 13181 Crossroads 


Parkway North, City of Industry, California.  The issue isn’t -- our engineer Adam is here also.  


With the floodplain boundary adjustment it’s with the Wisconsin DNR for their approval first.  


And the same staff that reviewed that is also reviewing the breach of the dam from the heavy 


rains a month ago.  And so it’s stuck in this kind of quagmire with them.  So we’re kind of at their 


mercy.  We’ve given them everything they want, and Adam can give a little more detail of 


timing, but we’re kind of at their mercy until they can overcome the issue that we’re taking care 


of now. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


You’re referring to the dam at Bong Recreation? 


 


Josh Wheeler: 


 


Yeah. 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


23 


 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


So did any of this affect the Plan Commission’s recommendation? 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


It would not affect the Plan Commission’s recommendation because they knew some of that 


information at the Plan Commission meeting.  So as a result the Plan Commission recommended 


approval subject to a number of these conditions being clarified and verified by the DNR with 


respect to the floodplain.  And we just got additional email from the DNR late last week, and they 


still haven’t addressed it.  So it’s up to the Board whether or not they would like to see this matter 


approved tonight subject to all those same conditions, or postpone for a week or withdraw it. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Apparently there’s a disconnect up in Madison on jobs. 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


I’d recommend that it be postponed until they’ve got some -- 


 


Josh Wheeler: 


 


Yes, I can’t answer when we’re going to get that, so I think postpone it until we receive all the 


documents for the floodplain. 


 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


Then it will stay off the agenda until it’s ready to come back on. 


 


Josh Wheeler: 


 


Okay, alright, thank you. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Alright.  Where were we? 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


I have a question.  Could this building ever be considered for a rail spur? 


 


 


 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


24 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


It could be but I think, again, I think there’d have to be some significant floodplain -- they would 


have to kind of rework their site for tracks coming in through the floodplain and modifying that.  


I guess it’s doable. 


 


Josh Wheeler: 


 


It could be but it would cost a lot of money.  It does go through a floodplain, and we would have 


to look at regrading.  But as of right now we’re not contemplating it.  If such a tenant needs it 


then I think we’d bring it back up. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


So you want approval on F, that’s the certified survey map. 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Actually not quite yet.  I have one other thing I wanted to talk about.  There were about six or 


seven items that we discussed as a staff right before the meeting this evening and with the 


developer this evening.  And I just wanted to bring this to your attention that we would like to 


make sure that these get considered as conditions of approval as well.  The first of which there 


was some question with respect to a stormwater and storm sewer that’s coming north and coming 


across the site.  And it looks like it’s just kind of directed and pointed at this location to the north.  


And that has raised some concerns.  And so we do want to see that particular matter clarified, 


redirected.  We don’t want it just to be spilled over -- even though they’re redirecting offsite 


water, we don’t want to just continue and dump directly offsite onto the adjacent land so that it 


creates any type of ponding or problem in this particular area for the property owner to the north.  


Do you want to add anything to that? 


 


Mike Spence: 


 


Yeah, in the engineering departments review of this I went back and looked at our comments, and 


we have made comments to the developer’s engineer to address the issue of it’s called a bypass 


storm sewer.  And we’ve asked them to take a look at that.  I also spoke with Adam Artz prior to 


the meeting to make him aware of that, that we need to address that. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Shouldn’t that water be retained as other water is? 


 


Mike Spence: 


 


This is actually water -- no, it’s existing, it’s not part of the new development.  It’s actually a 


bypass of the existing drainage from the area prior to the development.  So they’re not required to 


treat it for water quality. 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


25 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


What about for velocity of the bypass water? 


 


Mike Spence: 


 


That was the other thing that we said in our comments that they need to address where it’s going 


and also the potential for washouts and also flooding areas adjacent to the site. 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


And the next five items are items that had come up at the Plan Commission at the end, and then 


they were part of the conditions.  So they are in the conditions.  One is the colors of the building, 


we want to make sure they’re deep and not faded and light colors.  We want to make sure that 


they’re deeper colors, and adding additional striping on the building to give it a little bit more 


color on that building.  Bump outs at the two corners facing 88th Avenue.  The 70 foot setback 


for the parking lot for the cars on the north end.  The 90 foot setback on the north end for the 


trailer parking, both of which I scaled off their plans.  Extending that, making sure that the pines 


are extended across the full length of the trailer court parking as a buffering area to the land to the 


north.  One of the questions and again will need to be addressed is that storm sewer kind of dead 


ends right in the center of those pines.  So we need to make sure that gets addressed. 


 


And then one of the items that came up at the Plan Commission meeting was the neighbors on 


either side, basically on H on either side extending up, we wanted them to understand what the 


exact impact was going to be with respect to the widening for the turn lanes and for the bypass 


lane and such.  They’ve actually brought those plans with them this evening and are going to be 


contacting the impacted property owners, Mr. Dreger, Mr. Kevek, Mr. Steinbrink, and then Mr. 


Steinbrink to the north, and meet with them to show them specifically how that’s going to impact 


their properties and their driveways. 


 


And then one of the last things that was added after the Plan Commission meeting is they had 


questioned, and we’re not ready for this yet, but there’s an additional TIA, traffic impact analysis, 


that’s being conducted by the Village engineering department for this particular area and some off 


site transportation systems and intersections.  And one of the discussions is that each of the 


developments should be paying their fair share for the offsite intersection improvements whether 


they be roundabouts or other type of traffic improvements.  Not just the first one to the table gets 


a pass.  I mean everybody should be paying their fair share through a transportation improvement 


fee.   And that’s something we need to work out.  I don’t know what that fee is.  I know that 


they’ve asked for an estimate of that fee.  I don’t know what it is.  I don’t know if the engineer 


can give us a ballpark on that.  I don’t know that we can provide that at this point.  Everyone who 


is benefitting should be paying for a percentage of the cost to improve that intersection or either 


of those intersections at 95th or at Bain Station.  So those comments are all in the staff comments 


that you have.  I just wanted to bring those out and bring them to everyone’s attention. 


 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


26 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


So, Mr. President, what language are you proposing to effectuate this because right now as I’m 


reading it we’re agreeing to talk about it.  But I mean -- 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


All of the comments that I have addressed just now are in the staff comments right now with the 


exception of the very first one, and that one was the stormwater drainage at the northeast corner 


needs to be addressed.  So that’s the one that is not in the staff comments that you have and that 


the developer has that we do need to make some specific direction on as to what you would like 


them to do and how we want to get that approved. 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


So I guess my recommendation is that it would need to be addressed to the satisfaction of the 


Village engineer that whatever solution Adam prepares is viable and it’s going to meet our 


stormwater requirements.  You comfortable with that? 


 


--: 


 


Yes. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


What’s the speed limit on 88th Avenue right now? 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


45. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Okay, and there’s no lighting?  Now we’re going to have semis 24 hours a day coming and 


going?  I’m going to guess it is.  And I think the speed limit has to be addressed because these 


semis coming and going out of this facility are not going to go from 0 to 60 in three seconds.  


And I think there’s got to be a certain amount of lighting that should be considered in that area so 


people can see these trucks traversing across the road. 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


I think that’s one of the other items.  As Jean indicated we’re doing a broader area TIA analysis in 


there.  I think maybe that’s one of the recommendations that we’ve got to get out of there, if that 


recommended speed is 35 and what that ends up looking like.  One of the problems that we’re 


kind of faced with is this thing is on a faster track than the TIA is.  That’s going out to -- it’s out 


to bid right now.  We’re waiting to award it which means we’re still a ways away from the 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


27 


findings of it.  So as those findings are put together, Jean’s comments are that it should be 


conditioned on their acceptance of those recommended findings.  I mean right now we can’t even 


tell them what those are.  But we’re going to need to have some result. 


 


I know we had some initial concerns about the initial traffic study that was prepared by their 


consulting engineer, and that’s one of the reasons we folded that into an existing program that 


we’re going to do ourselves.  I just don’t want any heartburn on everybody’s part that when we 


actually come up with the numbers and we evaluate.  Maybe one of the solutions is for the traffic 


the speed to come down to 35 that’s going to kind of trigger different types of improvements that 


happen along there whether it be lighting or how long the bypass lane is or what have you.  Right 


now that’s a major unknown.  What we do know is what their traffic study produced, but we have 


some concerns about how that was conducted. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


And what time of day and what day. 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


When the traffic counts were taken and the time of day and then what day of the week those were 


taken or the time of the year.  Kenosha County has been working with us.  They’ve done traffic 


counts with their equipment, and the numbers have gone up from what was received in the study.  


I don’t want a position where we’re telling Majestic or anybody else you’re here first or you’re 


going to pay for everything.  And we also don’t want to say you’re here first so you don’t have to 


pay for anything.  But we need to arrive at what the impacts are and arrive at a proportionate 


share making sure it can work.  Maybe something doesn’t get constructed right away, but there’s 


a commitment that whatever improvements are made. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Just one other comment on the traffic if you want to consider something, the solar power, maybe 


a flashing yellow as a caution for both directions north and south to alert people.  I just can 


imagine, I mean you’ve got a 35 mile an hour speed limit is going to enforceable somewhere 


around 45.  If you keep it at 45 it’s going to be enforceable around 55.  So it’s definitely got to be 


addressed.  And I think the lighting and the caution notification should be a part of this.  It’s a 


huge building, it’s going to be busy, great, but let’s make sure it’s as safe as it can be also. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


My concerns over there is we have Lakeview Academy with traffic from the kids.  And that’s 35 


miles an hour right now. 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


Right there. 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


28 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


As they go south to 165. 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


Right.  This would be extending it up to Bain Station or probably up to C. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


Okay, and enforce it. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


The majority of their traffic is [inaudible]. 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


For Lakeview. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


We’re acting on Items E and G and we’re going to table Item F.  You want us to table F first? 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


Postpone it. 


 


Josh Wheeler: 


 


Are we postponing? 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Yes. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Item E I would move approval of Resolution 13-11. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


Second. 


 


 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


29 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Mike, second by Steve.  Any further discussion? 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Subject to the comments and conditions? 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Yes. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


Yes. 


 


 SERPE MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION  


RECOMMENDATION AND ADOPT RESOLUTION #13-11 FOR A FLOODPLAIN  


BOUNDARY ADJUSTMENT ON A 91 ACRE VACANT PROPERTY LOCATED ON THE EAST  


SIDE OF 88TH AVENUE SOUTH OF BAIN STATION ROAD, SUBJECT TO THE  


CONDITIONS SET FORTH BY STAFF; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION  


CARRIED 5-0. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Item G then?  Item F? 


 


Clyde Allen: 


 


Make a motion to postpone Item F. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Clyde, second by Mike.  Any further discussion?   


 


 ALLEN MOVED TO POSTPONE ITEM F RELATING TO  A CERTIFIED SURVEY 


MAP OF THE VACANT 91 ACRE PROPERTY GENERALLY LOCATED APPROXIMATELY 


¼ MILE SOUTH OF BAIN STATION ROAD ON THE EAST SIDE OF 88TH AVENUE FOR 


THE PROPOSED 1.2 MILLION SQUARE FOOT WAREHOUSE AND DISTRIBUTION 


FACILITY TO BE KNOWN AS MAJESTIC BADGER LOGISTIC CENTER; SECONDED BY 


SERPE; MOTION CARRIE 5-0. 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


30 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Now we’re at Item G. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


Motion to approve Ordinance 13-18 and 13-19. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Monica, second by Steve.  Any further discussion on those 13-18 and 13-19. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


Mr. President, I’d just would like to add with the conditions set forth. 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


In this evening’s meeting as well as the conditions on the staff memorandum. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


Correct. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


Yes. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Item G with conditions on 13-18 and 13-19.  Now is there further discussion?   


 


 YUHAS MOVED TO CONCUR WITH THE PLAN COMMISSION 


RECOMMENDATION AND ADOPT ORDINANCES #13-18 AND #13-19 TO AMEND THE 


ZONING MAP TO ADD A PUD PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT OVERLAY DISTRICT 


AND A ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT TO CREATE THE SPECIFIC PLANNED UNIT 


DEVELOPMENT (PUD) DISTRICT ON THE VACANT 91 ACRE PROPERTY GENERALLY 


LOCATED APPROXIMATELY ¼ MILE SOUTH OF BAIN STATION ROAD ON THE EAST 


SIDE OF 88TH AVENUE FOR THE PROPOSED 1.2 MILLION SQUARE FOOT WAREHOUSE  


 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


31 


AND DISTRIBUTION FACILITY TO BE KNOWN AS MAJESTIC BADGER LOGISTIC 


CENTER, SUBJECT TO ALL THE CONDITIONS SET FORTH BY STAFF IN THE MEMO 


AND THOSE JUST DISCUSSED; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-


0. 
 


 H. Consider the request for a one (1) year extension of the Conceptual Plan for the 


proposed Paradise Lake Subdivision on the properties generally located south of 


104th Street and 22nd Avenue. 
 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


Mr. President and members of the Board, this is a request from Lou Tricoli, developer and owner, 


for another one year extension for the conceptual plan for the proposed Paradise Lake 


Subdivision.  Again, this development is proposed south of 104th Street at about 22nd Avenue.  


They have received one year extensions in the past.  Again, since 2008 things have been 


somewhat depressed from the economic standpoint with respect to new single family 


developments.  And so they are asking for again one more one year extension to April 21, 2014 


subject to all of the conditions that are on file with the community development department.  In 


addition, the preliminary plat will need to comply with any new Village ordinance requirements 


that may be in effect since the Village’s initial 2008 conditional approval. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


I’ll make a motion to approve the request subject to the conditions. 


 


Clyde Allen: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Steve, second by Clyde.  Any further discussion on this item?   


 


 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO APPROVE THE REQUEST FOR A ONE (1) YEAR 


EXTENSION OF THE CONCEPTUAL PLAN FOR THE PROPOSED PARADISE LAKE 


SUBDIVISION ON THE PROPERTIES GENERALLY LOCATED SOUTH OF 104TH STREET 


AND 22ND AVENUE; SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 


 


 I. Consider a professional engineering services agreement to design the construction, 


utilities and grading for the 116th Avenue extension. 
 


Mike Spence: 


 


Mr. President and members of the Board, the Village is proposing to extend 116th Avenue south 


approximately a quarter mile to allow for potential development.  What we’re talking about right 


here this is the overall -- I have a better figure for you.  This is I-94, this is 165, this is 118th 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


32 


Street, this is Corporate Drive.  The Premium Outlets are right here.  This is 120th Avenue.  This 


is the existing Premium Outlets.  The existing 116th Avenue ends right just in back of the 


Premium Outlets there.  And there’s been interest in developing this area.  So we are a looking at 


providing the infrastructure to allow that to happen.  So as I had indicated it was about a quarter 


mile of a road here that would temporarily end in a cul-de-sac for now.  And then this work by 


the Village would also include the provision of there is water in the existing street, we’d be 


extending that southward as well as sanitary sewer would then flow northward into the existing 


gravity sewer that’s existing. 


 


What you see here in this site is a potential layout of two buildings that could fit in this area.  The 


project that we’re looking at also would include the retention.  This is a lower area of the site, so 


the stormwater from this area as well as from the new roadway would extend through a sewer to 


the east.  To design this work I asked for proposals from two consultants, Clark Dietz and 


Crispell-Snyder.  I got scopes from both of them.  I also asked them for a price proposal.  And the 


estimated not to exceed fee from Crispell-Snyder was $105,600.  And the fee from Clark Dietz 


was $119,000.  They’re both qualified firms, so based on the prices that I received I’d 


recommend that the Village enter into a contract with Crispell-Snyder to design these 


infrastructure improvements for future development in this area.  It’s adjacent to the TID. 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


Just to set some context to this, what’s up there is conceptually what could be placed.  The 


Village concurrently is working on, and I believe the Plan Commission will be considering a 


proposed zoning ordinance for a manufacturing district to be created.  And what we’re looking to 


do is create in this case in addition to tax increment district and taking advantage of utilities that 


we already have in the area and being able to create a new addition to the TIF district that would 


supply manufacturing facilities where jobs would come here that would be of a manufacturing 


nature.  This wouldn’t be a warehouse district.  It would be something that would provide an area 


where more jobs could take place.  It would be close to some of the existing amenities that are out 


there, and we’re going to be looking at some other areas.  So really we’re not designing this for 


any specific user at this time, although it could be.  We’re going to work at this to create in part 


the numbers we’re going to be able to use to evaluate the impact on the TIF district and the 


impact on the tax base for the Village as well as for the TIF district. 


 


We think based on discussions we’ve had with a number of developers in the area that there is a 


market for this.  We think that being proactive in identifying the areas where we can 


accommodate additional development, future development and have that development be of a 


nature that’s manufacturing more than warehousing can be accomplished successfully.  And it’s 


going to be a wise and prudent use of the land resources we have that have not been developed 


yet but are developable.  So in approving this contract tonight that’s really where we’re heading 


with this.  Although somebody could come in and say they want to develop that site, we’re really 


looking more at the big picture.  Mike had identified sanitary sewer.  We’re going to take a look 


at more than just this site here.  We’re going to look at a broader area that we need to know as we 


plan this thing out how much sewer capacity we have and where would a lift station be and things 


like that.  


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


33 


I think it’s a good move for the Village to be able to position ourselves to be able to 


accommodate additional construction for a manufacturing use or uses in that area, and it would be 


in an area that wouldn’t affect residential users nearby, and the commercial amenities are also 


there.  We don’t have a developer we’re working with, but we do want to take and make sure 


these land uses are put under the proper zoning so that we can protect the land that’s there and 


have it develop in a manner that we want to have.  And I think, Jean, this will probably come 


back to the Board at the next Board meeting or two Board meetings? 


 


Jean Werbie-Harris: 


 


June 17th. 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


June 17th.  So this is just a small piece of a bigger project that we’re working on.  But I think 


there’s a lot of good potential in this area for us to accomplish this.  So I’d recommend that the 


contract be awarded to Crispell-Snyder to support Mike’s recommendation. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


So moved. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Steve, second by Monica.  Any further discussion? 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Whoever’s idea this was it’s good visionary, whoever thought about this. 


 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


It was a group effort. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion and a second.  No further discussion.   


 


 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL ENGINEERING 


SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH CRISPELL-SNYDER TO DESIGN THE CONSTRUCTION, 


UTILITIES AND GRADING FOR THE 116TH AVENUE EXTENSION; SECONDED BY 


YUHAS; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


34 


 


 J. Consider professional services agreement to perform a traffic impact analysis for 


the Lakeview Corporate Park. 
 


Mike Spence: 


 


Mr. President and members of the Board, as was alluded to earlier this evening there are a 


number of developments that are being constructed or planned for the LakeView Corporate Park.  


Previous discussions centered on Majestic.  And we have decided that it really makes sense to 


have a comprehensive traffic study of the entire corporate park so that we can adequately plan for 


the traffic and we can look at the existing intersections to determine what the geometry should be 


with the future improvements and so forth. 


 


Some of the developments, just to get an indication, again we mentioned Majestic.  The Meijer 


Distribution Center which is number one there, TaChen International which is number three down 


there, the Zilber property which is right there, the former Wrought Washer building which is 


down there, number five, and then go to the next drawing.  Well, I guess it’s on this one, too.  


Then we have the park and ride there.  And then we’re looking, like we said, right now those 


intersections just east of the Interstate, Corporate Drive and the existing east frontage road and for 


the development that we may do that may happen in that area to the south. 


 


So it makes sense to do a comprehensive.  I’ve worked with the DOT, their traffic person, to 


devise a scope and to make sure everything is comprehensive.  Because the plan that we want 


ultimately once this traffic study is done this can also be a vehicle to allow the Village and/or 


developments to obtain grant T Grant funding for transportation improvements for new 


businesses that bring in jobs.  So it’s all connected here. 


 


With that said I went out for proposals from consultants for three firms.  Two firms did respond.  


The third firm that didn’t respond said they were too busy and couldn’t serve us as quickly as we 


needed.  The two firms that responded were Crispell-Snyder and Traffic Analysis & Design, 


Incorporated, TADI for short.  So I asked for a scope to determine the existing level of service, 


the future conditions level of service, crash analysis on the arterials.  They would also look at 


traffic counts and really look at a comprehensive management plan for the area.  It was 


mentioned, too, about Majestic and some of the timing for the peak hours.  One of the things that 


I want to make sure that that doesn’t happen again I’m going to be working very closely with, 


should this go forward, the consultant to make sure that their analysis is consistent with where 


and when our peak hours are to make sure that they’ve got it adequately addressed.   


 


So with that, like I said, I received two proposals.  Again, I did ask for a price.  The price from 


Traffic Analysis & Design was $26,966.  The proposal from Crispell-Snyder was over $50,000.  


It’s one of these things where I’ve gone back and forth.  I’ve analyzed both proposals, and I think 


Crispell-Snyder may have -- they had their new firm that they’ve merged with help with this, and 


I don’t know if they just blew it in terms of their hours or their costs.  But the proposal that I have 


is consistent with everything that we need and the hours that I think are legitimate.  So I would 


recommend that the contract for Traffic Analysis & Design be approved and we move forward 


with the traffic impact analysis.  I’d be glad to answer any questions. 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


35 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Questions?  Then a motion is in order. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Move to concur with the engineer’s recommendation. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Mike, second by Monica.  Any further discussion?   


 


 SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH 


TRAFFIC ANALYSIS AND DESIGN TO PERFORM A TRAFFIC IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR 


THE LAKEVIEW CORPORATE PARK; SECONDED BY YUHAS; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 


 


 K. Consider renewal of an Agreement with the Kenosha County Humane Society, d/b/a 


Safe Harbor Humane Society, for impoundment services. 
 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


Mr. President, we received a proposed contract from Safe Harbor.  They’ve requested a 10 


percent increase because of a new law that’s been adopted that affects how they provide 


veterinary services.  So that 10 percent increase would begin July 13th.  We, too, have an act that 


limits how much money we can spend.  On the other hand I don’t know who else is going to 


provide this service for us.  So my recommendation is that the Village enter into a contract with 


Safe Harbor for a period of one year. 


 


Monica Yuhas: 


 


Motion to renew the agreement with Safe Harbor. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Monica, second by Steve.  Any further discussion?   


 


  







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


36 


YUHAS MOVED TO APPROVE THE RENEWAL OF AN AGREEMENT WITH THE  


KENOSHA COUNTY HUMANE SOCIETY, D/B/A SAFE HARBOR HUMANE SOCIETY, FOR  


IMPOUNDMENT SERVICES; SECONDED BY KUMORKIEWICZ; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 
 


 L. Consider Board of Review and Police Commission appointments. 
 


Mike Pollocoff: 


 


Mr. President, I’m recommending that Bill Morris be appointed to the Board of Review as 


Alternate Number 1 for a term that would end May 1, 2016.  I haven’t been able to get ahold of 


Roger Mayer, so I’m asking that the Commission hold off on that appointment at this time until 


I’m able to visit with him. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


He’s in Florida right now. 


 


Michael Serpe: 


 


Move approval of Bill Morris and withhold or postpone Roger Mayer. 


 


Clyde Allen: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion and a second, motion by Mike, second by Clyde.  Any further discussion?   


 


 SERPE MOVED TO APPROVE THE APPOINTMENT OF BILL MORRIS TO THE 


BOARD OF REVIEW AND POSTPONE THE APPOINTMENT OF ROGER MAYER TO THE 


POLICE & FIRE COMMISSION; SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 


 


 M. Consider Operator License Applications on file. 
 


Jane Romanowski: 


 


Two applications tonight, Patrick Cook and Manuel Reyes, and I would recommend approval of 


both. 


 


Steve Kumorkiewicz: 


 


So moved. 


 


 


 







Village Board Meeting 


May 20, 2013 


 


 


37 


Clyde Allen: 


 


Second. 


 


John Steinbrink: 


 


Motion by Steve, second by Clyde.  Further discussion? 


 


 KUMORKIEWICZ MOVED TO APPROVE THE OPERATOR LICENSE 


APPLICATIONS FOR PATRICK COOK AND MANUEL REYES; SECONDED BY ALLEN; 


MOTION CARRIED 5-0. 


 


9. VILLAGE BOARD COMMENTS – None. 


 


10. ADJOURNMENT 
 


 SERPE MOVED TO ADJOURN THE MEETING; SECONDED BY ALLEN; MOTION 


CARRIED AND MEETING ADJOURNED AT 7:20 P.M. 







MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO:   Village Board of Trustees 
 
FROM:  Jane M. Romanowski 


Village Clerk 
 
DATE:  May 17, 2013 
 
RE:   Liquor License Renewal Application – Holiday Inn Express 
 
 
Jatin Patel, Agent, for OM Hospitality Corporation, has submitted an application to renew the 
“Class B” Intoxicating and Class “B” Fermented Malt Beverage License for the Holiday Inn 
Express, 7887 94th Avenue, Pleasant Prairie. 
 
All inspections have been completed and there are no outstanding code violations at this time. 
There all also no delinquencies with respect to this property.   
 
I recommend the license for the Holiday Inn Express be renewed for the July 1, 2013 through 
June 30, 2014 licensing term subject to the payment of license and publication fees. 
 


* * * * * 







             


9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.925.6730  FAX 262.694.4734 


Office of the Village  
Director of Human Resources 


Carol Willke  


 


 TO: Village Board 


  Michael Pollocoff, Village Administrator 


 


 From:  Carol Willke, Director of Recreation 


 


 RE:   Recreation Master Plan 


 


 


 Consider adoption of the 2012-2016 Recreation Master Plan.  
 


 In 2012, the Village contracted with Public Research Group from Naperville, IL to identify the future 


 recreational needs of the Village of Pleasant Prairie. The fact finding process included a survey to 


 RecPlex members as well as village residents, public hearings, and in-depth discussions with 


 recreational management staff.   


 


 The major recommendations that emerged from the study include: 


 


 Reconsider the role of the Recreation Commission to recreation services beyond the RecPlex 


 Consider revising the organizational structure of the RecPlex to focus on the member 


experience 


 Study ways to identify members at risk and implement programs to keep membership levels 


high 


 Consider expansion to the RecPlex for childcare and education services 


 Seek to grow sports in both youth and adult categories 


 Develop a focus of programs that center on wellness and healthy lifestyles for children, adults, 


families and seniors. 


  


 In addition to these overall recommendations, the plan identifies Goals and Objectives for the 


 following categories: Administrative, Membership, Programs, Marketing, and Capital 


 Improvement. 
  


 The Recreation Commission and Village staff recommends adopting the 2012-2016 Recreation 


 Master Plan. 


  


  















Prepared By:


9915 39th Avenue
Pleasant Prairie, WI 53158


(262) 694-1400


1280 Iroquois Avenue
Suite 110


Naperville, IL 60563











Acknowledgements


v ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Village Board


John P. Steinbrink, Sr. - Village President          


Monica M. Yuhas- Trustee # 1            


Steve R. Kumorkiewicz- Trustee # 2           


Clyde R. Allen- Trustee # 3             


Michael J. Serpe- Trustee # 4                          
 


Village Staff 


Michael R. Pollocoff-  Village Administrator


Thomas G. Shircel- Assistant Village Administrator


Jane M. Romanowski- Village Clerk


Jean M. Werbie-Harris- Community Development 
Director


Peggy K. Herrick- Assistant Planner/


Assistant Zoning Administrator


Mike Spence, P.E., - Village Engineer


Recreation Staff


Carol Willke - Director of Recreation


Chris Finkel - Business Director


Lyn Boehm - Programs Director/Fitness


Tom Patrizzi - Facilities Director


Brian Luburich - Ice Operations Director


Erin Winch - Therapeutic Recreation Director


Melissa Santell - Youth Director


  


Recreation Commission


Gregory J. Scheppler- Chairperson


Travis S. Laib- Vice Chairperson  


Clyde R. Allen- Secretary


John Bealer


John D. Skalbeck


Robert C. Marfechuk


Esteban (Steve) R. Kumorkiewicz


Schuyler Mason- Alternate # 1


Kate Field- Alternate # 2











Table of Contents


vii ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Chapters            Page
Executive Summary


1.0 Introduction .......................................................................................................................... 1
 The Rationale for Planning
 Previous Planning Efforts
 This Planning Effort
 Goals of the Plan
 Format of the Plan
 Statement of Philosophy


2.0 Community Demographics ................................................................................................ 6
 Geographic Location
 Village History
 Population Characteristics
 Land Use Planning & Projections for Growth


3.0 Current Environment ............................................................................................................ 10
 The RecPlex Facility
 RecPlex Programming
 The RecPlex Administrative System
 The RecPlex Financial System
 The Availability of Capital Funding


4.0 Community Needs ............................................................................................................... 25
 Feedback Concepts
 Recreation Commission Visioning
 Staff Visioning
 Member & Community Surveys
 Public Meetings
 Data Analysis Conclusions


5.0 Goals & Objectivs for the Recreation Department ........................................................... 68
 How Goals & Objectives are Formulated
 Administrative Goals
 Membership Goals
 Program Goals
 Marketing Goals
 Capital Improvement Goals


6.0 Plan Implementation ........................................................................................................... 77
 


Appendix .......................................................................................................................................... 81







Table of Figures


viii ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Figures            Page


2.1 Geographic Location ........................................................................................................... 6
2.2 Land Use Plan ........................................................................................................................ 9
3.1 RecPlex Floor plan ................................................................................................................. 12
3.2 RecPlex Usage Diagram ....................................................................................................... 13
3.3 Reasons for Cancellation ..................................................................................................... 14
3.4 Recreation Programming Totals .......................................................................................... 16
3.5 RecPlex Administrative System ............................................................................................ 18
3.6 Preschool Addition First Floor ............................................................................................... 23
3.7 Preschool Addition Second Floor ........................................................................................ 23
4.1 Survey Responses .................................................................................................................. 27
4.2 Survey Responses Map ......................................................................................................... 29
4.3 Member Residency ............................................................................................................... 30
4.4 Demographics ....................................................................................................................... 30
4.5 Lake Andrea Beach Usage .................................................................................................. 31
4.6 Survey Response by Age ...................................................................................................... 32
4.7 Years as a RecPlex Member ................................................................................................ 33
4.8 Commute from Home to the RecPlex ................................................................................ 34
4.9 RecPlex Membership - Resident Survey .............................................................................. 35
4.10 RecPlex Membership - Member Survey .............................................................................. 35
4.11 Satisfaction with RecPlex Programs - General Public ....................................................... 36
4.12 RecPlex Programs Correlation ............................................................................................. 37
4.13 Satisfaction with Fitness Programs ....................................................................................... 37
4.14 Satisfaction with Fitness Programs ....................................................................................... 38
4.15 Satisfaction with Ice Skating Programs ............................................................................... 38
4.16 Satisfaction with Ice Skating Programs ............................................................................... 39
4.17 Satisfaction with Aquatic Programs .................................................................................... 39
4.18 Satisfaction with Aquatic Programs .................................................................................... 40
4.19 Satisfaction with Childcare & Education Programs .......................................................... 40
4.20 Satisfaction with Childcare & Education Programs .......................................................... 41
4.21 Satisfaction with Sports Programs ........................................................................................ 41
4.22 Satisfaction with Sports Programs ........................................................................................ 41
4.23 Satisfaction with Camp Programs ....................................................................................... 42
4.24 Satisfaction with Camp Programs ....................................................................................... 43
4.25 Participation at the RecPlex or Elsewhere .......................................................................... 44
4.26 Reasons for Going Elsewhere ............................................................................................... 45
4.27 Participation of the General Public in Special Events ....................................................... 46
4.28 Activities in the Parks ............................................................................................................. 47
4.29 Fitness Center Usage Each Month ...................................................................................... 48
4.30 Fitness Center Programs by Members ................................................................................. 48
4.31 How to Engage Members in Fitness Center Programs ...................................................... 49
4.32 Ice Skating Programs by Members ..................................................................................... 50
4.33 How to Engage Members in Ice Skating Programs ........................................................... 51
4.34 Aquatic Programs by Members ........................................................................................... 51
4.35 How to Engage Members in Aquatic Programs ................................................................ 52
4.36 Importance of 50 Meter Pool .............................................................................................. 52
4.37 Childcare & Education Program Participation .................................................................. 53







Table of Figures


ix ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


4.38 How to Engage Members in Childcare & Education Programs ...................................... 54
4.39 Sport Programs Members Intend to Enroll .......................................................................... 54
4.40 How to Engage Members in Sports Programs ................................................................... 55
4.41 Participation in Camps ......................................................................................................... 55
4.42 How to Engage Members in Camps ................................................................................... 56
4.43 Reasons for Joining the RecPlex .......................................................................................... 57
4.44 Member Usage of Lake Andrea Beach ............................................................................. 57
4.45 General Public Usage of Lake Andrea Beach ................................................................... 58
4.46 Lake Andrea Amenities to Increase Usage ........................................................................ 59
4.47 Comparative Usage of Beaches ........................................................................................ 60
4.48 Improvements to Lake Michigan Beach ............................................................................ 60
4.49 Familiarity with Park & Recreation Services ........................................................................ 61
4.50 How Residents Hear about Services .................................................................................... 62
4.51 How Members Hear about Services .................................................................................... 63
4.52 Registration for RecPlex Programs ....................................................................................... 63
4.53 Customer Experience ........................................................................................................... 64
4.54 Is Members Parking Only a Benefit? .................................................................................... 65
4.55 Is $20 a Fair Price for Lifetime Parking? ............................................................................... 65
6.1 Strategic Direction Pyramid ................................................................................................. 78
6.2 Implementation Plan ............................................................................................................ 79











Executive Summary


xi ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department has identified the need to craft a 2012-2016 Recreation 
Master Plan (“Plan”) addressing the future of recreation within the Village. Currently the Village of Pleasant 
Prairie’s Recreation and Parks Departments are two separate entities, with the Parks Department being 
a part of Public Works Division. Public Research Group is also working on developing an update to the 
current Parks and Open Space Plan. The thought behind this approach of having one consultant perform 
both planning studies is that common ground would be identified and a set of stronger plans could be 
developed by searching for opportunities for collaboration and most importantly, cooperation between 
the two separate entities.  
 
The core topics that were clearly identified and fundamental to the future are:


The internal employee organizational structure of the RecPlex should be further studied and possibly 
refined.


The member retention rate for the RecPlex needs to improve.


Further capital improvements at the RecPlex should be considered.


A fit, active recreation lifestyle based on a wellness initiative would fit within the direction of the 
RecPlex.


New programming is needed to evolve to keep the RecPlex well positioned with the leisure services 
market.   


The needs assessment process provided valuable public opinion as well as member feedback. The survey 
results provide insights into recreational needs and wants of the both the village residents and users of the 
RecPlex complex.  They include;


Village residents make-up 1/3 of RecPlex memberships


Fitness center is the number one reason to join the RecPlex 


Both group fitness classes and the fitness center are of equal value and use


Pricing is the primary obstacle to increased RecPlex fitness program use


Special events had a positive response and should be considered in the future


Aquatic programs and childcare are well received and successful


Camps and sports programs could be expanded


Customer service ratings could be improved to move more towards higher rankings of excellent


Camps and sports are areas that provide opportunities for growth


 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







Executive Summary


xii ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


In review of all the layers of data from the sources of input to gather information, the major recommendations 
for this plan include;


Reconsider the role of the Recreation Commission to recreation services beyond the RecPlex


Consider revising the organizational structure of the RecPlex to focus on the member experience


Study ways to identify members at risk and implement programs to keep membership levels high


Consider expansion of the RecPlex for childcare and education services


Seek to grow sports in both youth and adults categories


Develop a focus of programs that center on wellness and healthy lifestyles for children, adults, families 
and seniors 


These plans can be viewed as a roadmap for the future. The recreational offerings and the RecPlex facility 
are a successful model to learn from. The goals and objectives identified are vital for continued success. 
However, these can change as this plan runs its course. The plan should be reviewed on a regular basis and 
be adjusted as the need calls for. There is a need to continue to evaluate everything the RecPlex does by 
investing into on-going research. The primary type of research would be market research since the facility 
is run within a heavy business model platform. The most important aspect to any planning initiative is to 
discover the core issues and then seek out solutions to continually work better.


•


•


•


•


•


•







1.0 Introduction


1 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The Rationale for Planning
 
At the local governmental level in Wisconsin, recreation services are provided by cities, villages, towns, and 
school districts, sometimes as stand alone departments, sometimes combined with park services as separate 
departments and sometimes combined with park services as divisions of public works departments.  


Funding for recreation services are partially the responsibility of the taxpayers within those jurisdictions.  In 
the case of school districts, Recreation Departments are supported by Fund 80 tax revenues which the 
districts can levy at no limit.  As part of municipalities, when recreation services are combined with park 
services, the departments or divisions are usually part of the general fund.  But in most cases, a substantial 
portion of municipal or school district Recreation Department or division operating budgets are generated 
from fees and charges.  


Planning for parks and open space is required by the State of Wisconsin to be grant eligible for matching 
capital improvement grants.  Grant funding is awarded on the total points an agency receives compared 
to other applicants.  Points for grants are awarded based on how current the department’s plan is and how 
much public input was gathered to create it.  
 
Planning for recreation services is not required by the State of Wisconsin.  In the case of Pleasant Prairie, 
which provides parks and recreation services separately, with park services as a division of the public 
works department and recreation services as a stand alone department, parks and recreation planning 
is a different process than it is for other Wisconsin municipalities.  In the case of park planning, parks are a 
component of land use planning whereas recreation planning is more like strategic planning.


The reason recreation planning in Pleasant Prairie needs to be strategic is that nearly all recreation services 
emanate from the RecPlex.  This 40 plus million dollar facility is operated from an enterprise fund and is 
totally self-supporting, not only covering operating costs from fee revenue, but also servicing the capital 
construction long term bond costs.  


The RecPlex changes recreational planning compared to most other Wisconsin communities.  Whereas 
the park and recreation planning is an agreement between the public, elected officials, appointed park 
commission, and staff about how parks need to be operated as agreed upon strategies for meeting public 
needs.  This strategic recreation master planning process needs to focus on the business of providing 
recreation services and how revenues can be generated to support operations and debt servicing.      
 
This plan, as a government master plan, still needs to embrace the rationale for planning as democratic 
governance.  But it also needs to focus on the efficient provision of recreational services, how the 
organization needs to adapt itself to the marketplace and how it can meet customer needs at a fair price 
for its services. 
 







2 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


This chapter of the plan begins with a discussion of the most recent previous planning efforts.  This chapter 
then discusses the purpose of this planning effort, the goals of the plan itself, the format of the planning 
document, and presents a general statement of philosophy that represents the overarching values of the 
Village of Pleasant Prairie.  
 
The chapter concludes with a brief discussion of the willingness of the staff and elected officials to deliver 
services to the community that will improve the quality of life in a changing environment, meeting the 
challenges of the future, what the RecPlex needs to do to continue to be successful financially, and what 
other services the community needs and how the Recreation Department can deliver them.


Previous Planning Efforts
 
The Recreation Department of the Village of Pleasant Prairie has not completed recreational master 
planning beyond the level of doing feasibility studies for the original development and expansion of the 
RecPlex.  These studies were market analyses that focused on reasonable expectations that if the Village 
built the original facility or expanded it, would customers emerge and the revenues necessary to support 
operations and service debt would emerge.  
 
Without going into a lengthy review of those studies, it is evident that they had merit.  The Village of Pleasant 
Prairie built the RecPlex and people came to use it.  Today the RecPlex is an $8 million per year revenue 
generator serving 5,000 households and 13,000 members that supports its operating and capital costs.  The 
studies were on target.  
 
It should be noted that formal recreational planning documents have not been previously developed does 
not mean that the Village has failed to do recreational planning.  Recreational planning has been done 
by the recreation staff, Recreation Commission and Village Board through the development of the annual 
operating budget and through capital planning that takes place before expansion projects occur. 


On the other hand, a more formal process is needed at this time.  The RecPlex has been open for the past 
decade.  It is a success, but like any successful story, more could be done to improve its performance.  This 
is the reason why formal planning needs to be done and is the rationale for this plan.
  
This Planning Effort
 
This planning effort is systematic in the way it approaches the planning process.  It is also more strategic 
in identifying challenges confronting the RecPlex and recreation programs and offering solutions to these 
challenges.  Being strategic, this plan focuses on customer needs and how to meet them. 


This plan goes beyond the focus on RecPlex customer needs.  It also focuses on the recreational needs of 
the general public that are not RecPlex customers and how to meet their needs as well.  The reason this plan 
goes beyond just RecPlex planning is that, as the community has grown, new residents have brought with 







3 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


them an expectation that Pleasant Prairie needs to have the same recreational activities available in other 
communities that contribute to their quality of life. 


The different challenge with meeting unmet needs is that there may not be fee revenues available to meet 
them.  Most of the programs being offered at the RecPlex that could generate revenues are already being 
offered.  The ones that are not being offered are the ones which do not support themselves through fee 
revenue generation. 


Such is the challenge of developing a recreational master plan.  How can additional recreational services be 
offered without cutting into the operating budgets of other Village Departments?  To offer new recreational 
services means making them happen without costing the Village more money.  


Contained in the following sections of this plan are demographics, an overview of the RecPlex programs 
and an assessment of these services.  The community’s needs are presented, beginning with results from 
detailed telephone, mail, email and online surveys, including a survey to over 1,000 of the 5,000 member 
households. Staff input and Recreation Commission sentiments are included along with the results from 
meetings with interest and user groups.  
 
Sufficient evidence will be presented to justify the goals and objectives presented in Chapter 5 of this plan.  
The goals are divided into categories: administrative goals, facility goals, and program goals, covering 
more than just capital needs.
 
The final section of this plan presents the timing and organizational changes required to the RecPlex goals.  
The final chapter is the most important section of the plan.  It is a timeline for building a better agency.  
Without it, the plan is simply an interesting document that may or may not become reality.  With a timeline 
for implementation, the plan may actually happen. 


Goals of the Plan
 
An important goal of this plan is to be consistent with the mission of the Pleasant Prairie Recreation 
Department, a mission which was established by the Recreation Commission and staff and which Public 
Research Group sees no need in changing.  The mission of the Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department is 
articulated as the following:
 
The ultimate goal of the Recreation Department is to provide as many recreation services as are economically 
feasible, operate the RecPlex on a break-even basis, and contribute to the quality of life of Pleasant Prairie 
in a positive healthy way.  
 
With that being the goal of the Pleasant Prairie Village Board, Planning and Recreation Commission, the 
question is how to do it.  What tasks should the Recreation Department focus on, in what priority should the 
division perform these tasks, and how should the Village of Pleasant Prairie pay for them to be implemented?  







4 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


That is the simple goal of this plan; to figure out what to do, in what order and how to pay for it. 


Format of the Plan
 
The format of this plan is that it is divided into six chapters with a lengthy Appendix at the end.  The first 
chapter is this introductory chapter, one that concludes with a statement of the overall philosophy of parks 
and recreation service delivery.  The second chapter outlines the community demographics that explain 
the characteristics of the population that the Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department serves.


The third chapter reviews the current services offered by the Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department, 
including the administrative system of the department, its component of the Village’s financial system, how 
its facilities exist, and a review of the recreational services the division provides.  
 
Chapter four is the longest chapter, reviewing the needs of the community as determined by a number 
of data gathering techniques.  Included in these techniques are mail, telephone and email surveys, 
public meetings, and meetings with interest and user groups.  Analysis of the surveys uses quantitative and 
qualitative methods.  For the other data gathering techniques, only qualitative analysis is used.
 
Chapter five is the heart and soul of this plan.  In chapter five, the goals and objectives for the next five 
years are presented.  These goals are organized into five categories: administration, membership, program, 
marketing and capital improvement goals.  As the most important section of this plan, it is essential that the 
goals and objectives represent the needs of the residents of Pleasant Prairie and take into consideration the 
understandings of the Commission and staff.
 
The sixth chapter of this plan is the section dedicated to plan implementation.  In order for the goals and 
objectives to be meaningful, they also need to be feasible.  Chapter six offers strategies and funding sources 
for implementing those goals that cost money, and for those that do not, the timing of their implementation 
is the most essential element of their feasibility.
 
It is important that readers of this plan understand that there is a treasure trove of information in the Appendix 
of this study.  The reason it is there is it would be too cumbersome for it to be included in the narrative of the 
six chapters of this plan, but it is important as support information and needs to be somewhere.


Statement of Philosophy
 
The Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department Division has a philosophy of serving the recreational needs of the 
community that is closely aligned with a definition of its mission.  Stated simply, the Pleasant Prairie Recreation 
Department was established to serve the local community and general public in seeking those recreational 
and leisure needs that are not only a right but a necessity to the welfare of the general public.







5 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department services are designed to establish the opportunity for everyone to 
enjoy and participate in varied activities. Programs and services are constantly reviewed and assessed for 
relevance in regards to public needs.


The Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department is also dedicated to maintaining the financial balance necessary 
to establish, maintain, and project future needs for community leisure services.  The division views all of its 
facilities and programs as a whole with their maintenance and implementation being done for the greater 
good of the entire community and general public.


The Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department is dedicated to maintaining the highest quality of professional 
staff possible to serve the general public.  The department also believes in the ongoing process of providing 
park services for the handicapped populations and to pursue handicapped accessibility for all its facilities 
whenever and wherever possible.  Continued input from the public will be constantly encouraged for the 
purpose of providing relevant and successful programs. 







2.0 Community Demographics


6 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Geographic Location 


Pleasant Prairie is located in southeastern Wisconsin in Kenosha County.  The village is bordered by the City 
of Kenosha on the north, Lake Michigan on the east and Lake County Illinois on the south, with Interstate 
94 the approximate western municipal boundary of the Village.  Pleasant Prairie is about 55 miles from the 
northern border of the City of Chicago and 35 miles from the southern border of Milwaukee.  


Village History
 
Pleasant Prairie originally was a town that was nearly 42 square miles in size. The community had its beginnings 
as a political entity in April 1842 when the first town meeting was held and the first election of town officials 
took place. Over the years, the City of Kenosha began to annex lands south of 60th Street and west from 
Lake Michigan, and the Town of Pleasant Prairie slowly reduced in size over the next 150 years as the City 
of Kenosha grew. 


As a Town, Pleasant Prairie constantly struggled to maintain its identity.  In 1961, the Town Hall moved from 


Figure 2.1







7 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


the former Williams Congregational Church site to rented office space in a small commercial center located 
on 22nd Avenue and 91st Street. In 1967 the Town government moved into a newly constructed municipal 
building on Springbrook Road and 39th Avenue that provided office, an auditorium, Fire Department 
apparatus room, and sleeping quarters.  


In 1984, the Town and the City of Kenosha agreed upon a plan for orderly development and fixed boundaries 
for the town in exchange for the acknowledged right of property owners in various locations along the 
Town/City border to annex into the city of Kenosha. The most significant area of this agreement was giving 
the city of Kenosha the ability to annex lands north of STH 50 from Green Bay Road to I-94, where the current 
Southport Plaza shopping center, White Caps subdivision, River Crossing subdivision among others, and the 
Aurora Hospital are located. In exchange the Town received the ability to protect the rest of the Town from 
annexations and the ability to purchase sewer and water from the city of Kenosha. In 1989, the agreement 
was advanced and the Town of Pleasant Prairie was incorporated as a Village by a referendum of more 
than 3,000 citizens in favor and 300 against. The new boundaries were fixed and the Village, with Wispark 
Corporation, began the development of LakeView Corporate Park, a large, modern, and beautifully 
landscaped center of employment for more than 8,000 people.


Like many Wisconsin towns, such as Somers to the north, the Town of Pleasant Prairie was a composite of 
scattered subdivisions, each with their own set of identities and expectations.  Today, though, the Village 
of Pleasant Prairie is a unified municipality with a sense of purpose and direction that considers parks and 
recreation as important to its quality of life.  


Pleasant Prairie has built and successfully operates the largest municipal recreation center in the United 
States, the RecPlex constructed in stages at a cost in excess of $44 million.  In addition, the Village owns and 
operates an extensive park system, including two beaches, and has designated much of its territory as park, 
open space or conservation areas, as its land use plan shows.


Population Characteristics 
 
According to American FactFinder, the official estimator of the Census Bureau, in 2009 the total population 
of Pleasant Prairie Wisconsin was 19,322, an increase of over 3,000 people from the 2000 Census.  In 2009, 
the total number of housing units was 7,629, up from 6,050 in 2009.  Today, the community is comprised of 
9,444 males and 9,878 females with a median age of 38.3 years compared to 36.5 years of age in the United 
States.  But, as a percentage of residents, 10.7% are 65 years of age and over compared to 12.6% of those 
in the country.  
 
The per capita income in 2009 inflation-adjusted dollars was $32,237, higher than the national average of 
$27,041.  The inflation adjusted median household income was $76,837 compared to $51,425 nationwide.  
The median home value in Pleasant Prairie is $233,100 compared to the national average home value of 
$185,400.  
 







8 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Of the 19,322 residents of Pleasant Prairie, 1,417 speak a language other than English at home, in total 7.8% 
of all residents.  Comparatively, 19.6% of all residents of the United States speak a language other than 
English at home.  And only 963 residents, 5% of the population of the Village, are foreign born compared 
to 12.4% in the United States. 


Land Use Planning and Projections for Growth
 
Between 1990-2008, the Village of Pleasant Prairie was a growing community.  Since 2008, the growth of 
residential housing has tapered off, but the growth of corporate occupancy of the industrial core has remained 
steady.  The zoning map shows how the village has planned for its future growth and development.


Pleasant Prairie has utilized comprehensive land use planning and neighborhood planning as tools to lead 
it to a bright future.  The impact of future land use planning relates directly to recreation planning as a 
component of potential users of services. The Village has the opportunity for further growth which will impact 
the recreational and leisure services provided by the Village.  







9 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Figure 2.3


Figure 2.2







3.0 Current Environment


10 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The RecPlex Facility


The RecPlex is a recreation facility that would give any other recreation center in America a run for their 
money. It is considered by many within the parks and recreation profession to be the finest recreation 
center in the United States. The success of the RecPlex was no accident. The facility is located on the shores 
of Lake Andrea in Prairie Springs Park. The RecPlex currently is home to the Recreation Department and 
provides most of the space for recreation programs offered by the Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation 
Department.  The success of the RecPlex was no accident. To understand how the facility achieved its 
current status, a short history lesson is in order.   


WisPark donated nearly $1.6 million to construct the initial phase of the then 425-acre park. On August 5, 
1995, the park was officially dedicated to the people of the Village of Pleasant Prairie. On the same date, 
Lake Andrea was dedicated to Senator Joseph Andrea in recognition of his “significant impact” on the 
community, and Terwall Terrace was dedicated to Thomas Terwall in appreciation for the strong role he 
played in the growth of the community.


 The planning for RecPlex began in 1998. WisPark was once again a major supporter and donated another 
$4 million for its construction.  A ground breaking was held for RecPlex on October 12, 1999, and construction 
immediately followed. The RecPlex officially opened its doors to the public on October 1, 2000. At that time, 
the RecPlex offered visitors a 17,000 sq ft leisure pool, 60,000 sq ft field house, 8,000 sq ft fitness center, 1/6-
mile suspended track, changing rooms, a child-care area and snack bar.
  
Just over three years later, on January 12, 2004, the Village broke ground on the first addition at the RecPlex. 
Through the first expansion, 42,000 sq ft was added in the form of a new, larger fitness center, additional 
changing rooms, an expanded child-care area, racquetball courts, a multi-purpose studio and party rooms. 
A 79,000 sq ft ice arena, dubbed the IcePlex, with two NHL-sized ice rinks and many ice related amenities, 
was also constructed as part of the expansion. The facility then stood at an amazing 260,000 sq ft. of indoor 
recreation activity area. 


In late 2008, a second major expansion was announced, a 50-meter Olympic-sized competition pool. Made 
possible through a community-focused partnership with ULINE, Inc, the Village broke ground for the pool 
on June 22, 2009. The 42,000 sq ft expansion included a competition pool and related amenities along 
with seating for approximately 600 spectators. Water and air in the new pool is heated and cooled with 
a geothermal technology located in the adjacent Lake Andrea. An ultraviolet technology, similar to that 
installed in the original aquatic center, is used to treat the water. With the latest expansion, the total size of 
the facility is now just over 302,000 sq ft. The RecPlex Aqua Arena was dedicated to the citizens of the Village 
of Pleasant Prairie on June 10, 2010.
  
The RecPlex and Prairie Springs Park is the center of community use in terms of parks and leisure services. 
The Village of Pleasant Prairie does have other outdoor spaces, but the focus over the years has been on 
the development of this particular site into a regional park that provides park and recreation opportunities 







11 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


for both the village and surrounding communities. Prairie Springs Park has walking trails, a swimming beach, 
small watercraft use on Lake Andrea, volleyball courts, playgrounds, ballfields and parking lots to provide 
for outdoor recreation needs.


The facility has four major program uses that include fitness/sports, childcare, aquatics and ice activities. 







12 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


26
2.


65
2.


28
00


K
en


os
ha


, W
I


R
iv


er
w


oo
ds


, I
L


84
7.


94
0.


03
00


R
ec


P
le


x 
Fl


oo
r 


P
la


n
Pl


ea
sa


nt
 P


ra
ir
ie


, 
W


is
co


na
in


N
ot


 t
o 


S
ca


le
10


.1
7.


11
©


 2
01


1 
Pa


rtn
er


s i
n 


D
es


ig
n 


A
rc


hi
te


ct
s, 


In
c.


Figure 3.1







13 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


26
2.


65
2.


28
00


K
en


os
ha


, W
I


R
iv


er
w


oo
ds


, I
L


84
7.


94
0.


03
00


R
ec


P
le


x 
Fl


oo
r 


P
la


n
Pl


ea
sa


nt
 P


ra
ir
ie


, 
W


is
co


na
in


N
ot


 t
o 


S
ca


le
10


.1
7.


11
©


 2
01


1 
Pa


rtn
er


s i
n 


D
es


ig
n 


A
rc


hi
te


ct
s, 


In
c.


Fi
tn


es
s 


C
en


te
r:


~ 
16


4,
00


0 
SF


Ic
eP


le
x:


~ 
79


,0
00


 S
F


A
qu


a 
C


en
te


r:
~ 


59
,0


00
 S


F


Figure 3.2


The following diagram illustrates the three uses comprised in the RecPlex facility. 







14 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


RecPlex & Leisure Services Programming 


When the RecPlex was built, it has most important programmatic function, and in fact it has revenue engine, 
was the fitness center.  However since its initial operating years, the expansion of recreation and sports 
programs in the center have also become significant attendance and revenue generators.  


With regard to membership, currently there are about 5,000 member households that hold RecPlex 
memberships with about 13,000 total members in those households.  It has been suggested that one of the 
most challenging aspects of managing the RecPlex is restoring the natural attrition of members that depart 
each year.  The following table shows the numbers that have departed thus far this year.


Reasons for Cancellation Number of Cancellations
Not Using 101
Moved 76
Financial Reasons 63
Nothing Specified 43
Joined Another Gym 11
Not Enough Time 4
Inconvenient Location 8
Other 21
Personal Reasons 8
Too Expensive 8
Rate Increase 7
Medical Reasons 10
End of Contract 3
Too Crowded 3
Problems with RecPlex Facility 0
Problems with Kids’ Court 0
Problems with RecPlex Programs 0


Total: 366


Since the Recreation Department provides leisure services to the community, it is important to understand 
the impact that programs have on the RecPlex facility and the other parks within the Village. It is of utmost 
importance to understand the needs of the consumer when seeking to provide effective programming. This 
would be true for the traditional recreational programs as well as the memberships to RecPlex. The purpose 
of completing a recreation program review and strategy is to evaluate current recreational offerings by 
collecting programming information. The goal is to develop a strategy to improve both attendance numbers 
and efficiency. Profitability at this point appears not to be a key issue. 


Figure 3.3







15 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


However, in many recreation agencies, classes are run for less than desirable reasons. This leads to low 
participation numbers, staff and instructor frustrations, flat revenues and less than stellar customer satisfaction 
levels. Many agencies need to take stock in its recreation identity, the core program offerings that make 
it successful. It is clear that the strongest programs associated with the RecPlex are aquatics and sports. 
These two categories take many different forms due to the dazzling assortment of offerings by the size of the 
RecPlex complex. 
 
The staff of Public Research Group conducted 
a review of three years worth of programming 
sessions, starting in 2009 and ending in 2011. We also 
reviewed class sessions for Prairie Springs Park and 
the Fitness Center. The program research leads to a 
general analysis of the most successful classes that 
the Village offers.  The recreation program totals for 
classes summarized by categories for the three year 
horizon can be found in the Appendix.  







16 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Swim lessons were the top four out of the five program totals with the youth basketball league placing five. It 
is clear that the pool is having a dramatic impact to the programs. However, the trend of the program totals 
is declining, from 289 programs in 2009 to only 98 in 2011. The trend in review of the data is the swimming, 
youth soccer and baseball are down, ice hockey and youth basketball are up and adult sports leagues are 
staying even. 


The program analysis highlights the programs that were most popular in terms of attendance. Another 
way to review the types of programs is from a financial performance. This might be a better measure of 
performance since the RecPlex is a facility that is in business to cover its expenses.  Once again the data 
was reviewed and the table that follows illustrates the findings. The top three revenue areas over the past 
three years were Youth Care Services, Fitness Programs and Therapeutic Recreation Programs.


Category 2009 2010 2011 Total
Youth Care Services $1,202,001.00 $1,470,361.00 $1,761,357.00 $4,433,719.00
Fitness Programs $458,174.00 $465,502.00 $474,548.00 $1,398,224.00
Therapeutic Recreation 
Programs


$231,663.00 $328,105.00 $394,518.00 $954,286.00


Youth Sports Programs $278,936.00 $254,784.00 $228,368.00 $762,088.00
Ice Programs $133,196.00 $228,685.00 $388,594.00 $750,475.00
Aquatic Programs $154,902.00 $148,745.00 $256,613.00 $560,260.00
Adult Sports $102,176.00 $84,613.00 $75,925.00 $262,714.00


Totals:  $2,561,048.00  $2,980,795.00  $3,579,923.00  $9,121,766.00 


The final performance review was an efficiency model of recreation programs over a three year period 
from a 2009, 2010 and 2011.  This analysis shows the number of registered class participations versus the 
maximum number the class can hold. The top rated programs across the board was youth sports leagues, 
hockey leagues and then after that was a mix of programs in fitness, swimming, camps and adult sports 
leagues.   The complete table for recreation program efficiencies can be found in the Appendix.


Figure 3.4







17 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


After all the review of the recreation program data provided by the Village, it points out several facts. First, 
the youth sports are popular but are not significant revenue generators. There is also an opportunity to 
expand the youth sports and league sports to other sporting activities currently not offered. The childcare 
and education classes are both popular and revenue producers. The aquatics component of the RecPlex 
has made a big impact in a very short amount of time. The ice skating and ice hockey are showing signs of 
improvement in attendance and revenue.  The fitness center and fitness classes appear to be the areas of 
great vulnerability in the overall review of recreation and leisure services in the Village.  Member satisfaction 
and retention are important to overall success of the RecPlex and more attention to the membership 
experience and customer service will aid in keeping existing members.


The RecPlex Administrative System


Pleasant Prairie was incorporated from a Town to a Village in 1989.  Under that current system of governance, 
policy decisions are the primary responsibility of the five elected Village Trustees, with recommendations 
made by the Village Administrator and his staff.   Village staff responsible to the administrator includes the 
Assistant Village Administrator and the Department Heads.  


Relevant to this plan, the current Recreation Director also doubles as the Human Resource Director, with 
multiple responsibilities in several areas of Village administration.  The reason the Recreation Director has 
the time to serve as HR director is that she has seven managers to whom she delegates management 
responsibility for the RecPlex and other recreational services.  The following organizational chart shows the 
chain of authority and responsibility.  







18 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The organization chart shows the span of control of the Recreation Director/HR Director to be seven people, 
the Facilities Director, Ice Operations Director, Programs/Fitness Director, Business Director, Therapeutic 
Recreation Director, Aquatic & Comp. Swim Director and Youth & Family Services Director.  Whether that is 
the formal structure of the organization and the informal structure operates differently is not apparent from 
the organizational chart.  


Considering that the Recreation Director is responsible to the Village Administrator, with those individuals 
responsible to the Village Board, there is also the consideration of responsibility to the appointed Recreation 
Commission.  The Recreation Commission is comprised of seven members and two alternate members, all 
of whom attend a monthly meeting.  


As an advisory body, the Recreation Commission hears reports from the Recreation Department staff and 
advises them and the Village Administrator on the course of action to be taken.  However, the Recreation 
Commission has no legal responsibility to hire and fire staff.  While it reviews the annual budget of the 
department and financial reports, the Recreation Commission does not have the legal responsibility for the 
finances of the department.  Under Wisconsin law approval of tax levies and budgetary expenditures rests 
with the Village Board.  


Figure 3.5







19 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The RecPlex Financial System
 
As a local governmental unit, Pleasant Prairie follows the edicts of the Government Accounting Standards 
Board (GASB) in the preparation of its financial statements.  Contained in the Appendix of this plan is the 
most recent balance sheet for all governmental funds operated by the Village of Pleasant Prairie for the 
fiscal years ending December 31, 2010.  Since parks are part of the governmental functions of the Village, 
the governmental balance sheet is the most relevant to this plan.
 
The balance sheet shows that the Village accounts for its governmental funds in six categories, three of which 
are relevant to this plan.  The general fund contains the Parks Division operating budget, also presented 
in the Appendix of this report, but as part of the most recent budget and actual comparison.  The other 
relevant funds are the general capital projects fund and the general debt service fund.
 
The RecPlex is operated through an enterprise fund with a statement of net assets for the business type 
activity funds, which include the water, sewer, clean water, and waste collection funds, shown on the 
following page.







20 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Figure 3.6







21 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The statement of net assets shows the value of the RecPlex at $44,402,195, with depreciation of $8,117,109 
over its life thus far, the net depreciated value of the facility and its equipment to be $36,802,494 at the 
end of 2010.  Further analysis of the statement of net assets shows the long term debt for the facility to be 
$31,495,000.  That amount is approximately 26.4% of the total outstanding $119.2 million in general obligation 
bonds of the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  


The statement of net assets also shows the total net assets of the RecPlex to be $982,494, the second smallest 
of any of the proprietary funds, with about $2.1 million in unrestricted deficits.  


According to the annual financial report for the fiscal year ending December 30, 2010 the “RecPlex (fund) is 
the largest business type fund, accounting for 44% of all business-type expense activity,” totaling $8.6 million 
in 2010.  The report states that in its 10th year of operation, the RecPlex user fee revenues increased by $.4 
million from 2009.
 
One of the greatest challenges of the RecPlex is to sustain its operating and debt service costs.  As mentioned 
in the introduction, the RecPlex has about 5,000 member households totaling about 13,000 individual 
members.  The RecPlex estimates that the members contribute about 70% of the program revenue for 
recreation programs where fees are charged in addition to membership fees.
 
The following RecPlex net revenue report shows the summarized distribution of revenues and expenses.  







22 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The report shows the breakdown of net revenues received from total operations, including membership 
revenues, which ultimately drive all other revenues generated by the RecPlex.  The report also provides a 
comparison of revenue growth over the past two years and shows budgeted amounts for the current 2011 
fiscal year.
 
Analysis of the report shows membership net revenue has been steadily growing, but there was an area 
of concern within program divisions.  Sports program revenue was over $60,000 lower in 2010 than it was in 
2009.   However, on the up-side, ice net revenues and pre-school net revenues were higher.  
 
The net revenue financial leads to certain reasonable considerations.  One is the strategies should be 
employed to enhance sports program revenues or at least stem the tide of declining net revenues.  The 
other is whether there are strategies that can be employed to enhance net preschool program revenues.  
Those considerations are presented later in this plan. 
 
The Availability of Capital Funding


In line with consideration of enhancing preschool net revenues is the concept of capital improvements 
that would be required to do so.  As it is, the RecPlex staff has been considering capital improvements that 
could be made to the facility.  Included in this capital improvement scenario are the additions that could 
be made to the facility that would add bathrooms and storage facilities next to the existing fieldhouse, a 
large preschool area for Baby U., a new facility for the therapeutic recreation programs, and second floor 
classrooms.  The following concept plans illustrate some of the thinking that has taken place thus far.







23 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Preschool Addition - First Floor
Two Story Option LakeView RecPlex


Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"
08.19.09© 2009 Partners in Design Architects, Inc.


Preschool Addition - Second Floor
Two Story Option LakeView RecPlex


Scale: 1/16" = 1'-0"
08.19.09© 2009 Partners in Design Architects, Inc.


Figure 3.6


Figure 3.7







24 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


With an estimated buildout cost of about $3 million, the addition would improve the locker room situation, 
by adding additional space to the east side of the RecPlex.  It would enhance the quality of service of 
the therapeutic recreation programs, the one area of the RecPlex that is not expected to generate net 
revenues, and it could enhance preschool revenues.


In order to determine how the RecPlex would pay for such a capital improvement, it has been the strategy 
of the Village that capital improvements be paid by donations and/or revenues generated from operations.  
The question is, could the additional preschool space generate enough additional net revenue to pay for 
the additional debt needed to service construction of the addition.  Another question is what is the legal 
debt limit of the Village and is there enough room to do so?


That, however, does not mean it would be advisable for the Village to be at 100% of its capacity.  With the 
bond rating of the Village improving from A+ to AA2, being at 100% of capacity might have the effect of 
reducing that rating.  On the other hand, if this plan identifies park needs expressed by the public, either 
using some of the remaining capacity or using some of the existing capacity would need to be a solution 
for capital improvement in the existing park system to be a possibility.  







4.0 Community Needs


25 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Feedback Concepts


In order to develop feedback loops that provide information that can be used to establish goals and 
objectives for the Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department, a number of different methods were 
used.  Because the people providing recreation services for the Village are the most familiar with what 
services the Village provides and what services the community needs, meetings with the Village Administrator, 
Assistant Administrator, and RecPlex staff is an important source.  Because feedback from the Recreation 
Commission is another important component, the Commission is another important source.
 
The most important source is information provided by the community itself.  This plan gathered a large 
amount of feedback from community surveys as well as a survey targeted specifically at RecPlex members 
themselves.  In addition, public meetings were held to gather input, but admittedly not very many people 
attend these types of meetings, suggesting they do not gain as much information as community surveys.
 
The first few sections of this chapter consider feedback acquired from brainstorming meetings with staff and 
Commission members.  The latter sections present the findings from the member and community surveys.  
This feedback lays the groundwork for goals and objectives offered in Chapter 5 of this plan, goals which 
are the heart and soul of the plan itself.


Recreation Commission Visioning
 
Public Research Group met with the Recreation Commission on a number of occasions, both alone and 
in conjunction with a joint meeting held with the Park Commission.  From the original visioning session, a 
number of ways to improve recreation services to the community were explored.  The general themes from 
those meetings included:


The RecPlex is a wonderful facility and the envy of most communities in the nation, 


Much of the focus of decision-making as a commission is about RecPlex revenues, 


RecPlex revenues are largely membership driven, 


The Commission felt it was often asked for its opinion at the last minute, after policy decisions had 
already been made,


There needs to be a level of coordination with the Park Commission, since much of what both groups 
do is designed to achieve the same goals,


Joint Park and Recreation Commission committees might be a way of bridging the gap between 
parks and recreation in Pleasant Prairie,


There needs to be a focus on creating new recreational experiences beyond the RecPlex offerings, 
including cultural special events,


The Village might look into the creation of a 501 c 3 nonprofit organization that serves as a host for 
charitable donations to support new programming efforts,


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







26 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Some of the missing recreational activities include cultural programs such as music and theatre in 
the parks, festivals and other non-athletic special events, and should be run through volunteer efforts 
rather than by staff.


Staff Visioning
 
From these general themes, meetings with the staff explored solutions to some of the feedback provided by 
the Recreation Commission.  Staff identified its own themes, summarized as the following:


Staffing is lean, with staff members busy a majority of the time serving customers,


There is a constant pursuit of revenues because there is a need to support operating costs and service 
bond repayments,  


RecPlex memberships have been flat for the past five years, hovering at about 5,000 households with 
about 13,000 individual members, 


The Village accounting software system limits the tracking of memberships in some important ways, 


Even though the Village accepts credit cards as payments for recreation programs and other services, 
it does not permit them for RecPlex monthly membership fees, 


The RecPlex loses about 1,000 memberships a year, 27% because members do not use them, 20% 
because they move out of the area, 18% for financial reasons, and the rest who will not say why,


Guest services is largely busy with program registration and does not have much time for member 
retention tasks, 


Some important changes in non-resident fees have been made, improving the number of members 
from outside the community.


It was apparent from the different Commission and staff visioning sessions that the two groups are focused 
on different things. The Recreation Commission is concerned about broadening the level of recreational 
services being offered by the Recreation Department while the staff is concerned about the successful day 
to day operation of activities already in place. The Commission should take the lead in developing its ideas 
with input of the staff as the merits of successful implementation.


When Public Research Group designed member surveys, the questionnaire largely focused on staff concerns, 
including why members bought their memberships, in what RecPlex activities they participated, what it 
would take to get them to participate in more activities, and whether they were satisfied with services and 
fees.  


The community-wide survey was designed to address many of the concerns of the Recreation Commission, 
including what recreational activities in general did they participate in, and whether there were new cultural 
or special activities that they would be interested to see offered.  The community-wide survey also focused 
on the parks and beaches, both of which were of concern to the Recreation Commission.  


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







27 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Member and Community Surveys 


During July and August 2011, on behalf of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Public Research Group administered 
two data gathering instruments.   The purpose of administering the surveys was to identify community park 
and recreational needs for development of Park and Recreation Master Plans.  


One of the data gathering instruments was a survey of members of the RecPlex, sent out as emails to all 
members for which there were addresses provided.  The member survey is provided in the Appendix of 
this report.  1,417 members viewed the survey, 1,191 started it and 1,017 completed it, providing findings 
representative of the behaviors and attitudes of all RecPlex members within a margin of error of plus or 
minus 3% at a 95% confidence level.  


In addition, a community-wide survey was administered to a random sample of 1,500 mail addresses, from 
which 405 households responded.  That survey was also administered to 200 land line household telephone 
numbers from which 105 households responded and about 300 known email addresses in the Village.  
The 563 responses suggest the community-wide surveys are representative of the recreational behaviors 
and attitudes of Pleasant Prairie residents within a margin of error of 4% at a 95% confidence level.  The 
community-wide survey is also in the Appendix of this report. 


This analysis presents the findings of the responses to the community-wide survey questions regarding 
recreation services and the entire member survey.  The responses to questions about the parks in the 
community-wide survey are presented in a separate report.


Methodology
 
There are two primary methods of analyzing survey responses: quantitative and qualitative methods.  
Quantitative methods use statistical analysis of survey questions where responses can be assigned numeric 
values and statistics applied.  There are many complicated forms of statistical analysis, but in this report 
the analysis applied are straightforward, using frequency distributions, one-sample and independent-


Figure 4.1







28 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


sample means testing.  There are occasions when slightly more elegant statistical methods are used such 
as correlation.  However, to promote better understanding of the findings, means testing will be the primary 
tool used.


Qualitative methods use non-statistical analysis of the survey responses where statistics cannot be applied.  
These are where questions require open-ended narratives by respondents.  In qualitative analysis, themes 
are sought to see if there are recurring messages from the public that need attention.  These responses, 
presented in tables, are what respondents said in their own words.  


The email survey open-ended responses are presented verbatim. For the sake of clarity though, some of the 
longer responses in the mail and telephone surveys are summarized without changing their meaning.  


To break up the monotony of seeing too many tables, some of the statistical findings are presented in graphs 
and charts.  However, presenting open-ended responses in anything other than tables is not meaningful.  
Because the open-ended response tables can be long, they are presented in the Appendix of this analysis 
rather than in the text.  


The Demographics of the Respondents


The first consideration of demographic analysis is where respondents reside.  In the community-wide survey, 
the samples were drawn from the village and from the near surrounding area.  The following map of 
responses shows where community-wide survey respondents reside, either in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, 
City of Kenosha or other areas, with the response locations as dots within civil areas.







29 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Figure 4.2







30 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The RecPlex member survey provided respondents with choices of responses.  Respondents were permitted 
to select that they resided in the Village of Pleasant Prairie, the City of Kenosha or somewhere else.  If they 
responded that they lived somewhere else, they were asked to specify where that was.


The chart shows that RecPlex members are nearly equally divided between residents of Pleasant Prairie, 
Kenosha and elsewhere.  The importance of this data is to compare it to the known locations where 
members reside, as provided to the RecPlex.  RecPlex membership records suggest that a somewhat lower 
percentage actually live in Pleasant Prairie than the 34.4% in the sample, suggesting the member survey 
sample is slightly skewed toward Pleasant Prairie residents, who were more motivated to complete the 
survey than non-residents.  


In the community-wide survey, respondents were asked demographic questions at the end of the survey.   
The questions included respondents’ ages, the ages of others in the household, their gender, how long they 
had lived in the Village, and how long they commuted to work.  The following table shows the responses.  


Demographic questions Number responding Average
Respondents’ age 543 54.06 Years
Female respondents 561 66%
How long have you lived in Pleasant Prairie? 548 16.77 Years
How long is your commute to work? 547 18.57 Minutes


The table shows two thirds of all mail, telephone and email respondents were females, the average age of 
respondents 54.06 years, that respondents lived in Pleasant Prairie an average of 16.77 years, and that the 
average commute to work was 18.57 minutes, remembering that the latter average includes retired people 
or homemakers that do not commute at all.
 
That such a high percentage of respondents were females is not surprising.  Females tend to be the members 
of the household that answer the telephone, respond to mail inquiries and generally pay attention to what 
the family’s recreational needs are.  To dampen female percentages in the telephone survey, the interviewer 


Figure 4.3


Figure 4.4







31 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


asked to speak to the youngest male in the household over 18 years of age.  That helped a little, but there 
was no way to exert influence over the gender of those who responded to mail and email surveys.


Researchers are often asked whether a predominance of female responses can skew the data one way 
or another.  Researchers generally agree that for questions about recreational behaviors family members 
have exhibited in the past, they do not.  But for questions about preferences, they may.  To show that 
behavior responses are not particularly skewed, they were asked whether anyone in the household used 
Lake Andrea Beach, the responses were pretty similar, as the following graph shows.


The findings show 30% of females reported someone in their households visited Lake Andrea Beach 1-4 times 
per year compared to 32% of males, well within the margin of error.  Responses to use of Lake Andrea Beach 
5 or more times a year were 16% for both, and while a higher percentage of females than males said no 
one in their household ever visited the beach within the past year, the differences are still within the margin 
of error.
 
The age of the respondent, on the other hand, does sometimes make a difference in behavior questions.  
When it did in this analysis, comparisons are made between age groups, but for the sake of brevity, only if 
they are important to the master planning process, not just interesting.


The way that comparisons are made is by comparing baby boomers and older respondents, people 60 
years of age or older, to those younger than 60.  Public Research Group understands that baby boomers 
can be as young as 50, but has chosen 60 to be the cut off point because 60 year olds are generally empty 
nesters, whereas many 50 year olds have children in their households.  Public Research Group finds that 60 
years of age is a reasonable breakpoint.


Figure 4.5







32 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The graph shows that non-boomer respondents were within the margin of error in being equivalent, when 
comparing community-wide and RecPlex member survey respondents.  The differences are that boomers 
comprised a lower percentage of respondents in the member survey and a higher percentage of those 
who chose not to provide their age.  


Typically, Public Research Group finds that those who refuse to provide their ages are generally senior 
citizens.  There is no way to be sure in this study, however, the findings from both surveys suggest that senior 
citizens are not over or under-represented. Thus, the samples are representative of the community at large 
and the members of the RecPlex specifically.
 


Figure 4.6







33 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


RecPlex Membership
 
The RecPlex member survey asked respondents how long they have been a member of the RecPlex.  The 
average was 4.95 years and the following graph shows the distribution of responses. 


The graph shows that 1.1% of those who answered the question said they had been members less than a 
year and that 4.6% had been members since the RecPlex opened.  The data shows that membership is not 
a permanent phenomenon, that there is a high percentage of respondents who have become members 
within the past five years, 63.7% when membership of the past five years are summed.  The findings suggest 
that recent members have not developed a strong sense of loyalty to the RecPlex and need to be carefully 
managed with focus on retention.  


Figure 4.7







34 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Question 28 of the member survey asked how far respondents live from the RecPlex, in terms of how many 
minutes it takes them to commute to it.  The average traveling time was 12.68 minutes distributed as shown 
in the previous graph.  The graph shows that only 1.4% of respondents said they traveled more than 30 
minutes to the RecPlex, a percentage achieved by summing all of the travel times greater than 30 minutes.  
78.7% of respondents to the member survey said they traveled 15 minutes or less.


The travel time findings suggest membership may be a function of convenience as much as it is a function 
of the quality of the services the RecPlex provides.  But it does show that there is a market for people who 
are willing to travel as well.


Figure 4.8







35 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


In Question 3, the community-wide survey asked respondents whether they or anyone in their household 
was a member of the RecPlex.  Because much of the recreation programming in the Village is through the 
RecPlex, the question provided an opportunity to see how engaged the community is.  


The chart shows 32% of respondents said they had at least one household member who is a member of the 
RecPlex, with 65% not having any members in the household and 2% not sure.  The findings show that there 
is a substantial portion of households who are actively engaged in recreational activities, but also suggests 
that if they are not, there might be other activities that they need or want.  
 
In Question 2, the RecPlex member survey asked the same question.  Because the RecPlex member survey 
was administered electronically, via email, and respondents had provided their email addresses voluntarily 
to the Village, all of the respondents were or had been a member.  Those member survey respondents 
answering that they did not have a household member who was a member of the RecPlex would only do 
so if they were not aware of it or the household member had recently given up his or her membership.


Figure 4.9


Figure 4.10







36 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The chart shows 94.8% of member survey respondents knew they had a household member who was a 
member of the RecPlex.  5.1% said they did not and .1% were not sure.   The findings suggest that, since such 
a small percentage were not sure, that 5.1% non-membership might be a reflection of the percentage of 
households that gave up their membership within the past years or so.  


If this is the case, the challenge of a membership director might be to add about 5% of the members each 
year in order to maintain memberships at their current levels.  To increase membership requires that more 
than 5% be added.  Considering that most members commute to the RecPlex from within a 15 minute drive, 
driving distance tends to define the limits of the market.  
 
RecPlex Satisfaction
 
Question 4 in the community-wide survey asked a general question about the satisfaction they had with 
the programs the RecPlex offered.  Respondents to the community-wide survey were permitted to respond, 
regardless of whether they were members or not.  The following chart shows the percentages who said 
they were very satisfied with the programs the RecPlex offers, and those who were moderately satisfied, 
moderately dissatisfied, very dissatisfied or had no opinion.


The chart shows that 50% of the community-wide survey respondents said they were either very or moderately 
satisfied with the programs at the RecPlex.  The moderately or very dissatisfied were only 6%.  Those with 
no opinion were largely comprised of non-members of the RecPlex, as the following correlational analysis 
table shows, where the response of no opinion in Question 4 is correlated with the response that there are 
no family members that are RecPlex members in Question 3 of the community-wide survey.


Figure 4.11







37 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Correlation No No Opinion


No
Pearson Correlation 1 .443**
Sig. (2-tailed) .000
N 562 561


No Opinion
Pearson Correlation .443** 1
Sig. (2-tailed) .000
N 561 561


** Correlation is significant at the 0.01 level (2-tailed)


The Pearson Correlation of .443 suggests that 44.3% answered no opinion about satisfaction with RecPlex 
programs and that they did not have a RecPlex member in the household, a moderately strong correlation.  
The finding suggests that many community- wide survey respondents rightfully expressed no opinion about 
RecPlex programs when they had no basis for it.
 
On the other hand, RecPlex member survey respondents had a solid basis for their opinions of satisfaction 
about RecPlex programs.  In the member survey, however, a general question was not asked because 
more specific questions were more important.  Question 8 asked whether member survey respondents were 
satisfied with fitness programs, Question 11 asked about ice skating programs, Question 14 about aquatic 
programs, Question 18 about childcare and education programs, Question 21 about sports programs, 
and Question 24 about camp programs.  The responses to those questions are compared in the following 
charts. 


Satisfaction with fitness programs is high, with 40.4% of respondents to the member survey either very satisfied 
or moderately satisfied and 8.6% of respondents either moderately or very dissatisfied.  The no opinion 
responses are probably a function of the members who do not utilize the fitness center, which will be tested 
momentarily.
 


Figure 4.12


Figure 4.13







38 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Factoring out the no opinion responses, the following chart shows that 34.4% of respondents who expressed 
an opinion were very satisfied, 53.5% were moderately satisfied, for a total of 87.9%.  Ten percent were 
moderately dissatisfied and 2.1% were very dissatisfied, for at total of 12.1%, providing a better understanding 
of satisfaction levels of actual users.


The chart suggests satisfaction with fitness programs is high among users.  Question 11 asked about satisfaction 
with ice skating programs. The following chart shows the responses.


This next chart shows the effect of factoring out those who expressed no opinion.


Figure 4.14


Figure 4.15







39 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The chart shows that 86.8% of respondents were either very or moderately satisfied and 13.2% were either 
moderately or somewhat dissatisfied.  The findings suggest satisfaction levels are high among users of ice 
skating programs.  
 
For aquatic programs, the following chart compares the responses to Question 14. 


The no opinion responses of 40% would suggest that 60% of members use the aquatic programs at the 
RecPlex, just as the no opinion responses in the two previous questions would be an indicator of usage 
of those programs.  Factoring out the no opinion responses in the following table shows how the aquatic 
program users feel about those programs.


Figure 4.16


Figure 4.17







40 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The findings show that 85.4% of RecPlex member respondents who were probably users of aquatic programs 
were either very or moderately satisfied and 14.6% were either moderately or very dissatisfied.  The findings 
suggest satisfaction levels with aquatic programs are high.  


The responses to Question 18 about RecPlex members’ satisfaction with childcare and education programs 
shows that 66.9% had no opinion  Factoring out their influence on the percentages, the following chart 
shows how users of that program probably feel.


Figure 4.18


Figure 4.19







41 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The responses of those who expressed an opinion suggest 87.6% of them were very or moderately satisfied 
and 12.4% were moderately or very dissatisfied. 


Responses regarding satisfaction were similar for sports programs, as asked in Question 24.


The chart shows that 59.9% of respondents expressed no opinion but that satisfaction levels were relatively 
high otherwise.  The following chart compares the responses of those who expressed an opinion.


Figure 4.20


Figure 4.21


Figure 4.22







42 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The chart shows that 84.8% of RecPlex member respondents who expressed an opinion were very satisfied 
or moderately satisfied compared to 15.2% who were moderately or very dissatisfied. For sports, the spread 
between very satisfied and moderately satisfied is higher than in the other areas, indicating an opportunity 
for improvement.
 
The satisfaction tables and graphs show overall satisfaction with the programs at the RecPlex is high.  That 
is an important consideration in the retention of membership.  Low satisfaction would be an indication 
that RecPlex members are considering dropping their memberships, actions that would create associated 
financial issues.  The data shows that does not appear to be the case.
 
Satisfaction with camp programs is shown in the following chart.


The chart shows the percentages of very and moderately satisfied as well as moderately dissatisfied and 
very dissatisfied responses. All are low because those expressing no opinion is so high.  The following chart 
factors out the no opinion responses. 


The chart shows higher percentages of very satisfied members than almost any other category of programs 
or services.  The only category that is higher is childcare and education programs, where those very satisfied 
were 48.9%.  The findings suggest that the highest levels of satisfaction are for RecPlex programs service 
children, consequently as will be shown, activities where concern for pricing is lowest.


Figure 4.23







43 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Community Participation Habits


Questions 7 and 8 in the community-wide survey asked in which special events offered at the RecPlex did 
members of the general public participate and did respondents or anyone in their household participate in 
any of the listed recreation programs in Pleasant Prairie or anywhere else.  Considering Question 8 first, the 
following graph shows the responses.


The table shows that the largest percentages of respondents to the community-wide survey participate 
in fitness center and swimming pool usage and group fitness classes.  In all of those cases, the RecPlex is 
getting much more of the market than are facilities or programs elsewhere.


Figure 4.24







44 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Participation at the RecPlex or elsewhere
Number 


responding
Percentage 


here
Percentage 
elsewhere


Percentage 
both


General fitness center usage 562 26.9% 11.6% 1.6%
Fitness programs for kids 562 3.7% 2.7% .7%
Massage therapy 562 2.5% 9.4% .2%
General pool usage 562 23.8% 5.7% 2.7%
Lap swimming- Aqua Arena 561 13.2% 1.8% .7%
Children’s day care 561 5.2% 2.7% .4%
Adult day care 562 .2% .5% 0%
Special needs care 562 .5% .5% 0%
Youth basketball 562 6.0% 2.5% .4%
Youth baseball 562 6.0% 3.2% .5%
Youth soccer 562 2.5% 4.3% .4%
Adult volleyball 562 1.1% 2.3% .4%
Summer camp 562 3.2% 3.2% .2%
Programs for the arts 562 3.4% .2% 0%
Youth hockey 562 2.1% .7% 0%
Personal trainers 562 2.8% 2.0% .2%
Group fitness classes 562 11.7% 5.5% .9%
Indoor triathlons 562 1.1% 0% 0%
Swimming lessons 562 7.1% 4.8% .7%
Lap swimming- Waterpark 562 9.4% 2.0% .9%
Preschool programs 562 1.1% 1.6% .2%
Before & after school care 562 1.8% 1.6% .4%
Therapeutic recreation 562 .7% .4% .2%
Adult basketball 562 .7% .2% 0%
Men’s softball 562 .5% 1.1% 0%
Co-ed softball 562 1.2% .4% .4%
Co-ed soccer 562 0% .2% 0%
Ice skating camp 562 1.2% .2% 0%
Adult hockey 562 1.2% .5% .2%
Crafts programs 562 .2% 3.4% 0%


Programs where participants are going elsewhere in greater numbers than they go to the RecPlex include 
massage therapy, youth soccer, adult volleyball, men’s softball, and crafts programs.  This question can be 
an important market research tool. Although none of these programs are particularly profitable, knowing 
participants are going elsewhere could lead to strategies on how to encourage people to stay in the 
community for these programs.


Figure 4.25







45 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Question 9 explored the question of why people are going elsewhere for recreation services.  Respondents 
to the community-wide survey had the opportunity to select the reason that the RecPlex does not offer 
them, prices are cheaper elsewhere, their friends go there, there is better service elsewhere, or it was more 
convenient to go elsewhere.  


The data shows that a relatively small percentage of the general public goes elsewhere because the RecPlex 
does not offer the recreation services they want.  In the experience of the Public Research Group, that is the 
leading reason people do.  But in Pleasant Prairie, the highest percentage of residents who go elsewhere for 
services, 29%, appear to do so because prices are cheaper.  Only 10% do so for convenience.  
 
Special Events
 
Question 7 asked respondents to the community-wide survey in which special events did they participate 
either as a participant, a spectator or both.  
 
The graph shows Prairie Family Days has the most participation with 10% of community members participating 
as participants and 33.1% as spectators, far and away the most well attended special event.  Most of the rest 
of the events are attended by relatively small percentages of community members, but the attendance at 
Prairie Family Days is an indication of a market for non-athletic programs.


Figure 4.26







46 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Figure 4.27







47 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


To test the hypothesis that there are unmet needs for non-athletic special events, Question 16 of the 
community-wide survey asked respondents to select the special events they would like to see in the parks 
in the future.  The activities on the list included ethnic festivals, theatre in the park, music in the park, farmers 
markets, crafts festivals, or nothing at all.


The graph shows there is a need for non-athletic programs, including farmers markets at 66% and crafts and 
ethnic festivals at 42% and 29% respectively.  The responses to cultural arts programs, such as music in the 
park and theatre in the park, are high at 58% and 31% respectively.  
 
The greatest indicator that there are markets for non-athletic special events and activities is that only 12% of 
all respondents said there should be nothing new added, suggesting that a large segment of the community 
believe that non-athletic programs in the parks should be added.  
 
Fitness Center Program Usage
 
The RecPlex member and community-wide surveys asked respondents how frequently they or anyone in 
their household used the fitness center each month.  Response choices were that they never used it, did 
so 1-5 times per month, 6-10 times, more than 10, or that they were not sure.  It would be expected that 
responses would be higher for member survey respondents than for the general public.  Such was the case, 
as the following graph shows.


Figure 4.28







48 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The graph shows that even though 32% of household within the general public reported having a person 
who was a RecPlex member, 47% reported using the fitness center.  Comparatively, 97% of those responding 
to the RecPlex member survey reported having a person in their household who used the fitness center.  The 
findings suggest the fitness center component of the RecPlex has a very large impact on the general public 
and could be the driver of members there.
 
The RecPlex member survey asked what fitness programs members intended to register for in the future.  
Choices included general fitness, fitness programs for kids, massage therapy, personal trainers, group fitness 
classes, indoor triathlons, and none.  The following graph shows the response percentages.  Open ended 
responses to other activities are in the Appendix.


Figure 4.29


Figure 4.30







49 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The graph shows the fitness program interests of members and their comparative importance.  The intention 
to enroll in group fitness is nearly equivalent to general fitness, while indoor triathlons draw the lowest 
percentage.  The findings suggest attention to the quality of group fitness and general fitness.  The findings 
also suggest fitness programs for kids should not be overlooked.   
 
Question 10 asked RecPlex members what could the RecPlex do to get them to enroll in more fitness 
programs?  Choices included that there was nothing the RecPlex could do because the respondent does 
not have the time, that the RecPlex could offer fitness programs at more convenient times, that prices for 
fitness programs could be cheaper, that fitness programs could be offered at different locations, and that 
other programs could be offered.  Respondents were only permitted to select one response.  The following 
chart compares the responses.  Open ended responses about the different fitness programs the RecPlex 
could offer are in a table in the Appendix.


The chart shows the highest percentage of respondents to the member survey, 50.1%, said offering fitness 
programs at cheaper prices would get them to enroll in more programs.  The second highest percentage 
said convenient times would encourage them to enroll in more fitness programs.  Very few people responded 
that programs should be offered at different locations, relatively few said new programs were required, and 
17.8% said there was nothing the RecPlex could do.
 
The findings suggest price points of fitness programs are a concern to members, just as the need for revenue 
is for the RecPlex to sustain operations.  The question becomes an economic one of price and supply and 
demand in selecting a level of equilibrium and whether RecPlex fitness programs are at that point now or 
whether reducing prices would lead to increased revenues.  


It is the opinion of Public Research Group that there is not enough evidence to reduce prices.  Public 
expectations are always that services should be high and that fees and taxes should be low.  Since RecPlex 
membership is high and relatively stable, the evidence from the responses to Question 10 may be an 
opportunity for the members to say they are at their limit in terms of pricing, but they are willing to stay and 
pay them as long as prices do not increase.  


Figure 4.31







50 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Support for the notion that prices are not the issue is found in the open ended responses to Question 10 in 
the Appendix.  When provided the opportunity to say what else would motivate respondents to enroll in 
more fitness classes, very few said lower prices.  If pricing were an important consideration, respondents 
would have taken an additional opportunity to restate their positions.  On the other hand, maintaining price 
levels of fitness programs for a period of time until the perception that prices are high dampens might be 
important. 
 
Ice Skating Program Usage
 
In Question 12, member survey respondents were provided choices of programs in which they intended to 
enroll, including public skating, hockey clubs, figure skating lessons, ice shows, other programs, or nothing.  
The following graph shows their responses.  


The graph shows that 54% of respondents said there were no ice skating programs in which they intended 
to enroll in the future.  Public skating was the highest at 26.7%.  Figure skating lessons, hockey clubs and ice 
shows were all under 10%.
 
When asked what the RecPlex could do to get respondents to enroll in more ice skating programs, their 
responses were very different from those for fitness programs, with a higher percentage saying there was 
nothing that could be done.  The open ended responses are in a table in the Appendix.


Figure 4.32







51 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The chart shows that nearly 70% of respondents said there was nothing that could be done, because they 
did not have the time.  The open ended responses suggest the dynamic that is really at work is that people 
do not have the interest.  When that is the case, which it appears to be for ice skating, pricing is less 
important.  With pricing not as important of a consideration, the marketing strategy needs to focus on 
engaging people by promoting the service.
 
Aquatic Program Usage
 
Question 15 of the RecPlex member survey asked in which aquatic programs respondents intended to 
register in the future.  Choices provided were general waterpark usage, lap swimming in the aqua arena, 
use of the whirlpool, learn to swim, lap swimming in the waterpark, swim team, or an open ended opportunity 
to respond.  The following graph compares their choices.


The graph shows the intent to register for waterpark usage was the greatest among members at 28.7%.  
There were declining but strong intents to register for other activities, suggesting a wide distribution of usage 
of indoor aquatic activities.  The open ended responses are in the Appendix, most of which were for exercise 
classes or swimming lesson options.


Figure 4.33


Figure 4.34







52 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Question 16 asked what could the RecPlex do to get members to enroll in more aquatic programs?  The 
chart shows that 38.6% said there was nothing the RecPlex could do, but a substantial portion said that 
offering them at convenient times, at cheaper prices and offering different programs would get them to 
enroll.  


Members’ specific recommendations are in a table in the Appendix. Most of the comments were not about 
new aquatic programs but rather how to improve existing ones, somewhat helpful but not on point.


Question 17 asked RecPlex member respondents how important the aqua arena 50 meter swimming pool 
was to retaining their membership.  Respondents were provided the opportunity to say it was very important, 
somewhat important, not important or they did not know.


The chart shows that it was not very important to 49.3% of the members surveyed, very important to 13.6% 
and somewhat important to 20.4%.  16.6% were not sure.  The findings suggest that the addition of the aqua 
arena was not very important to membership retention, but it should be remembered that the members who 
might not think it important might be those who do not intend to register for aquatic programs anyway.  


Figure 4.35


Figure 4.36







53 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Childcare and Education Program Usage
 
A facility like the RecPlex needs to have many smaller constituency groups to create a large group of 
clientele.  A category of services offered by the RecPlex includes childcare and education programs, 
including therapeutic recreation for special populations.  
 
Question 19 asked respondents to the member survey what programs they intended to participate in the 
future.  A list of choices was provided, including the Kids Court/Lil Tykes program, the Baby U programs, 
summer camp, the Preschool U program, before and after school day care, and the therapeutic recreation 
programs, with the responses compared in the following graph.


The Kids Court/Lil Tykes program is the most popular, with 39.5% of those responding to the RecPlex members’ 
survey saying they intended to register for it.  Summer camp respondents accounted for 26.4% of the 
responses and the other programs for the remainder.
 
The findings suggest intention to register for childcare and education programs provide much of the 
motivation for RecPlex members to retain their memberships.  But pricing is somewhat of an issue, as the 
responses to Question 20 show, where respondents are asked what can the RecPlex do to get them to enroll 
in more childcare and education programs.
 
The chart shows nothing is the most popular answer with 52.6% of members’ survey respondents saying 
there was not anything the RecPlex can do.  Cheaper prices was the second highest percentage at 26.5%.  
The findings suggest prices are less of a factor than time and affirm the members are more willing to spend 
money on their children than themselves, as the responses to the fitness program questions showed earlier 
in this report.  The open ended responses in the Appendix support that notion.


Figure 4.37







54 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Question asked members’ survey respondents what sports programs they intended to enroll in the future.  A 
list of 12 programs was provided for them to select from.


The graph shows a wide distribution of intentions to register for sports programs, with youth basketball the 
most popular at 16.6% followed by youth baseball and youth soccer.  In every case, youth sports were at 
higher percentages than comparable adult sports.  When asked what the RecPlex could do to get them 
to enroll in more sports programs, the responses were very similar to those for childcare and education 
programs.


Figure 4.38


Figure 4.39







55 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


That members are less concerned with price and more concerned with their ability to have the time for 
themselves or their children to participate in sports programs is the implication of the findings portrayed in 
the chart.
 
Camp Program Usage
 
Camps are children’s programs, so it would be reasonable to hypothesize that findings regarding camp 
usage for future enrollment would be somewhat similar to the other children programs analyzed in this 
report.  Question 25 asked about future registration in camp programs. The following graph shows RecPlex 
member survey respondents’ willingness to enroll in the Explorer Summer Camp, Patriots Hockey Camp, 
Discovery Summer Camp, and Summer Ice Skating Camp.


Figure 4.40


Figure 4.41







56 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The graph shows that 42.7% of those responding to the member survey said they intend to enroll in Explorer 
Summer Camp.  If true, it would be a substantial number people.  Discovery Summer Camp had the second 
highest percentage of respondents, suggesting summer camps are popular.  Intended enrollment in the 
Patriots Hockey and the Summer Ice Skating camps were identical at 9.7%, kind of amazing considering the 
size of the sample.
 
While 17.7% of respondents said they intended to enroll in other camps, higher than for other categories 
of programs, the list they provided in the table in the Appendix was briefer than for other programs.  When 
asked what the RecPlex could do to get members to enroll in more camp programs, the findings were very 
similar to other youth programs.


The findings show nothing again beats cheaper prices by a greater than two to one margin, 62.2% compared 
to 26.3%.  The responses of more convenient times, different locations and different programs were largely 
too small to consider seriously as solutions.  The table in the Appendix with the open ended responses about 
what different camp programs RecPlex members would like to see are largely statements about existing 
programs rather than new ones.


Analysis of Enrollment Data
 
The graphs and tables showing what programs RecPlex members intended to register for in the future 
were instructional in two ways.  They provided specific information about popularity of the programs at the 
RecPlex.  They also showed the level of engagement by the members and the diversity of their participation.  
Their responses about what the RecPlex could do to get additional engagement from them showed that in 
all cases, except for fitness programs, the time members have to participate in additional programs is more 
important than the price of those services.  
 
One hypothesis is that parents are more willing to spend money on their children, for camps, educational 
programs, childcare, sports programs, and aquatic programs than they are willing to spend on themselves 
for fitness programs.  However, the most important reasons that its members do business with the RecPlex 


Figure 4.42







57 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


may not be related to prices at all, considering the responses to Question 27, where members were asked 
why they chose to become a member of the RecPlex or participate in activities there.


The top three reasons were facility related: that the RecPlex is in a convenient location, it has a great fitness 
center and that it has a great aquatic facility.  Diverse programs were somewhat important, but that their 
friends go there or the staff is great are not as important.  Low prices are the last reason they became 
members.  


Lake Andrea and Lake Michigan Beach Usage
 
Two questions of RecPlex members were asked related to Lake Andrea Beach.  One was how often they 
or someone in their household made use of Lake Andrea Beach in the summer as part of their RecPlex 
membership, Question 28.  The other was what amenities would incline them use the beach more 
frequently.


Figure 4.43


Figure 4.44







58 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The findings in the chart show that almost 65% of RecPlex members use Lake Andrea Beach during the 
summer, most of them infrequently.  Only about 7% are moderate users and 6% would be considered 
frequent users.  
 
The findings are an indication that it is important for RecPlex members to have use of Lake Andrea Beach as 
a benefit of their membership, but that the beach should not be expected to sustain itself financially from 
RecPlex members alone.
 
As part of the community-wide survey, respondents were asked about their usage of Lake Andrea Beach.  
They were provided the opportunity to say they never use it, used it 1-4 times a season or five or more times.  
How frequently the general public uses the beach on average might indicate whether it should be part of 
the RecPlex or not.
 
The chart shows that 50% of the general public never make use of Lake Andrea Beach compared to 35.5% 
of RecPlex members, as shown in the previous chart.  But higher percentages of the general public would 
be considered frequent users of the beach than RecPlex members, suggesting that many members of the 
general public who are frequent users of the beach do so without RecPlex membership, seeing the cost 
advantage of cherry picking services.


Question 29 in the RecPlex member survey and Question 14 in the community-wide survey asked identical 
questions: what amenities would respondents like to see at Lake Andrea Beach?  Both were asked in the 
context of these improvements causing.


 The following chart compares community-wide and RecPlex member responses for each amenity choice: 
an expanded beach area, an expanded swim area, a waterslide, a raft, more shade areas, more picnic 
areas, or nothing because they do not use the beach.


Figure 4.45







59 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The graphs shows that a higher percentage of members of the general public, 31%, said there was nothing 
that could be done to encourage them to use Lake Andrea more, compared to 12% of RecPlex members.  
Otherwise, the responses were pretty comparable, with more shaded areas being the most popular amenity 
and a waterslide the second most popular.  


The findings suggest that improvements to the Lake Andrea Beach would be well received by RecPlex 
members and the general public, making them an advisable goal if they can be afforded.


Lake Michigan Beach usage was not asked as part of the RecPlex member survey because it is not a 
benefit of membership.  However, it will be included in this report because it is a recreational facility similar 
to Lake Andrea Beach.
 
In the community-wide survey, respondents were asked how frequently they or members of their households 
used Lake Michigan Beach over the past 12 months.  They were allowed to choose that they never use it, 
used it 1-4 times or that they used it 5 or more times.  The following graph compares the usage of Lake 
Michigan Beach by members of the general public to their usage of Lake Andrea Beach.


Figure 4.46







60 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The graph shows nearly comparable usage of the two beaches among members of the general public, 
suggesting that, since Lake Michigan Beach is far less developed than Lake Andrea Beach, making amenity 
improvements would serve the interests of the general public.  Specific improvements to Lake Michigan 
Beach were asked in Question 15 of the community-wide survey.


Interestingly, lifeguards were not as popular of an amenity improvement to generate more usage by the 
general public than a beachfront shelter.  Kayak and sailboat launches were desired by less than 10% of 
respondents.  But restrooms were by far the most popular at 33%.
 


Figure 4.47


Figure 4.48







61 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The findings suggest physical improvements to Lake Michigan Beach, especially a shelter and restrooms, 
which could be combined into one building, would be well received by members of the general public.  
Lifeguards were not popular, but it is clear that if usage of the beach increased, some kind of supervision 
would be required.
 
Communication Issues Related to Recreation Services
 
Question 1 of the community-wide survey asked members of the general public whether they were familiar 
with the parks and recreation services offered by the Village of Pleasant Prairie.  The RecPlex members’ 
survey did not ask a similar question because it seemed superfluous.   Responses to the community-wide 
survey were a window into the levels of communication taking place.


The comparison in the chart shows nearly the same percentage of respondents that were very familiar with 
parks and recreation services offered by the Village of Pleasant Prairie as there were those not at all familiar.  
It would be difficult to interpret these findings without some context, so Public Research Group offers its 
own.  
 
The familiarity with parks and recreation services appears to be low, even though 64% of those responding 
to the community-wide survey were somewhat familiar.  The test is what percentage was very familiar, and 
in Public Research Group’s experience, in most communities it is somewhat higher.  This is even more the 
case considering that the RecPlex is such a prominent facility in the community.  


It could very well be that many residents think the RecPlex is privately run or are simply not aware the Village 
operates it.  But for whatever reason, the percentage of those very familiar that the Village provides park 
and recreation services appears to be lower than average.


Question 2 of the community-wide survey asked how respondents or other members of their households 
hear about Pleasant Prairie parks and recreation services.


Figure 4.49







62 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The graph shows word of mouth is the leading medium for residents hearing about the Village’s park and 
recreation services, followed by brochures and newspaper articles.  The website, emails and the RecPlex 
television system are far behind.
 
In the experience of the Public Research Group, the leading medium for communication is the program 
brochure, with an awareness level around 70%.  Most people still rely on program brochures mailed to 
households to provide tangible information about parks and recreation services.  But since Pleasant Prairie 
does not invest as much in seasonal brochures as many communities, it might account for a lowered 
awareness of the services overall.  


On the other hand, RecPlex memberships are about 1/3 of the households in the community, a figure that 
no other communities, in the experience of the Public Research Group, can equal.


As far as how RecPlex members themselves hear about their services, Question 6 in the member survey 
asked what media through which they heard about RecPlex services.  The same choices were provided as 
to the general public in the community-wide survey.


Figure 4.50







63 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The RecPlex member survey response percentages in the graph show that emails as a form of communication 
are nearly equal to the 17% website response.  In fact, all are within the margin of error except brochures, 
which members evidently pay less attention to than the general public.  And it is interesting that members 
pay little attention to the RecPlex television system as a form of communication. 
 
Registration
 
Question 5 in the community-wide survey asked members of the general public how they registered for 
programs at the RecPlex.  Question 29 in the member survey asked the same.  The following graph compares 
their responses.


Figure 4.51


Figure 4.52







64 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Because about 2/3 of members of the general public are not RecPlex members, it is understandable that 
about half do not register for programs at all.  But that 52% of those responding to the community-wide 
survey do register for programs at the RecPlex is high compared to most communities with which the Public 
Research Group is familiar. That 87% of RecPlex members also register for programs suggests that their level 
of engagement in recreation programs at the RecPlex is high.  PRG understands that, if you build it, they will 
come. 
 
Customer Service


The perception of customer service can be very important to a business that is dependent upon the 
satisfaction of its client base to survive financially.  The RecPlex is no different.  Question 3 of the member 
survey asks member survey respondents to rate their customer service experience as excellent, good or 
poor.  If respondents said poor, they were asked to explain.  


The responses to Question 3 show that only 7.9% rate their experience as poor and that almost five times as 
many members rated the experience as excellent.  Public Research Group interprets these percentages to 
be far beyond acceptable, better than most other public agencies usually show.  
 
Question 31 in the RecPlex member survey asks respondents to tell about any unpleasant experiences they 
have had at the RecPlex in the past year.  It was an open ended question, with the responses in a table in 
the Appendix.  
 
Considering the small percentage of members who said they had a poor customer experience, there were 
also comments about the unpleasant experiences members have had.  Examination of them suggests the 
primary theme is the special events that displaced their use of the RecPlex or caused them parking issues.  
 
Considering the attempt to create reserved parking for members when events were in the park or the 
facility, Question 4 in the members’ survey asked RecPlex members if they felt the members only parking 
system is a benefit to them as members. 


Figure 4.53







65 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The responses to Question 4 shows 76.9% of respondents to the members, survey felt it was a benefit, 17.2% 
said no and 5.9% were not sure. Asked whether they felt the $20 fee for the lifetime of their car parking fee 
was a fair price to pay, most people agree as well, but in smaller percentages.  


The responses to the question about fairness of the parking fee indicate that more members agree than 
disagree with the pricing, however within the margin of error, suggesting support for the parking price is too 
close to be sure.  
 


Figure 4.54


Figure 4.55







66 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Final Comments
 
Question 32 of the RecPlex members’ survey asked what amenities respondents would like to see added to 
the RecPlex in the next few years.  Responses were open-ended and are in a table in the Appendix.  
 
The themes that emerge range from building indoor tennis courts to improving the waterpark to expanding 
the locker rooms. There are literally hundreds of ideas, most of them improvements that the staff and village 
manager are already considering.
 
The community-wide and member surveys ended with the opportunity for respondents to provide their own 
comments about any subject they wanted. Both tables of comments are in the Appendix.
 
Many of the final comments from the community-wide survey are about the parks and beaches.  But both 
tables have many positive comments about the RecPlex, the staff and customer services.  There are a few 
complaints to be sure, but far fewer than would be expected. 


Public Meetings
 
There were three joint public meetings in concert with the development of the park and open space 
plan held prior to the development of the first draft of the recreation master plan, all of which were lightly 
attended.  None were attended by RecPlex members, but rather by community members who had some 
suggestions regarding future parks and recreation services.  Included in their suggestions were:


There should be a focus on preserving natural areas in the community,


Development of a pathway system would improve neighborhood connections,


The Lake Michigan Beach needs some development if it is going to be used more,


Senior citizen programming needs to be expanded, and


Programs at the RecPlex need to focus less on athletics and more on passive recreation. 


 
These ideas were repeated in the open-ended comments made at the end of the member and community-
wide surveys.  


Data Analysis Conclusions
 
Considering that the data gathering process received a mountain of data from Recreation Commissioners, 
staff members, RecPlex members, and the general public, the task of analyzing it is somewhat daunting.  
There are many pages of open-ended comments from RecPlex members and the general public that 
must be taken into consideration in order to develop meaningful goals and objectives that will advance 
recreational services in the Village of Pleasant Prairie.
 


•


•


•


•


•







67 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


What is clear is that the RecPlex is well regarded by its members and that the general public sees how it 
contributes to the quality of life in Pleasant Prairie.  What is also clear is that there are services the Recreation 
Department could offer in conjunction with the parks division of the public works department that are 
desired by large percentages of the population.  
 
Addressing these findings through meaningful goals and objectives is the function of Chapter 5 and the 
timeline for implementing them is contained in Chapter 6 of this plan.  







5.0 Goals & Objectives


68 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


How Goals and Objectives are Formulated


Thus far, this comprehensive plan has reviewed input provided by a number of sources in the community.  
Member and community-wide surveys have been conducted.  Public hearings have been held, and the 
staff and board have provided their ideas.
 
All of these sources need to be taken into consideration to determine the needs of the community as well 
as the needs of the Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department.  Based on this feedback, goals 
and objectives of this plan have been developed for administration, memberships, programs, marketing, 
and capital improvements that fit public needs and are reasonably achievable by the Recreation 
Department.


Administrative goals have emerged based on input from the board and staff, input from interest groups, 
and input from the Recreation Commission.  Program needs emerged from the telephone and mail surveys, 
input from the staff and the work of the Recreation Commission.    


Marketing goals are largely a function of recreation program goals, resulting from mail and telephone 
survey analysis, input from interest groups, input from the board and staff, and the work of the Recreation 
Commission.  Capital improvement goals were largely a result of input from the staff, but with some input 
from interest groups and the mail and telephone surveys.


Membership goals and financial goals originated from all sources, particularly the mail and telephone surveys, 
although, some ideas were provided by the Recreation Commission committee and interest groups.


Administrative goals are the foundation of any master plan.  Without the increased ability of the agency to 
administer to the needs of the community, those needs cannot be met.  
 
Equitability is determined by need.  For this reason, the telephone and mail surveys provide the best 
information about what the community needs, with other sources important as well.  
 
In political science and public administration, one important source of information about how well an 
agency is performing administratively is comparing itself to surrounding agencies.  In this regard, the Village 
of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department has some important challenges.  
 
One important consideration in this presentation of goals and objectives for the Pleasant Prairie Recreation 
Department is the understanding of how goals differ from objectives.  Goals are the broad stroke concepts 
of how the organization ought to move forward.  Objectives are the specific tasks which need to take place 
before the goals can be achieved.  
 







69 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


With that understanding, the first category is the presentation of administrative goals and objectives, which 
is followed by membership, programmatic, marketing, and capital improvement goals and objectives.  
Taken in the order they are presented, they represent the sequence of events that need to take place for 
the Recreation Department to move to the next level.


Administrative Goals 
 
The overarching administrative goal is to improve the way that the administration of the Village of Pleasant 
Prairie Recreation Department delivers recreational services to the community.  Improving in service 
delivery translates to more activities serving a greater number of people, something all agencies need to 
do regardless of their current levels of services.  No matter how good a community is on delivering services, 
the overarching administrative goal is always to get better. 


In order to accomplish the overarching goal, sub-goals need to be established, most of which need to be 
accomplished before membership, programmatic, marketing and capital improvement goals can even 
be initiated.  In the case of the Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department, the data in this plan suggests 
administrative goals need to begin with the following: 
  


Goal 1:  Reconsider the role of the Recreation Commission


Objectives


Review the mission of the Commission as being total advisory and consider that it become 
more proactive in assisting in the provision of recreation programs outside the RecPlex


Discuss creating sub-committees of the Recreation Commission that work with community 
groups in providing more cultural arts and non-athletic programs for all ages such as gardening 
and music by the lake


Create a Business Advisory Group made up of members


Goal 2:  Consider revising the organizational structure of the RecPlex administrative system


Objectives


Review the organization chart and consider revisions to its structure that identify key 
management positions, including the business manager, guest services director, program/
fitness director, IcePlex director, and facilities director, with all other positions answering to 
one of them


•


•


•


•







70 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Goal 3:  Consider revising the financial reporting system so that managers can better understand whether 
they are achieving their objectives


Objectives


Review the current financial reports provided to RecPlex managers and gather feedback 
about their needs for timeliness or better understanding


Study ways to provide clearer and more timely information to managers about their goals in 
covering operating costs and their contributions to overhead


Consider revising the staff meeting process, with review of the financial reports as the primary 
function of those meetings


As part of the revised financial reporting system, consider revising the organizational 
structure such that guest services is a separate function from registration, with registration the 
responsibility of the business manager and guest services a separate function


Membership Goals 


As staff and commissioner visioning has identified and the financial reports illustrate, the lifeblood of the 
Village of Pleasant Prairie RecPlex is revenue from membership fees.  In fact, analysis shows that memberships 
also account for over 70% of program fees.  In combination, the stabilization and increase of membership 
and program fees is one of the most important goals of this plan.


The strategies that emerge from this plan include: 


Goal 1:  After developing a method of calculating member usage, study means of analyzing membership 
participation in order to identify members at risk of terminating their memberships


Objectives


Consider hiring a consultant to build the first model, initially using the data that is currently 
available


Once the new data gathering system is in place, consider hiring a consultant to teach staff 
members how to build member-at-risk models on their own so that future consultants would 
not be necessary


Investigate ways of reviewing member-at-risk reports with other staff, perhaps at regular staff 
meetings reviewing financial reports


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







71 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Goal 2:  Study ways of retaining members-at-risk after they have been identified 


Objectives


Consider changes made in the organizational structure of the RecPlex where the guest 
services coordinator is directly responsible for membership retention


Train staff to be knowledgeable that RecPlex membership retention is everyone’s 
responsibility 


Have the guest services coordinator and his/her staff communicate with members-at-risk on 
a regular basis to see what services they can provide to engage their usage of the RecPlex


When revising RecPlex job descriptions, consider making it the responsibility of the guest 
services coordinator rather than the program director to design programs that help retain 
members


Follow up with lost members through a phone call by an authoritative employee of the 
RecPlex


Goal 3:  Consider revising the database for memberships and program registrations


Objectives


Investigate the purchase of a software system or hiring of a software developer that will permit 
better tracking of memberships and program usages while still interfacing with the village 
financial reporting system


Investigate the purchase of a software system or hiring of a software developer that maintains 
archival data tracking program usage by members and non-members while interfacing with 
the village accounting system


Investigate the purchase of a software system or hiring of a software developer that permits 
admission of members to different areas of the RecPlex while maintaining a record of usage 
in real time for security purposes as well as programmatic participation


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







72 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Program Goals 


The array of programs offered by the Pleasant Prairie Recreation Department, most of which are based in 
the RecPlex, is truly amazing.  One of the issues that arose during the members’ survey was not that new 
RecPlex programs needed to be added as much as the RecPlex membership needs to be more engaged 
in participating in programs which already exist.  Strategies for engagement of members are, therefore, part 
of this plan. 
 
The community-wide survey identified programs that the community wants to be offered outside the 
RecPlex.  The community felt that programs outside the RecPlex need to include cultural arts and special 
events, most of which would be outside the mission of the RecPlex and for which administrative goals need 
to be adopted in advance of these new programs. 
 
The goals which would enhance participation in the existing array of RecPlex programs and allow for cultural 
arts and special events to take place in the parks include:


Goal 1:  Consider reviewing the RecPlex sports programs to see what growth opportunities exist with in-
house leagues 


Objectives


Review the current financial reports provided by the village financial department and consider 
hosting a facilitated staff workshop, brainstorming ideas that would improve sports programs 
and their delivery


Based on staff feedback, develop a list of vetted improvements to sports programs that 
represent an array of reasonable solutions 


Based on the best solutions, study the willingness of discontinuing some sports programs and 
replacing them with others 


Goal 2:  Consider the expansion of pre-school and early childhood development programs


Objectives


Consider a staff led feasibility study and market analysis of the opportunities available to the 
RecPlex to expand pre-school or early childhood development programs 


Within the study, consider the capital needs of expanding the pre-school and early childhood 
programs


Within the study, consider the return on investment on the capital predicted to be spent to 
support expansion of pre-school and early childhood programs 


•


•


•


•


•


•







73 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Goal 3:  Continue the practice of a competitive comparison survey of facilities and programs on an 
annual basis


Objectives


Breakdown programs and facility use areas into manageable units


Create a survey to use by target units


Distribute to identified agencies


Tabulate findings and use information to aid in decision making


A preschool study that tracks obesity levels and membership retention


Goal 4:  Increase the level of health wellness and awareness by the development of a Program for all 
ages including children, adults, families and seniors 


Objectives


Conduct a brainstorming session to generate ideas regarding a reasonable direction


Create methods to administer Program


Implement the Program


Evaluate the Program


Implement larger scale program based on success Program 


Goal 5:  Expand opportunities for high quality athletic programs and events 


Objectives


Research the possibility of tournament groups using RecPex in the Chicago/Milwaukee area


Increase youth participation in sport programs by 20% by 2014


Identify two traditional and two non-traditional sporting programs not offered in the surrounding 
areas


Implement sporting programs  


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







74 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Goal 6:  Advance aquatic programs to encourage swimming as a lifetime activity 


Objectives


Research possible water sports that could be offered


Create new programs to encourage lap swimming or recreation swimming


Evaluate new aquatic fitness program offerings


Implement marketing initiatives to encourage enrollment


Implement Learn 2 Swim programs 


Goal 7:  Implement improvements to fitness experience and increase retention of members  


Objectives


Investigate ideas into new trends and programs


Hold on-going focus groups with membership to find out what is missing from the fitness 
experience


Introduce new equipment and facility updates to membership


Coordinate social activities and club events for members


Provide incentive programs and options for long time members


Marketing Goals 


In its strictest academic definition, marketing is the design and management of the product or service a 
business offers, the determination of a price for the product or service that will position it in the marketplace, 
the place that the product or service will be sold, and the promotional strategy for informing customers the 
product or service is available and how it meets their needs.  These are commonly known as the “Four P’s” 
of marketing: product, price, place, and promotion.
 
The most common meaning of marketing, though, is that it is promotion or sales of the product or service.  
Sometimes the meaning of marketing is limited to advertising and the media through which a certain 
message is provided.  But Public Research Group knows that the most common meaning of the term is far 
to limited for this particular plan. 
 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







75 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The marketing goals of this plan need to focus on more than promotional strategies.  They need to consider 
what recreational services are being offered, the price at which they need to be offered to cover operating 
and overhead costs, what the competition is and how the RecPlex addresses that competition, and 
what form of promotion needs to take place to do so.  Therefore, marketing goals for the Pleasant Prairie 
Recreation Department include:


Goal 1:  Examine the need to conduct a formal review of the recreation services being offered at the 
RecPlex as well as beyond that facility and determine which need to be added, dropped or changed


Objectives


Consider a staff led formal review of recreation services


Determine what levels of engagement should be with the staff, commission and public in 
order to insure that recommendations are realistic and effective


Consider preparing a formal strategic plan that makes concrete recommendations about 
what programs need to be added, dropped or changed and what that effect would be on 
overall services and revenues


Capital Improvement Goals 


Considering that very few communities in Wisconsin, have been as progressive as the Village of Pleasant 
Prairie in its offering of recreation service through the construction of a $44 million facility like the RecPlex, it 
might not seem like there is much left to do in the way capital improvements.  


On the other hand, the community-wide survey showed there are still unmet recreational needs that would 
improve the quality of life in Pleasant Prairie and might even contribute the desirability of the community as 
a site for corporate expansion that would contribute to the tax base.  In a competitive business environment, 
capital expansion can provide competitive advantage to lure businesses to the community.  Therefore, to 
not spend any money on capital improvements is not advisable.


Considering the parks and recreation needs identified in the community-wide survey, capital improvement 
goals should include:


•


•


•







76 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Goal 1:  Consider expansion of the locker rooms or construction of new locker rooms and their impact 
upon membership and program usage at the RecPlex 


Objectives


Based on information in the membership survey results in the recreation master plan, consider 
the feedback received and its impact on facility usage


Investigate the development of basic concept plans for locker room expansion or new locker 
room construction, identifying capital costs and sources of capital financing 


Consider the capital costs and their return on investment to the RecPlex if the locker rooms 
would be expanded or new locker rooms built


Goal 2:  Consider expansion of RecPlex for pre-school and early childhood programs 


Objectives


Based on information in the membership survey results in the recreation master plan, consider 
the feedback received and its impact on facility usage


Investigate the development of basic concept plans for pre-school and early childhood 
development room construction, identifying capital costs and sources of capital financing 


Consider the capital costs and their return on investment to the RecPlex if the number of pre-
school or early childhood development would be built


Goal 3:  Consider the expansion of parking lot to accommodate peak times


Objectives


Perform an in-house parking count study to determine peak time parking numbers


Develop a parking lot design to expand the lot for peak time traffic


Secure funding and implement the improvement


Goal 4:  Reconfigure guest services desk for efficiency and business flow


Objectives


Study member flow and logical organizational layout of guest services desk


Identify opportunities to implement self-service information and registration kiosks


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







6.0 Plan Implementation


77 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The previous chapter covered strategic goals and objectives dealing with administration, membership, 
programming, marketing and capital improvements. Overall, it is clear the RecPlex is successful. But a 
question that should be asked is the facility so big and complex that it has lost touch with both its members 
and the Village residents.  A refocus of the internal operations efforts to make the membership feel valued; 
having more of a personal connection to the people should not be overlooked. The goals and objectives 
reflect a vision to make the impressive 302,000 square foot RecPlex feel personal again.
 
The following graphic highlights the need to focus on the customer experience; this will lead to better 
member retention. The primary goal should be to keep the members you have before seeking new members 
for additional growth. The thought process is very simple, but can be executed in many different ways.







78 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Level 3.0 for
Future Success 


Level 2.0 for 
Upcoming
Success


Level 1.0 for 
Current
Success


Growth of 
Membership & 


Leisure Services


Retention of 
Membership & 


Leisure Services


Focus on 
Total User Experience


Figure 6.1


Strategic Direction Pyramid







79 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Any plan to be successful must have good information to craft it. The table that follows is organized into a 
simple to follow implementation action plan that should be implemented to meet the goals and objectives 
as outlined in this plan.  It is the result of all the research, meetings, responses and discussions that has 
transpired during the six month planning process. The action plan is the primary starting place to make 
management and operations changes. It is also the first place to start the discussion on the need to keep up 
on the research to effectively manage both a large membership base and an equally as large recreation 
facility.   


Goal Rank Type 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
After developing a method of calculating 
member usage, study means of analyzing 
membership participation in order to 
identify members at risk of terminating their 
memberships


High Membership X X X X X


Implement improvements to the fitness 
experience and increase retention of 
members


High Program X X X X X


Create a special events series out in the 
parks


High Program X


Focus on customer service High Membership X X X X X
Study ways of retaining members-at-risk 
after they have been identified


High Membership X X X X X


Consider the expansion of pre-school and 
early childhood development programs


High Program X X


Increase the level of health wellness and 
awareness by the development of a 
Program for all ages including children, 
adults, families and seniors


High Program X


Consider expansion of RecPlex for pre-
school and early childhood programs.


High
Capital 


Improvement
X


Reconsider the role of the Recreation 
Commission


Medium Administrative X X


Consider revising the organizational 
structure of the RecPlex administrative 
system


Medium Administrative X


Consider revising the database for 
memberships and program registrations


Medium Administrative X X


Continue the practice of a competitive 
comparison survey of facilities and 
programs on an annual basis


Medium Program X X X X







80 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Goal Rank Type 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
Advance aquatic programs to encourage 
swimming as a lifetime activity


Medium Program X X


Consider expansion of the locker rooms or 
construction of new locker rooms and their 
impact upon membership and program 
usage at the RecPlex


Medium
Capital 


Improvement
X


Expand opportunities for high quality 
athletic programs and events


Medium Program X X X


Consider expansion of parking lot to 
accommodate peak times


Low
Capital 


Improvement
X X


Re-configure guest services desk for 
efficiency and business flow


Low
Capital 


Improvement
X X


Consider revising the financial reporting 
system so that managers can better 
understand whether they are achieving 
their objectives


Low Administrative X X


Consider reviewing the RecPlex sports 
programs to see what growth opportunities 
exist with in-house leagues


Low Program X X


Examine the need to conduct a formal 
review of the recreation services being 
offered at the RecPlex as well as beyond 
that facility and determine which need to 
be added, dropped or changed


Low Marketing X X


Figure 6.2







Appendix


81 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







82 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







83 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







84 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







85 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







86 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







87 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







88 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







89 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







90 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







91 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







92 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







93 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016







94 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Pleasant Prairie Parks and Recreation Survey


Thank you for taking time to complete this survey. Please consider all members of your household when 
completing this survey. Please respond as soon as you can and return this survey in the enclosed envelope by 
August 15, 2011. Please call us at 262-925-6730 if you have any questions. 


1.


Very Familiar Somewhat Familiar Not at all Familiar


Are you familiar with the Parks and Recreation Services offered by the Village of Pleasant Prairie?


2.
PPRP E-mails PPRP Program Brochures PPRP Website


Newspaper ArticlesWord of Mouth PPRP Television System 


How do you or others in your household hear about Pleasant Prairie Park and Recreation Services?


Other (Please Describe)


3.


Yes No I Don’t Know


Are you or is anyone in your household a member of the Pleasant Prairie RecPlex?


4.


Very Satisfied Moderately Satisfied Moderately Dissatisfied


How would you characterize your satisfaction with the programs the Pleasant Prairie RecPlex offers?


Very Dissatisfied No Opinion


5.


Online In Person Mail


How do you register for programs at the RecPlex?


Telephone I Don’t


6.


Never 1-5 Times 6-10 Times


Regardless of if you are a member of the RecPlex or not, how often do you think you or someone in your 
household use the fitness center in the RecPlex each month?


More than 10 Times I’m Not Sure


7.


Pleasant Prairie Triathlon
Danskin Triathlon
Kids Expo
Volleyball Tournaments
Basketball Tournaments
Hockey Tournaments


Trek Triathlon
Kids Triathlon
Halloween Fest
Swim Meets
Ice Shows
Prairie Family Days
Other (Please Specify)


Which of the following special events do you or members of your household participate? (Please check as a 
participant or spectator or both)


Participant Spectator Participant Spectator


Please answer the questions on the reverse side of this page.







95 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


8.


General Fitness Center Usage
Fitness Programs for Kids
Massage Therapy
General Pool Usage
Lap Swimming- Aqua Arena
Children’s Day Care
Adult Day Care
Special Needs Care
Youth Basketball
Youth Baseball
Youth Soccer
Adult Volleyball
Summer Camp
Programs for the Arts
Youth Hockey
Personal Trainers


Do you or anyone in your family participate in the following recreation programs offered at the Pleasant Prairie 
RecPlex or anywhere else?  (Please check all that apply)


RecPlex Elsewhere
Group Fitness Classes
Indoor Triathlons
Swimming Lessons
Lap Swimming- Waterpark
Preschool Programs
Before & After School Care
Therapeutic Recreation
Adult Basketball
Men’s Softball
Co-Ed Softball
Co-Ed Soccer
Ice Skating Camp
Adult Hockey
Crafts Programs
Other (Please Specify)


RecPlex Elsewhere


9. Why do you go elsewhere for recreation services?


The RecPlex doesn’t offer them
Prices are cheaper
Our friends go there


Better service
Convenience
Other (Please Specify)


11.


Lake Andrea Beach


Pleasant Prairie Park


Rolling Meadows Park


Chiwaukee Prairie State Natural Area


Lake Michigan Park/Beach


Becker Park


Carol Beach Park


Prairie Springs/Veterans Memorial Park


5 or more times
1-4 times


Never


5 or more times
1-4 times


Never


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


About how many times would you estimate you or other family members used each of the following facilities 
over the past 12 months? (Please check the box to the left of the correct answer)


10. What could we do to get you to enroll in more of our recreation programs?


Nothing, I don’t have the time
Offer them at convenient times
Offer different programs (Please Specify)
Other (Please let us know how)


Offer programs at cheaper prices
Offer them at different locations







96 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


12.


Bicycle Paths


Running/Walking Paths


Playgrounds


Picnic Shelters


Archery Range


Ball Diamonds


Marina


Beaches


5 or more times
1-4 times


Never


5 or more times
1-4 times


Never


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


Never


1-4 times
5 or more times


About how many times have you or other family members used the following park facilities or activity areas in 
Pleasant Prairie over the past 12 months? (Please check the box of the correct answers)


13.


Very Satisfied Somewhat Satisfied  Very DissatisfiedSomewhat Dissatisfied


How satisfied are you with the condition and maintenance of the parks and facilities?


14. What amenities would make you or members of your household use the Lake Andrea Beach more 
frequently?


Expanded Beach Area
Expanded Swim Area
A Waterslide
A Raft


More Shade Areas
More Picnic Areas
Nothing, I don’t use it
Other (Please Specify)


15. What amenities would make you or members of your household use the Lake Michigan Beach more 
frequently?


Lifeguards
Kayak Launch
Beachfront Shelter
Other (Please Specify)


Restrooms
Sailboat Launch
Nothing, I don’t use it


16. Which of the following activities would you like to see in the parks?
Ethnic Festivals
Theatre in the Park
Music in the Park
Farmers Market


Crafts Festivals
Nothing, it’s fine now
Other (Please Specify)


Please answer the questions on the reverse side of this page.







97 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Please add any comments that you or your family members would like to share with the Pleasant Prairie Parks 
and Recreation Departments.


25.


Thank you for your time and effort in completing this survey.  Your help has been 
very valuable to us to serve you better.


Are you a female or male?


Female Male


23.


19. How long have you lived in Pleasant Prairie or your current residence? __________ years


Beginning with yourself, what are the ages of those in your household?24.


18. Which of the following amenities would you like to see added and/or renovated in the parks in the next 5 years?  
(Please check all that apply)


Bike Paths
Skate Park
Lighted Walking Paths
Outdoor Fitness Stations
Softball/Baseball Fields with Natural 
Grass
Soccer Fields with Natural Grass
Football Fields with Natural Grass
Softball/Baseball Fields with Artificial 
Turf
Soccer Fields with Artificial Turf
Football Fields with Artificial Turf
Athletic Field Lighting
Frisbee Golf Course


Ice Skating 
Playground Equipment
Basketball Court
Water Playground/Splashpad
Picnic Shelters
Decorative Gazebos
Dog Park
Vegetable Garden Plots
More Flowerbeds/Landscaping
Woodland Restoration
Tennis Courts
Drinking Fountains
Park Benches
Other (Please Specify)


20. How long does it take you to commute from your home to work? ____________minutes


21. Please tell us about any unpleasant experiences you’ve had at Pleasant Prairie parks or facilities in the past 
year?


22. What amenities would you like to see added to the RecPlex in the next few years?


17.


Maintaining Existing Recreation Programs 5 4 3 2 1
Improving Existing Recreation Programs 5 4 3 2 1
Acquiring New Park Land   5 4 3 2 1
Improving Existing Park/Facilities  5 4 3 2 1
Building New Facilities   5 4 3 2 1


a)
b)
c)
d)
e)


Please rate each of the following Pleasant Prairie priorities in terms of how important it would be to you and 
your family.


(5 - Very Important, 4 - Somewhat Important, 3 - Somewhat Unimportant, 2 - Very Unimportant, 1 - Not Sure)







98 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Other fitness programs in which you intend to enroll:


The responses provided a range of interests.  The 
following is a summary of the 45 comments received 
as to the types;


Aquatics with swimming and water aerobics


Ice skating/hockey


Running


Triathlons with training


Group fitness classes


Other things we could do to get you to enroll in fitness 
programs:


Already a regular total fitness pass user


Aqua Arena is terrific


Bring back abs & bun classes with Connie or 
Kim


Bring back Yogalates


Cheaper prices


Continue same classes whether school is in 
session or not


Convenient Times


Direct market to middle aged men and up


Earlier classes for older working women


Free classes for members


Have a real therapy pool with warmer water 
temps


Have Silver Sneakers for seniors


I may sign up in the future


I workout on my own


Improve childcare for children 2 years and 
younger


Improve the ease of website use


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Improve the visitor recovery program to 
maintain better relationships


Indoor tennis


Les Mills classes are too packaged


More classes for over weight kids/adults


More convenient times for Yoga


More ‘drop in’ programs for teens other than 
the Zone


More information about classes


More types of fitness to adapt to changing 
attitudes and trends


Need classes for beginners


Never been to RecPlex


Offer an ala carte program


Offer better instructors


Offer more classes before and after work


Offer more of Brook’s classes earlier in the 
morning


Offer smaller class sizes


Offer Tour de France ride along


Open fieldhouse to members every day


Open new locker rooms to swimmers for large 
pool


Open up classes to children


Pass for classes are too high


Provide classes for adults only


Provide punch cards for classes


Provide the level of service you advertise


Strength training classes for those with joint 
problems


Too far away to utilize programs


TRX class is too expensive


TRX classes starting earlier in the evening


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







99 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Unable to participate in fitness programs


Will be cancelling membership soon


Work out at Strawberry Creek


Other reasons to enroll in ice skating programs:


I do not skate


Afraid of being on Ice, sorry


again - not sure---grand children are enrolled 
at rink side


already in full participation


and more convenient times


ankle breakers is a great idea. plan to 
participate


Beginner classes for older kids


Better discounts for members


Change one of the ice rinks into an indoor 
soccer field


children grown/3 granddaughters ‘live’ on the 
ice


Children not old enough for programs yet, but 
will utilize in the future


classes seem to based more on age then skill


Consider better prices for member vs non  
members


Do not have an interest in ice skating.


Do not have interest


Do not ice skate and not interested


Do not like to ice skate  waste of room in our 
opinion


Do not skate


Do not ice skate


For members using the facilities, it would be nice 
to be able to use the gym to play basketball or 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


let the kids run around in the field house.  Parent 
Tot swim should be just that.  The Discovery 
program should have it is own designated swim 
time like the


Get a more reliable staff (my child was enrolled 
and it was a new instructor each session) Also 
downsize number of children in the classes.


get a new, less political figure skating club


Get rid of the offensive video games by the rink 
entrance


getting over an injury 1st


have no interest


have the member open skate schedule more 
visible in the RecPlex


I am already involved in them


I am not interested in ice skating


I am not interested in skating


I do not ice skate, but I take my daughter there 
occasionally.


I do not skate


I do not have a high interest in ice skating, 
but I would like to go to open public skating 
sometime.


I do not ice skate


I do not ice skate.


I do not know how to skate


I do not know, I have not looked into your 
programs.


I do not like cold, either.


I do not skate


I do not want to fall


i do not skate!!!!


I do not skate but believe you have nice 
programs for those who do.


I had a spine injury and I will not skate any 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







100 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


more!


I have no interest is ice skating


I have NO interest in ice skating programs


I have no interest in skating


I have no interest in skating programs.


I have the time but not the interest


I just have not looked into it yet.


I MAY TRY IT IN THE FUTURE.


i need to make time to check it out


I would like a beginners hockey league (I am 
44 and have never played hockey)


I am not a skater.


I am not interested in ice skating programs.


I am not interested in this service


I am too old & afraid of breaking a hip.  I think 
your skating program is great for the young.


It is really because we do not have an interest, 
time is not the true issue


Just do not have the interest/handicapped


Just not very interested in ice skating


love the old geezer league, keep it going, 
good dates and times.


Make sure programs offered on Sat/Sun are 
offered during the weekday


Make the schedule/program/class info in 
the catalog more user friendly.  It is hard to 
decipher.


May use it in the future for grandson


more beginner’s helper


More open skate times available


More public skating hours would be nice.


My children are grown


My daughter loves it!!!


N/A


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


need more programs geared toward over 50, 
out of shape, clutsy people like me


no interest


No interest


No interest at all in ice skating programs. TWO 
ice rinks? Really?


no interest in ice skating


No interest in ice sports


No interest in skating programs


No interest


No longer can skate age


no real interest


No real interest at this time


not a skater


Not a skater.


not an ice skater


Not an ice skater.


not interested


Not interested


Not Interested


Not interested at all in any of the programs 
regardless of what they are


not interested in ice skating


Not interested in ice skating programs


Not interested in ice skating programs.


not interested in IcePlex


Not interested in skating


Not interested.


not of interest to me


Not really interested


Not really interested in skating


Not really interested in Skating often. Sorry.


not sure as of now


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







101 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Nothing -- does not appeal to me.


Nothing at this time, pending the interest of the 
child is our hold up


Nothing I would prefer to get my exercise a 
different way


Nothing, I would break my neck.


Nothing, I am just waiting for my young children 
to get a little older


Nothing, I am not interested in ice skating


nothing, My children do not have an interest in 
ice activities


Nothing, not interested


Nothing.  I do not plan to skate at all.


OFFER A TEENAGE HOCKEY PROGRAM


Offer high specialty classes with Denise Myers 
(jump, spin, power)


Offer Programs for Special Needs Children


offer skate rental free to members


Offering more adult classes and not just basic 
skating


open hockey is much too expensive for 
members when you child wants to go two to 
three times a week in the off season.


open hockey price is high for parent & child so 
we go somewhere else.


open skate times are not very convenient


Our daughter has taken numerous lessons and 
our son will start now that he is three.  We like 
the ice skating lessons.


physically impossible


really not for older adults


skates that fit, and adult beginning classes (I do 
worse than a three year old)


sorry not interested in skating, so no opinion


Sorry, I am just not interested in ice skating.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Sorry, we are not interested in ice skating.


start after 5 pm


Summer there are not enough day/time options 
and the rest of the yr the classes tend to be very 
large and skaters do not benefit from being left 
alone to practice a skill (especially younger 
children)


The pre-school u is poorly run. I think Melissa 
Santell is overwhelmed.  I have called on several 
occasions and never received a return calls.  I 
think the program is too big now and beyond 
her knowledge base and experience.


the rec plex is a long drive so we do not have 
the luxury of driving down very often


There needs to be improvement for the Ice 
Arena Parking for members.  Others use this 
parking who are not members and in the winter 
is hard to find parking here


this is not something that I am interested in.


Too afraid to try.


too old


too old to participate


too old to skate


Two ice skating rinks is a waste of space - you 
need to do a profit and loss analysis on those 
rink to see if they are profitable, otherwise put 
in martial arts room, speed bags, more heavey 
bags and consider squash courts


unsure


We are already enrolled


we are to old


we are too old to skate


We do not ice skate


We will likely enroll our 4 year old in a hockey 
class/club


We would always prefer more ice hockey 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







102 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


open ice but understand the balance of all ice 
activities..


When my son is older, he could possibly take 
hockey / public lessons


Wish I had some ideas...


Regardless of whether you participated in the aquatic 
programs at the RecPlex in the past which of these 
aquatic program:


55 and over swim team


Aqua Exercise


Adult swimming classes


Aerobics


aqua fitness


Aqua Flow


Aqua Flow


Beach


channel


Channel pool


Children’s swim lessons


classes


Considering swim team for the kids.


current channel


Current Channel and any water exercises are 
my only therapy right now.


current pool


Current pool


Deep Water aerobics


Deep Water Trekking


Diving


easy water exercise


exercise


exercise class


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


exercise classes


Exercising in the water


Group exercise


Health Therapy


I did not know that the whirlpool was considered 
a program?


kids swim


lazy river


Lifeguard program


Master’s Swimming


Masters


Masters swim


n/a


N/A


No interest


none


None


None


none dissatisfied with the learn to swim program 
for kids


None would rather get exercise a different 
way


not interested


not interesting in swimming


not registering


private swim lessons


professional swim coaching


resistance pool


right now--we just swim laps


running in water


sauna


Some swim programs, or games geared 
specifically towards older adults.  Couples night 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







103 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


out for example.


Swim across the lake beach lap swimming


Swim classes


swim classes are always full even as a member


the air quality in the pool area is too chlorinated.  
My ears burn and chest hurts from chlorine 
fumes.  You must do something to reduce the 
side effects from chlorination.  I would use the 
pool but can not due to my reaction within 1 
hour.  I am not a senior


Toddler programs


walking the channel


water aerobics


water aerobics/aqua motion classes


water cardio


water exercise classes


water exercises


water fitness class/ birthday party waterpark 
rental


water fitness classes


water in motion


Water in Motion


Water In Motion


Water in Motion classes


water motion


Water toning class w/ Karen.  love it!


would like an adult stroke work class with 
multiple time slots and maybe a pass to drop 
in. nothing terribly structured, but just a coach 
to give tips


What could we do to get you to enroll in more of our 
aquatic programs - Other:


>14 age group less than age 18


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Across lake swims are great!


Adult swimming technique


Adults only swim lessons


again, we just do occasionally


area for young adults to dive and swim


Arthritis water program in WARMER water


Better explanation of courses to prepare kids 
for competitive swimming


better instructors


better qualified instructor


better teachers


BETTER TEACHING FOR GROUPS


Change swimming lessons, very poor quality.


convenient times and cheaper prices


Coordinate segregation of member lap lanes 
and swim meet lanes.  Often there is a written 
taped sign which no one reads.  Require a 
volunteer from the swim meet to monitor the 
lanes.  I am always running into people.


Current classes are for old people, how about 
a class for younger, physically fit people


Diving


Do not use chlorine


EXPAND WATERPARK-TOO SMALL


for tweens


great so far


greater variety in young swimmers programs 
for children with different levels of comfort with 
water.


Have a better defined program for younger kids.  
My child is board. Often times the instructions 
seem uninterested.


have a program for older adults, like couples 
swim.  older adult pool party.  Swimming is 
something almost all older adults can do, 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







104 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


because there is no pressure on joints, hip, knee 
replacements, etc.  We need your help.  How 
about some fun games in the water


Have adult only walking channel at all times


Have experienced teachers and not a slacker 
teenager


Have intermediate to advanced lessons in the 
aqua arena


have more attentive swim teachers


Have more lanes available during adult swim, 
and not all lanes taken up by classes, all the 
time


have the kids actually learn something.....very 
poor instructors


I do not think group lessons in a sport such as 
swimming are beneficiary to the child.


I really just swim on my own, so I am not 
interested in any programs


I use on my own


I USE THE POOL


I wish you had open swim times for home school 
families.


I am already involved in the aquatic programs


improve the learn to swim program.


Improving skills for adults


In the past, I was not happy with the swim 
lessons.  I think you should adopt the red cross 
swim instruction.  There was too much play time 
for the kids and they did not learn enough.


it is always so busy with to many parties


Kids swim team


learn to swim programs need more attentive 
instructors and better curriculum.  we are very 
dissatisfied.


like to swim laps; glad to see that you opened 
the lanes to 50m. in the mornings. hope you 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


continue into the winter


limit field trips


Limit the amount of lanes and times used by 
competitive groups, and ensure sufficient lanes 
are available for members.


make sure it does not overlap with aqua 
exercises


make sure lanes are actually open to use 
when they are supposed to be available to 
members


Maybe have a general group that meets 
certain days. Not a team, just people getting 
together to do a workout.


more 50 meter lap swim in the aqua arena


More dedicated swim instructors.  My child 
did not make any progress after being in the 
program for a year.  She loved it, just did not 
become any more independent or move up 
any levels.  I feel this may partly have to do with 
the swim instructors not chal


more exercise oriented ones or varying or 
improving fitness levels.


more family showers always busy and have to 
wait


More swim classes and times for mid-level 
swimmers/triathletes


My husband is very upset because he has a 
hard time getting a lane to swim in, and then 
is sometimes kicked out of his lane for other 
programs. It has happened more than once 
and he does not have a lot of time to wait 
around for lanes. He is very busy and on


My kids need to learn to swim, but I work during 
the day when you have the lessons.


n/a


need better learn to swim programs


need more information about programs that 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







105 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


do exist - what is the master’s swim program?


nicer employees


no interest


No interest


Not a swimmer.


not interested


not interested at this time


not interested in swimming


nothing


Nothing I am not interested


Nothing would prefer to get exercise a different 
way


Nothing, my 4 year old was left in the deep part 
of the pool and it scared him to death.  I do not 
have the confidence in your lifeguard staff to 
let them take lessons.


offer adult lessons with instructors that are 
trained to TEACH and have experience as 
opposed to teenagers or people who were on 
the swim team in H.S.


offer better instructors


offer better swim instructors and teach 
swimming so the kids can join a swim team


Offer more passes so we can bring our 
grandchildren more often.


offer pre swim on sat


Offer Programs for Special Needs Children


Offer quality learn to swim program with well 
trained teaching staff.


Offer smaller ratios


offer them more often and at a cheaper price


One on One swimming for kids


Please raise the water temperature for lap 
swimmers at the big pool


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


pool should be warmer


Possibly a water exercise class in the evening 
not targeted to seniors.


professional swim instruction


Programs are fine for our use


programs geared toward older adults


Put chairs outside the pool to tan on like we 
had before.


Red Cross Certifications


Red Cross swim instruction


Red Cross Swimming that includes water safety 
instruction


Red Cross Swimming with better instructors and 
include water safety


reduce fees


Revamp your swimming lessons program. It is 
a joke.


Smaller class sizes-passionate instructors


Senior programs


Special Needs Children


Stop catering to the kids!  do something for the 
adults!  I am sick of the fact that you claim the 
current pool is for adults only on Tuesday nights, 
but then the kids over take it and no one does 
anything.  Also kids need to wear swim diapers 
in the pool.


Swim teachers are horrible.  Hire Mrs. Mack to 
train your staff


teachers who show greater commitment and 
expertise


The Aqua Arena has been extremely crowded 
with swim teams. Give more of a priority to 
members.


the deep water class at night.


the instructors are too young, too much turn 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







106 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


over


The times available for lap swimming seems to 
be diminishing.  More and more swim teams 
are now occupying the Aqua Arena


Therapy pool.  When I inquired about the 
classes offered I was told the pool is colder than 
recommended for true physical therapy


There are specific swim programs I would like to 
sign up for but I do not seem to be available at 
the same time every week for 6 to 8 weeks.


water polo


Waterpark open swim hours are too limited


We (kids included and they have tried Rec 
Plex swim lessons) absolutely love KUSDs 
summer swim program at Bradford (for its cost, 
structure, Red Cross, director, instructors, pool 
temperature/layout incline springboards, class 
size).  It would be nice if this


we do what we can...


We have found the swim instructors to be very 
good & very bad (not even watching our 
child in the water).  I would like to see more 
consistently good instructors.


Why only check one?  They need to be at more 
convenient times, cheaper and more variety


Wish you had an outdoor pool for families in the 
summer...waterpark type


Other reasons to enroll in childcare and education 
program:


Actually pretty satisfied at this time.


Again - I have to pay a membership for my 2 
year old AND pay for registration...  I feel like I 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


am being charged twice for SEVERAL things...


all children are now adults in their 40s/50s


All my children are over 18


Already very much love the programs. Would 
like to have daily lunch provided for childcare.


At times the camp programs seem unorganized.  
I also thought it was dumb to schedule ice 
skating after swimming - kids ice skating with 
wet hair?


Baby U prices are pretty high - especially since 
nothing is included


Before and After Care:  better communication 
(phone numbers provided are never answered), 
better supervision and communication among 
staff (staff members can never tell me where to 
find my children.  It is very scary to be searching 
for your child for 30


better organized and actual activities with the 
kids not sitting them in a room watching tv. my 
child hated it.


Children are older


children do not need care


Close the gap by breaking the groups down 
to say 9/10 or 11/12.  More engaging subject 
matter for the Tweens. It makes for a long 
summer when it is the same thing week after 
week. These kids experience daily in school. 
Just cuz mom/dad have to work should


Consistency in terms of security seems to have 
been an issue over the years with multiple 
policies.  Also there is comes an age, about 7, 
where there is nothing for the kids to do and 
they get bored and resist coming hence why 
we no longer use that part o


Create free (supervised) activities for members 
too old to be in Kids court, but too young to be 
in swimming/fitness areas alone.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







107 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


do not have children


Do not have children


Do not have children the age that would use 
these services


Do not need childcare.


Do not need program


Do not need that service


does not apply to me


Does not apply to our household


do not have any young children.  Like what you 
do already with kids.


do not have children


do not have children


do not have kids


do not have small children any longer.


do not have the need


do not have young children


do not have young children anymore.


do not need additional childcare for my 
children.


do not need to utilize any other program other 
than summer camp.


do not really have the need


do not have children


do not have kids


do not have kids


do not have kids!


for example, after school studying - reading/
math/science/arts program, ice skating, ball 
games, team play etc.


Frequently overhear camp staff complaining 
about the kids they are supervising. As a parent, 
I would not ever sign my child up for one of 
those programs.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


friendly, more qualified employees


Get reliable and matured teachers for summer 
camp


Get the bullying under control in the before/
after program


give sibling discount


grandkids here occasionally-but do like aqua 
center


Groups are too big, staff is uninvested in the 
kids and there is not adequate ongoing staff 
supervision.  The staff are trained and then sent 
out to work with the kids.


had to stop sending kids to summer camp, too 
expensive, no multiple chld discount, I have 
three kids.


have no child


have no children


Have no children


Hire full-time staff!!!!!!!!!!! Better communication 
to parents!


Hot lunches


I am only interested in kids court, but I am not 
comfortable with the supervision, especially 
after 4 p.m.


I do not have children


I do not have children so it is n/a


I do not have kids


I do not have small children


I do not care, I am a DINK and you do not care 
about the DINKs


I do not have any children living at home now


I do not have any other children to get 
involved


I do not have children


I do not have children at home anymore


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







108 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


I do not have children of that age group.


I do not have children that require this service.


I do not have children, so these questions do 
not apply.


I do not have kids


I do not have kids who require/need the 
programs


I do not have kids, but I think the things you do 
with kids in the community are awesome!


I do not have kids.


I do not have small children


I do not have young children


I do not have young children


I do not have young children.


I do not need it


I do not need them for my son.


i do not have children, these questions do not 
apply to me in the least


i do not have kids


I do not have kids


I do not have children


I have no children


I have no children at home


I have no children.  I do not feel its fair for me to 
answer these questions


I have no minor children


I have no small children


I have no young children


I have seen the child care providers treat the 
kids wirh no patience and would not place ny 
child in thier care


I love the kidz court, I do not have a need for 
the other programs


I need care at 5:30 am.  It is hard to find!


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


I no longer need care for my children


I think kids court is run very well and professionally. 
No bias to any child. Preschool u has become 
too bigger ms. Santell   As I wrote earlier I never 
got a return call. There seems to be preferences 
on her part. Unprofessional. You need someone 
with mo


i understad paying for childcare for children 
under 2, but my 3 year old is a member, my 
whole familly are members, yet we still have 
to pay more money to park, and more money 
every year to enroll in kids court. I end up never 
getting to work out, b/c i d


I was very unhappy with the summer camp 
program.  It seemed to be disorganized 
(communication to the parents) and the kids’ 
belonging were never organized and in the 
same place when picking them up at the end 
of the day.  Daily trips to the lost and found


I am fully satisfied


Improve customer satisfaction.


In the past I have asked to be put on the wait list 
for baby u when I was still pregnant and never 
got a call back. I do not like the new additional 
fees for tykes.


in the past, the programs have been life savers 
to fitness !!  thank you


Include the Lil’ tykes in the price so I do not have 
to pay extra for my son for the next 2 years, and 
also make it so I do not have to ‘schedule’ a 
time to bring him in


Kids are grown


Kids court is a wonderful environment please do 
not change a thing Staff very positive upbeat  
My son enjoys going


kids court would be nice if it was available on 
sundays


Kids court/Lil’Tykes should be open between 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







109 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


1pm to 4pm, also


longer hours for kids court


Love the childcare programs!!!


Love the flexibility of the summer camp program 
and the variety of activities.  Some type of 
educational experience sprinkled in would be 
appreciated.  Maybe the book mobile, or less 
walking and some reading or math games


Make it easier and safer to pick up children


More specialty camps - heard about Lego 
camp in Milwaukee


My child is a junior in high school.


My children are grown and away from home.


My children are grown up now


My children are in college and high school, 
guess this question does not apply to me


my children are now older


my kids are all school-age now


my kids are grown


My kids are too old for the camps but enjoyed 
them when they were in there.


My kids are too old now.


My kids no longer need these types of 
programs


My son is already enrolled


N/A


n/a does not apply


N/A i do not have children and i am an Assistant 
Preschool Teacher in that program


Need broader times and better pricing.....


no changes suggested-  love the kids court!


no children


No children


No Children


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


no children in the home


no children of the age to use these programs


no children yet:)


no children, no use for these programs


No children


No cost or appoitmrnt for kids 18 months and 
younger


no interest


No interest in childcare and education 
programs.


no kids


No kids


No kids no need


No kids of appropriate age


No little children


no longer have little children


no need


No need


No need for this service.


no small children


No use at this time


No young children


No young children to enroll


no young kids


no young kids at this time


None - do not have children


Not applicable


NOT APPLICABLE FOR ME


Not having coaches for advertised programs 
is hard to understand.  The Kenosha Y has no 
problem getting high quality coaches for their 
4-5 yr olds sport programs and they charge the 
same rate so why does the Rec have issues with 
this?  Maybe they are only


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







110 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


not interested


Not necessary


Not pertinent - my children are older


Nothing - children are grown and live out of the 
area.


nothing - no children


nothing - no children at home


Nothing -- does not apply to me.  Should have 
a box for this.


nothing I do not have children


nothing, do not have small children


Nothing, no kids ;-)


Offer bus services from Bristol for Before and 
after school care.  We have tons of kids in our 
neighborhood with both parents working.


offer discounts to the grandparents to enroll 
their grandchildren


Offer Kenosha County transportation!  Paddock 
Lake!


Offer more engaging specialty camp


Offer more sports programs for special needs 
children


Offer pre-k for 4 year olds that runs for 3 to 4 
hours a day that is academic based. Without 
swimming or ice skating or  nap time. Help them 
learn the kindergarten sight words on Kenosha 
unified’s list.


Offer Programs for Special Needs Children


One of your choices should be-Have no 
children


Online reservations for lil tykes.


or more physical ed for 10-14 yrs


Our children love your fencing program!


Please allow infants to be members


Pre-school U ROCKS and kids court summer 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


activity really helps the kids wanting to come 
which makes it easier for parents when the kids 
arent complaining they are bored


Preschool U is fantastic!


Preschool U Teachers and Director are the best! 
My son loves going to school.


prices


Programs for kids ages 8 and up. Kids court is 
geared towards younger kids


provide a pre-school program that has teachers 
that specialize in dealing with children with 
ADHD, Sensory Integration Disorder.


Provide the camp/service as it was advertised


Seems more like camp than an educational 
system. Teachers look like hourly paid high school 
grads, rooms are crowded and unorganized. 
Rooms are scattered all over complex.  And as 
a mother of 3, I do not want to have to drop off 
and pick up at two different locations


The before school program is a joke. The kids 
run wild yelling all the time I have complained 
to everyone and nothing is done about it. It 
is the most disruptive activity to walkers and 
joggers on the overhead track. Can not even 
use our cell phones. Shame


The childcare offerings should be more involved 
- the schedule seems like the kids are active 
and busy - but that is not followed and there is 
too much down times and the kids are bored.


The kids court area is good but I should not 
have to continue to pay for time there once my 
baby is big enough to leave the baby area!


the problem i have with the child care. is out 
of 8 times they failed to change my child dirty 
diaper 4 times and he leaked through to his 
pants. and when i picked him up i was left to 
deal with it.


the summer camp counselor are too young 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







111 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


and inexperienced.  Young children get hurt, 
bully and the counselors do not notice this.


The summer camp is quite expensive.


the therapeutic component must be challenged 
to do more than just provide childcare and the 
staff has to do more than sit


the times for lil types is pathetic.  it should run 
more of the day so more parents can take 
advantage of it.


The TR program is wonderful.  I do not know 
what we would do without it!


The way the kids act in public, is dangerous & 
disgraceful!  The ‘Staff’ is inexperienced


Theraputic Re is AWESOME! What an amazing 
program! I sure wish they had a bigger space, 
though. They could use it. Their program is so 
popular. I would love to see an adaptive park, 
and more adaptive equipment offered. They 
deserve it!


There is not much to do for children between 
the ages of 9 and 12 while family members 
want to exercise


These programs were much better run under 
Anne Hamby.  They are very disorganized 
now.


This “department” is the SINGLE most impressive 
reason we will continue to be members of 
the RecPlex.  Melissa Santell and her Team 
of Teachers (Melissa and her TOTs)  have 
developed a program that is 2nd to none and 
should be considered the Best in Wisconsin


This does not apply to me.


We are enrolled


We are retired.  I think it is wonderful what you 
offer.  Wish we would have had that when our 
kids were little.


We do not live close enough to use before and 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


after school care but that is one program we 
would use.


We do not have children.


we do not have young kids


we have no young children


We love pre school U


Would love nicer summer camp counselors


Would love to see more music, arts and theater.  
Would be great to have community outreach 
programs to get kids planting gardens, 
recycling, local journalism etc.


Your summer camps need to be run better. The 
counselors do not engage enough with the kids 
and to have the aquatic center and ice arena 
in shut down during camp in august is not good 
timing. To have my 6 year old sons watch ‘High 
School Musical’ and movie


Youth memberships should be part of fee


Other reasons to register for sports programs:


Again please advertise programs better so 
that more people know. Also please stick to a 
schedule. The volleyball season always seems 
to start a week after it says it will. Please be 
more organized with notifying of playing times 
and the season.


are not at that age- but are nice programs to 
see


as noted before-have 3 granddaughters in fig.
sk8ing


Assign coaches that have the time and 
knowledge to work with the children.


better coaches


Better instructors


Better organization


Better organization and communication


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







112 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Better organize the programs and train the 
coaches to be more engaged with the 
children


better qualification of instructor


Better registration information for Kids soccer


Children not yet old enough, but will participate 
in youth sports in future


class was very unorganized teenage leaders 
do not always take the lead needed


disappointed with baseball this year...the 
games keep getting canceled.  did not 
understand why you even scheduled one the 
same weekend as the triathlon...just to cancel 
it...frustrating


do not use these programs


dont have kids


Due to the combination of times and distance 
we need to travel to get to the facility we 
no longer participate.  But the variety seems 
good.


Enrolled in many programs in the past and the 
organization is poor.


enrollment based upon children’s interest


For past participants in programs and email or 
notification would be helpful prior to upcoming 
registration deadlines.  It is unfortunate to try 
and sign your children up but the registration 
information was in the last program months 
before the actual sta


get more racquetball things going


Have a more qualified staff to teach the 
programs.


Have people follow up on waiting lists


How about just making your programs less of a 
joke.  A change in leadership may be in order.  
Same people same subpar sports.  Will not 
come back until Chris is gone.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


How about open volleyball nights with different 
levels like, recreational, intermediate and A 
level ?


I am to old for the above and do not have that 
kind of energy to do them.


I do not play sports.


I dont like the kids sports being bumped bt 
events like the triathlon.  Schedule is known 
far in advance. Have baseball play a night 
game.


I feel that the members prices should be much 
cheaper then the nonmember. Only saving $15 
does not seem like much when you are paying 
so much for the membership.


I have been relatively happy with the youth 
sports. I was disappointed in the number of 
cancelled youth baseball games... due to items 
that should have been know (i.e. triathlons, 
etc)


I have coached youth boys basketball and 
baseball.  All-in-all they are well organized and 
officiated. Although it would be nice if the kids 
were to receive medals of participation as they 
had in the past.  I know you are trying to keep 
the costs down


I have participated in t-ball and soccer programs 
for the past two years....not impressed.....your 
coaches do not work on skills or teach them 
...instead they just work on heres the schedule 
and play....I know they are volunteers but w/ 
the amount of money


I was told that you do not have enough 
coaches in soccer


I will with time just getting started again


I would enroll in a co-ed sport if we could just 
sign up and be assigned to a team


I would not be interested in any sports 
programs


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







113 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


I am not a team player


I am not interested in sports. advanced Yoga 
and different styles, tai chi, Pilates, dance


If these programs are self-funding, I do not care.  
If membership dues are spent to support these 
programs, they should be stopped.


It would be nice if you did not continually double 
book triathlons with other sports because the 
other sports are ALWAYS the ones that get 
cancelled as a result.


It would be nice to have adult sign up sheets 
where a single person can sign up to create 
teams instead of having to sign up with a 
team.


it would be really great if there was something 
closer to oak creek, but not sure that is an 
option for you guys right now / in the future.


Keeping in mind that the coaches are 
volunteers, please make sure they know how 
to coach.  When a whole team complains 
about the poor coaching, and a parent of a 
team member offers to take over coaching, let 
him/her.


Lacrosse


Last years youth soccer was poorly run for the 
2nd year that is why we skipped it this season. 
Never starts on time and always looking for 
coaches. KASL was much better.


less weekend games and more night games


Make a better effor to balance the teams by 
skill vs. having coaches hand pick the kids that 
they know.


make sure that you have coaches that have 
a good understanding of the game and can 
make it fun for the kids.


Make the info in the catalog easier to 
decipher.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Make the members more aware of the 
programs out there


more info on them


more programs for ages over 50


My children are getting past the age of youth 
programs


My children at 16y/o and older. They are at 
Warren HS using their facilities.


my kids are ‘growing out’ of the rec plex 
programs


my kids belong to other clubs for sports but 
started out at the RecPlex


My kids play through school and outside sports 
clubs


N/A-only interested in lifting


need more players + team for basketball.  Not 
fair 9th graders playing 11-12th grades, no 
fun.  Extend to high schools for players who do 
not make HS team. Special callout or extend 
registration. Contact HS and recruit!! Better 
pricing would help!!


no interest


No interest


No interest in sports programs.


No kids


No need for this service.


No young children


Not anything I normally participate in


Not applicable


not enough teams--too many ages mixing for 
softball


Not everyone can put a whole team together. 
It would be nice if singles or couples could sign 
up to join a team that needs people?


not interested


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







114 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Not interested


not interested in this


Not involved in those types of programs.  Not 
interested.


Not quite ready yet; grandson only 3 years old


Not really a team sports guy Like martial arts / 
boxing


not very organized as far as youth programs 
go


nothing


nothing - not interested


Nothing ...I prefer to get my exercise a different 
way


Nothing.


nothing...very satisfied.


nothing...we are older


Offer a longer registration period


offer adult league basketball but for individuals 
to be selected to teams rather than forced to 
sign up as a team.  Just in case adults want 
to play but do not have enough players for a 
team


Offer competitive sports with playoffs, not just 
rec sports.


Offer more programming - we often utilze the 
Gurnee Park District (as non-residents of Gurnee) 
because of their breadth of programming.  It 
would be worthwhile for the RecPlex to expand 
programming and look at Gurnee PD as an 
example of progamming to impl


Offer on Saturdays and other Days besides 
Friday


Offer Programs for Special Needs Children


Offer programs usually on Sat/Sun during the 
week


Offer programs with single sign-up not team


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Other sports also


price is a factor


Promote ‘open registration’ for individuals who 
are not associated with a team.


Put a concession stand with real bathrooms on 
the North Diamonds!!


RecPlex baseball wonderful


The parent volunteers do not always make 
good coaches. This needs to be restructured.


These programs have so much potential and 
with the facilities that the RecPlex offer it is 
terribly disappointing that the parents who 
volunteer to coach are not given the tools to do 
what they need to coach soccer or baseball.  
Parents are notified last


TOO EXPENSIVE


Too old


unsure


very dissatisfied w/ your soccer program...need 
some instruction/guidance not just throw them 
out there w/ no purpose except to kick the 
ball to the other goal.....baseball has so many 
rainouts w/ practices...the coaches should 
offer an alternative date f


waiting for my son to get old enough to 
participate.


We are currently enrolled in sports programs


We are enrolled in fencing


We did youth basketball for many years but just 
outgrew the program


We participate in adult sports programs through 
other organizations.


We registered in two sessions of a soccer 
camp for my son and it was very chaotic.  The 
leadership changed from week to wek and the 
program was not very stimulating for my son.  It 
was pretty disappointing.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







115 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


We have been satisfied so far.


Weekday evening sports are preferable over 
weekends


When you have multiple children that want to 
participate in the sports programs it gets very 
costly, even with the member discount.  Family 
discounts would be nice!


would like to be coupled with good baseball 
team rather than the new team that does not 
want to play-lack of coaching abilities


You have no qualifications for your coaches. 
Our sons played basketball this past winter there 
and the coach was a dad that volunteered 
and our sons did no learn anything about the 
sport from him. The practices were spent with 
him chasing around his young


You should offer 2 types of co-ed softball: a 
competitive and a non-competitive.  You 
would get many more teams to sign up and it 
would be more fun for all involved.


youth volleyball


Other camps:


academic, science, music or Lego camps half 
day along with a sports or physical activity 
camp half day


Age specific but interesting topics


Baseball and basketball


dna


do not have children that age.


I have heard there are not enough counselors 
for amount of children, not safe


I would take advantage of youth baseball 
camps for my son


Lacking communication with the adults 
involved and teens running it


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


more specialty camps


my kids are not interested in a summer camp. 
they enjoy a babysitter


n/a


N/A


na


No kids


no longer need these.;....


none


nothing


Nothing


Nothing, I do not like the kids going to the lake


offer small, short, inexpensive camps; one of 
our children does not like big loud groups


See other page


Special needs children


studying/sports such as soccer/basketball etc. 
on site


swim camp


Tennis


this program was awful...loved preschool U 
summer program but this one is completely 
disorganized and not fun!!!


Tried them but the kids were bored and found 
the programs uninteresting and the staff 
unfriendly


Other reasons to enroll in camp programs:


20 children should not be alone by the water 
with one man who told my son the poles came 
from the dump!


Again it is challenging to enjoy our membership 
when the pool or beach is overrun with camp 
or day care kids.  Need to publicize and have 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







116 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


more times in the gym, pool and beach when 
no events or camps are present.


again...we are older


Become more organized,


Child is no longer eligible but I really liked your 
Explorer Summer Camp when he was eligible.


Children are grown so no need for camp


Communicate camp information to parents 
better, have counselors help new or lonely 
kids become part of a group, keep the kids 
belongings more organized.


Did not know you had camp programs, could 
look into this.  If they are weekdays only, then 
could not do them b/c it is far from my work so 
could not get my child there in time to get to 
work.


dna


Do not have a child interested.


Do not have any children young enough to be 
a part of the camp program.


Do not have children


Do not need this service


Do not utilize these programs


Does not apply


Does not apply to me


do not have a need for any


do not have anyone to put into the camp 
program


do not have children


do not have small children


Do not need additional camps for my 
children.


Flexibility - allow specialty camps with ice 
(hockey/skating) camps.  Very important


Get more reliable and experienced teachers


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Get rid of the $50 reg fee. For a single camp 
week, this makes it too expensive.


grandkids enrolled in summer camp


had a bad experience do not want to try camp 
again.


Have more mature staff working with the kids.  
I am unhappy with the young staff (they are 
often chatting with each other) and the young 
kids look poorly supervised at the ‘big’ Lake 
Andrea park.


Hire better camp instructors, not just teens


I am an employee in the program


I do not have children


I do not have young children.


I do not use the camps


I do not believe the young adults that run these 
camps are properly qualified, whilst there I see 
how they speak to the kids and it is absolutely 
terrible, they have no idea how to control kids 
and be respected by them. I would never send 
my kids here.


I Do not HAVE KIDS, you ned a button, this does 
not apply!


I do not need daycare-type services.


I dont have kids


I do not have children to participate in these 
programs


I have no children


I have no need for these.


I am a stay at home parent so we have no 
interest in paying for camps.


It is more expensive to sign the kids up for camp 
then to hire a college kid.  It seems the camp 
prices have gotten quite high.


Just not interested at this time.


KIds are grown


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







117 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Limit the number of attendees and better train 
the camp leaders


Love the summer camp program!!


Make registration easier, dont section out all 
the different fees too much hassle.


Many times the kids are bored in the gym and 
I have seen many on duty counsilor text during 
there shifts- instead of watching the kids.


more options for specialty camps. 4 hour camps 
in am and pm offered


my children are now older


My chils is now working summer camp and she 
was a camper for many years


My daughter participated in one week of 
summer camp.  I felt like the summer camp 
counselors could have provided more structure 
in the open gym environment or attention to 
kids who were by themselves.  2 days I showed 
up to pick her up and she was alone a


N/A


N/A - children are too young for this 
programming


na no children


Needs mature camp counselers not these 
teens who have no patience and ignore kids


no children


No children


No children at home.


No children of appropriate age


no children of this age to participate


no children, no opinion


No interest


No interest in camp programs.


no interest, do not use


No kids


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


no kids for such programs-but nice to see 
them


No kids to send to camp


no kids, no interest


No longer needed due to age of kids


No need


No need for this service.


no needed


no young children


None


None -Do not have children


Not applicable


not interested


Not interested


not interested in this


nothing


Nothing - do not have kids


nothing - not interested


Nothing -- does not apply to me. Should have a 
box to check for this.


nothing. i like the program - especially the fact 
that you can enroll in as little as 1 day or as 
much as the whole summer.  That in itself is the 
biggest attraction of the program to me.  I also 
like the activities and field trips scheduled.


Offer Programs for Special Needs Children


offer programs for teens


Offer shuttle to the beach for the kids - that is a 
long walk!  OR better yet, open a beach nearer 
to the RecPlex complex.  Do not schedule 
iceskating after swimming!  Figure out a better 
lost & found system.  I had to replace my 7 year 
old daughters $9 sun


Only if there was a price break for three, Also 
making field trips extra was too much.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







118 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Parking for pick up and drop off is horrible.  We 
will not be using next year


provide more attentive leaders that focus more 
on the kids and less on socializing with each 
other


See my comments about the summer camp


See other page


see previous comment about camp staff


The only child I have at home is 15.  I do not 
know if you have any programs for that age?


The RecPlex has got to improve the quality 
of the programs.  It is not enought to house 
them in lovely facilities.  Supervisory staff seem 
overburdened with book work and do not 
spend the time in the programs working with 
their staff to provide the best q


The security around drop-off and pick-up was 
virtually non-existent and therefore I did not sign 
my kids up for summer camp a second year.


The way the ice arena lobby is left during camp 
hours is ridiculous. Bags, shoes, mats, food etc...
left all over and in the way of people walking. 
The children should be encouraged to leave 
their things neatly if they need to be left out at 
all. As a memb


very satisfied with the care my special needs 
child receives


via word of mouth, I have heard: summer 
camp is very disorganized. Participants are 
given wrong information. Camp starting time 
too late.


We are enrolled


We are enrolled in your camp programs


We do not have young children


We have not signed our kids up for summer 
camp as of yet...Summer 2012 we will


we pay just as much as a membership as for 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


three specialty camps for our daughter


We would like to see more of the fishing area 
covered throughout the year.  Our kids love 
the instructor you have now.  How about after 
school fishing?  Maybe some training in the 
classroom for the kids would help.


When my niece and nephew visit they beg 
to go to your camps - the counselors are 
wonderful!!!!!


You take your life in your hands trying to drop 
child off and pick up if you do not use side 
door.  I have to drop one off in the Discovery 
program first then walk to gym.  Balls, Frisbees 
flying everywhere. Have been hit more than 
once.


Please tell us about any unpleasant experiences you 
have had at the RecPlex in the past year:


- While I like the Explorer summer camp, it 
seems a bit disorganized.  It has gotten better 
over time, but at the beginning it was quite 
chaotic and unpleasant.  My 6-yr old child also 
came home sunburned one day because the 
counselor had the kids applying


-swimmers swimming in the zero-depth pool 
during a meet  -paying to park for 2 vehicles  
-usage of fieldhouse during tournaments


*there was a list of waterpark field trips and i 
wanted a copy so that i knew when i could 
actually bring my son to the pool (as that is 
the only way to bring him because the normal 
hours are not convenient) so i asked a guy who 
was standing in the doorway


1) aquatic area closed after toddler pooped 
in pool  2)  special needs adults not properly 
supervised in current channel by counselors or 
lifeguards  3)  field trip kids poorly supervised in 
aquatic arena


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







119 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


1) Basketball and Volleyball (and other general 
usage) participants park on the IcePlex side 
(with little equipment to carry), making me 
carry hockey gear much farther than I care for.  
2) water temperature of showers were cold 
(seem to have solved that p


1) I learn about some programs via a flyer 
taped to a wall. These should be emailed to 
people if they want it.   2) the website is still bad 
and confusing.  3) Disconnected hours of Kids 
court and little tykes, synchronize these.  4) An 
actual bad experience


1) I would like a good way to know when there 
are swim meets going on so I do not plan on 
using the pool that day.  2) Can you place 
‘shower caddies’ in mens shower stalls? There 
is not sufficient room for my glasses, soap, 
shampoo.   Other than that, I lo


2 things. 1) My fees keep going up yet my ability 
to use the gym keeps going down. Volleyball 
tournaments shut down the gym frequently, 
yet I do not get reimbursed for my inability to 
access what I pay for. Also, other clubs take up 
valuable space in the


A couple of times, a man has accidently walked 
into the women’s locker room when the door 
was open therefore blocking the ‘womens’ 
sign.  It was obviously accidental both times 
since the men had shocked looks on their faces 
and quickly exited as soon as t


A few weeks ago there was a pile of crap on 
the shower floor.  Disgusting.


A janitor killed a mouse with a broom during 
one of our classes even though we yelled at 
him not to. Your sound systems are constantally 
breaking in all of the classes.


a. Summer camp was not well organized  b. 
Soccer registration information was not on the 
magazine. We missed the registration dealine.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


again, it is the Hockey thing. The Komets were 
booted for ‘hogging ‘ the ‘best’ ice time, 
yet the volleyball, basketball, and swimming 
tournaments every weekend do not seem to 
bother anyone. I just think someone very high 
in village administration let pers


Again, searching for my child in the after school 
program and trying to call the phone numbers 
provided for counselors and having no one 
answer.  Paying for parking for 2nd car


Air conditioning in mens locker you insufficient 
in summer.  Auto shower fawcetts insufficient. 
Water still running when shower complet and 
no ability to run cold water at end


All good experiences


Almost walked out upon signing up due to the 
front desk was very crowded no privacy when 
signing up.  front desk is always busy the times 
that I have went to the facility and I ended up 
not going in.


Ants in the locker room.


Aquatic pool is always in use on the 
weekends.


Arriving for swim lessons on time only to be 
late due to ‘ event parking ‘ blockages.  This 
is especially frustrating when there is no 
apparent event.  I also overheard someone 
telling a member they would need to purchase 
a new $20 parking pass after the bought a 
membership


As a member, I like the parking.  However, when 
my children are participating in activities, it is 
difficult for older family members (grandparents) 
to have to park so far away expecially in poor 
weather.


As I have mentioned in this survey,  the youth 
programs have so much potential.  It just seems 
as if the one in charge of them is wearing too 
many hats and it is getting out of control.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







120 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


As I said before, I had quite a few unpleasant 
instances with the front desk staff - not friendly 
and not knowledgeable as well re: fitness class 
times or location.  I love playing volleyball at 
the Rex plex but each season seems to be 
unorganized - sched


As mentioned earlier, we are very dissatisfied  
With the coordination of the swim programs & 
how they are overseen.


As much as we use the Precor elipticals, they 
seem to be in a constant state of disrepair


Asking for an additional 20 dollars to park a 
second car in the parking lot.  Ridiculous.


At times, the swim teams have made it difficult 
to use the aquatic center due to reduced 
lanes or closures because of swim meets. Also, 
last Sept/Oct, the water of the 50m pool was 
extremely cold before the heat was turned 
on.


ATA tae kwon do is not organized well at all.


Basketball program.  need more teams per 
grade or figure a way so younger teams play 
younger teams.  9th/10th play 9th/10th not 
11/12, otherwise  limit # of older players on 
a team!Also figure a way so teams are not 
‘stacked’. Recruit more at H.S. level a


Bathroom in pool area is disgusting.  Also often 
when in family locker room their are camp 
counselors yelling at kids unnecessarily! Fitness 
equipment takes so king to be repaired


Bathroooms are not always clean and classes 
being canceled and not being contacted in 
advance.


being in changing area when there is a grp 
of children changing- not enough adult 
supervision


Besides some unfriendly staff, no unpleasant 
experiences


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Birthday parties are always a disaster or 
negative experience, either for my childs party 
or the persons they are attending.


Bought a new car and had to pay another 
$20.00 because my sticker didnt work by 
replacing it on the new car.


Bringing my kids in to use the waterpark and 
there are 100 school kids running around there 
like wild animals... they are rude, pushy and say 
& do things that I would never want my kids to 
see & hear. It is appauling and the ‘teachers’ 
who watch them are s


broken or poorly matained fitness machines


Broken spin bikes in RPM  Dirty floors in group 
exercise classes


Came to the facility twice last year on a Sunday 
morning to find that it was closed.  There needs 
to be a mass email sent to all members to inform 
them.  Sometimes the signs at the center are 
overlooked because there are so many.


Camp counselors do not reming children 
to gather all of their belongings.  I think they 
should interact more with the kids instead of 
letting the kids be on their own.  New kids are 
often ostracized.


Can not parking even though you have a 
parking pass when there are events going on...
why have the parking pass.


can not use the gym when it is taken over by 
clubs and events.


Car accident at gate, very short driveway that 
puts u into the street.  not very well planned.  
Showers are full of mold on ceiling and hair in 
drains and on walls.  Locker rm does not offer 
any type of essentials to get dressed such as 
hand held blow dry


Cardio equipment out of order for weeks and 
months at a time.  Lac and of new equipment in 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







121 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


fitness area and lack of care both mechanically 
and cleanliness.  Need more striders, arc 
trainers, and stair climbers.      Why is Paula still 
there?  She is misera


Carol Wilke is truly quite an unpleasant person. 
It is a shame you do not have someone more 
personable in that position. She is very open 
not being nice to her staff & that is evident to 
the public.  Michelle who works at the iceplex 
yells at the employee


Children and teenagers wondering about 
without adult supervision, acting inappropriately.  
Rules and regulations that are not followed by 
members/visitors and that are staff that look the 
other way.  Particularly in the aquatic area.


children’s tumbling class:  inexperienced 
instructor  ballet:  no notification of cancelled 
classes  cancelled classes which you plan on 
attending with a flex fitness pass


Classes canceled and not made up.  Classes 
being taught by teenagers or younger.  Not 
starting or ending on time.


Closed snack bar in the Ice plex


Closer for events, broken equipment that never 
gets fixed


Closing for special events at times I wanted 
to use the facility.  No refund for times I 
was unable to use facilities due to special 
events.  Cancelled classes without advance 
notification.  Dirty locker rooms/showers.  Dirty 
fitness center.  Excessively


Closing the gym for volleyball & basketball 
tournaments. I called about this but my call 
was not returned!


Coaches in basketball talking very cruel to kids 
, coaxing a fight to happen , swimming teacher 
saying how this group of swim lessons with the 
worst kids she could have , teachers in the ice 
plex not being on top of training the kids(just 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


letting them ska


Comments stated earlier about price discounts 
should be offered since most of the fieldhouse is 
reserved for organizations and private use. Also 
how can a non-profit organization the like the 
Predators get special treatment by the village 
and members can


Constant volleyball tournies when we want 
open basketball court time on the weekends.


counter area is slow sometimes


Customer service at the front desk is incredibly 
slow. It is a combination of the number of staff 
available to serve. The number of PC terminals 
available to serve. And what appears to be a 
very slow operating computer system. The lines 
are always so long


Customer service desk is not always 
knowledgeable or prompt in addressing 
customers needs/questions.


Customer Service Desk issues; poor support; 
early registration discount decreased from $5 
to $3; Quality of swimming program limited 
improvement in actual teaching. Carthage 
college program more effective then yours.


customer service has really declined. The staff 
stands around and talks to each other, instead 
of greeting you when you enter the building or 
specific fitness areas.  It is like we are not even 
there.


Customer service is not always friendly


Customer service issues.


customer service was not good.  one several 
different occasions, the front counter staff at 
the entrance were very rude to me.


dance class cancellation


Day care pickup (10 min parking) and drop off 
is very unsafe that you are lucky you have not 
had a law suit filed against you. It should be 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







122 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


separate from general adminsion. Cars drive to 
fast, do no pay attention, in a rush.  Commericial 
Drivers and buses


Difficulty with registering online - e.g. navigating 
the website is difficult - not user friendly.  
Concerns over summer camp coordinators 
and the lack of training they receive or lack of 
attention paid to the kids.  Too much socializing 
among camp coordi


Dissappointed with all the large venues that 
take up space for the members.  seems like 
rec plex caters more to groups that indv. 
members.  for example, volleyball takes up all 
the basketball courts, which makes it difficult 
for me to take my kids to shoo


do not like the incress in membership cast i am 
a senior and live on a fixed income so i may not 
re-new my membership in August


Does it matter?  You will not address it.  You will 
not do anything for DINKS (double income no 
kids), you will continue to cater to those that 
spend tons of money at the expense of general 
members.  I am flabergasted that I do not get 
two parking permits with my


Do not like the street parking for Summer 
Camp. Often filled with non-camp people who 
can not park in the lot, so parents have to park 
further down.


dont like poeple in the sauna with cloth on.we 
also need a cold water schower thank you.


dont like that the earphone jacks for the tvs 
either do not work or are missing completely- 
very annoying


down time of broken machines.


Drivers stopping and dropping off at the front 
door. Transportation services parking at the 
front door.  This makes it tight, dangerous and 
difficult to see pedestrians when pulling out of 
the 10 min and handicapped parking.  There 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


should be a designated


drop in childcare needs to be more secure; too 
many swim teams use 50 meter--not enough 
time for member use--even when desk says that 
50 meter pool is open--swim teams have taken 
over most lanes;  swim team events should be 
more spread out to allow for me


Drove to rex plex as a member to practice 
volleyball in the gym with my daughter and 
entire gym being used for basketball. Hate the 2 
week shut down each year. It is not neccessary 
for running track and FC.  Have t=ball kids play 
a night game during the w


During really busy times the bthrooms need 
more attention.  Many times stalls are out of 
paper and floor is wet.


equipment breakdowns that last for WAY too 
long,puddle wet floor in locker room.


EVERY month when I pay for the entire month 
of Before and After Care they make a mistake 
by charging not enough or too much. It also 
takes TOO long for them to ring it up, the system 
needs to be made easier for them. Extremely 
frustrating.


Every time I walk around the lake, the bathrooms 
are locked during the week.


EVERY weekend there are sporting events 
that use the basketball courts, non-members 
from the tournaments also use the few courts 
designated for members only, regardless of 
whether there is a sign up. After a couple of 
years of this I finally complained an


Far too many children are allowed on the 
indoor track during non-family hours.


feces in the pool. Babies not pot trained (in 
diapers) should not be allowed in the pool.


Fee for parking pass-I pay a membership you 
should get free parking. Too many people on 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







123 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


the weekends for the sporting events.  The 
tempature is always freezing in the Recplex 
even in winter when you come in from the cold.  
I hate taking my coat and pants


Field trips too noisy during water exercise class. 
Set them after 12 noon.


Field trips.  Special events, i.e. basketball, 
volleyball, swim meets - taking up parking, 
lingering in the lobby.


Fieldtrip kids not monitored close enough.    At 
sports events visitors sit on the stairs to eat and 
talk.  Sports teams block the hallways when 
they are not playing, mainly on the 2nd floor.


Fitness center equipment lay all over the 
ground.  Weights not put away.  Staff not doing 
much about it.


floor of women’s sauna is dangerous with board 
missing


Front door staff could be more polite


gates not working to enter membership parking 
lot


general policy of losing unused $$ for 
racquetball courts and Lil Tykes after a certain 
amount of time;  some times unable to locate 
activities (indoor triathalons) on system


Generally good experiences, but do not like kids 
running around fitness center trying equipment 
out unsupervised.


Getting there because of road construction


Good


Got notification that the rates were being 
raised.  We do not have a facility closer than 
the Rec-Plex so we are a captive audience 
but using it 3 hours a week is pretty costly at 
$471 a year for seniors that are getting no raise 
whatsoever.  The price of


Great difficulty with ballet classes; the class 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


being cancelled and rescheduled and the 
front desk not knowing what is going on and 
lying to me instead of finding answers.  Then 
being reimbursed exactly enough to cover the 
classes that were rescheduled; n


Had a problem with enrollment in the basketball 
program.  I paid for the session but did not 
receive any paperwork.  I had to call to get my 
daughter put on a team.    Also, my daughter is 
part of the summer camp this year.  She loves it 
but we did not get


Had some issues with the afterschool care and 
couselors not keeping the kids in line.  Some 
times seems like a free for all and the ‘bad’ kids 
are not held accountable.


had some issues with the afterschool care 
program and my child not getting picked up 
or getting picked up when he should not


have attended 2 parties for the iceplex and 
both parties had food errors, 1 host had to 
get food, other the food was ordered but not 
recorded never recieved


have to cancel weekend basketball games 
several times because of the court was 
occupied by competition or events.


Have not had any.


Having pay an additional fee for a second 
vehicle is outragous when I am spending nearly 
$300 to register my other family members.  A 
family of four is treated like a single member.  No 
family of four has only one vehicle.  Restricted 
parking for summer ca


Having to leave the acquatic lap lanes 
because of accidents; Too many field trips in 
June during adult swimming time, 12-11:00 pm 
on M- W-F , too noisy and you can not use the 
current channel


having to leave the pool during Mom & Tot swim 
because a special needs swimmer pooped 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







124 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


in the pool. I feel they should be required to 
use protection I was told they could not be 
required, thats wrong


Having to wait for equipment in the fitness 
center because the junior hockey team is there.  
They are loud and usually not even using the 
equipment.  I think they should have their own 
workout room so not to interfere with paying 
members.  It was every Mo


I accidentally threw out our parking pass while 
cleaning out the car and tried to explain that 
to the front desk clerk but they did not care 
and I had to pay for a new one.  Front desk is 
very disorganized and can not ever seem to 
get resolution to an issue


I almost solely use the fitness center.  When I 
joined 4 years ago the center was cleaner 
and the machines newer.  Oftenn now the 
machines are in need of being cleaned,  more 
than one machine at a time are ‘Out of Order’.  
Additionally only a few of the s


I am at the RecPlex about 8 times a week and 
spent about $22,000 there last year. My number 
1 issue is the traffic congestion/parking. The 
parking has gotten better; the 10 min. parking 
is great, if you can find a spot... there is still alot 
of traffic in


I am dissatisfied that I am contracted in for 
the entire year and that rates were increased 
during that time. Had I not been contracted in, 
I likely would have dropped the membership.


I am do the total fitness package and I get 
frustrated when people do the classes but do 
not pay.


I am extremely disappointed in having to pay 
$20 for parking permits.  Our family has 5 people 
for a family membership and has had that 
since the Rec Plex started. All 5 of us drive and 
drive different vehicles and go to the RecPlex 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


at different times.  W


I am tired of being nickled and dimed for 
everything.  Why do we not get two parking 
stickers with our membership?  These should 
be included in our rate. This is one example of 
unnecessary fees.  If it was necessary to have a 
seperate parking pass because


I am unhappy with the fact that there is 
membership parking for the rec plex and not 
the ice plex.  We are frequent ice plex users 
and now everyone without parking pass parks 
at the ice plex.  Parking has gotten ridiculous 
over there.  Why can not ice plex


I am unhappy with the quality of the family 
lockerroom compared to the womens locker 
room.  I think the members only family locker 
room should be more seperate from the non 
members with the same quality of flooring and 
seating availablity


I am very frustrated by the frequent closures 
despite the high membership pricing.  I perceive 
a lack of customer appreciation due to the 
disregard of my membership dollars.    Also, the 
one week shut down in the fall seems totally 
unnecessary.  The weigh


I appreciate the members only parking - 
however I think the additional $20 per car 
parking fee is ridiculous.  I think as a member 
we pay enough fees to join the recplex, to 
have to pay for parking is not right.


I avoid the recplex on weekends because of all 
the youth tournaments.  I feel pressured to get 
up early to beat the crowds when I do go on 
the weekends.  It seems like the tournaments 
keep getting bigger.


I bring my daughter in a stroller and it is a pain 
in the ass waiting for someone to open the 
turnstile everytime I need to get into the facility 
or the gym.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







125 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


I cancelled my family membership due to rates 
increasing and the reason that rates increased 
have nothing to do with the reasons we use the 
RecPlex.  We have never used the new pool, it 
is difficult to park even with the members only 
parking area, classes


I did not agree with the $20 charge for an 
additional parking permit for my wife and me 
(family membership).  We are already paying 
over $500 for a family membership.  I think that 
price should include two parking permits for 
family memberships.  My wife an


I do not like the parking payment.  I feel that we 
pay a considerable amount for membership 
and that should be included.


I do think you should offer more competitive 
leagues for youth.


I do not feel that the rooms that the fitness 
classes are held in are clean.  The floors are dirty 
and the small room that hold the weights are 
dusty and dirty.  The mats that we lay on are 
deteriorating and dirty.  Also, evening classes 
can get quite crow


I do not feel we should have to pay so much 
for fitness classes on top of our memebership.    
Also, It is quite disturbing that the new pool is 
used so that regular paying members can not 
use it during many weekends and days in the 
summer.


I do not know if you still close for 2 weeks in 
August but it would be good to still use the 
fitness area during that time.


I do not think that the Recplex is very customer-
service oriented.  I also think that the price of 
the group fitness classes is unjustified.


I do not understand why the employees have 
to park on the street? They take up all the 
parking for non-members. The member parking 
is never full. Maybe you could make a special 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


employee parking spot at the back of the lot.


I dropped a 10 pound dumbbell on my foot!  
My fault, but unpleasant!  LOL!


I enjoy walking the track when the gym is quiet 
- quite peaceful - but when there are events in 
the gym it is so loud.


I enrolled myself to swim while my granddaughter 
had swimming lessons.  VERY FREQUENTLY, I 
picked her up, drove to the pool, only to have 
the lesson cancelled due to an ‘accident’ in 
the pool by other children.  No consequences 
except for us.  Your staff


I feel that each driving member of a member’s 
family should get a free parking pass.  I also 
feel that class prices are quite high-- especially 
TRX.


I feel that every car that a member or person 
on the membership has should get a free 
parking pass.  I also feel that the classes are 
quite pricey-especially TRX.


I feel that the gym is reserved to much and not 
open enough for members.


I find it frustrating to try and workout on the 
weekends as the Recplex is always crazy busy 
and the classes are full.     Also the free classes 
are at the most inconvenient times. 12:15 - how 
does that work for most working people? Not 
well.     My bigge


I get angry when mothers bring their sons 
(who are obviously too old) into the woman’s 
locker room.  There should be a prominent 
sign notifying them of the Family  locker room.  
Guests at swim parties should also be notified.


I get very upset with paying additional money 
to take fitness classes when I already pay so 
much for a membership.  I feel the fitness class 
programs take a backseat the the Rec Plex.  
Rooms are often dirty, rooms are too warm, 
audio equipment rarely work


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







126 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


I got yelled at while in workout to lose


I had a watch stolen from the shower area.    I 
had fitness class cancelled without notification


I had an unfriendly encounter with one of 
the front desk people once. He was not very 
customer friendly.


I had paid for a series of personal training 
sessions and intended to spread them out of a 
couple of months.  They expired before I could 
use.  Did not know there was an expiration 
date. I lost the remaining sessions.


I had to get a hold of my personal trainer to 
cancel an appointment so I called the fitness 
center to verify that I had the correct cell 
phone number and the woman that answered 
the phone came across very irriated and like I 
was putting her out by having


I had two experiences when i went to the 
RecPlex and the parking lot was full. I am a 
paying member and that is fine if you are 
going to have community events. That is one 
of the reasons I love the recplex. BUT you have 
to leave space for regular members.


I have a crack in my windshield. I could 
only have the crack filled and not my whole 
windshield replaced, because I was told I 
would have to pay over $100 for a new parking 
sticker. As a paying member, I should be given 
a replacement parking sticker.


I have been in the Cycle RPM class many 
sessions. The old bikes need to go and there 
is no air circulation towards the back of the 
room.


I have complained repeatably to staff and 
supervisor of the before school program for the 
kids. Several of us that use the track to walk 
on in the mornings can not even talk to each 
other of on the phone due to the kids yelling 
and screaming. The staff that


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


I have had a few unpleasant experiences with 
a front desk staff member being very rude and 
unhelpful.  Made me feel like I was a waste of 
her time each time I had to speak with her.  I 
try to avoid her assitance as much as I can.  I 
beleive her name is Su


I have had many issues with people at the front 
desk being unaware of how much to charge for 
daycare. We are almost always overcharged 
(no 2nd child discount) and Melissa always has 
to fix it.   Also it is just a slight petpive but the 
daycare is offered


I have have had issues with a few of the swim 
instructors for my daughter’s swim class. They 
give off the attitude that they do not want to 
be there. I have had one roll her eyes when we 
arrive for class. She complains when the kids 
jump/splash in the water


I have my son in swimming class and I am a little 
disappointed at how little time the instructors 
spend training the kids. There is more play time 
than skills development. I am considering using 
a different person/group for swill class for 3 year 
old.


I have not attached our one ‘free’ parking 
pass to any of our cars because we use 
several different cars throughout the year.I find 
it annoying that we have to prk in the street 
when the lot is practically empty when we go 
the Rex! Also, the fact that out


I have not had an unpleasant experience but 
I feel the prices are high. Your kids summer 
camp is wonderful with great staff but its just so 
pricey! Maybe that price could be lower or at 
least include the daytrips rather than tacking 
on an extra cost for t


I have to keep track guest passes and classes 
because they are used in error this has 
happened more then once.    waiting at the 
front desk to take a drop in class and then late 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







127 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


for class because not enough help at busy 
time.  would rather scan card when


I have not had any bad experiences but I 
can not say enough how I think the classes 
should be free like they are at most gyms. I 
know the RecPlex tries to offer free classes 
but membership is expensive and then to turn 
around and pay for classes is too much.


i just do not think we should have to pay such a 
high membership fee AND pay for classes.


I just feel the members really do not get many 
‘perks.’  The staff is friendly but the overall high 
prices and lack of member services makes me   
wonder why I continue to be a member.  The 
pool is keeping me there for now.


I know it is money for the plex, but it does bug 
me that we sell parking spots when you have 
events.


I like the building & the location, but I just 
canceled my membership.  There are WAY too 
many non-members in the building to enjoy 
anything.  I understand why the RecPlex is used 
for so many park district events (community, 
tax revenue, etc.), but it is


I like the snack bar and items sold there, great 
for the kids when they are there.     There is 
not enough open gym in the winter months 
for my son to play basketball with friends. The 
facility is always used by basketball programs 
or volleyball programs.


i like to swim in the warmer pool as im a senior 
but I always get kicked out because of the 
special programs


I paid for private swim lessons for 2 of my 
children.  Aquatic instructors did not show, 
did not get into the water, and the aquatics 
manager did not make much effort to correct 
the issues. Too many birthday parties in the 
swim area most weekends so members


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


I park in the skating lot bc I do not have a 
parking pass. My friends joined before me and 
got theirs for free so I wad upset that I had 
to pay and decided not to get one anyway, 
when I left it was teen night and I had to walk 
out the front and around the


I play racquetball three times a week and it is 
very uncomfortable being surrounded by kids 
running and screaming like if they were crazy. 
You should have a different place where to 
have these kids. Also the stairs are not place for 
kids that age. 3 and 4


I really enjoy working out at the rex plex. 
Thanks!


I really feel that the Aqua classes should be free 
for seniors with memberships to the RecPlex.  
And since we are paying extra for the Aqua 
classes, the lifeguards should get the lanes 
ready for us on time.  We lose time when we 
have to fool we the lane m


I think it is unacceptable to completely close 
the fieldhouse/swim lanes for rentals.  During 
swim meets, it is next to impossible to get a lane.  
When there are lanes reserved for members, 
there is poor signage, the lifeguards do not or 
can not adequately m


I think its ridiculous that we have to pay for a 
parking permit as a member. The issue was there 
was no parking due to weekend events and 
nonmembers using the spaces. The members 
should not have to pay when we never did 
before.


I think my biggest complaint is pool usage - for 
instance, attempting to swim laps (checking 
the schedule first) and getting there and 
having ONE lane in BOTH pools available for 
lap swimming to members.  The schedule did 
not reflect that this was going t


I think people need to be reminded in the fitness 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







128 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


area that the machines should be shared.  Way 
too many people occupy the machine for their 
entire set, not rotating.  In the evening, when I 
am there mostly, this is a problem.  Most clubs I 
have belonged


I think the area where exercise equipment, is 
VERY dirty.  Even after closing every year in the 
fall.    Dust bunnies under all equipment and 
the sweat that is everywhere is nasty.  Also 
electrical outlets in the floor between eliptical 
machines usually h


I think the staff could be a little nicer and little 
more helpful.  The sauna in the woman’s locker 
room is broken a lot.


i think the youth sport programs are not 
very organized. Schedule baseball games 
sometimes have to be rescheduled for a date/
time because of triathlons. i do not feel that the 
scedule play time should be moved because it 
is not always convenient.


I train for triathlons and need to swim. I also work 
and therefore can not swim at just anytime of 
day. I can swim in the evenings and weekends. 
Lately there rarely are lanes available in the 
aqua arena due to meets, lessons, classes, etc 
leaving me to use


I use the aqua arena often and am disappointed 
that this summer I have been kicked out of my 
lane for a swim team to practice almost every 
time I have swam. This swim team is there every 
day all morning and it is irritating that they take 
up 7 lanes leavi


I used membership passes to allow some of 
my sons friends to use the pool and field house 
facilities.  When the boys asked for directions 
on how to get into the field house, the staff 
stopped them and asked them where they 
were coming from.  The boys miss


I used to be very upset that my 11 and 12 year 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


old daughters could not use the track or fitness 
center.  We have enrolled in the TNT program 
that allows them to use both areas and I like 
them having access.


I walked in on a large, hairy, naked man in the 
sauna- AHHHH!  I left.


I was a member at Recplex for 6+ years until 
recently.  Recplex has become too crowded, 
fitness machines have become too worn 
down, and the membership price is no 
longer competitive.  Additionally, the gym is 
unavailable for use or too crowded for use for


I WAS BIT IN MY ARM BY A DISABLE CHILD ONE 
OF THE FIRST DAYS I WENT TO THE FACILITY IN THE 
LOCKER ROOM.


i was going to fitness classes 3 to 5 times a week.  
decided not to rejoin because membership is 
too high.  i may sign up for spin in the fall


I was in the female locker room after swimming 
when an older lady came in and took off her 
suit and urinated on the floor.    My child attends 
the before and after school care and because 
of the constant bullying and harrassment that 
was going on he didn’


I was informed early in my membership that 
bags were not to be left out of lockers up in the 
fitness center and I have abided by that rule 
and always put my bag in a locker.  I am a very 
early (4;30-5:00) exerciser.  Last month several 
mornings in a row,


I was really disapponted with having to pay for 
a parking pass on top of my membership fee.  I 
thinking parking should be free for members.


I was waiting for a friend prior to swimming laps 
and thought I would make use of the sauna 
but walked in on someone sleeping who did 
not want the lights turned on.  I see members 
breaking rules frequently and the rules not 
being enforced.  Examples, peop


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







129 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


I wish classes started/end on time. my children 
are taking kickboxing and it starts 5 min late 
and stops 5 min before scheduled time.


I witnessed a member being verbally abusive 
to another member. The member that was 
abused complained, but I guess, not much 
was done about it.  It is unfortunate when bad 
behavior goes unpunished because it creates 
an environment to allow more bad behavior


I would be glad to share this information with 
you.  Feel free to call me at 262-945-2466 Alan.


I would like the parking pass to be integrated 
with the membership pass so that it was not car 
specific.  I never know which family car I will 
end up driving to the RecPlex.


I would recommend switching the front desks 
computers around so they are facing the 
customer’s key card equipment. Often, the 
employees bodies are turned away or they are 
engaged with their own conversations that it 
causes the customers to wait for assist


I would say it has been okay but one or two of 
the staff treated me as if I was a bother. I just left 
it alone but if it was to happen any more then I 
will report it. If I am reporting something that will 
be causing damage to our plex or someones 
safety the


I am not satisfied with the Aquatic limited hours 
for open swim specialy when its not summer 
that they only open on certain days or will be 
open after 4:00 p.m.


I have been quite please with the programs 
and facilities that I have used at the RecPlex.  I, 
actually, think that your current front lobby staff 
is more pleasant than past staff.


I have had issues using the online registration.  
I also always have issues with the front desk 
service.  The lines are usually long and the 
service representatives are typically slow and 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


easily confused.


I have never been contacted by the recplex 
on walk thru of the machines.     The front desk 
was not very pleasant when I wanted to use 
the pool area.   Pool is not open at convenient 
times after normal working hours.


I have stopped going to RecPlex on Sunday 
mornings especially due to the tournaments 
that take place in the basketball courts.  There 
was never a place to park as a memeber.  
Then, if you did find a parking spot, the gym 
was so packed with people and no cou


I have taken Water in Motion Classes for a 
couple years now.  Last Thursday, 7/7/11, 
someone double booked a private swimming 
lesson for one or two children, at the same time 
as our class, which did not allow our third lane 
to be used for our class. Being a


If i could make one suggestion, it would be to 
have some sort of shading on the west windows 
by the exercise machines for the afternoon sun.  
Thanks for listening.


Impossible Parking


In 2010 you had a outdoor triathlon (I think in 
June). It was kinda crummy weather, I was 
upset that I could not get into the facility to 
use the restroom.  If I had brought my son with, 
he and our stuff never would have fit into the 
outhouse that I was forc


in general it is good experience, but we found 
memebers often being pushed out by events.      
We see improvement in after school program, 
but certainly there are a lot of things could 
be done to make it better.  If you guys could 
coordinate to help chang


In our last session of swim lessons, we had one 
teacher who did not actively participate with 
the kids.  She never got wet above her waist.  
She never demonstrated for the kids what 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







130 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


they should be doing and never helped them 
improve what they were doing b


In the early a.m. there are people who park in 
10 minute parking slots that are in the spot when 
I come and still there when i leave 45 minutes 
later.    Why do motorcycles have premier slots 
in parking lot


In the past, before your current secured 
member parking, I had to walk blocks when 
you had large events.  Since then, I actually 
stay away from the center when you have a 
big event.  I am sorry, for most of those events, 
everything should be outside and a


In the spin classes the bike computers never 
seem to work.


Inability to have a physical fitness assessment 
performed as it is limited to Monday’s and 
Thursday’s


Inconsistent Sauna.


Increased annual fees


installation of aggressive and child inappropriate 
videos at entrance of skating rink where kids 
wait for lessions    recieved incorrect information 
from staff at desk which ended up costing me 
more money    when picking up chid from 
summer camp father of


It irritates me to see the number of non members 
who are able to a sneak in the recplex through 
the ice plex entrance.  It also upsets me to not 
be able to park at the ice plex during lessons 
because of the number of non members 
parking there and walking


It is frustrating at times when the member 
parking is open for everyone.


It is very inconvenient when I come to the gym 
and there is nowhere for members to park 
because of the non-member activities taking 
place.  I do not have a parking pass because I 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


believe that the $89 a month that I pay already 
is plenty and believe that pa


It needs to be cleaner.  Particularly the Studio 
A/B.  I realize it is used a lot, but the floor is 
FILTHY all of the time and many of the classes 
entail floor work and I always go home feeling 
scummy.


It seems that the aqua arena is catering to 
swim teams more than to their members.  The 
number of lanes for lap swimming are becoming 
very limited.  Also, the schedule posted on your 
website does not list when the teams will be in 
the arena.  It would be


it would be nice to have 2 parking cards to 
use the member only parking per family.  My 
husband works out in the morning and I go 
after work so it is not easy to share the parking 
card.  20.00 bucks is a little much to pay for a 
second card.


It is been ok so far, I think that the customer 
service personnel at the desk could be nicer 
and more helpful, I have seen eye rolls and just 
arrogance displayed, not to me, but to others 
checking out basketballs and equipment.  This 
should never be seen o


It is difficult when member parking is wide 
open & full of visitors, then inside is jammed 
packed & crazy due to tourneys, etc.   Loved 
Thur AM water in motion class! Hated being the 
‘entertainment’ for a bunch of guys sitting in 
hottub every time :(


It is getting too crowded and new ‘members’ 
are less respectful of the facility and other 
members.


It is only frustrating when there are weekend 
activities, basketball, volleyball tournaments, 
etc. that interfere with my ability to navigate 
the area around the recplex and parking.


It is really disappointing when a program is 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







131 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


cancelled the day that it is supposed to begin.  
I understand the need to cancel due to low 
enrollment, but we should be given more 
notice than the day of.


Items stolen from the locker room.  Trying to 
make my way to the member area through 
all the crowds during volleyball and basketball 
season.  No where to casual sit during this time.  
Both lobbies are usually filled.


Its always crowded on weekends due to extra 
events that do very little to make the experience 
rewarding for me or my family.  Closed on 
holidays when we are not working and the kids 
are available to go together.


Just can not get into my account online!  Had 
to call in to register for summer session!


Just do not like the fitness center being closed 
for triathalons.


just not being able to use my free classes for 
bringing in new members


Just recently, (6-24-11) I invited guests to go to 
the water park.  Opening was delayed from 1 
to 2.  Not sure why that was??  I think it ended 
up opening earlier than 2.  It was not a huge 
thing.  Mostly, the staff is very nice and things 
run smoothly at


Just the parking


kids in areas of aquatic areas when they are 
not suppose to be and nothing is said to them


Kids in locker room are rowdy--foul mouth and 
belligerent.    Whirlpool rules are not enforced 
often enough--kids being in whirlpool    Too 
many people at rec -plex--unable to use fitness 
equipment--timimng is everything Monday’s 
are a zoo.


Kids running through the gym area, playing on 
equipment, or using the indoor track improperly 
and without supervision.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Kids sports programs can be disorganized.  
Last minute changes to schedules or finding 
out what teams your kids are on only a week 
or two before games begin is frustrating.  
And, occasionally finding out that things are 
cancelled or changed only a few day


Lack of adequate supervision for the after 
school and before school program.  A lot of 
behaviors are going unaddressed.


Lack of consistency in monitoring non-members 
from access to the facility without paying.  Field 
house is overcrowded - too many events and 
not enough ‘open gym’ courts available.


lack of follow through with comments and 
complaints. I filled out a comment card and 
asked for someone to contact me.  I am still 
waiting for a call back and that is been a year 
ago!


lack of parking


Lack of parking for special events infuriates me.  
Mold in the whirlpool prevents me from using 
it.  Hair buildup in the shower drain leads me to 
believe shower area is not cleaned regularly.  
Lots of broken workout equipment seems to 
take a long time to


Lack of smiles on faces of recplex employees 
when leaving via turnstyle at IcePlex. We are 
right next to person at window and they go out 
of their way not to make eye contact. (Minor 
complaint).


Lack of swim lanes in the original pool and too 
often used by classes and not available to free 
swimming. Also it takes too long to get fitmess 
machines repaired when they break down.


Large field trips are horrible...the girl scouts 
for example were there one night and I had 
a hard time even getting to my locker to get 
changed.  Also, my windshield broke and I had 
to replace my parking pass and had to pay the 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







132 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


$20.00.  I did not think th


leaving the parking gates up on weekends and 
visitors taking most of the parking


Left an item at the fitness center and told the 
desk associate to retrieve it for me so that I 
could pick it up the next day.  The associate 
failed to do so and the item was stolen/thrown 
away.  Too many people stand on the track 
and gawk at the people be


Lifeguards at waterpark are not very friendly. 
They seem to be there just to socialize with one 
another instead of offering assistance, info, 
etc.


locker room urnial area could be cleaned a 
little more often.


locker rooms are frequently too hot in the 
summertime


Long lines at front desk.  Could not use gift card 
for message due to expiration.  Temperature in 
spinning room can be very warm.  (but we love 
the place)


Loss of friendly atmosphere in exercise area.  My 
pet peeve - people sitting on the equipment 
between sets.


Main issue is the parking at the Ice Arena.  
People who cannot park in the member parking 
always park here.  Since we are always on the 
ice rinks, the parking in the winter islimited and 
most of the spaces taken are not by memebers 
or people going to use


Mainly too crowded, can not use gym, too 
many ‘special’ events.  Experience with front 
desk not usually pleasant.  No one seems to 
know how to process a credit properly & it 
takes a long time to sign up for a class.


Making students over a certain age pay full 
price membership. Not only lost her membership 
but are entire family membership.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Members pay enough for the membership they 
should not have to pay for parking passes.  Also 
why are some sporting events (club volleyball) 
given parking passes?!


Members should get one free parking pass per 
family.


Members who park at ice because they do not 
want to pay but are there for fitness.  Then there 
is know parking for hockey players and skaters.  
We never come on weekends because ven 
with member parking it just feels way to crazy 
with all of the other event


Men’s locker room and shower floors should be 
routinly disinfected and cleaned not just swept 
or trash picked up.


Men’s locker room not always in the cleanest 
condition.  Broken fitness equipment not being 
repaired in a timely manner.  Some equipment 
has taken over a month to be repaired.  Fitness 
trainers taking equipment (ie D rings) from free 
weight area and bring


More free classes! No more yoga at the same 
time as RPM - too loud!


More than a few times we have tried to go out 
as a family to play in the gym and there is some 
huge volleyball tourney going on.  Also, during 
basketball season when you get a half a court 
to practice on and the volleyball kids take up 
a quarter/half of t


Most of the younger attendants in the evening 
hours are busy chatting with friends instead of 
helping people with questions.  Along with a 
poor selection of machines & weights.  I will let 
my membership expire due to these reasons & 
along with the price i


most staff are helpful there is the occassional 
inexperienced staff that make interactions 
difficult


My biggest complaint would be events closing 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







133 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


off the pool and limited swimming lanes. There 
have been a number of times I have wanted 
to go, since I try to swim daily, only to find there 
really are not lanes open unless I want to share 
with someone or the fa


My child has missed baseball games in the past 
(and again this year) because of a triathalon.  
This was not in the works before baseball was 
scheduled?  Too many games seem to get re-
scheduled at the recplex.  There is a schedule 
but most times it is not a


My children are involved in hockey, therefore 
we park on the IcePlex side for everything...
the parking lot is overfilled most weekends from 
the volleyball and swimming events going on.  
Most of whom are not even members!!!  It is a 
bit ridiculous that we (


My daughter completed the lifegaurd course 
in May.  She was told she would receive her 
certification in  the mail.  I am still waiting for it.  I 
just went to the desk to inquire.  The gentelman 
was helpful but I was told I still have to contact 
someone e


My daughter plays volleyball and on tournament 
weekends there has not been enough staff to 
handle food orders


My husband and I get mad when we try to 
come on Saturday and Sunday morning and it 
is just a zoo.  We can barely ever use the courts 
in the gym because they are taken by special 
events.


My membership was deleted on accident.


My son had an accident in the pool 5 years 
ago and was bleeding. Not one staff member 
saw the blood from his head. Several members 
saw it and because of them I was notified 
that he had walked into the men’s bathroom, 
unattended by a Recplex staffer.  I ye


My watch was stolen from my locked locker on 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


a Sunday  showers should have faster more lush 
spray


My wife was working out with flip dflops on and 
was told to leave the work out area,she did not 
have other shoes. She was very offended as 
she sees people in there all the time in flipflops 
or jeans and other dress code violations. Has 
also been offended b


n/a


Nearly every time I go to swim, there is an 
event that limits my usage to the point where 
I just want to leave. The adult only swim time 
is barely monitored, I am constantly pushed 
around by kids rough housing. Even when the 
kids are allowed to swim, it i


Nearly every weekend in the winter time I 
come to the Recplex feeling happy, and leave 
feeling crabby. It is just way too crowded. The 
facility was not properly planned for to have 
such events. There are too many people in the 
lobby areas, too many cars in


need to make the parking lot back to open 
parking. some weekings hard to find spot to 
park. Kids have hockey games on sunday and 
some times have to park way down the road 
and have to hump there hockey bags a half a 
mile. make ice plex parking lot for ice


New aquatic center is not oriented to members 
use.


New automatic gates out of service too much  
Equipment out of service too long.(tread 
mills,Magnum equip.)


New policies have been the most unpleasant 
thing so far. Parking for members only at $20 
is not a bad idea until everyone who is not a 
member starts getting them too (i.e. volley ball 
rental groups, program participants). Then its 
just a $20 fee for parki


No adult basketballs available anymore... 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







134 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


outdoor trail is missing many quarter-mile marker 
signs... hate the fee for a second member 
parking sticker... was at the Recplex once in 
2010 when it was packed with obnoxious high 
school kids... difficult to get


no deals on prices.  ‘that is the cost, take it or 
leave it’  I left it.


No One saying Good Morning from the front 
Desk, I come 3 x a week and hardley hear a 
good morning    The Preschool Director, wistling 
loudly in the Water Park to gather the children    
Children in Child Care Program being changed 
right in front of the win


No real unpleasant experiences but would 
like to see more attention given to the weight 
training area. It takes to long to get equipment 
fixed and the equipment is not maintained as 
well as it should be. Also...they need to add 
more free weights 15 pounde


No Steam Room


no unpleasant experiences


none


None


none - only sad when the waterpark is closed


None - wife uses it for health reasons.  We live in 
Florida during the winter months so for 5 months 
no usage then.


None except sometimes the execise equpment 
was broken for longer than I would like it to be.


NONE I CAN THINK OF


None really...it seems like the front desk is 
overwhelmed at times (around 4:30 - 5:00 on 
the weekdays) you sometimes have to wait for 
service.


None that I can think of


NONE: Closed to early on ‘SUNDAYS’ REX should 
be open until atleast 9 PM> SUNDAYS are a 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


great day to workout and start the week!


None:)


None.


None.   I am very glad that you have transferred 
to member only parking.


Not able to use the gym due to tournaments.  
Broken sound equipment (multiple times) in 
Fitness A&B (unacceptable!!)


Not all members in fitness center wipe down 
equip after usage; AAA baseball is promoted 
as a non tryout sport, anyone can join, but 
then once you are on a team there is high 
expectations on skill


Not being able to park even on the street 
because it was so busy even though I pay over 
$60 a month!


Not enough fitness equipment during peak 
times.


Not enough venalation in the locker rooms. No 
towels, shampoo, conditioners, lotiion or hair 
dryers which most places provIde for the same 
fee.


Nothing really, all of the fitness equipment 
could use an update.


Nothing since the parking lot has changed.


Occassionally rentals get in the way.  This has 
improved a bit with better notification.


Often on Saturdays it is so crowded due to 
events. It seems like its too easy for them to get 
into the rest of the building also. Increase in rates 
even though its more crowded. Should offer 
discounts longer you have the membership.


Often times during open swim, there are kids 
(some times with and some times without 
adults) playing in the lap lanes and there are 
very few lifeguards who will say anything to 
those people.  Or you try to swim in the aqua 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







135 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


arena and the swim teams occupy


On the weekend when there are outside 
activities I do not like how you charge for 
parking in the memebers parking lot.  Should 
not members that have to pay get priority?


On-line registration is NOT user friendly.


One personal trainer I had kept missing 
appointments. She is no longer there. Another 
personal trainer I had did not accurately keep 
records about how oftern I had training and 
kept telling me I needed to pay more.. then 
tried to work out a time I could ha


Online programs contained the incorrect start 
and stop date.  Missed two classes.


Online registration system is a joke. Difficult to 
use and you can not even get a logon online?? 
Guest Services Desk has to do it all anyway. 
Either fix the online system or have dedicated 
registration department.  Guest Services Desk 
frequently has NO IDEA


Only negative is that it seems to take an 
unusually long time to repair some of the fitness 
equipment.


Only with Ms. Melissa Santell


Open gym time for the kids is pretty much 
impossible during the week in the winter due to 
other programs.


Our daughters birthday party at the pool, it was 
cold, we could not get into the bathrooms that 
were connected to the rooms because they 
were locked, the staff was rude to us and slow 
to respond. They did not provide everything 
that we paid for. We were acu


Our son was given a hard time by an employee 
when he was with his dad in the weight area. 
He looks young for his age, but was older than 
the minimum required age & with his father. It 
was very uncomfortable & would have been 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


understandable had he not been w


Outdoor Boot Camp was a disappointment. 
I really enjoyed the instructor and the indoor 
class on Sundays because of the variety and 
the option to walk if you can not run. The 
outdoor class was an hour of running through 
the woods. The fee was also too high.


Overall we really enjoy the Recplex, but I have 
2 major complaints...    My family loves to 
use the indoor pool, but the day camp and/
or preschool kids are there too often during 
open (family) swim times, it makes the pool 
overcrowded and unenjoyable.  I


Overcrowded due to events and camps.  Need 
prime time for members to enjoy the gym and 
pool without large crowds from events and 
camps.


Overcrowded family locker room with summer 
camp kids.  Also, locker room cleanliness could 
be improved, specifically bathrooms (floors, 
sinks).


Overcrowding and noise level in pool from 
school swims during exercise classes. Children 
using member only locker rooms.


Overcrowding in general has been a problem 
in the evening during the week.    We also 
had a customer service issue with a message 
therapist that has not been resolved. I am still 
waiting for a response to my complaint.


parking


Parking - especially on the ice plex side.  We 
come for youth hockey & have to walk down 
the street with no sidewalks at night because of 
parking.    IT people never call back.  I have not 
been able to register our kids for the past 2 yrs 
online.   Commun


parking and broken machines. even with the 
parking pass, sometimes the gate is open 
during special events for all to park, and when 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







136 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


you charge for ‘event parking’, that is great for 
your revenue stream, but us members end up 
parking in egypt due to a full


Parking for summer camp is terrible when 
Nother event is going on. It really irritates me 
that during special events people can pay to 
park in the member area - give them a portion 
of the lot not the whole thing


Parking has always been a pain. Now I have to 
pay for it. The high price of the membership has 
always been a huge pain, $100 a month for just 
my husband and I is robbery. Add that to now 
parking and we are done.


parking has been an issue: 1. because I change 
my vehicles quite often I have to continually 
pay the $20 dollars every time my husband 
buys a different car.  2. The 10 minute parking, 
which I try to use to pick up kids at the end of 
the day is usually ful


parking in general


Parking in the past was awful.  That has been 
resolved.  The downstairs front desk is often 
clueless about what is going on and not 
particularly helpful in finding out.  The classrooms 
could be cleaner, especially the floors.


Parking is a headache.  Even being a member 
w/ the lifetime parking I find it hard to find during 
special event times.  Need to find a solution.


Parking is almost always an issue - the member 
only parking is used way too often for events.


parking is difficult even with the members only 
area - especially on the weekends with the 
sporting events.  would like to be able to use 
the facility on the weekends with my family but 
is near impossible due to crowding.


parking is not as convenient even with the 
gates


Parking is restricted on the RecPlex side, but not 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


on the IcePlex side.  Alot of people park there 
and ‘walk thru’ because of this, and therefore 
do not have to pay for the parking pass and 
can work out for free (as there is no gate that 
stops them).  If t


parking is still an inconvenience, even with the 
members area parking


Parking issues on the Ice Plex side.  When 
there for paid programs & there is no place 
to park except a mile down the road and 
having to haul in hockey equipement that far.  
The cancellations of programs without any 
notification.


parking on the iceplex side


Parking parking parking.  I pay the 20 a year. 
My camp drop off sucks, because you guys do 
not enforce the cheapskates who do not pay 
the 20 a year.  You need a parking deck.


parking situation (gate) and the cost increase 
for limited use of facilities (due to pool addition) 
due to time constraints makes me not want to 
be a member any longer


Parking was a huge issue for me in the past.  
I am very glad that the parking situation was 
changed.  There is frustration when special 
events are going on at the facility making it 
difficult for those of us who pay to get to classes, 
etc.


parking with all the basketball and volleyball 
games going on. Then they do not want to pay 
for parking, they park back by the ice arena 
and then we still do not have any places to 
park. I think everything should be by parking 
tag that way unless you are a


Parking,very busy on wkend w/ sporting 
events.


Paying for and making reservations for Little 
Tykes is extremely annoying.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







137 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Paying to see basketball tournament games 
when I am a paying member.


People asking me to sign recall petitions for 
Scott Walker (standing outside the door).  Not 
enough basketball courts for use in prime time - 
too many volleyball groups, and indoor soccer 
usage


people coming into the dressing area all wet 
getting the floor wet where I have to dress


People not drying off in the shower area. High 
school kids making a big mess in the locker 
room. The showers are too hot after a morning 
workout.


people parking in the handicap parking spots 
to drop off kids in the morning. people blocking 
the handicap ramp in the morning and leaving 
there vehicle untended while inside


People running backwards on the track, 
people spitting on the track, classes running on 
the track during busy track times (5-7pm),


People that do not pick up after their pets on 
the trail around Lake Andrea.


Pool has closed on 7 or 8 occassions on short 
notice for disinfecting.  Need better desgination 
of what lanes are open for lap swimming in 
arena and which are closed for use by swim 
teams, etc.


pool is too chlorinated - burns eyes


Pool was overcrowded due to parties.


Poor locker room modesty especially when 
families are coming in together. Does not 
matter if it is family locker rooms or not. Hard 
to hide kids eyes from naked people walking 
around! Not just changing.


Poor parking situation


price went up


Primarily just inconsiderate or under-supervised 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


older children during open and especially 
parent tot swim time.


Raised membership.  Impossible to park on the 
Ice Irena side!  Not enough fitness classes for 
beginners or adults (not seniors). After trying to 
take a Pilates class, I had to stop going. It was 
for well experienced people even though the 
instructor said


Refer to Summer camp explaination.


Reread my account of the water aerobics 3 
lane problems.


Rude guest service staff when calling in  Pool 
closing


Sat and Sun crazy with events when all i want 
2 do is shot some basketball in peace. Some 
times the whole weekend the center is closed 
for triatholon! That is upsetting.


saturday competitions  mae sound level on 
waling trac unbearable.


School trip kids overwhelm the locker room, 
they are rude, smear feces on the shower walls 
leave garbage all over. Swim teams now take 
up over 3/4 of the new pool and leave almost 
no room for members to do laps. When you get 
swim lessons on top of that th


Seeing daycare kids playing on the rocks next 
to the lake ofr 10 minutes before any adult 
noticed they were there--I was working in the 
fitness center


Selling parking passes to non members over 
the weekends for events during class times 
(Saturday am) made parking more of a hassle, 
so I stopped going.


Service at snack bar is horrible. Lines to long, poor 
service. Parking should be only for members, 
but gate continually open so anyone can park 
there. Renewed late last year, charged $100 
extra fee. Did not renew this last time do to the 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







138 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


expense and will n


Several of the machines that I use are broken 
or in poor condition.  A-V is not always working 
on some machines or does not exist at all on 
some machines that could accommodate it.


Several times my children have been placed 
on waiting lists for youth sports and each time 
I have been told they will be placed on a 
team; HOWEVER, that NEVER happens.  Also, 
considering the number of years the RecPlex 
has been open I would expect better or


Showers were too cold then too hot after 
annual shut down. Also not enough ‘adult 
male’ showers sometimes. Two showers go 
unused for kids.


Signed up for scuba with my teenage daughter. 
There was no signup paperwork available. 
We went through entire orientation, and at 
the last minute was informed that I could not 
participate without a doctor’s permission slip 
because I reported that I had ast


signing up for girls youth softball was unpleasant 
and uncoordinated.  no communication to the 
parents was done and we had to seek out for 
information only to find out it was cancelled 
due to lack of participation.  communication 
in youth programs needs t


Small children, it would be nice to have an 
adults only entrance and exit


some adult member interfere kid’s swimming 
lessons, swimming waterpark should be closed 
when kids’ swimming lessons are on.


Some individuals who LIVE to work out in the 
exercise/fitness/weight room feel they own the 
walk-run track. Also,lack of adult supervison for 
the track area.


Someone should monitor the running/walking 
track and give instruction to those that do not 
understand the concept of staying to the right. 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Just because you have gotten up to a mild jog 
does not mean you belong in the inside lane. 
Also, walking three wide whil


Sometimes I cant run my laps in the pool 
because so many little kids. The Wi Jrs hog up 
the entire place when they have their tourneys. 
I just dont like giving so much money and have 
the events that are renting interfere with what I 
am paying for! I also


Sometimes long waits at the front desk.  Having 
to attend Taekwondo in the gym - to loud and 
can not here instructor.


Sometimes the equipment seems dirty/dusty.


Sometimes the front desk staff has problems 
with payments. It seems the computer program 
used for paying weekly program fees is not very 
user friendly.


sometimes the staff has the opportunity to help 
you out or give you a break, and they do not 
ever seem to do that.  Stop announcing the 
closing time so far in advance.


Special events disrupting regular visits. Large 
groups gathering in the lobby.  Those paying 
$5 for parking in ‘member’ lot.  Triathons


Special events have been directed to not 
use the member locker rooms, which helped 
considerably.


Sporting events are overwhelming.  Kids, 
adults, parents run around the grounds and 
disrupt operations.  The parking lot is full (I pay 
for parking).  I know longer go on weekends.  I 
love the facility and their are no other facilities 
like it but I truly


Staff at times, more interested in phone 
conversation letting customer stand for 10 
minutes waiting for attention


Staff could be more welcoming and friendly on 
ice arena side, considering we & many other 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







139 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


families are there most times 4-5 days each 
week.


Stop nickel and diming us to death. The music 
in the spin room should work all the time not just 
sometimes. You expect my dues all the time 
not just sometimes


Summer camp children are often heard using 
disrespectful language and when they are at 
the beach they seem to ‘take over’ and we 
have lost several sand toys because the camp 
children walk off with them. Field Trip groups 
make locker room usage very unplea


Summer camp parking has become particularly 
impossible. With the addition of members only 
parking, members and non-members park 
along the summer camp pick up/drop off 
areas, sometimes for hours, forcing summer 
camp kids and parents to hoof it from distant


Summer camp parking is not monitored and 
needs to be. I have been upset and heard 
many other camp parents upset to find the 
parking marked camp only during the camp 
pickup/drop off hours is full and only 5 parents 
or less are inside dropping off or pickin


Suspicious kids in the locker room.  Some non-
members wait for members to go through the 
door between ice/main area because the do 
not have a key card.


Swim lessons - back-up teachers do not seem 
to know what children they are looking for.  
Communications are poor relative to make-up 
lessons (when the pool is forced to close).


swim team took over the pool, i was kicked by 
swimmer,


Swimming classes seem a bit unorganized.


Swimming lessons interupted by pool being 
rented out at the same time as swimming 
lessons. I paid $20 for the parking pass, however 
at times the gates are open for anyone to 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


enter.


t-ball/soccer programs  limited waterpark times 
especially on weekends..why can not the swim 
lessons use the big pool..get pool plateforms 
for the younger students if you are concerned 
about the depth.


teenage boys curse too much in the locker 
room and sauna, they run up and down the 
stairs blocking other patrons, my wife and I 
both had money and towels stolen in the locker 
rooms


The ‘Members Only’ parking area being sold 
during special events - it is bad enough that 
the building is overcrowded then on top of that 
members cannot park.  Also the coaches for 
youth sports - a majority of them do not know 
how to coach kids let alone kn


The 4th old soccer program was our first class. It 
was horribly organized and run. New coaches 
every week. Kids did not know who they should 
listen to as parents were constantly ‘helping’ 
their kids. I can honestly say that experience 
alone has soured my o


The afternoon front desk personal seem very 
impatience and very overwhelmed. It often 
takes 15 mins or more to get to the front 
because of the line and the staff seems to be 
flustered and impatience with questions. I have 
had a couple of experiences where


The Basketball scouting event made the running 
track almost unuseable. Scouts were not paying 
attention to runners, not looking when they 
were stepping into the lane and I had many 
near collisions and had to concentrate more 
on on not running into someone


The biggest issue is when the waterpark or aqua 
center are closed.  I wish the notification of this 
was more visible when entering the facility.


The boys hockey team that trains at the Recplex 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







140 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


has been particularly annoying. As usual, they 
are loud and obnoxious (hey, I am a guy too, 
but come on), and when they are around, it is 
impossible to get onto equipment.    Can not a 
coach be around to ‘coach’


The card swiper rarely works and the front desk 
staff are often too distracted on weekends w/ 
non-member sports team participants to open 
the gate in a timely fashion.  It is really annoying 
that I can not transfer my parking pass to a 
different vehicle so i


The child care center. And the lack of changing 
my child. And when I called a supervisor I got 
no call back when I left a voice mail


The classes keep changing and now it is more 
expensive for the fitmix pass but you are getting 
less classes. The AB studio seems like it does not 
get cleaned. The floors always seem grimmy 
and theres been lightbulbs out for months.


The CONSTANT tournaments in the field house 
congest the foyer and snack shop. More staff 
is needed in the snack shop. Membership rates 
should be stable if we are so consistent booking 
the field house and meter pool for events.


The entire facility being overrun with teenagers 
for volleyball tournaments. They are rude and 
messy.    Also teenagers lurking around in the 
weight room. I realize it is a ‘rec’ center but the 
teens make for a very agitating environment. 
They are not worki


the entrance key cards do not always function 
properly I had to hail a employee and to gain 
entrance I had to offer up everything short of 
my fingerprints to prove I am a member.


The family locker rooms seems to get very dirty 
especially the floor.  Sometimes I do not want 
to walk around unless I have my shoes on.


The first time I placed my daughter in Kid Care 
while I went to work out, the staff member was 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


annoyed that she had to find paper work for 
me to fill out and that I had questions regarding 
the care.  Makes me mistrust the care.


The fitness desk help in the morning could be  
friendlier !!!!!!!!!!!!     Also, the smell as if a candle 
is burning up in the fitness area (smells like a taxi 
cab).   Not a good !!!!!!!!!!!!!!!


The food service at the Ice Plex has been pretty 
good but this new service is terrible.  I recently 
asked for a Soft Pretzel and the guy at the 
counter looked at me like I was an alien.  He 
told me they have not had enough requests for 
them so they do not


The foul language and behavior from students 
who come to the pool as an end of the year 
event. That needs to be addressed as it occurs 
every year.


The front desk staff is slow, does not know 
much about the building and repeatedly stops 
helping us to help one another on something.  
Also, the gate has repeatedly not worked when 
swiping our cards and then we have to wait for 
long periods of time for the


The front staff needs to become better 
informed as to policies and are not consistent. 
There should be no extra charge for a parking 
pass when 2 people in the same household are 
members.


The guy that works in the fitness center who has 
tattoo’s all over him never actually does any 
work.  He is never behind the desk or near it.  He 
spends most of his time talking with friends or 
hitting on random women in the fitness center.  
Even when peo


The large fitness class room is never cool 
enough. It is usually unpleasantly warm in there 
to excersize. There are not enough fans in there 
and the air conditioning does not work well.


The large pool was a great addition to the 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







141 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


RecPlex, however, on numerous occasions 
I was asked to leave a lap lane due to swim 
lessons, master swim, various ‘other’ swim 
activities. This always ocurred during a time 
that has traditionally been a lane swim


The LifeFitness elliptical machines are old--very 
squeaky and rickety and do not consistently 
pick up heart rate. Please replace those. Also, 
if there was a way to allow members to utilize 
fitness rooms for personal use when they are 
not being used for cla


The locker room is way to hot, the toilets flush 
too often and waste water, you need to entice 
people to use the family changing rooms- there 
are too many children (of the wrong age/sex) 
in the locker rooms.  The workout area is too 
dark and dreary. It is


The loss of key personnel has left a negative 
impact.  One of the best aspects of Rec Plex 
is the sense of community and camaraderie 
among staff & members.  This is often difficult to 
foster in today’s social climate for such a large 
facility.  The turnov


the manner of front desk spcially Miss Lyn 
Boehm is very disrespectfull and rude and 
looking down the members  because we are 
not american


the members only parking gates not working 
properly


The men ogle at the women doing the trx. 
Move it back into the room for more privacy.


The men’s locker room consistently has filthy 
floors and urine on the floors all around the 
urinals that gets tracked throughout the locker 
room.  When Tom returned my call to ‘discuss’ 
it, he was combative, insulting, unprofessional 
and competely inept a


The mens locker room does not have any air 
circulation. It.s always hot and not as clean as 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


it used to be.


the most unpleasant experience is the lack of 
consideration for ‘no shoes’ in the pool area.  
I find it disgusting that people participating in 
the events do not have any consideration for 
those actually swimming and walking on the 
pool deck either bare fo


The online registration stinks.  Everysince they 
did the upgrade a year or so back I have not 
been able to use it accurately.  There should 
be a class to help those of us whom would like 
to learn/keep registering on line to help us learn 
to do so.


The online system for registraition is not user 
friendly at all and needs to be updated or 
replaced ASAP!


The only bad experience I had with the recplex 
was in the afterschool program 3 years ago. My 
daughter had an accident and was left in her 
wet clothes from noon to 4pm. I did not receive 
a call and not one counselor realized she had 
an accident. My daught


The only issue I have had is with the Karate 
teacher.


The only problem at times seems to be that who 
ever works at night is not putting equipment 
back or doing much cleaning. When I come 
in early in the morning it tends to look messy at 
times(not always) and not very clean. The staff 
during the day seems to


The only time I have been dissatisfied was with 
the Kid’s Court. I dropped my child off while I 
was in a class for an hour. I came back to find 
my child with a dirty diaper which she had 
mostly removed, with her butt hanging out. Her 
hands and clothes wer


The overpriced parking tag for additional 
members beyond the primary member. The 
aqua arena events that spill into the waterpark 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







142 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


lanes are highly irritating when wanting to swim. 
10 huge lanes should be enough for them.


The parking arrangement is not the best, 
especially with only one car pass allowed per 
family.


The parking for day camp is horrible! There are 
signs up but no one patrols that area. I have 
to regularly park at the ice areana to pick up 
my child because all the spots are taken and 
when I get into the field house there are only 
like one or 2 parents


The parking is frustrating if I am in the wrong 
car.


The parking passes should be have a one time 
charge for the lifetime of the membership for 
each member!  Also the equipment, burned 
out lights, etc should be replaced, repaired in 
a timely manner.


the parking, additional spaces & members 
only helped, but your trying to make money 
& allowing vistors to pay & park in our lot, not 
cool!


The pool area is always so busy with kids parties. 
Plus the pool closes frequently secondary to 
‘stuff’ in the water


The pool has had unidentified particles in it  
several times (looked like feces) and the shower 
area has been in disrepair and have mold


The program discounts for being a member 
and non-member are not worth it.  There is 
usually a $10 difference.  For New Years Eve, 
members have to pay to use the facility on top 
of the money that was spend that month for 
the membership.  My husband is a co


The restrooms at the lake house are often dirty 
and smell most of the time.  It needs more 
cleaning...


The service at your snack stand is just awful.  Way 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


too slow.  This is completely unacceptable.


The showers are very dirty with torn curtains 
which I do not like. The machines in the fitness 
center are very dirty, rusting and cleaning them 
does not seem inforced at all. I thougt at least 
at annual shut down that all machines would 
be thorougly cleaned


The sign in the women’s locker that states the 
age a child of the opposite sex can use that 
locker room should be larger and in a more 
prominent spot. To often there are boys that 
are older than 3 or 4 in the women’s locker 
room.


The spin bikes -the electronic pedometers 
never seem to work. Equip them all with working 
pedometers.?


The staff in the fitness center should be actually 
doing something productive instead of normally 
standing behind the desk on the compute 
or talking. They need to sweep through the 
weight room and fitness area and straighten 
equipment, replace weights, re


The Staff is incredible. In particular, Joe Roszak 
does a fantastic job with the new swim team. 
I cannot think of any experience so negative 
that I would recall it.


The steroes are to loud in the cycling studio 
and interfere with adjoining rooms - especially 
in Yoga classes. Please turn speakers in cycling 
room to face away from Yoga studeo. Or, 
insulate that room better.


The thing I find most unpleasant is the whole 
week of shut down.  Last year things did not 
look a whole lot different afterwards.  Machines 
in the fitness area were still broken and it did not 
look a whole lot cleaner in the women’s locker 
room.  Since you


The track not being available due to renting it 
out, the pool not being available due to meets. 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







143 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Seems the Rec Plex is solely inteterested in more 
money, members do not matter.


The trial classes that are offered should be 
geared toward a person who has NEVER 
participated in that class rather than holding a 
regular class.  Any new person feels intimidated 
when they are made uncomfortable when not 
knowing the routines like the reg


The turn style entrance is awful.  It seems half of 
everyone has probs.  My cards never read, and 
the turnstyle flip and hit the little 2yr and 3yr olds 
in the back of the head.


The turnstiles at the front desk seem to be 
broken more than not lately requiring flagging 
down a staff member to be let in.


The use of your facility for recall elections. Not a 
place for politics


The waterpark pool used as a warm up area 
for a swim meet while we were having a water 
class, not very nice.   The locker room is not as 
clean as it use to be.  In the past I always saw 
someone cleaning now not so much.


The web site is difficult to use and not always 
accurate. In February I brought a group of 9 
boys to what was supposed to be Teen Night at 
the ice rink; on the home page of the RecPlex 
site it was listed as a calendar item. When we 
got there we learned th


The weekend crowds with the tournaments 
and parking are a pain.  I get its a huge money 
maker but seems no expense is spared at RP.


The women’s showers are not always clean and 
the toilets in the locker room have hot water in 
them sometimes.


there are way too many programs at recplex 
that prohibits member use. the classes are 
mostly during the day when most people are 
working, we need more weekend and evening 
classes. non members are able to pay for 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


parking passes which does not make it a ben


There have been many times where one of the 
gates to get into the members only parking 
area was blocked off, causing a major traffic 
jam which is not only irritating, but dangerous 
as well.


There have been several.  You increase 
membership fees to add amenities then when 
you try to use them they are unavailable for 
use, Mostly the Aqua Arena.  Then you have 
member only parking but during an event you 
offer parking in the parking lot for a fe


there have been times when using the swim 
lanes in the pool, some people would just jump 
in and run into you while you are swimming.  
all the lanes in the other pool are open, but 
people prefer the warmer water


There is a major design flaw with the heating 
and ventilation system.  The humidity in the 
AB fitness center is so high during the summer 
months, that I feel like I am going to pass out or 
have a heart attack.  Many of my friends and 
myself have complaine


There is not enough space here. Everytime I or 
my wife go to recplex we have an unpleasant 
experience with the staff to the point that we 
no longer interact with your people if at all 
plausable. Food service is slow and rude, desk 
service is slow and rude


There needs to be more parking blocked off 
for picking up kids at camp. Too many people 
park over there because they are too cheap 
to spend the 20 bucks to park in the lot.  it is 
ridiculous that when I pick my kids up at camp, 
there are 2 or 3 other pare


There was a field trip and the kids were all over 
the building without being supervised.  They 
should not be allowed in the members locker 
rooms.  They should be in the family locker 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







144 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


rooms with supervision.


There was a machine in the fitness center that 
was not working properly.  I went to the desk 
to let one of the staff know.  It was as if she 
did not believe me and rather than go check 
the machine, she continued to question me.  I 
finally got frustrated an


things stolen out of men’s locker room.  guest 
services giving incorrect information.  Laura is 
great though!  paying a membership fee that 
does not include parking my car.  i have a 
winter car and a summer car, and i have to 
park on the street if i drive


This is not an unpleasant experience but I 
believe members that live out of the Pleasant 
Prairie area should pay higher dues.


This is not an unpleasant experience, but I 
would not sign up for some of the group classes 
because people walking by can see you.  I 
take a yoga class elsewhere because I do not 
feel like I am on display


This winter we came on a Sunday afternoon and 
as usual the WI Jr’s had all of the gym and all the 
pool facilities were used for some other reason.  
We went home.  A situation like this needs to be 
communicated to the membership.  On winter 
Sunday afternoo


To long of a wait for the handicap dressing 
room. We have to wait on the bench for an 
hour at times.


Too crowded when rentals are there


too crowed in the pool area, too many non-
members in the pool... babies w/o swim 
diapers! Our family had to leave the waterpark 
b/c a baby pooped in the pool, it was a 
bad experience. A few times we left b/c day 
campers in the pool were to unruly. :(


Too far to drive for the price but liked the inside 
track....wish I was given more info on differnt 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


activities


too loud on Sat and Sun with little field house 
use for open gym. Snack bar should have pizza 
on busy days (often it does not have slices 
available)


Too many canceled fitness classes. Overpriced 
fee for TRX.


Too many cars parked on the roadway. Hard 
to see people in between cars. Too many 
unsupervised kids running all over the place 
during events - it gets chaotic and I try to stay 
away during those times if possible. I wish there 
was a separate entrance or s


Too many little kids playing on open racquetball 
courts.  Or Kids without saftey glasses throwing 
balls at each other.  wrong footware.  People 
sneaking in the back door to use the courts 
with out memberships.   Dirty floors in the court 
area.  too high o


Too many non members in the pool area due 
to the number of parties going on.  We pay a 
lot of money and I do not like having a ton of 
people in the pool who do not take as much 
care in the use of the facility as a member 
would.


Too many to list but they mostly involve outside 
groups or lack of anything for 10-16 year olds 
to do.


Too much profanity by members, as well as 
employees who are working out both while on 
duty and off duty, in the weight room area of 
the fitness center. Enforce your rules aggressively 
and kick people out (or revoke memberships) 
who do not comply; includin


too much talking and socialization in fitness 
center.i have my ipod volume all the way up 
and i hear sometimes an hour long conversation 
from the machine next to me.   i also dont like 
them selling parking spots to non members on 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







145 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


weekends since they park


Tournaments every weekend in the winter make 
it difficult to want to go to Rec Plex.  There are 
rarely free courts available for the kids and the 
lots are crowded.


track is not well monitored.  strollers permitted 
at wrong times, people using it to spectate 
weekend events, children allowed to run free 
while the parents watch from the entrance.  
variety of channels on tv’s is limited.--include 
history channel, travel


Track is too noisy to use on weekends because 
of volleyball; locker-room theft is a problem: 
have had things stolen from hooks outside 
showers.  Showers are often missing soap, and 
curtains are often ripped and moldy.


traffic and crowds for the special events; a little 
more staffing would help to move people both 
outside and inside and makes things more 
pleasant for members


Treadmill classes reserve much of the equipment 
and then there are only one or two people in 
the class.  The ‘special events’ takes up much 
of the parking in which I currently pay.  Paper 
towels seem tro be missing a lot of the time.


Triatholon Routes should extend to the west 
where road closures have less impact on 
people going to church


TRX is not part of the fitness package, extra fee.  
The women at the fitness desk is not friendly.  
The fitness desk is unattended often.  Not all 
Cardio equipment has TV plug in.  Employees 
should be cleaning equipment, not members. I 
know several member


TV transponders not functioning at equipment


Twice in June 2011 I have requested access to 
wifi from the front desk without success.


Two very immature boys with a ‘fart bag’ in 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


mens locker rm. Usually on Wed. Nights, back 
and forth in sauna making fart noise repeatedly. 
Also workout 2 lose change rule to have to 
weigh in every week to compete. I personally 
feel my consistent weight los


unable to use gym on sat in winter due to 
basketball (before 4pm); unable to use gym 
on Sundays due to Wisconsin juniors volleyball...
are they members? leave more courts open...


Unable to use the swim lap and the gym due 
to special events.  Instructors taking for granted 
that someone has already taken the class and 
not orienting new ones i.e. spin bikes


unattended children on the indoor walking 
track.  more than once.  unattended children 
(pre-teens) in the building in general.  The 
unsafe humidity levels in the AB adult fitness 
room.


Unfortunately we have cancelled our 
membership as of this month for many reasons 
including the economy which is obviously out 
of your control.  But my biggest complaint is 
having to pay for all of the amenities and our 
family does not use them.  As well a


Unpleasant staff at the front desk.  Forgot pass 
one day and was treated very rude while a 
team member looked me up in system.  Also 
put on a waiting list for tee ball and received 
no followup


Until the parking issue was solved it was horrible 
to find parking during special events. Now it is 
great!


Very disappointed in the after school program. 
Poor supervision, dangerous situations, 
extremely long bus ride.


Volleyball crowds especially at food concession 
and upper lobby.


waiting for lanes at night in the aquatic center 
because the swim team is taking a majority of 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







146 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


the lanes


Waiting to Long to Use showers in Family dressing 
room. Many non-english users using Showers for 
entire family(1/2 Hour Plus)


Was charged a full, non-member fee for my 
daughter to attend a training program.  Though 
she is not a member, my membership should 
count for something.


Was kicked out of lap lanes in water park in the 
middle of my workout for a field trip! Frequently 
can not use facilities when I would like to bc of 
field trips or tournaments. This stuff should not 
interfere with members using the facilities!


Water clarity in the pool is poor


water class was cancelled and I was never 
notified the pool and gym were closed due 
to large groups renting it out and found out 
when I arrived - CLOSINGS OF CERTAIN PARTS 
OF THE BUILDING WOULD BE NICE IF POSTED ON 
WEBSITE as well as class cancelled poste


We are seriously considering dropping our 
membership due to facitlity rentals and special 
events which limit our useage of the facility, 
particularly the Wisconsin Juniors volleyball 
club.  The amount of time that club occupies 
the gym, especially on week


WE are still evaluating the summer camp 
program.


We are very unhappy with the swimming lessons.  
The instructor in otters often did not even wear 
a swim suit.  Her instruction was very minimal.  
She just had them swim laps, even though my 
daughter had no prior experience with most of 
the strokes. Kate, t


We did not care for the preschool ballet and tap 
instructor our daughter had during the summer 
of 2010.  She was not a good communicator 
at all.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


We do not use your facility enough with high 
prices in gas.  Takes us 40 minutes round trip.  Not 
your fault...but makes us think about sigining up 
again.


We got to the pool and a member at a birthday 
party threw up. We had no idea we were not 
able to be in the pool...waited an hour to be 
able to use it.


We had a swim teacher who seemed bored 
and kept looking at the clock throughout 
the lesson. Also, during ‘play time’ at the end 
of class, she left the pool, thus not helping to 
watch a large group of children with the other 
teachers. However, this teacher


We had an ice coach who was not friendly, 
scared my children away from ice skating, 
Hamida?


We have dropped our membership because 
we spend our winters in CA. I only sign up for 
classes in the summer. It would be nice to park 
in the member lot M-F when it is almost empty 
than have to park on the street or remote lot!


We have paid for members only parking yet 
when there is an event where participants can 
pay for parking I can not find a parking place.  
Could not event parking be kept to the back 
of the parking lot so that spots will be open for 
members?  It is very frustr


We have not had any unpleasant experiences.  
We think it is a great complex.  Wish I lived closer 
& could use it more.


We need to go more.  My only gripe is that 
I pay a significant amount of money for a 
membership...and then have to pay additional 
$$ to participate in any group fitness programs.  
It could cost upwards of an additional $500 a 
year just to continuously par


We signed up for a class for our daughter.  1st 
two classes cancelled...the 2nd timeit was 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







147 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


cancelled 25 minutes before it started (we 
were in the car).  No service recovery was 
offered and we felt there was a ‘we do not 
care attitude’.


We were not thrilled with the lack of knowledge 
and organization of the gal renting the boats 
at the beach house this summer. We wanted 
to rent the 5 person pedle boat at the same 
time another couple rented a 2 person kayak 
and she had no idea when they w


We were not told about the pay to park system 
with membership.  I find it extremely annoying 
on days where no one is there (2 pm on a 
Thursday as an example) that I have to park on 
the street and carry my small child through an 
empty parking lot because t


web site is not very user friendly


Weekend events interfere with workout 
opportunities.  Parking for members should be 
included with membership.  There should also 
be membership rates based on areas of the 
facility being used.  My husband and I pay a 
large amount to only utilize the workou


went to use lanes in pool area and found that 
there was an event going on that was taking 
up all of the lanes.  checking the flyer it clearly 
stated that there would be something available 
in the waterpark.  This was not the case.  Further, 
with the event


Went to use the walking track and spectators 
were sitting there and blocking the track.  
Colder water in pool forced me to cancel 
participation in water programs which I had 
paid for.


When attempting to use the track this year 
we found that it had been partially blocked 
for seating to view activities on the basketball 
courts.


When I arrive for aquaflow class and there 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


is no handicapped parking available.  The 
lifeguards do not move the lane markers and 
we lose class time.


When I call or ask a question, I am always 
directed to another area, where I have to wait 
another 5-10 minutes to get an answer. The 
website is horrible and hard to use to register 
for classes.


When I come to use the facility and parking 
lots spaces are being used by or sold to non-
members.


When I dropped my son off at the daycare area 
there was another parent dropping her off and 
was speaking with a member of the staff.  The 
rex plex staff member was telling the parent 
about how she was applying at different jobs 
and how she did not like her


When I first enrolled as a member, I also enrolled 
my son in the after school program, called to 
program director several times, left messages 
with the staff and on her voice machine and 
she never returned my call.  After, a few weeks 
into the program, I


When I joined, I was told that I had to renew 
my membership every year.  But for over a 
year, they continued to take money out of my 
account.  I destroyed my membership card 
after the first year.


When it is so crowded I have to wait for 
machines.


When rejoining I was appalled at having to 
pay an EXTRA FEE to PARK. Come on here, 
the membership fees are high enough without 
have to pay to park again. Plus a number of 
machines the audio either does not work or is 
not there (in the fitness center) does


When the gates to the parking lot are up during 
events nonmembers park there.


When very small kids are in the adult locker 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







148 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


rooms ‘dressing’ and they are not supervised by 
their parents.  This is very frustrating. They watch 
you change out/in your clothes ‘staring’.


When we wanted to use the running track & 
there was a girls basketball tournament.  The 
scouts were using the inside lane of the running 
track which made it awkward to use.


When you are closed for maintenace or special 
events. You are shut down compleate. This 
does not happen at other clubs that are half 
the price.


When you buy passes, they should not expire.  
That is like a gift card and it is a rip off.  You took 
the money.  What does it hurt you to have one 
more person in class?


Whenever I am at the service desk, I feel as if 
they are trying to assist more than one person 
at a time; or they are also carrying on a 
conversation (either personal or work related) 
over the phone...


While taking a water motion class, the 
instructor’s headphone mic malfunctioned 
often, then the music became interupted and 
the power source for the music seemed to also 
malfunction.  It would have been nice to have 
speakers/sound systems installed in eac


Why not ask for pleasant experiences?  Laura 
at front desk is so sweet, very pleasant, and 
helpful.


With an event on the weekends the parking 
situation is strange.  If the event spectators 
choose to pay $5, they get to park in the 
Recplex parking lot but there does not seem to 
be a limit of how many spectators can rent our 
lot.  Oftentimes the lot is pac


with special events we have a hard time getting 
into parking lot with all the traffic coming into 
the parking lot also. as a member being there 
when you opened and to come in to grt a free 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


gift and its a T-shirt one per house hold when all 
of us have been


Woman who renewed our membership in April 
was rude.  She also was very abrupt when 
answering the phone while we were waiting for 
her to help us.  We evidently interrupted her by 
asking her to help us.  She clearly does not like 
her job.  We registered a c


Would like longer weekend hours I would 
Sunday night


Would like to see the lap lanes of the 50 meter 
pool kept across the pool at 25 yds.  More 
comfortable swimming those.


year rate went up following a membership 
drive offering families to sign up and kids were 
free for the first year


You did not leave any lap lanes open for the 
general public during swim meets. In all fairness 
to you, you have gotten better at coordinating 
this with each passing week during the swim 
meet season.


You really need to do something with the 
YUPPIES who think they can use handicapped 
parking because it is convenient.  The Police 
need to patrol and TICKET the area.


Young children on the track who were unaware 
of track etiquette (such as cutting in front of 
people, not looking out for other runners, etc).


Your customer service is terrible.  I can not think 
of a customer service experience that went 
well, so all my experiences with the recplex 
service have been unpleasant.


Your snack shop has THE WORST customer 
service.  The staff is friendly but inefficient 
and cannot multitask, which frequently 
makes people wait in long lines.  Completely 
unprofessional and unacceptable.


Your website does not have your programs listed 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







149 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


that are current, with their current schedule.  
You have to pretend you are registering.  This is 
very inconvenient.


Your website is not very good.  It is not updated 
in a timely manner and it is very difficult to 
find out information to enroll in some of the 
programs. Why should I have to call for more 
information when the information should be 
posted on the website.


Your website needs to be more user friendly.


What amenities would you like to see added to the 
RecPlex in the new few years:


tennis courts!


Tennis courts  - Access to Spin bikes outside of 
a scheduled class  - Expanded open water 
swim lanes/lake access. The single lane that 
exists this year is pretty small. The larger lanes 
in previous years were better. The opportunities 
to swim across the


lap lanes for adults only  -more adult only areas  
-more free motion machines  -a larger fitness 
area with some duplicate machines


more locations  -expanded childcare drop-in 
hours during the day  -more ‘mommy and me 
(toddlers)’ programs


????


‘Swimming only’ memberships


(1) Expanded programming - look at Gurnee 
Park District total programming as an example  
(2) Rock Climbing Wall  (3) Outdoor Waterpark 
&/or Spray Park  (4) Improvements to Lake 
Andrea - waterslide, more shade and picnic 
areas, ability to use swim noodles.


1 meter diving board in big pool.


1. Rowing classes (indoor & outdoor)  2.Curling 
Leagues ( put that ice to good use)  3.Regular 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


group bike rides for all skill levels and types of 
bikes.


1)Expand family track time in the summer ( or 
eliminate it )  2) Towels


A better shower area in the old locker room. Its 
terrible.  can not control the showers and not 
enough room to hang things like towels and 
underwear.


A better traffic flow for the people that are 
renting the area (WI juniors, basketball, 
tournaments) and people that are just trying to 
get into the door to get to a class or the fitness 
center. Also, more pedestrian areas especially 
around the parking on


A better, more user friendly website not so 
crowded with non-necessary information.  
More advertisement of programs - Think about 
hiring a marketing director to bring in revenue.


A bigger deeper free play area in the aquatic 
center. I feel very restricted, to walk in current, 
swim in lane, or be three years old.


a coat rack in the weight room. It is ridiculous 
that you have to open and close twenty mini 
closets looking for a place to hang your coat.


A concert venue if possible for local musicians 
(or larger).  An art gallery/’wall’ for local 
artists.  A bigger/better way to post community 
events/notices.  More food options (esp healthy 
and/or ethnic food) either in the current food 
commissaries or ne


A few healthier items at the concessions.     Sell 
sport drinks (in larger than just single serve 
bottles; like powder packets, canisters, etc.) 
and items like gels and sport beans. I buy lots of 
these and have to go elsewhere. I would love 
to be able to


A few more activities on that gorgeous lake... 
such as a waterslide, etc.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







150 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


A few more free classes during the week for 
members. Maybe a 4:30 spin class. I have 
switched to swimming weekday evenings 
because of the expense of those classes. Prices 
too high.


A golf simulator.  Wisconsin winters are long.  
Please add one for member’s use.  Even at 
20 dollars for two hours you would make a 
bundle.


A hot tub that doesnt close when the pool does 
and hours that are a little later.


A larger seperate area to use the kettle balls, 
yoga balls that type of thing. It feels a little 
squished together with the TRX equipment and 
kind of like  your shoved off in a corner.


A larger variety of classes.


A martial arts room, rock climbing wall, a fishing 
pier


A membership key scanning device on the 
beach bathrooms.


A parking garage or gated system on the 
IcePlex side.


A parking system that allows all members to 
utilize the reserved lot by swiping/showing their 
active ID tag as opposed to tying the parking 
sticker to a particular car.


A rental for weddings or big parties


a second parking pass, free, for members 
that have a second car.  earphone boxes 
consistently working on machines.      repairs to 
the lake walking trail are now coming into view-
--need to fill cracks and identify areas that pool 
water on the surface arou


A separate bike portion of the walking path 
around the lake.  People fly by on their bikes 
where you are running/walking with kids.  NOT 
safe.


A separate womens fitness section


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


a steam room in the locker area.


A steam room is the biggest deficit of the 
RecPlex.


A steam room would be nice.


A tennis court...with a real wall, so people can 
play by themselves!!  That is the only thing 
missing..


A two story parking structure with a in closed 
sky walk.


accept state child care assistance  for the day 
care program


Add the same menu items to the main food 
service area as is in Ice Plex


Additional free classes or reduced rate for 
classes.


Additional Parking. The current parking situation 
on the road is creating a hazard. I would also 
recommend converting one of the ice rinks 
into a permeant indoor soccer field.


Additional racketball courts.


Amenities are good except would like to see 
the membership costs stay low.


An ability to run around Lake Andrea while 
my children are in Kids Court.  Pilates offered 
Monday thru Friday during school hours.


An Adult only walking channel 24 hours


An outdoor pool area for summer.  better 
access to lake for fishing (more docks).


An outdoor pool would be a fantastic and 
much needed addition!! It would be great, and 
it is really needed in our community because 
our public pools are disgusting and I think are 
shutting down.


an outdoor track


Another ice rink.  There is not enough ice time 
between hockey and figure skaters.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







151 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Area for people to fill water bottles in fitness 
area seperate from drinking fountains.  Ability 
to lower water temperature in showers.  Adults 
only locker room.


Ballet for adults / more ‘dance’.


Ballfield side concessions is a must. That is 
ridiculous you do not have a stand selling 
beverage and food.  What a waste of a 
market. Outside grilling/concessions for these 
huge tournaments appeared to be a success 
last yer, I have not seen it much this ye


Banquent rooms for Wedding receptions or 
larger parties.   More 4 foot lap lanes. The few 
lanes available are used so often, it makes it 
difficult to wait a long time for one to open up. 
Especially when they are also used for senior 
classes. The 12 foot p


Basketball hoops in the pool and bigger/longer 
swim lanes in the Lake.


Be able to control water temp. in the showers.  
Hot showers in the summer are terrible


Benefit for the coaches who take time out of 
their busy lives to help coach the kids.


Better /restaurant style food areas. Maybe like 
a mall atmosphere so that families could get a 
more ‘normal’ meal. This would help promote 
a more wholesome experience.


Better air circulation in the studios.


Better air conditioning in the men’s locker 
room.


Better customer focused staff and management.  
Your staff makes it clear that I am just revenue.  
You do not need to add anything else until you 
fix the customer service problems.  Once those 
are fixed you will have enough members and 
revenue to add anythi


Better fitness center with more up to date 
machines.  The free weight benches are 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


ripping and look old as well as the machines 
are just tired and do not move as they should.  
The treadmills and ellipticals are nice, but you 
need more up to date free wiegh


better locker rooms, more air movement. would 
like to have a permanent locker without having 
to pay a ridiculous amount


Better locker rooms!  More space for lockers 
and for mirror area to get ready in the morning.  
Not enough outlets when it is really busy.


Better online registration system; fitness classes 
for beginners or for the overweight; yoga class 
for overweight people


Better online system for registering for PreU - 
hard and time consuming when doing more 
than 1 week.


Better parking for guests.  I try to bring some 
guests at times, who are not members yet, and 
they are turned off by the long walks to get 
there.  I know it is great having a member lot, 
but can something in the future be done for 
visitor parking.


Better parking on the iceplex side for 
members.


Better pricing, no extra fees. More offers for 
discounts, include more programs included 
in membership fee. Rewards for returning 
members.


Better shower facilities and more mirrors, sinks 
and outlets in the female locker room so that it 
is easier for women getting a workout in before 
work.


Better shower heads/towel service


Better showers.  The spray is inadequate and 
the shower drains are sometimes dirty and full 
of hair, shampoo, soap, etc.  The lighting in the 
women’s mirror area is poor and makes putting 
makeup on difficult.  Not enough room at the 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







152 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


mirrors in the morning


Better towl availability.  More lockers.


Better WIFI in the workout area.


better/more parking


Bigger lockers for families to keep their 
belongings in...difficult to carry items back and 
forth when there are 4 children in activities.


Bigger, better indoor play area with more water 
slides for the kids.


bike trail accessibilty from other communities


Blinds on the west windows of the fitness 
center.


Blinds/shades on west windows of fitness center.  
Two missing quarter mile markers added to 
walking/running path.


boats for rental to fish with


Can not think of a thing - has everything I 
need.


can not think of anything


Ceiling fans in the free weight area and west 
window area.


Ceiling fans over the weight machines.  Also in 
the locker rooms.  I would like hand held hair 
dryers in ladies locker room like they have in 
hotels.  Lastly better Wi-Fi! Can not seem to pull 
in a signal upstairs in the workout area. I would 
like to stream music o


Cheap juice bar  Cheap coffee bar  Cheap 
diet soda


Cheaper fitness classes, more options for fitness 
classes.


Child care area, so they dont occupy the 
whole building


Classes combining lighter exercise with stress 
relief programs


Classes scheduled later in the evening so those 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


of us who work the normal 9-5 pm shift can 
attend them.


Cleaner


climbing wall


climbing wall---lots of competitions--Y offers it.  
Outlets at ends of lockers by mirrors providing 
more accessibility to dry hair. Sink counters can 
get packed at times.


climbing wall, disc golf around park


Coffee Bar


Coffee Shop. Spa services during the evening.


Concessions outside at the ball fields


Construct a parking structure physically 
attached to the RecPlex, commercial/
retail stores in proximity to the RecPlex (e.g. 
restaurant, dry cleaning drop-off, convenience 
store, coffee shop), removal of the berm along 
Terwall Terrace to give better views


Costs have always been high, especially for 
people that use during particular times during 
year (bball season) but cannot get there during 
football season.  We use 3-4 months of the year 
and that is it but pay for 1 full year.  Parking 
stickers k $20 for


crossfit programming. more focus on functional 
fitness programming


Dance for kids, kids swim team, and more yoga 
options


Day care pickup (10 min parking) and drop off 
is very unsafe that you are lucky you have not 
had a law suit filed against you. It should be 
separate from general adminsion. Cars drive to 
fast, do no pay attention, in a rush.  Commericial 
Drivers and buses


DDR for adults: think about the teen participation  
Self-paced workouts: your regular fitness 
instructors can run through their regular routine, 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







153 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


and record it. Then when the fitness rooms are 
not in use, people can ask to use them or even 
post them as run


Decreased cost for personal training if you sign-
up for 6, 8, or 12 week sessions


Dedicated basketball facility with wood floor.


Dedicated bicycle trail with NO walkers using 
music devices.    More handicapped parking


Diving Well, so this could possibly host larger 
National Swimming / Diving Events.


Diving, trampoline


Do not know


Do not know but I bet you will come up with 
more amenities because you have added so 
many already since I started coming .


Earlier hours at the beach.  With or w/o 
lifeguards.  (for children)


Easy access beyond the front desk for prescool 
U families.  The parents and kids typically have 
their hands full with daily supplies.  They often 
have to wait to have the gate opened by a 
front desk representative.  I would like to see 
more front desk sta


Eating options other than junk food;  Towel 
service;


evening/night fishing hours.  better stocking 
program to make fishing more productive and 
enjoyable for the kids.


Everything mentioned about additions to 
Lake Andrea; waterslide, expanded beach 
area, more shaded & picnic areas withing the 
beach limits.  And possibly adding another 
beach, closer to the RecPlex complex.  My 
#1 complaint (and I am CERTAIN other moms 
hear


expand on the youth programs to compete 
with the cyc.  due to lack of communication 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


and coordination we did not sign our 4 kids up 
in any youth programs with recplex this summer 
and signed them up with cyc instead.  the 
pricing was cheaper with the cyc th


Expand the hours later into the evening at Lake 
Andrea.


Expanded beach, volleyball for kids in 
elementary school.


Expanded food service with healthier options


expanded locker rooms, more of a health club 
experience..


EXPANDED PARKING ON THE ICE ARENA SIDE...
WHAT A MESS!!!  I AM A MEMBER, BUT NEVER 
PARK IN THE MEMBER LOT BECAUSE I AM IN THE 
ICE ARENA NEARLY EVERY DAY OF THE WEEK 
AND CAN NEVER FIND PARKING!


Expanded snack area.


family change area


family class options or special events. A family 
yoga or family zumba night or time. (other than 
parent / child yoga) a reduced rate option for 
childrens classes similar to the passport.


Field Turf athletic fields. Freerunning facilities/
classes. Gymnastics for kids.


Fix lockers in locker rooms.  alot do not hold 
locked.  Mens  room


flag football for 4yr old,more sports programs 
for preschool ages.


For people who are members a discount for 
class or free classes such as body pump.  I do 
body pump twice a week for years and it is 
costly, especially with the membership going 
up.


Free fitness classes for members.


Free infant childcare


Free month of membership on your birthday or 
anniversary (when you signed up with the club) 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







154 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


month.


Free parking


Free parking for all members in the same 
household. A steam room. Some free time 
offered with personal trainers for members.


FREE PARKING FOR MEMBERS!  Also, when there 
is a tournament in the gym which blocks my 
kids and I from using that space, we should get 
a refund on our dues. What we currenlty get is a 
sign saying ‘GYM CLOSED FOR TOURNAMENT’. 
That is B.S. Members should com


Free towels.  Other gyms have towels and a 
laundry service.  If you can not do them for free, 
explore what a no profit cost would be that 
you could pass along to members.  Member 
classess need to be priced down or free.


Free yoga classes offered throughout the day.  
Locker rentals at a  reasonable price.  Towels 
and hairdryers in the looker room.


Frisbee Disc Golf on grounds


Fruit Smoothie Bar!


Gardening classes and groups, botanic garden 
and garden events, tai chi, advanced yoga, 
yoga practice and community, more pilates, 
10K nature trail thru woods for walking and X 
country skiing, ice skating on lake, more nature 
programs outside - bird watch


Give the Big Brother Big sister members a break 
make it easy for them to bring their little to the 
rec plex. I would rather see them in the rec plex 
than on the streets


Golf: Putting Green, Driving Range, etc.


Good maintenance of equipment, better 
training of personnel or better access to 
COMPLETE information for employees so they 
can better assist customers, better staffing of 
food service areas - you lose an awful lot of 
business by making customers wait so l


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Gravity Benches,BodyAttack,BodyJam,CX30,T
RX equipment available for member self-use.


Group classes being free to members, or at least 
offer 1-2 as free.  (This would include specialty 
classes as well as regular group classes.)    Also, 
if more than one car is in the family, a parking 
pass should be included free as well; possibly 
up to tw


group classes included with memebership even 
tho this is really not an amenity I would find this 
of great value.  Steam room would be nice


Gymnastics programs/equipment  Hip Hop 
Dance classes at 8pm  Zumba at 8pm


Hand sanatizer in the gyms, expanded hours, 
more corporate membership discounts for 
healthy living


Having more antibacterial spray bottles and 
paper towels in more visual locations around 
the fitness center.


Healthier Food


Heavier selection of kettlebells.1 1/2’ Ropes. TRX 
or Jungle GymXT made available to members 
to checkout and use as needed. More water 
fountains or water bottle fill station.


Hot towels.


I am good the way it is. It has a great balance 
for a fitness center this size. I never feel really 
crowded and dont have to wait too long for 
machines.   I think its a great facility.


I do not have anything to add but I did want to 
point out the poor grammar and fragmented 
sentences found in this survey.   For the most 
part I could figure out the point behind each 
questions but someone needs to proof read 
this before sending it out to m


I feel like my kids have outgrown the recplex 
and they are only 9 and 11. I would like to see 
an outdoor heated pool area for the summer 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







155 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


months. An opportunity for young teens to use 
the lap pool area for diving and swimming laps. 
Maybe a set time during


I feel that there should be more amenities 
that goes with membership:   free classes (the 
YMCA does this),  free skate rental, putting card 
swipes on locker rooms, no registration fees for 
camp.  I am seriously considering dropping my 
membership because t


I have asked numerous times in the suggestion 
box to purchase more dumbbells in the weight 
room, along with better, more updated 
weightlifting machines.  There are two sets of 
dumbbells only up to 55 pounds.  Even smaller 
guys like me use dumbbells heavie


I like it the way it is.


I like Rec Plex.  The most important thing for me 
would be offering classes in the evening that 
are free to members.  Something along the line 
of the Lunch Box Express.


I liked that femine products are provided 
in bathroom in case of emergency.  I think it 
would be nice to have towels available in the 
locker room, but not sure if people would take 
them.  It would be nice if healthier food was 
available at snack bar . . .


I liked the 5-6 free session you give that we can 
share with guests--I never used them, but that 
is thoughtful.


I liked the idea of a water slide


I liked the summer ‘coffee clutcher’s’ soccer 
which is a rec league for kids to just play soccer. 
I coached for 2 years and had a great time. I 
will miss that experience as it was fun for me 
and an excellent way to be with my daughter. 
That was an expensi


I love seeing the Rec Plex host tournaments of 
all sorts, but I dislike wading through the crowds 
(that gather by the information area) on my 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


way to slide my card to enter into the changing 
area.  Could something be done about that, 
please?


I think both primary members of the the 
RecPlex should be given free stickers.  We were 
told when this parking thing first started that 
early morning people would still get to use the 
parking lot and the gates would be used later 
in the day.  This has nev


I think that the classes should be free to 
members. Also, it would be nice to have a 
couple of free swim/fitness class passes to bring 
a friend along to swim or workout.


I understand that some of the outside 
organizations that used to offer classes, had 
to discontinue due to the rental fees being 
too high to accomodate a fair charge for the 
class. This has resulted in the loss of Kindermusic 
and a good children’s dance pr


I would just like to see more of a price break 
given to members for classes.


I would like more non-Les Mills fitness classes.  I 
would love a kickboxing class that uses gloves 
& boxing bags.  I would like other social-adult 
classes.


I would like the classes to be more in the 
evenings I would love to do two or three classes 
during the week but the prices are REALLY 
expensive to do that.  I already pay a monhtly 
family fee why not either ‘raise’ my monthly fee 
to include the ability to


I would like the Recplex to have tennis courts 
and tennis programs.  Also a real archery range 
with at least once a year league tournament. I 
mean target only.


I would like to be able to use TRX belts at Rec 
Plex to work out with at times that are convient 
for me.


I would like to see a bigger waterpark for the 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







156 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


kids and young adults.  I would also like to see 
more shaded areas by the north baseball/
softball diamonds.  It gets very hot and sunny 
by diamonds 1, 2, and 3.


i would like to see a children’s museum or 
inflable jumping site added.  Not necessary to 
greatly expand but to better use the facility in 
general


I would like to see a diving program added.  I 
was disappointed that a huge pool was added 
without a diving program.


I would like to see adult ice skating at a time 
when I can attend. I do not mind sharing the ice 
with the little bucket-pushing munchkins, but I 
do not want to run them over, which invariably 
almost happens.


I would like to see an area in the locker rooms 
for people to change privately without worrying 
about items falling in the toliets.    I would like 
to see more access to outdoor activities with 
minimal fees.  Examples, paddle boats or 
tandem bikes.


I would like to see chairs to relax and get sun in 
between the pools and lake.


I would like to see fitness classses included in 
membership. I am aware of other fitness centers 
in other states around the country including 
classes in their memberships, and I am resentful 
of that.


I would like to see group fitness classes that are 
free to memembers, no added cost.


I would like to see more dance classes added - 
and also more variety of classes offered for the 
‘after work’ group.


I would like to see more play structures at the 
parks for older kids.  Most of the play structures 
are geared to kids 5 and under, but I would 
love to see some equipment for older kids (6-
12).  The ideas for expanded facilities at the 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


beach would also be


i would like to see more public times. public 
swim public skate. day care


I would like to see the family locker made nicer 
to match the regular locker rooms.  As a mom 
to a 7 year old son, it is disappointing not to 
have any amenities in the family locker room.  
It is sterile, hospital, institutional like.


I would like to see the shower areas redone.


I would like to see where seniors could put there 
membership on hold while out of town for like 
a month or more. a week will not be worth the 
freeze. I like to use the Rex plex in the winter 
more as we are not as busy in the yard.


I would love to see a new locker room for adults 
only-the one now is a joke.  The sauna needs to 
be updated.


i would love to see a steam room in the locker 
rooms. also i would like to see more magazine 
racks with more magazine options in the fitness 
room. seems little but i think its important. and 
lastly i would like to see the prices go down for 
members to tak


I would love to see tennis courts and a tennis 
program for kids and adults!


I would like a less expensive brick sign that wasnt 
necessary when i am paying $20 a car to park 
near the doors simply so my children dont get 
run over in the street.  I would like the fitness 
class price schedule to not be so itemized.  Its 
ridiculous when one i


I would like to see more cardio fitness classes 
offered at convenient times.


I would like to see more free space with mirrors 
in the weight lifting/cardio area.  It feels like so 
much of the space is taken up by the weight 
machines that there is not enough space to 
actually do a free weight workout.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







157 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


I am happy with facility.


I am very happy with everything the RecPlex 
currently offers.


if you pay for two adult memberships...it should 
include two adult parking passes.  Having 
to swap around cars on the weekend just so 
the right adult has the right car to be able to 
park in a lot ‘as a member’ is silly.  If Volleyball 
tournaments are in s


improve beach - it is pretty lame.


Improve the locker rooms


Improved fitness rooms including audio 
equipment that works, cooler/cleaner rooms, 
yoga/pilates room would be quiet, getting 
an email when any core fitness program 
is cancelled, and all equipment would be 
organized and maintained.


In the fitness area, the recumbent bicycles 
are rarely used, while the upright bicycles are 
usually occupied.  Suggest replacing some 
recumbent bikes with more upright stationary 
bikes.  Also would like to see a Turkish sauna, or 
steamroom, in addition to


Included fitness classes in membership.


increase amount of gym equipment, more 
outside activities for kids


Indoor and Outdoor Tennis courts


INDOOR GOLF PRACTICE AREA


indoor soccer stadium, indoor golf range/
course


indoor tennis court


indoor tennis, indoor golf driving range, better 
fitness food ( advertise new LA Grill), more 
grilling at tournaments, BRING BACK THE 
KOMETS!!!!! better magazine selection upstairs, 
put a stretching routine on a TV by the mats so 
we could have a 3-5 minut


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


injury rehad/PT/OT


It currently meets our needs.


It would be great in the summer if you had 
more early morning fitness classes.


It would be great to have a dial in the shower 
that could control the water temperature.To 
often the shower is to cool in the winter and to 
hot in the summer.


it would be nice if the handicapped gates 
swung both ways.  if you have ever tried pushing 
a stroller through you would understand how 
frustrating it is.    better childcare house.  before 
my son was born i was at the gym almost every 
day and since he was


It would be nice to have a therapeutic 
temperature pool area like the WMCA.  
Develope outside lounge, table, chair and 
umbrella areas so that the outside can also be 
enjoyed.  I would like to see a dog park area at 
Lake Andrea with acess to the lake where


It would be nice to have some benches installed 
along the walking path especially along the 
north side of the lake.


It would be quite beneficial if you could offer 
better training and guidance to people who 
are using the equipment. The only way I learn 
much about what is good for me and how it 
should be correctly used is to get a personal 
trainer. I think you should of


It is amazing! I would not even know what to 
add.


Juice bar in exercise room.


Jumpers, like an area similar to monkey joes.


Keep fitness equipment uptodate...we certainly 
pay enough.


Keep the machines working perfectly so that 
‘WE’ the older members can make sure the our 
heart rate is exactly what the machine tell us. 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







158 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


It is VERY important in lieu of the face that alot 
of us are on heart RX’s. Already in the first few 
months I noticed a


Kettlebell class, outdoor pool and waterpark, 
paddleboat hire, sailboard classes, tennis, 
youth dance classes and fitness classes, safety 
classes, spin classes for youths 8-11yr, outdoor 
run track, better run soccer games with qualified 
coaches and longer


Lacrosse field.  Use e-mail to let members and 
users know about new programs.


lacrosse travel hockey team


Lake diving board raft  pier on the lake  larger 
lake swim area  Easier Registration   Better 
Communication  free wifi  more free passes


Larger locker room  Air conditioning in locker 
room


Larger weight area. Supply towel service. Offer 
locker service. Consider adult only locker room 
& showers.


less programs in the earley morning


Locker room could be bigger,along with shower 
area. Towel service as part of membership,no 
added cost.


locker room shower heads that give a greater 
‘blast’ of water


LOCKER ROOMS FOR THE NEW POOL OPEN 
TO PAYING MEMBERS.  Members who paid to 
join because of the great new pool suddenly 
were told the locker rooms could not be 
used because of a variety of reasons.  It has 
been absolutely maddening to deal with and 
extremel


Longer hours.  Lower prices.


Lotions, disposable brushes or other toiletries 
in the locker room for those times when I 
accidentally forget something at home.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Lower membership fees.  In fact I probably 
will not be renewing this year because it has 
become toooooo costly.


lower prices for seniors...we do not use it much 
and debate if it is worth keeping.  elderly people 
should be almost free.


Lower rates for seniors


Lunchtime yoga and pilates classes. An outdoor 
pool with waterslides and loungers with outside 
food service for summertime.


Maybe a parking garage to help minimize 
parking issues. I would like to see some non-
Les Mills fitness classes specifically for spinning 
added as well.


Maybe a putting green


Maybe towels in the locker rooms


Members only locker room that is truly available 
to members only. I thought that was why the 
family locker rooms were built.  Showers that 
either have enough hot water or power to feel 
as though I have taken a shower.  Locker rooms 
in the aqua arena availab


Mens and womens whirlpools in locker room 
area. A nicer adult locker room with private 
showers and stricter sauna rules. Too many kids 
running through and disrupting your experience. 
Maybe having a locker room attendant to stop 
kids from running in and ou


mens shower room needs serious, more frequent 
cleaning... mens locker room could use A/C 
in the summer... recplex should provide one 
parking sticker per paid adult; it is silly to think 
two adults can use one sticker


Mini-golf course


More ‘non-fancy’ treadmills. The new ones are 
often confusing. Why do we need so many 
with the ‘frills’?


more accomadating for paying membership 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







159 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


members.


More activity stations in the waterpark.


More archery platforms


more basketball courts; many of them are 
blocked due to volleyball to frequently.


more beach activites. a swim at own risk area 
where floatation devices can be used (air 
mattresses or intertubes) or possibility to rent an 
intertube or floatation device in a marked area 
outside of swim area


more benches around the lake - sometimes it is 
nice to just sit and look at Lake Andrea


More Bike/Walking trails  Bathrooms by the ball 
fields


More birthday party options.


More boot camp style classes.  More affordable 
classes.  More free-to-members classes.


More cardio equipment, not treadmills, a TRX 
area for members that do not need or want to 
go to classes.


More ceiling fans above the exercise 
equipment.  Mileage markers on the path on 
the east side of Lake Andrea


more classes for people who work 2nd shift. 
Classes in the morning/afternoon.


More dumbbells and adjustable benches.


more equipment and space for the Discovery 
Program   more things for us ‘old and need 
to get back into shape’ people  programs 
for diabetics and heart patients  cardiac 
rehab  free classes, the ones at noon are not 
conducive to my schedule. I really think


More equipment to handle the growing 
membership.


more family changing rooms/showers


more family exercise programs so we can teach 
our children about fitness and its importance!  


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


More outdoor nature programs!


More family lockers with the shower


More fitness equipment.


More free classes and perks for members.  
RecPlex seems to bend over backwards for 
those without a member ship while members 
get the short end of the stick.  Free classes, 
family guest passes, etc.


more free classes for members


More free classes for members


More free classes for members during the 
morning hours.


more free classes for members. more a.m. class 
choices. More for kids 10-14 yrs old after school. 
AM and PM specilaity camps that last for 4 
hours each.


More free classes! No more yoga at the same 
time as RPM - too loud!


More free fitness classes and trials for 
members.


more free fitness classes for members


more free fitness programs, or no charge for 
current classes to members


More friendly interface for program registering 
online.


More group classes at more convenient 
times particularly early evening on weekdays.  
Nutrition/weight loss/Healthy lifestyle 
education


More group fitness classes in the evenings at 7 
pm or later


more group fitness programs


More guest passes.  Reduced rates-incentive 
to keep membership. Option for college kids 
to attend if member at cheaper rate. Would 
like personal trainer offers - not just 1 at start - 
maybe one or two annually.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







160 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


More gym space that can not be reserved or 
used for special events, we would love to bring 
our kids over and play in there in the winter, but 
when we try there are no open courts to use.


More lockers in the fitness center.


more morning fitness classes  more classes 
geared to seniors


More nutrition and wellness workshops


More open swim times with children, especially 
morning hours during the summer.


more opportunities for staff coaching


More outside tanning areas; re-paving of the 
path around the lake since it is getting a bit 
rough (and remove rough stones at the flags 
that nearly cause rollerbladers to break their 
necks); outside pool, accessibility to the TRX 
system (without having to


more parking


More parking


More parking for members.


More parking for those with physical 
disabilities!


more parking to offset when you are parking in 
the lot for special events


More parking, places to eat


more pilates/yoga class offerings in the 
evening


More programs for Girl’s sports (such as 
volleyball and lacrosse).  More opportunities for 
Tweens to do while their parent’s workout.  The 
Kid’s court and its activities are a bit young for 
children in their tweens.  However, as a parent, 
I would still li


More programs for special needs children.


More programs for the age 2-5.


More programs for youth fitness


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


more raquetball courts, extra gym so when 
events are going on you still have room to play 
with the kids.


More Senior Citizen program just for them; i.e. 
50 plus age grouping only


more senior/disabled programs


More showers


more spin classes


more sporting goods for purchase.


More stairmaster machines.  Towel Service.


More supervised activities for kids age 8-13 
designed to allow parents to exercise in the 
fitness area without worrying about what 
mischief their bored kids may be getting in to 
in the open gym. Even expanded hours for the 
gaming room would help.


More things for the Tweens. Our family of 4 
consists of 2 adults, a 16 yo and an 11yo. We 
show up in the evening to work out and my 11 
yo cannot go upstairs to the fitness center and 
ge cannot go to the tween area because he 
hasnt been thru orientation. M


more things in Kids Court for older kids (8-12 
year olds)


more track hours with kids.  longer running path 
outside.


more TRX classes at convenient times, after 
work at night


More Weightlifting equipment.


More weights & equipments in the upstairs 
workout area.


More whirlpools and provide towels for aquatic 
center use.


more zumba classes


Mountain Bike Trails


My issues have mostly been in the locker rooms 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







161 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


and I hestitate to repeat my frustrations.


my wife & I teach line dancing 4 nights a week, 
one night on Tuesday being a senior program 
at the Zion Park Dist.  low impact, plenty of 
exercise, and a lot fun.  something you might 
consider


n/a


N/A


Need a 2nd Smithline weight rack.  Need a free 
weight storage rack near seated calve raise.


New machines in the fitnes center, more 
attentive staff in the fitness center, a cleaner 
fitness center


new or current fitness machines


Newer equipment, more events for family


Newer fitness equipment. Many of the treadmills 
have aged, as well as some of the weight 
equipment.


Newer workout equipment in the Fitness Center. 
Too many pieces are broken down too often.


no opinion at this time


none


None


None - it currently has everything I need.


None that i can think of.


none, it is plenty big.


none, its great the way it is


none!try keeping the prices the same and not 
raising them.the rec plex is empty alot of times 
with the economy people cant afford to pay 
more and more for fitness clubs.


None. I would be very pleased if RecPlex kept 
its existing facilities in excellent shape. Variety is 
nice, but having clean facilities in good repair 
is more important to me.


not sure


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Not Sure


not sure it is an amenity, but maybe mirror’s on 
the inside track so people walking with strollers 
or walking 2-3 people across can see others 
approaching and possibly moving over a little.


Nothing at the time


nothing at this time.


Nothing I can think of


Nothing, I feel that if you add anything else 
it will be used as an opportunity to raise your 
rates or charge for it.


Nothing.


Offer more free programs for members.  
Currently free programs are during the work 
day 11/12pm.  I would like to see some offered 
after 4:30/5:00pm so that I can take advantage 
of them.


Online reservations for little tykes and booking 
parties.


other recreation activities other than just 
sports.  perhaps, gardening, art, games. co-ed 
games.


Other recreational activities than just sports.  
gardening, gardening classes for children and 
adults, a green house, walking paths in the 
woods, art classes, adult couples only swim 
time.  Swim games for adults only at the aqua 
center. racquet ball lesso


Outdoor family pool with picnic areas; possibly 
near Lake Andrea to get the best of pool 
and lake during summer months.  Not always 
into lake swimming, enjoy pools more but like 
outdoors in the summer.


outdoor fitness programs, larger weight room,


outdoor pool


Outdoor pool, kid’s night out once a month.


Outdoor pool!


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







162 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Outdoor pool!!!!!!!!


Outdoor pool.


Outdoor pool/water play  Tennis courts  Boat 
rental (small boats)


Outdoor tennis courts and lessons!!  It is amazing 
to me that tennis courts have not been built 
yet.


Outside basketball courts for members.


Outside tennis courts a hill for sledding, maybe 
a skate board park outside.


Outside water spigot along running path 
around Lake Andrea.


Overall a good facility.


parking


PARKING


Parking by the Preschool U area.  It is difficult 
to get all the kids out just to drop one off at 
school.


Parking deck.  Better lake Andrea facilities, 
better climate control in main pool.


Parking garage, add security on the new side, 
spa services/salon


Parking garage, cheaper snack bar prices,


Permanent restrooms and concessions at the 
north baseball fields.  Better parking and easier 
access in, out and around the north baseball 
fields.


personal tv monitors on each exercise machine; 
upgrade locker room facilities including sauna 
and showers


Pilates Reformer. Up to Date Yoga / Pilates 
classes


pilates with full equipment.  water yoga class.


Please add a members only or fee based locker 
room with towels, misc supplies, owned locker, 
etc..(take a look at the locker rooms at Centre 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


club in Gurnee) I would think certain members 
would be willing to pay extra for this.  Use a 
special badge to get


Please give more guest passes per year!!!  Need 
more things for younger kids (elementary ages) 
to do for free.


Please look into. Updating locker rooms. I 
visited a club last week and they had towels 
for members, lockers with keys to check out for 
free for lockers in locker rooms, complimentary 
hairspray, lotion, hairdryers... Set out for 
members.


PLEASE purchase a heavier punching bag (100-
150 lbs).  The current bag is both too light and 
not in a good position.  It swings around way 
too fast due to its weight and poses a danger 
to others in the area.


PLEASE we want TENNIS COURTS!!!!!!!!!


Possible an expanded beach area with more 
water toy choices such as those inflatable 
climbing toys.  Possibly the addition of a basic 
park with jungle jim in the beach area.    An 
indoor rock climing area.    In the winter a snow 
shoeing class or cross co


provide permanent lockers for members


Put a shower in the beach house.  Expand 
the beach house bathroom into a real locker 
room.


Real restrooms on the North diamonds with a 
concession stand. It is a nice place to play ball 
but people complain non stop about the lack 
of facilities to use after being out at the fields 
all day.


Really just classes offered at different times. 
I would love to see classes at night or on the 
weekends start let us say 10 minutes after 
swimming or hockey, that way while my child is 
having fun I can take a class.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







163 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Reasonable pricing for members


Reasonably priced (no more than 25.00 for 3 
hours) row boat and canoe rental for the lake.


Rec center for young Tweens and teens.


Reread my account of the water aerobics 3 
lane problems.


Rock climbing gym!!!!  Model after Lifetime 
fitness in Warrenville, IL.  The closest full service 
rock climbing facity is Adventure Rock in 
Pewaukee, then Lifetime Fitness in Warrenville.  
There is a huge untapped market for indoor 
rock climbing in this a


rock climbing wall, gymnastics (tumbling room) 
for toddlers


Rock climbing wall, spin bikes in fitness area,


Rock Climbing Walls


Rock wall, Parkour


ROCK WALL!


Sailing would be a great adition.  KYC and 
KCSC would love to work with you on this.


same as above, better family member only 
locker room


Sauna


Scuba


See above comments.


See above, private dressing rooms for women


Separate changing area/bathrooms for non-
pool members. Do not like to change into 
workout clothes or use the bathrooms when 
the floors are all wet.


Seperate area for sporting events, seperate 
parking lot for events


shampoo and towels for the locker rooms.


Should think about a separate facility/
building to have volleyball, basketball or other 
tournaments/leagues in to not interfere with 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


members ability to use the facility.


significantly reduced pricing on classes for 
members.


Some lower impact classes. I have a physical 
restriction in my one leg that prevents me from 
doing alot of the higher impact classes. So, I 
do some aquatics and have done stretch/flex 
and yoga.


Some of the free members classes offered at 
times I can attend.  I work all day and cannot 
go to lunchbox classes and go to church on 
Sunday mornings so I cannot go to those free 
classes.  At least one offering a week at night or 
on Saturday would be very


Some of the Lunch time classes in the evening


Some type of automated information sign that 
will list all classes and all locations correctly.  More 
outside fitness stuff -- fitness trail, equipment, 
etc.


SPA (NAILS, ETC) SEPARATE ADULT POOL AREA 
WITH HOT TUB.


Spin bikes that I can just use in the workout 
area without paying extra.  Free classes in the 
evening when working people can go.


sports and activities for single people and their 
families...


squash court


starbucks


steam bath


Steam bath


steam room


Steam room


Steam Room


STEAM ROOM


Steam Room and almost every male that I have 
spoken with in the locker room area concurs 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







164 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


and state that they also have been asking for 
one for years.  You are one of the finest facilities 
in teh country and yet you do not have one of 
the most important co


Steam room and cold water bath


Steam room like all upscal fitness centers


steam room, fix the bikes, add individual TVs to 
each machine: treadmill, bikes


Steam Rooms?  For the most part we love the 
RecPlex and aside from a few issues we have 
had with the organization of Youth Sports we 
are very very happy with what you guys are 
doing.


steam sauna in the locker rooms


Steamroom  Seperate locker rooms for adults 
only


Stream room.


Summer supension package and able to 
resume in the fall.


Supplement bar for pre/post workouts. Outdoor 
tennis courts.


Swimming area to go deeper at the beach


Tanning - Free basic classes for members -


tanning beds


tennis courts


Tennis courts


Tennis Courts


Tennis Courts  Better Coach led training 
programs (e.g triathlon, marathon)


Tennis courts (indoor and outdoor)  1 Hard-
wood basketball court, not the field house rims 
w/all surface courts.


Tennis Courts and areas outside to play 
soccer.


Tennis courts and tennis classes. A play area for 
younger kids that is monitored by parents (not 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


staff) so that the toddler range has something 
to do indoors with their families.


tennis courts--lighted would be nice  indoor 
soccer field(s)


Tennis courts, soccer/football field.


Tennis courts, tanning, rock climbing


Tennis courts, tennis courts, tennis courts.  Why 
this has not been added by now is mindblowing 
- tennis courts would make it a complete and 
premier ‘club’.


TENNIS COURTS!  It seems absurd that a facility 
the size of the Rec Plez does not have courts 
for members. Even adding an additional fee 
to those members that would like use of them 
would be acceptable. Pleasant Prairie has zero 
courts and a village of it’


Tennis courts.


Tennis Courts.


tennis courts/ lessons


Tennis Courts/lessons


tennis courts/lessons  outside basketball courts


Tennis facilities


Tennis program with outside tennis courts


tennis, aquaplex diving board, beach raft 
diving board


that the group fitness programs are all free....
we already pay quite a bit of money to the 
rec plex with membership, before/after school 
care, and preschool u that it is disheartening 
that we have to dish out more money just to do 
group fitness classes


The cost of membership and programs is 
almost too prohibitive for me to continue my 
membership; adding more will cost more.


the family changing rooms need to be exanded 
- there should be more privacy rooms or even 
stalls with curtains would work.  showers in the 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







165 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


ladies locker room need to be upgraded.  the 
rec plex is a high end facility and the locker 
room just feels low end.


The family locker room should have more than 
one shower in each room.  It should have a 
bigger stall with lots of heads that a family of 
4 can fit into at the same time.  It should also 
have a sauna.


The fitness room should be updated to new 
equipment for weight lifting ,consulting with 
a weight lifter , not a company selling the 
machine , and rows of muscle groups aligned 
in the gym , machines for chest, bi-ceps,tri-ceps 
, back,legs and so on .Beauti


The locker rooms are frequently overcrowded 
and too chaotic (unsupervised kids). The locker 
rooms need to be expanded, with perhaps a 
‘executive’ section added for an additional 
fee.


The Men’s locker room needs several new 
lockers due to excessive rusting.  I would 
suggest perhaps plastic or vinyl.  Loose screws 
on the machines in the fitness center need to 
be routinely tightened and machines routinely 
lubricated.


The racquet ball courts need better fans or 
ventilation.


The recplex is fantastic as is.  it is by far the 
best facility that I have used.  I used to be a 
member of the North Shore club (with Bally’s).  
The recplex is great!


The weight room is a bit small for the number of 
members you have and would be nice to add 
more benches and leg machines.


towel service


Towel service (free)


Towel service and tennis courts would be 
awesome


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


towel service, and better soap


Towel service. Put some spin bikes out in the 
workout area to be used at any time (not the 
uncomfortable exercise bikes), add a couple 
skiers edge machines; offer actual kickboxing 
classes


Towels but then that would likely raise rates.


Towels in the locker rooms


Treadmills, steppers, ellipticals with personal 
televisions would be nice.


trx in the weight area


Turn half of the beach into grass and add many 
shade trees.  More track time for tweens and 
teens with parents.  More yoga classes.


Updated fitness equipment.  Working fitness 
equipment.  Elyptical machines need to be 
replaced!


Use of locker room at 50 M pool!


VERY minor, but the traffic going to and from 
the locker room downstares can be annoying 
at times.  Maybe an in and out door might 
be appropriate.  Maybe the door could be 
eliminated?  This was a problem at the front 
door also, untill the automated door w


walk/run races ie 5k.......more lap swim @ Lake 
Andrea........


warm therapy pool.  I have only been there to 
vote.  It looks nice but there is nothing for me 
there.


Warmer water in water park.  Free parking for 
members for at least 2 cars.  We can use only 
one car at a time, but it is not always convenient 
to use the car with the sticker.


water in motion offered later in the day during 
the week (6 or 6:30 start).  Expanded time for 
kids in kid’s court - 2 hours is not always enough 
to get ready for & take a class, then shower & 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







166 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


pick up you child.  Need 2.5-3 hours.


When there are two members from the same 
household who have been lifetime members, 
free gifts; e.g. tee shirts, etc. should be give 
to both members.  Very unfair that only one 
person is given gift.


With all the great group programs for the 
community, the RecPlex should consider 
expanding or adding to the number of rest 
rooms.


Worst shower heads & soap dispensers of any 
health club. Often severe humidity, and being 
able to adjust water temperature a bit colder 
would sure help close the pores and make a 
better experience.


Would it be possible to turn one of the ice rinks 
into a converting indoor multi-purpose facility 
to handle indoor soccer/touch football? or 
maybe tennis courts.


Yoga at lunchtime


You definitely need more electrical outlets 
in the women’s locker room for blow dryers, 
etc.  I would just be happy if I did not walk into 
the fitness center and see broken equipment 
signs!!!


you guys need to remodell the pool specially 
the wall and ceiling


Final comments- Community-wide survey:


a moritorium on spending of land facilitiesand 
equip. to lower taxes


add a light at rolling meadows park


All the money spent on the recplex should have 
been spent on sometihing better.


Be great to have competitive travel soccer in 
our communiity


Bike riders crowd our streets and they are rude 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


people


bring back the common ground that was taken 
away with building facilities


Bring back the Laser Show with the fireworks for 
Prairie Family Days


Cannot afford to be a member


Charge illinois people extrafor use lake 
michagan beach


Children grown and moved awayused all 
facilities years back Currently in a more 
subdued life style


Considering I moved to PP 9 years ago when 
my children were much younger, besides youth 
hockey (we would play in Zion if they still had 
an organizatio


Cost of family membership too mcuh


Cost to much to use replex. Pool just for women 
would be nice


Cover my taxes


create walking paths to recplex


cut your budget


Do all members get parking or is it extra


Does not like the way the money is being 
spent at the RecPlex. Carol Beach is shafted 
by PP parks and rec with regards to children’s 
playground equipme


Dog bags for droppings are great


Doing a good job


Doing a great job. Staff is friendy


Doing good job


Doing good job.


Do not raise taxes to make upgrades.


Dont increase our taxes. Parking stinks.


Dont like paying monthly fees and paying for 
a class


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







167 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Dont raise taxes for this. Stop charging for 
beaches the RecPlex makes enough


Due to Michael Serpe we do as little as possible 
in and for pleasant prairie


Even though i dont participate in any activities 
good job


Every event at Prairie Family days is very well 
run


Excellent job


Expamd bike paths. Also a des plaines rive trail 
would be nice


Expand lake michigan beach areas or improve 
facilities


Facilities are well maintained.Would like to see 
weekly music.


Find better routes for running events


Get over the replex and focus on other parks


Give Kris Jensen a day off once. Very hard 
working guy


Great facility. However To much people. 
Chemicals are very strong in the pool.


great foundation in the village


Great job with parks and recreation. I like how 
clean and new you keep everything.


Group fitness classes should be included in the 
yearly membership


Happy to be able to offer community input on 
the parks and recreation programs in Pleasant 
Prairie.


Have daughter with special needs and she 
loves the adult day care.


Healthy cooking classes. Healthier food choices 
at snack bae.


Hp limit ok, too big for electric trolling only. Stock 
more fish in the water. Get rid of the mosquitos


I do not care for scheduler that limit members 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


from using the fa


I dont benifit from any of your services. I dont 
wanna pay any of your taxes


I enjoy having an affordable members only 
complex and swim area


I likw using the recplex.


I want a red lobster right on the lake.


I was shocked when i saw the prices of the 
RecPlex and learned it belonged to the  park 
district


I was unsure where many of these amenities 
are.  Maybe a brochure wouldhelp or and 
online source of information.


I would also like to see more free programs and 
classes offered for RecPlex members.


I would like to see more practice softball from 
the youths, benches to sit on while watching 
the games, the baseball diamond flooded in 
the winter mon


If membership is reduced we would consider 
joining.


Illinois charges visitors to use their beaches.  We 
should too.


Im not a member anymore because prices 
increased.


Improved bike paths throughout the Village 
and into the County


In our ecomony it would be appreciated to cut 
spending and taxes.


Inforce the ordinance of picking up dog poop 
on lake andrea


It is important to make improvements so 
Pleasant Prairie is a more desireable place to 
live.


It is a lovely area, but people need to be more 
responsible for their dogs.  A really good senior 
discount would be wonderful.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







168 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Its a great facility. It is costly to pay for all of your 
facilities


Its great we love it.


Its unnapropriate that us P.P residents paid for 
the recplex through taxes. We should belong 
to the silver sneakers


Keep up the geat work.


Keep up the good work


Keep up the good work.


Keep up the great work!


Liked the day care at recplex


Live in carol beach


Love prairie days wish the turnout was larger


Love recplex. Wife had hip replacement and 
the bikes that she can use are in poor shape


Love the replex its awesome


Lower fees for retired people regardless of 
age


Made deals for village residents


Make recplex available to those who arent 
wealthey.


make rentals cheaper i rent kenosha parks for 
parties


Membership to expensive for us to join


Membership to the RecPlex is too high.  Family 
memberships should include children under 
18.


More basebal temas. Enhance playgrounds


More bike lanes around P.P


More bike paths. More things to do on lake 
michagan


More communication, better customer service


More fitness classes.


More garbage cansCars get stuck on south 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


parking lot. Any oppurtunity to get non residents 
permits


More offardable option for families


more parking


more parking at rexplex and around the park 
and at beach building


More playground equipment like racines castle 
in franksville.


More playgrounds in neighborhood parks are 
needed.


More punishment for people who leave dog 
poop


More reasonable fees and memberships


More shade for seniors.


more shaded areas and park benches in the 
shaded areas, specifically at Lake Andrea 
Beach


More summer activities for children. Ice skating 
in the winter for kids and adults


My daughter and her family are members of 
the recPlex and they love it.


Need bike paths on the roads to lake andrea 
and to the high school


Need bikepath extended on Hwy 165


need graphics person added to newsletter, 
better publicity on recreational programs and 
special events


Need more bike/walking paths


Need more lifeguards


Need more workouts for elders


Need to reduce the prices


No children in the household dont use services


non exercise events ro have all enjoy music 
events. Car shows


Not easy to register for programs online.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







169 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Not focused on great customer service.


offer THE largest Kenosha County employer 
(an out of state company) a bigger discount, 
another facility in Kenosha offers a two for 1.


Old and dont use parks much but you have a 
great job


Old and lost interest in the parks


Outdoor pool, lazy river,water skiing, and 
sailing


Outside Tennis courts


Outstanding village


Picnic shelters could also be rented for special 
occiasions


Pleasant Prairi is a great community. We love 
living here.


please do not create any more parks. there 
are plenty of parks in PP


Please extend walking trails to residential 
areas


Please lower membership proces at RecPlex as 
well as program fees (much too expensive for 
the average family)


Please lower resident membership and fees at 
RecPlex


PPP should have separate 4th of July celebration 
from Kenosha.  Kenosha is too crowded.


Programs should be cheaper for members. 
Annoyed because of baseball games being 
cancelled for other activties


Pubic areas for bow hunting


Quit closing our roads for triathlons


Quit having events on sunday. Great fireworks


RecPlex and Lake andrea are great places


Recplex dors a great job


Recplex family membership is to expensive. 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Residents should get discounts


RecPlex is a bit pricey.


Recplex is great first class with great staff


recplex seems like a private club instead of a 
family environment


Resident cannot use 10 plus hp motor and lake 
andrea and they have boat races and skii 
shows there. BULLS**T


Resident discounts help in these economic 
hard times.


Resident feels a demographic study would be 
valuable to ascertain what the needs are for 
different age groups for parks and recreational 
program upgra


Resident feels it would be useful to use 
recreational areas for multifunction purposes 
(i.e., tennis courts could also be used as 
basketball courts).


Resident feels RecPlex is far too expensive (eats 
at taxpayers money and fees for programs are 
too high)


Residents 1-6 month memberships


Resources are tight develope a budget


Retired and cant afford the facilities


Rock climbing walls for 10-13 year olds.


See more patrolling of beach areas on the 
weekends in the summer. Sometimes the 
outsiders that come to the beach are loud. 
Better cleanup at the beach


Sending something the mail about all the parks 
and facilities would be helpful


Silver Sneakers program


Spent lots of money and 2nd baseball field with 
lights at the field is in bad shape


Spray for mosquitos they are bad every year. 
Water baseball parks more


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







170 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


Staff isnt very pleasant


Staff members are polite cheerful and helpful


Thank you for diligent work.


Thanks for all you folks do to make pleasant 
prairie a great place


Thankyou for solicitating our problems


Thankyou for the oppurtunity for feedback


The current park is beautiful keep it up


The new bike lanes on prairie ridge blvd are 
welcomed and are being used.There are many 
too payers that would like a bike path or bike 
lane to lake


The road work on 165 has kept us from going to 
the recplex this summer. We have been using 
the bike paths for running


They are well maintained.


Think it is valuable to send residents more 
periodic brochures on recreational programs 
as well as adding recreation activitiy and 
special event activ


To many out of state visitors


Too expensive


Too pricey to join. Beautiful facility.


Trim fat


Used the parks when kids where young. Didnt 
live near recplex so its out of our way


Using the lake for powerboats is like using the 
RecPlex for motorcycle racing.  Hold a regatta 
during Prairie Familiy Days.


village does not spray for mosquitos.  Therefore, 
no one can use the parks and outside areas.  
Would like to see free events in parks like music 
concer


Village is a very pleasant place to live and raise 
a family. Please always keep it like this


Walking paths should be free to all P.P 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


residents.


Watch license plates they are mostly illinois.


We are big users of the bike paths, riding and 
walking our dog.


We are looking for a good swimming instruction 
program


We cancelled our membership due to the rising 
costs.  We did not use most of what the recplex 
offers and the classes are very expensive in 
addition to


we enjoy prarie family days and the walking 
path at lake andrea


WE love the recplex


We love the recplex. I would like to see a bike 
path aong highway


We love this village


We need more/safer off-the-street bicycle 
paths.  Adding a bike lane to an existing road is 
a complete waste of resources and money.


we need to take it to next level with our 
facilities


We spend alot of time with gurnee park district in 
the summer. They have lots of family activities


We want AAA hockey at recplex doe midget, 
bantam, peewee, squirt level


we wish that we had sport programs like yours 
when we were young


We would like to see something like ravinia 
here.


Well Maintained, staff is very helpful. Great 
job.


When kids where younger they did lots of 
programs and learned lots. Very organized 
great volunteers


When there is high snow fall could you please 
use something to pack down the snow so its 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







171 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


walkable.


When you sign up new members on your 
automated monthly draft membership do not 
double charge them when they first become 
members.  This issue is still


While service are nice they are non essential


Wider lanes to ride bikes and walk


Workout facilities got too expensive for me.


would like to see a short term membership for 
college kids in the summer


Would like to see discounted prices for 
recreational programs for RecPlex members.  
The fees for recreational programs for members 
and non members of


You are all doing a great job.


Your doing a fantastic job. Replex staff could 
be friendlier


Your doing a great job


Final comments- members survey:


*I think this survey should have been sent as 
a blind copy.  *The RecPlex staff are always 
cordial and I enjoy participating in classes.


1)  My level of satisfaction has diminished since 
I first joined.    2)  The people at the service 
counter are very helpful and courteous.


A better kids experience would help - the 
tween age does not have much to offer and it 
can be difficult to get them to want to come to 
the facility so the adult can workout


A great complex & well run.  We are retired & 
live on a fixed income.  It would be nice if could 
have 2 parking stickers for the price of one or 
even half price.


A steam room addition would be fantastic.


A wonderful facility and excellent staff


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Add more evening Body Combat and dance 
classes


Adjust membership fees to reflect usage - the 
aquatic center has to be have huge overhead 
and those who utilize should pay for it.


All in all you are doing a great job.  We are 
pleased to live so close to this great facility.


Allow older children that live in the same 
household to join as a part of a family 
membership. My kids work part/full time and 
attend school part time and would love to 
join the Rec Plex but cannot afford to do so 
because discounts are only given to full


Already included in survey.    The staff is 
exceptional!  Pass that along to them, please.


As far as the fee for members to park in the lot, 
I do not agree with the that.  We have 2 cars 
and it seems wrong to have to pay for another 
sticker in addition to the 1.  What if you lease 
a car and only have it for a few years?  Also, 
since you are in t


As stated before, I would like to feel that the 
staff is friendlier and appreciative of the fact 
that I am a member


as stated, prices for elderly are too steep...
we will be leaving soon because of this issue...
we do not use it often (but enjoy it when we 
do)...buying daily tickets is way too costly...so 
choices are few.   we will be leaving soon


As the RecPlex increases its membership 
and nears the facility’s capacity, the Village 
should consider building a RecPlex annex in 
the proposed Village Green Center near the 
Village Hall.  This would alleviate some of the 
crowds and give members an altern


Awesome place! Parking is bad! Cost is a little 
high. Should be a larger discount on programs 
for members. Use e-mail to advertise things 
that might interest my family based on past use 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







172 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


and family dynamic. (if you are starting a new 
youth lacrosse program


Awsome facility very unique village asset.


Baby U is wonderful childcare.


Bathrooms need to be cleaner during summer 
time please.


Beautiful facility!  Love the walking/running 
track.  Great view.  Women’s locker room is 
kept very clean as well as the rest of the facility.  
Very happy the field trips are not allowed to 
use the members locker room anymore.


Before & After care parents who are non-
members should be provided with some type 
of swipe card so they can conveniently pick up 
their children without waiting to be swiped in 
by an employee.


Better daycare pick up and drop facilities


Body Pump Classes are excellent. Connie 
is a very good instructor and a major reason 
I maintain my membership. I have recently 
retired from a very stressfull job. During the last 
several years I believe Body Pump - with Connie 
has helped me maintain my fi


Bring back the feeling of being a part of a fitness 
community that existed when the RecPlex was 
in it is first year.


By far the best gym in about 100mile radius.  
Lots of things to do, clean, and comfortable.


change how you do the day care allowing 
me to add my baby to a membership and 
allowing myself the opportunity to drop by any 
time would really be helpful.  Also if you lower 
the prices of the classes that would encourage 
me to sign up for me and making th


Charging additional for parking passes for 
paying members is terrible.  At least parking 
passes should be usable for more than one 
vehicle so they can be better utilized instead 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


of requiring them to only be used on a single 
vehicle.  We have two adults wh


Cleanliness of facility is IMPORTANT


Cory at the front desk is just wonderful. He 
is so helpful, plus very knowledgable about 
everything. He greets the handicapped kids 
and pays just as much attention to them 
as anyone else. He treats them so kind. His 
personality is a plus to the Rec Plex.


Deal with your before school program and 
control the kids. Many of your members are 
frustrated with the excessive levels of noise 
generated by screaming kids so early in the 
morning. We come early to avoid that very 
thing we want a reasonable peace and qu


Discontinue the facility fee that would be 
charged if I do not renew my membership w/in 
30 days of membership expiration.  If find that 
fee most objectionable and am likely to go 
elsewhere because of it!


Do away with all the clothing in the lobby, but 
offer cool rebuffs, jackets, hats or other sports 
gear/clothing. Hoodies would be nice. The ‘left 
over’ tri clothing does not appeal to me or my 
family.


Do not increase the prices


Due to increased governmental hikes, I will be 
considering eliminating my membership, as it 
might become unaffordable. That is a shame. 
Otherwise pleased with services.


Easier navigation options when signing up for 
programs online.  Can be very confusing and 
cumbersome.  Email notifications of upcoming 
programs if we have participated before.


Enjoy participating in Juniors volleyball there.  
Again, we strongly dislike the 2 week shut down. 
For most areas it is completely unneccesary.


Excellent facility just wish it was closer


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







173 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


EXPAND THE PARKING LOT IN THE ICE ARENA!


for 75 bucks a month id like to see more parking 
that doesnt involve paying more


For the most part we enjoy the recplex,  just 
the volleyball tourneys and leagues are 
aggravating and no tennis courts is a problem 
for our family but overall it is OK.


Forward !


Free childcare for the baby and no 
appointment.


free classes for members (more than just 
lunchtime) would be great!


Front desk - set up to service the next person in 
line instead of who steps up to the counter and 
gets noticed. Also - keep the visiting volleyball 
parents and kids off the track. It is not a viewing 
station for the games. People get in the way of 
walkers


Get at least 2 tennis courts for members use.


Glad to see the reserved parking for members.  
Also, very pleased with cleanliness of facility.


Great facility but communications between 
departments and RecPlex and beach is 
horrible.


Great facility need to work on customer 
service


Great facility, great programs, just need more 
flexibility regarding times.


Great facility, we enjoy it and the staff very 
much.  I have never experienced anything 
bad there.


Great facility.  The last two pieces to the puzzle 
to take it to the top would be the steam room 
and better food at the concessions.


Great improved parking for members only


gREAT JOB BY STAFF


Great Place!


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Great Recreation Center, very important to our 
family’s quality of life.


Great staff in general, but the administrator who 
sits on the ground floor near the ATM needs to 
realize that customers are more important than 
her latte.


Great staff, beautiful and clean facility.


Great staff.   I do think you have to somehow 
make the front desk more efficient.


Have mercy on the swimmers and open the 
locker rooms.  Please make people shower 
before they get in the pools....many are allergic 
to perfumes, oils, etc. that people have on 
their bodies and hair. Please enforce the age 
restriction for kids fooling aroun


Have more staff available at the main entrance 
to assist patrons, and change the system that 
is used for registering /paying for the daycare/
school agers to make it more user friendly in 
order for the staff to make less mistakes.


Highly recommend the Water in Motion class to 
anyone who asks.


Husband would like more lap lanes in regular 
pool.  Would like more employees to walk around 
and observe if members are using equipment 
properly.  Example: Properly adjusted seat 
heights, foot placement, hand placement.  I 
see so many people using machine


i always have a great experience but it seems 
like there are to many time restrictions. almost 
every time i feel like going in the day time my 
kids are not allowed in the pool. then the day 
care closes for a couple of hours in the middle 
of the day. i have


I am an original member.  There has been a bit 
too much turnover in the fitness center director 
position over the years.  I realize all your activities 
reduce rates but they do inconvenience 
members.  The parking permit concept is a 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







174 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


good idea.


I am extremely disappointed with the lack of 
control over people sneaking into the facility.  
It is commonplace to see people gaining 
entrance without paying.  It is common practice 
to see the door at the south end of the walking 
track propped open to adm


i am fond of the recplex and think you offer 
many ammenities. My main complaint is the 
childcare. I think if you are paying for a child to 
be a member, there should be no fee to register 
for kids court. it is not as if she is spending much 
time on the trea


I am not happy that many times when I go to 
park in the members only section, after paying 
for 2 additional parking passes, that the gates 
are up and anyone can park in there.  Also, 
when coming out the members only parking 
area it difficult to see to tur


I am on your volunteer sales team. I am doing 
whatever I can to bring more fast swimmers to 
PX3 and I am using the rest of your wonderful 
facility as a big selling point. I have been a 
certified fitness instructor for about 10 years in 
the past & I have w


I am very happy with it, but it is really expensive 
for those of us who live in Zion.


I appreciate every effort you are making.  
Thank you for taking the time to send everyone 
a questionaire and pay attention to us.  Your 
suggestion box is not working, people think of 
it as a trash can.


I appreciate the early morning opening time, 
thanks.


I believe the classes are a bit pricey especially 
since we pay a monthly membership as well.  I 
can understand charging non-members a fee 
but not members of the gym, or if there is an 
additional charge for members please make it 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


a very nominal fee.


I canceled my membership because the 
RecPlex is quite far out, It is too expensive 
for the occasional use of the pool for a non 
athlete, and the wait for a handicap room for 
my daughter who is paralyzed on her left side 
is far to long.


I competed in the Pleasant Prairie TRI this past 
weekend and it was AMAZING!  Great job, it is 
already on my list for next season.  Thank you.


I did not put my kids in specialty camps this 
year because with the cost of registration fee 
and the camp, it was cost prohibitive!


I do enjoy the recplex. it is convenient and I 
would not have remained a member since it 
opened in 2000. there are just a few things (see 
‘unpleasant experiences’) that could improve.


I do not like the fact that a member has to 
pay additional fees for fitness classes on top 
of the annual membership fee.  I feel that you 
membership fee should include fitness classes.  I 
know that other fitness centers includes classes 
in their membership


I feel if you have 2 adult members, they should 
get two parking passes.  Should be included 
with membership.  We are all busy and coming 
from different directions, we should not have to 
worry about what car has the tag.


I feel that 1 parking pass per adult (2 per family) 
should be issued.  There are many times that 
either my husband or I want to go to the gym, 
but we do not have the car pass so eventhough 
we are members, we can not use the member 
parking.  I also feel that


I find the biggest problem and the one thing 
that makes us not like using the facility is the 
parking.  It makes us so angry to drive to the Ice 
Plex parking for our son’s hockey to find there is 
not parking.  And after parking down the road 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







175 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


on the side o


I have a good sense of security in the facility as 
far as leaving my children for a short period of 
time.


I have been a member since the rec plex 
opened.  I have changed jobs since then and 
can not get to the facility as often (I am lucky 
to get there once a week).  I am hoping that 
a lower priced membership option with limited 
access can be made availalbe.


I have been a member since you opened your 
doors and I think this is a great facility. I just 
wish it was more affordable. When I talk to my 
co-workers who are member of Gold’s Gym, 
they all talk about the RecPlex is great but too 
expensive especially con


I have given the Rec Plex a 3 year trial & have 
found that it just is not worth it anymore.


I have heard many people complain about the 
swim lessons. Many have gone elsewhere b/c 
they were not happy with your swim lessons.  I 
second their opinion.


I have heard rumors that the rates and what 
is considered a family is going to change. In 
our household it is my mother, myself and my 
daughter that belong. If we will no longer be 
considered a family we will be cancelling our 
membership.


I have travelled and lived throughout the 
country (military).  You have a beautiful and 
well run facility.  It makes those wisconsin winters 
bearable.


I hope I do not come across as angry, as I am 
not.  There is just a few things surrounding youth 
sports that is terribly frustrating.  But then again 
I am a parent with certain expectations and I 
have no clue what would go into this to make 
them better…I


I like the member parking on the fitness side 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


but something more needs to be done with the 
parking - maybe a parking ramp??


I like the members only parking so you do 
not have to battle on the weekends with 
the volleyball groups and such, but I have to 
anyway since I refuse to pay EXTRA TO PARK AT 
A PLACE I AM A MEMBER. I will be dropping my 
membership at the end of the year becau


I like the new weights that you have for 
bodypump.  The sand does not fall in your eyes 
now.


I love the addition of the new pool.  It has been 
huge improvement to be able to swim laps at 
almost any time.  My kids are even considering 
on the junior trathlons!  The fees are quite high 
for a family of 5.


I love the exercise classes. Lyn Boehm, is a great 
employee. She is hard working, and  caring 
staff member.


I LOVE the members only parking lot!!!  I am 
still not thrilled with all the special events, but 
the members only parking makes it a lot more 
tolerable.  THANKS!


I LOVE the place.  It is close, it is convenient, 
it is quite beautiful, it has what I need to work 
out, it has outstanding facilities - even though 
I/we do not swim much any more the aquatic 
features are exceptionally good.  I also like the 
fact that you ‘s


I love the Rec Plex and think you do a fantastic 
job. I like the members parking program that 
you initiated. I love the new 50 meter pool. 
Keep up the great job.


I love the triathlons at the park!!!  please 
continue.  It brings revenue to the area and 
allows people to see how beautiful the area is.


I love the walking path around Lake Andrea. It 
would be nice if there was a bathroom open 
on the other side of the lake at all times.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







176 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


I love the workout facility, but the way a lot of 
the other parts get rented out for parties and 
events is very frustrating.  It makes us feel like 
we are not able to get our moneys worth.


I love working out at the Rec Plex.  I wish the 
facility would be open longer.  I Think they 
need to add more cleaning stations by the free 
weights.    For the most part I am very satisfied 
with the Rec Plex


I participate in triathlons and I appreciate the 
attention that that sport gets by your facility.


I really enjoy the friendly employees and the 
wonderful view out the fitness center window.  
Looking at the trees birds, and the people 
walking dogs are great.


I really hope these surveys are given serious 
thought.  I truly believe Rec Plex could provide 
even greater service to our community- and I 
feel it already is an amazing place that adds 
significant value to our area.    That being said, 
I would love to se


I really liked it when you could renew during 
the Prairie Springs Days and pay for the whole 
year and get a free month!!!


I think a big plus for Recplex is the astecics of 
the location, including the walking path around 
the lake and the woods.


I think each member should be given two 
parking stickers for $20.00 . . . what family now 
days only has one vehicle?    Summer camp 
this year seemed very unorganized.  I filled out 
the info for my child stating what grade he was 
going into and he was put


I think it is ridiculous that I, as a memeber, have 
to PAY for both of my cars to be parked in the 
MEMBER parking lot!


I think my previous comments said it all.  It is a 
shame that such a nice pool is not an option 
for me.  I love to swim, but the rates are too 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


much money for someone who ONLY wants to 
swim.


I think parking and the fitness classes should 
part of your membership.


I think the fitness classes are quite an expense 
in addition to membership fees.


I think the fitness classes should be included 
in the membership or have a tiered lower 
membership fee that would exclude classes for 
those that do not participate.


I think the RecPlex does a good job with all the 
community programs they offer, but when you 
pay so much a year and then have to pay for 
class above and beyond that cost, it is a bit 
ridiculous.  The other gyms in the area do not 
charge like that.  They jus


I think you are doing a fantastic job overall, 
however, the sound system for the aqua 
teachers does need to be better so they can be 
heard.  Also, swim classes should be moderated 
a little better so they do not overlap.  Other 
than that I think your facili


I understand goods & services go up, but the 
continual higher membership fees are hard on 
single parent families.


I usually buy the fit mix card but find that I 
resent paying for this in addition to my regular 
membership fees. I do not use the fitness 
center, so I am reconsidering renewing my 
membership.  I have 3 children ranging in age 
from 10-13. There is very littl


I usually get the ‘total mix’ card, but I feel the 
price is too expensive.  I have bought the total 
mix card and TRX together for several sessions, 
and I feel that I am paying way too much 
money for these classes.      I saw the e-mail 
stating that in the


I was able to include one child but not the 
other I think that as long as your in the same 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







177 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


household you should only have to pay the 
one membership and get the discount for the 
others


I was coming on a regular basis, however, with 
the roundabout construction there is no easy 
way to get to the gym.  I live on 165 east of 39th 
and it is just a pain to try to get out there.


I was very impressed with how clean, neat 
and organized the RecPlex property was the 
morning after the Trek Triathalone.  Good 
Job!!!!


I wish the instructor’s choice for free classes 
were offered at other times.  8am on Sat or Sun 
is not convenient


I wish there were flex memberships.  I use the 
RecPlex on a very limited basis.  Mostly for my 
own workout - running - inside during the winter.  
Lake Andrea during the summer.  My son plays 
basketball and lifts a few weights there when I 
am working out.


I work 7 minutes from the RecPlex.  I joined 
SPECIFICALLY because of the 50 meter lap 
pool, otherwise we have a very nice facility 
near our home.


I would like to be able to use TRX belts at Rec 
Plex to work out with at times that are convient 
for me.


I would like to register for some of the fitness 
classes and possibly some of the swim classes 
but with paying the monthly dues it is difficult to 
spend and extra.


I would like to see better maintenence of 
equipment in group fitness and the exercise 
machines.


I would like to see more  morning availability 
for the waterpark now that the other pool is 
open.


I would like to see non members pay more 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


for classes, etc.  The difference in price is not 
enough for people to join as a member.  I have 
often thought of dropping my membership 
and just paying the small difference to take a 
class.


I would like to see the staff at the front desk 
be better informed about programs that are 
available. Also front desk staff to be more 
attentive to customers. Do they have to go 
through some kind of customer service training? 
Sometime I feel like I am an


I would love to see the caliber of the fitness 
staff increased.  Many of the teachers seem 
more concerned with their own workout than 
teaching the students proper techniques when 
in the cycling studio, lifting weights, etc.  There 
is a huge opportunity fo


I will be back when there is a smooth road--We 
did not need turn abouts.


I am a bit frustrated that on top of the yearly 
membership fees, we have to pay for classes 
as well.  It would be nice to have the option to 
just pay a one time fee and be able to attend 
any classes you choose.


I am glad we have a membership but wish 
that we could get more passes to bring our 
grandchildren (ages 1, 5 and 9 years) more 
often to the aquatic center.


I am thrilled to have such a wonderful facility 
in this area.  I enjoy most of the and classes 
(except for the awful hip-hop class) I have 
taken so far, and the employees are top-
notch.  F.Y.I.,  I would sign up for more classes if 
my membership fees were le


I have been thinking of canceling since we 
have not been using the facility.  I have 
assorted equipment at home and it is just so 
much easier to walk downstairs than to go to 
the RecPlex, even when we know there are 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







178 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


additional facilities there.  We always int


Iceshows need more adult help in the locker 
rooms, bunch of girls/boys running around with 
knives (on their feet)is not real safe.


If I come across another time where I can not 
park anywhere while the pay lot sits half empty 
I will cancel my membership.


If management wants to market the RecPlex 
as a world-class facility, then it should be run as 
a world-class facility.  It should have extended 
hours and year round accessibility.  And there 
is no excuse for the frequent closures at the 
expense of paying m


If the parking lot is for members only, why do 
you consistently allow non-members to use it 
for a fee?  It only means less available parking 
for us.    Also, I am tired of the dirty conditions of 
the (pool) family changing areas after the day 
campers go t


If you had the Zone open more it would be 
used by a lot of children, especially in the 
summer.  I also think it should be free of charge 
to members.


If you pay for two family members fee should 
cover two parking passes


If your facility were not so much about the 
money, and more about the ‘recreation’ 
we would still be there. There are acres and 
acres of land all around and we have to pay 
for parking. Really? When I come home from 
working in the Loop, I really do not want to p


If your going to raise the rates at least get more 
equipment  to use...half the time I go I can not 
get on a machine since its so busy.


in general, the facilities are nice and there are 
amenities.  however, i do feel that the staff 
could be more helpful and it could be more 
conducive to families with small children.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


In general, the front desk is polite, until you bring 
up a concern, then they seem dis-interested.


In general, very satisfied with our experience at 
the Recplex.


It all comes down to costs, service, programs 
and what you get for the price.


It is a great facility, my only complaint is there 
should be a bigger discount in the membership 
rate for Pleasant Prairie residents.


It is a nice place..we do enjoy it.


It is a wonderful facility, but some staff are not 
informed on the programs available and are 
not friendly.


It is next to impossible for us to go to the recplex 
as a family because our 11 yr old can not do 
anything.  He is too old to be in child care but 
too young to be by himself.  If my wife and I 
want to swim we have to leave him at home 
because our 14 yr old


It is really nice to see Laura in the early AM...
she is always very friendly and upbeat and she 
knows the regulars and acknowledges that!!!


It is ridiculous to charge members per car 
for the member’s parking lot.  If you pay a 
membership to the RecPlex you should receive 
one car tag per registered member. Also, why 
did you choose a system that uses stickers 
(which people do not like to put on


It would be great if you offered military discounts 
or had a plan to add adult children, even at 
$20 or $25 a month.


It would be nice if we as members were not 
such an inconvenience to your staff.


It would be nice if you could get free passes for 
friends or family with your membership..


It would be nice if you offered a better family 
rate or were able to give discounts for lower 
income.  I prefer the RecPlex over YMCA but 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







179 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


may have to change due to membership 
costs.  MUCH cheaper for a Y membership and 
now that they have the aquatic area


It would be nice to be able to have more family 
members for cheaper fee. Less closed times - 
pay alot for blocking times.


It would be nice to inprove the WIFI in the 
workout area


It would be nice to see a family membership 
regardless of the number of children.  Paying 
for each child plus paying for childcare in 
order to be able to use the facility is very cost 
prohibitive for families and may lead to us not 
renewing our membership


It is a great facility with great people.  The 
people who work in kids court are SO nice, they 
really go above and beyond.


It is a great place.


It is very clean.  Staff is really nice and very 
pleasant.


Just because RecPlex makes a lot of money off 
of tournaments, it does not mean you should let 
that infringe on individual members. Members 
should have more use of the gymnasium on 
weekends.


Just keep it clean, easpecially when walking 
thru the front door...should smell good.


Just needs better customer service and prices. 
Also for as much as I pay to be a member I 
should not have to pay for parking. my husband 
and I both pay membership fees we should 
both get parking at no extra cost. If class prices 
continue to rise and extra


Keep people there for special events off the 
walking track. In fitness center - too many 
people monopolize machines.  Set time limits 
and enforce rules.


Keep up the good work


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Keep up the good work.


Kids Court does not offer much for 8 year olds, 
this makes it difficult for adults to utilize the 
facility in off school hours.


Kids Court Staff is GREAT! Terrific job watching 
children. Aerobic instructors (Debbie, Mary, 
Eileen and Judy) are fabulous!


kids love afterschool program


Laura at the front desk has been excellent in 
helping me with my account issues.


Laura at the front desk is fabulous! Pre School 
U teachers - Linda, Melissa and Rachael are 
fabulous!


less expensive classes


Let your fitness instructors have a say in what 
goes on in the fitness classes and fitness center.  
They are smart, and highly trained people who 
have good ideas, they listen and know your 
members well.  I believe their opinions should 
be worth gold to yo


Let us get some tennis courts. The money spent 
on signage is ridiculous and a waste. Tennis 
courts would be useful and could provide 
additional revenue and member satisfaction.


like adult only times


Like if we see something that needs to be fixed.  
It is taken care of quickly.


Like the building ,staff is tops,wish I was not 
paying for the water side when I do not swim. 
Maybe a full, and a non swim use rate ?Thinking 
of going to Golds, Senior discount is very good 
and price includes all gfroup fitness classes. In 
a typical year,


lora on the front desk is a great emplyee she 
makes you fill good even on a bad day


Love going there. People are very nice.


LOVE the atmosphere--it encourages fitness 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







180 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


and health. Pretty clean. Very friendly staff. I 
would appreciate it if the fitness center were 
open later. 10pm is too early to close. 11pm 
would be perfect.


Love the facility but set a higher monthly fee 
and get rid of the nickel and diming. This is not 
Ballys


Love the Recplex!!! Keep up the great work.


Love the walking path around Lake Andrea.  
It would be nice if everyone would keep their 
dogs on leashes and clean up after them.  
Unfortunately not everyone does that.


Love the youth fitness programs!


love to take classes would take more if they 
were not so expensive.


Lower your prices for classes.


Maintenance of the transponders needs to 
be improved.  Many treadmills and elypticals 
are showing age and replacement should be 
considered.


Make a professional weight room in the fitness 
area AND UPDATE  .Your teachers for classes in 
exercise are :THE BEST ! STEP,YOGA , SPIN e.t.c 
add more times for classes


make more time for members to use the aqua 
arena


Make sure the muscleheads wipe down the 
equipment they use in the fitness center.      
Taking up space on a piece of equipment and 
texting should be frowned upon too.


Make the $20.00 parking fee for the sticker 
transferrable to replacement vehicles.   
Exercise energey conservation on use of GYMN 
lightning. Locker rooms need more ventalation 
or air conditioning to get humidity out ASAP. 
Provide more supervision for fiel


Making sure the life guards in the pool pay 
more attention to the folks in the pool rather 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


than flirting with each other.


Mallory Siferd is an AMAZING change to the 
after school and summer camp programs!  
Love her!  Also, Melissa Santell and the entire 
Baby U/Preschool U staff are amazing.  I have 
had nothing but positive experiences with my 
children attending these programs


Mats in fitness center are gross, totally dirty at 
all times, regardless if it is 6 am or 6 pm. Nicci is 
the only one I see mopping them EVER. Love 
the added equipment recently in the fitness 
center, great investment. Preschool U was a 
top notch experienc


Melissa Santell is awesome  We hope to stay as 
long as prices do not continue to increase


members should get better benifits- especially 
those you pay more. Cost of classes/
programs should depend on what you pay for 
membership: higher membership cost, lower 
class/program fee.


Members should not have to pay for parking 
and fitness classes.  Ridiculous fees being 
charged.


Membership rates are extremely high; will 
probably have to consider other facilities


More fitness opportunities for the 12 & 13 year 
old to do independently without additional 
charges.


More free classes! No more yoga at the same 
time as RPM - too loud!


More options for structured adult hockey would 
likely be utilized by my husband.    I consider all 
that our family gets from the RecPlex to be an 
excellent value for the money, not to mention a 
great tie for us to the community and gathering.    
Regarding


My 21-yr old daughter is not a full-time student 
but I think that she should be able to be included 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







181 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


on my membership. She simply does not make 
enough money to afford her own membership 
and should not have to buy one herself.


My comments would be listed under the 
unpleasant experiences at the Recplex.  
Although they are all not unpleasant, that is 
where I placed them.


my daughter, Asley, would like to join the 
lifeguard team in the fall.please contact her 
about open positions(she has the certificate 
and application in place and is very excited 
about the opportunity of being part of your 
team)


My grand-girls love to come to the pool play 
area. It is wonderful how well the area is 
watched over by your staff.  Let them know 
they do a great job of lifeguarding.


My husband has the same opinion on the 
parking situation that I do.


My overall health and fitness has improved 
since joining.  We joined on april 2.  I started 
running that day and just comlpleted my first 
5K this past weekend.  My sucess is related to 
my running at the Plex. My 7 year old daughter 
want to start to run wi


Need an improved shower area.


Need members only parking at ice plex!


Need more free options for teens and tweens.  
I know a new fitness program was added but it 
is $10 extra a month and we can not pay that.  
they need to have things to do especially if 
they are athletes.


Need to cater to 50,s too much for younger 
people with kids. Not enough for adults only


Need to do a better job of cleaning the 
classroom fitness areas


Need to give each adult on the membership a 
parking pass.  You cannot tell me I have to stick 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


it to my windsheild.


Need warm water therapy pool.


nice place with good staff


no comment


none


None


None,,glad to be a member of this great 
facility.


Not thrilled with our membership.


Offer more guest passes to allow friends and 
visiting family members to experience the 
unique RecPlex.  Offer special rates when a 
group of non-members want to share a game 
of basketball, etc. with a current member.


Offer up a full year price to attend all of the 
classes, i do not like having to spend 42 dollars 
to attend an additional class that i feel shoudl 
be included in the pricing


One thing that bothers me is the propensity of 
children and perhaps others to soak the entire 
floor of the locker rooms after returning from the 
pool. It would be nice to encourage people to 
dry off somewhat before entering the locker 
area.


Our daughter attended Preschool U summer 
camp last year and had a great experience.  Ms. 
Santell is quite an amazing preschool director 
and has always gone above and beyond the 
expectation.  She is very accommodating and 
willing to work with parents needs


Over all it is a wonderful facility, with all the 
people that come there daily the place is 
amazingly clean.  Most of the staff is helpful and 
friendly - but a bit confused on how to register 
and refund.  Possibly provide more training to 
staff.  Otherwis


over all the rec Plex is a jewel in teh village and 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







182 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


anything that can be done to maintain this 
treasure should be.


Over the past few years it seems the plex is 
more worried about getting new venues and 
community events than there own members.  At 
this time we do not know if we will renew again 
especially now that there is more competition 
closer to home.


Overall good membership, keep non paying 
people out of the private parking better 
especially during events, might want to consider 
expanding your hours into the later nights for 
people that work late, same with child services, 
extend the hours.  Thanks.


Overall I have had a good experience with 
the RecPlex. Sometimes the special events 
(volleyball tournament for example) are a bit 
annoying, but I understand that these events 
help with the facility’s revenue.


OVerall it has been a WONDERFUL experience 
being members and a great way for our 
family to stay active and fit in the great age of 
technology...we love the lake and paved path 
around it!


Overall like the facility very much. Very clean 
at all times, friendly staff.


Overall the facility and staff are great. Perhaps 
allow members with parking stickers to have 
the spaces closer to the facility during special 
events.  We pay for the convenience and 
should have preferred choice.


Overall the RecPlex is awesome!  It is clean, 
nice equipment and we enjoy the facility. We 
definitely feel fortunate to have it close and to 
be members.  My husband and I both believe 
it saved his life!  As a result of playing basketball 
and experiencing


Overall the staff has been great, and friendly. 
One of the many reason why i am still a member. 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Thank you


Overall we are a happy rec plex family.


Overall we are very pleased with the facility 
and staff.  The facility is always clean and well 
maintained.  Staff are polite and helpful.  I 
have brought in visitors from out of state who 
are always complementary of the facility and 
staff.  Kee p up the


Overall we like the facility. My only complaint 
would be the cleanliness. The floors and the 
machines can get pretty dirty.


Overall we love the RP, very satisfied


overall well maintained facility with lots of 
choices for program.  Would perhaps like to 
see more fitness classes for kids aged 7 +


Overall you have a great facility.  I just wish 
there was something closer to home and easier 
to use. I know you have a babysitting area, but 
I would have to call ahead. not at a point in 
my life where I know exact days that I would be 
there ahead of time, so har


Overall, I have been extremely happy with the 
service our family has received! I feel like our 
kids grew up with the recplex. They had an 
opportunity to try many different sports and 
it helped guide them to activities they enjoy 
now. Like I mentioned befo


Overall, I love the facility.  I think it is a great 
asset to our community and I appreciate 
having a voice!


Overall, it is a very good facility. We had a 
birthday party for our daughter there recently 
and the party coordinator was excellent.


Overall, the RecPlex is a great facility. The fitness 
area could use more free weights and possibly 
more space to that area, because during peak 
hours, it the space gets really crowded.   The 
Summer Camp program, although pricey, is a 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







183 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


good program which m


Overall, we love the facility & the programs it 
offers.


People need to slow down in the complex - I 
have seen the summer camp kids almost get 
run over from people driving too fast and not 
paying attention


Please ask your staff and train them to treat 
people fairly, and to understand diversity.


PLEASE bring down the prices of classes for 
members!!!!!!!!  On top of the $900 annual fees/
members, the prices are RIDICULOUS!!!!


Please build a rock climbing gym.  I can get you 
in touch with Nicros.  They are a wall building 
company that will help in the business plan and 
construction.


Please consider our comments. We appreciate 
your facility in our community and look forward 
to improved changes in the future.


Please continue to improve the weightlifting 
area-primarily the free weights!  This is lacking.


Please emphasize to all your employees that 
members pay alot of money and we can easily 
find other options if we feel that we are being 
treated poorly.


Please ensure notification of conflicting events 
(e.g. swim meets vs. lap swim) are posted 
prominently, accurately and promptly. As 
much as possible, please avoid scheduling 
conflicts that make lap swim unavailable for 
most of a weekend.


Please get kettlebell class going and I am so 
hoping there will not be an additional fee. I 
know an excellent kettlebell instructor that 
could give the club helpful tips in running a 
class. I know you already have the kettlebells, 
which is the main cost o


Please improve the fitness classess!!!


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Please make classes cheaper or free!!


Pre-School U has been a life changer for my 
family.  Melissa and the staff have made the 
program feel like a family, not a daycare.  They 
have and continue to go above and beyond.


Preschool U is a great program with caring staff.   
Summer camp is fun with a variety of activities 
to keep the kids engaged which is very good. 
Counselors show great care and concern for 
the kids which is wonderful.  The staff at the 
front desk are alway


PreSchool U is the reason we are members. Ms. 
Melissa is awesome and the teachers are the 
best.


Primary membership is too expensive or the 
class fees are too expensive.  One of those 
need to decrease speaking as a member who 
pays both.


Really Enjoy the Water in Motion classes with 
instructors Minda and Judy.  They have this 
class growing.    Also adore Mike Van Oever 
at the fitness desk.  What a nice guy and hard 
worker.  =D


recplex could save a few hundred dollars/per 
machine a year by turning off the lights in the 
soda machines and vending machines.  could 
also save thousands by relamping building to 
t-8 from metal halide.  (may be able to qualify 
for grant money from focus


RecPlex is a great facility that we are proud to 
have in P. Prairie.


school field trips need to be supervised more 
closely,especially lockerroom use the langue is 
terible


see amenities as noted


See previous comment


see previous.   we often think of things we 
would like to say so as I send this.. something is 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







184 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


sure to come up.  we always seem to have all 
kinds of ideas as we come and go from there 
so often............    again, thank you for all you 
do........    oh, by t


Seniors membership costs should be minimal.


Should allow a second parking pass at no 
charge


Single with no kids. I use only as place to work 
out at.


Spread out the Aquatic Events and try to 
capitalize on the biggest ones not just the 
most.


Staff need to be friendlier and smile more. Make 
you feel welcomed even if they do not you.


start to value your members that come in every 
day and pay every month vs the one time only 
party rentals,sporting events and such.without 
us there would be no rec plex.


Stated above.


Still waiting to hear from Ashley regarding 
private swim lessons.


Stop being greedy with all these seperate fees 
and additional costs to attend fitness programs.  
I love the facility, but you need to make 
changes in head positions that can better 
represent families.  Does anyone in customer 
service management realize th


Stop nickel and diming your members. Price 
increases should not take place turn a current 
contract.


Strongly dislike the standard response I get that 
something can not be done because it is a 
village ordinance.  I think management and 
staff use it because they do not want to be 
bothered or it is an easy out.


Tennis courts and less weekend events and 
Later hours. Midnight would b nice.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Thank you for sending out the survey.


THANKS for keeping REX> PLEX so clean and 
well supervised


Thanks for responding to comment box requests 
promptly!


Thanks for the survey. ou have a beautiful 
and well maintained facility (very clean).  I 
also appreciate the professionalism of the 
instructors.


The childcare here is run superb and have been 
extremely happy with that.


The employees and members are respectful 
and helpful. The facilities are clean and 
organized. I answered cost as my reason for not 
joining a class, but the prices are not bad at all 
(I thought I had to give an answer). I beleive 
that the programs and tour


The equipment and pool should be cleaned 
more often.


The fitness center is a great place to work out.  
The facility is usually very clean and the whirlpool 
and sauna well maintained. Those ar ereally 
the only htings my family uses. I took classes in 
the past but they are really for younger people. 
Its the s


the fitness center is well organized for all ages.  
thanks.


THE FITNESS INSTRUCTORS AND SOME 
PERSONNELL AT THE FITNESS DESK NEED TO 
REMEMBER THEY ARE WORKING THERE TO SERVE 
THE MEMBERS, NOT THEMSELVES. ONE FITNESS 
TRAINER NEED TO REFRAIN FROM VULGAR 
COMMENTS DURING CLASSES.


the front desk is overwhelmed and understaffed.  
Perhaps you need to divide up the functions 
and for sure have a designated person to 
answer the phones.  Enforce member access 
to the basketball courts.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







185 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


The major reason we decided to be a member 
is because of the aquatic facility but is very 
disappointed because of the limited hours for 
open swim specially on fall, winter and spring 
season.


The membership fees for the residents of 
Pleasant Prairie should be considerably less than 
those of non-residents. Property taxes, paid by 
the residents of the Village, helped to pay for 
the construction and fund the operation of the 
facility.  There is l


The parking modification is great.  I never have 
a problem finding a spot anymore.


The Patriots Hockey Program is first class.  The 
director is professional, knowledgeable, and so 
friendly with the parents and kids. We are so 
grateful that our 6 year old son is a part of the 
organization.  The Ice Plex feels like our home 
and hockey has


The Pre-school U teachers are amazing and 
Miss Melissa is FABULOUS!


the prechool U and the before and after school 
programs are outstanding and we could not be 
any happier or prouder than to send our kids to 
recplex year after year.  Larry, Laura, Mallory, 
and Melissa do an outstanding job and make 
our kids feel loved and


The Rec Plex is a fantastic facility and the 
people who work there are so kind.  Looking 
to the future, I would like to see the RecPlex 
expand their programming and increase the 
quality of some existing programming.


The RecPlex is clean, well maintained, and 
nicely staffed. I congratulate to management 
for maintaining these standards. My only 
suggestion for improvement is with the cleaning 
and maintenance of the fitness center 
equipment. A routine maintenance program


The rope nearest the steps in the pool is often 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


so tight that it cannot be unhooked by those 
who cannot use the pool ladder.Buoy lines 
should be removed before classes begin when 
necessary so they do not have to wait.  There 
seems to be a problem with suf


the running club needs to be more organized. I 
never receive emails from them and I pay $10/
month to be a member. The organizer does not 
send me any info about their events.


The staff at the front desk should be more 
friendly!  They should also be more willing to help 
if needed and greet and make eye contact.


The staff in the fitness center is great.  Mike, 
Darci, Nikki, and Jesse are always smiling and 
willing to help.  Fitness center is clean and well 
organized.  Lynn does a great job with the 
indoor triathlons and the tri this last weekend.  
Would like more


The staff in the kids court were wonderful to my 
children. I let the membership expire because 
of the cost to take the fitness classes.


The staff is always very friendly and helpful...
makes it enjoyable to come to workout!


The therapeutic rec program is the best by far in 
both WI and IL.  Erin and her staff are outstanding 
and I would love to see the program used 
nationwide as a model for what is needed and 
appropriate for our special needs population.


The TR program is the only reason we drive by 
the Kenosha YMCA on our way to the Rec-
Plex.


The week plus shutdown every summer is a real 
let down to members who attend daily. I think 
you may be losing memberships because of 
this.


The youth basketball program should consider 
a competitive league in addition to the 
recreational legue.  As the kids get older they 
need better competition that what is currently 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







186 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


there.


There have been many instances where staff 
were wonderful, Ashely accommodated a 
schedule change for swimming lessons; Laura at 
the front-desk in the early mornings is wonderful 
and amazing, one of the greatest assets your 
facility has; overall I like the


There is a lot of money to be made on days 
when basketball events and other activities are 
going on.  The more accessible concessions 
are, the more they will sell.  As a taxpayer, I 
would love to see this improved so help with 
the costs of operations.  Ov


There seems to be more focus on external 
events (triathlons, tournaments) than core 
functions (fitness center, baseball, soccer, 
beach) because the external events generate 
additional business and increased revenue.  
However, the core functions and member


There should absolutely be a large awning 
in the front (like at a hotel).  It is absolutely 
heartbreaking to watch visitors unload 
wheelchair vans in the rain and wind.  Certainly 
you can do something about that at a fairly 
minimal cost!


there should be more free fitness classes for 
members and/or reduced rates


Think all the changes are great (ice plex, new 
swim pool).  Just wish their was a way to charge 
patrons on the usage.  My family does not use 
either of those additions, so it would be nice 
to pay less and only have access to what we 
need.


This facility is well run, well managed and has 
change our lives.  Thank you for maintaining 
the level of excellence at the RecPlex.


This is an outstanding facility including its staff.  
Very proud to be a member. Just cannot 
participate in all activities because of costs.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


This may be our last year with RecPlex. 
Depending on the service and classes available 
will determine the future.


Timing is everything as mentioned to make it an 
enjoyable experience--sometimes the place is 
just a zoo--soooooo overcrowded.


too expensive


Too many dust bunnies flying around in the 
weight room. Get a vacuum! They work much 
better than a broom.     Better maintenance 
of the weight machines. Some of the pins are 
so tight they are almost impossible to adjust. 
When I brought it to the attention


Too many employees at the desks doing nothing 
and too few janitors cleaning the place.


Too often when you have large events on 
weekends..unless we swim...I cannot do 
anything with my entire family as two of them 
are under the age to go to the upstairs. So we 
will journey up and find out we wasted our 
timeas the Jrs.have everysquare inch of


Very happy with mostly everything. Would like 
more guests passes throughout the year.


Very nice facility, well managed and 
maintained.


Very Satisfied Overall  Thank you for the good 
Job!


Way too expensive


We all love the Recplex and use the facility 
everyday and many days more than once.


We appreciate the facility although it is getting 
expensiive for us. Would use it more if my 
husband is felling stronger.


We are so thankful for the Daycare at the Rec 
Plex. Melissa is wonderful and hires the BEST staff. 
I suggest you look into her hiring techniques 
and consider using them for those at the front 
desk.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







187 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


We are very disappointed in the parking fee 
being charged to ‘MEMBERS’.  It is ridiculous.  
What is even more ridiculous is how the parking 
fee affects a large family with three cars. We 
had to purchase 3 parking passes.  There is no 
excuse for this.  We


We are very interested in some type of raft 
and/or slide at the lake


We are very lucky to have the Rec Plex in our 
community.


We continue to stay for the instructors; they 
excel at what they do and are superior to 
instructors that I have seen in other gyms. Kudos 
to you and them!


We could not be more satisfied with Pre-school 
U. It is great as is the director, Melissa Santell. 
Can not say enough good things about it.   The 
front desk is is great need of an overhaul. I hate 
having to stop there. Frequently, I have been 
ignored in orde


We enjoy coming to the Rec Plex. We call 
it our ‘Country Club’. Staying fit is part of our 
health plan and we feel blessed to have the 
Rec Plex close enough to achieve that goal. 
I really enjoy the people I have met and the 
friendships that have developed. 


We enjoy the facility, but often are frustrated 
with the service.


we enjoy the RecPlex and particularly the 
bodyflow classes, yoga and pilates.  the 
instructors are first rate and the les mills programs 
excellent.   we are concerned about recently 
reducing the number of morning bodyflow 
classes and would like to see mon


We enjoy the RecPlex very much.  My husband 
uses it every weekday and weekends(except 
golf season). I like to try new group classes and 
use the path around Lake Andrea often. I hope 
you get good feedback and continue to grow 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


and change to make the RecPlex


We feel like we are being nickled and dimed 
to death...  way to many extra charges for stuff 
that should be included in the price. You have 
a nice facility -- but it is not worth ALL of the 
extra charges.


We feel the family member locker room is 
usually dirty when we come to the pool area.


We feel the membership costs are too high.  The 
perks of being a member living in Pleasant Prairie 
are almost nothing.   Discounts for Preschool U 
and fitness programs for being a member are 
not adequate.  We feel the RecPlex is more 
concerned with hosting


We feel we pay far too much money to the 
facility to be a member while we only want to 
use the exercise area and track.  We would 
love to take more group classes, but you need 
to offer them at evening hours and with better 
educated instructors.


We go to the grandkids soccer & basket ball 
games all the time. I wish you would inforce 
teens without parents to stay off running/
walking track.


we greatly enjoy our experiences at recplex.  it 
is given us the incentive to exercise & improve 
our health.  our son is physically challenged and 
really likes the accessibility recplex provides


We had to drop the membership because it 
costs too much. Gov. Walker’s Budget Bill hurt 
our finances.


We have  a fun family time every time we go.    
Your family locker room needs DRYERS!!!


We have a son(26) that is out of college and 
is not allowed to be on our membership even 
though he still lives at home. I think you should 
offer some options for that.   I think all members 
that are of driving age should be given a 
parking pass with their


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







188 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


We have been so pleased with the hockey 
programs and Preschool U!


We have been very disappointed with the 
swimming lessons!  The teachers have not been 
attentive to the students and we have felt that 
we can teach our children just as much without 
the hassle of having to be there for a class.


We have had wonderful experiences at 
RecPlex.  I would love to see more small group 
orientations to exercise equipment- perhaps 
something that 6-8 members could sign-up for.  
I often just need a refresher.  More explanations 
in the Play-by-Play.  For exam


we like the facility/service very much. Rates are 
a little high, but corporate discount helps some. 
big weekend tournaments can be a headache, 
but I understand the financial benefits of it, so 
we mostly just stay away on the weekends


We love all the recplex has to offer for families, 
especially youth. We would like to continue to 
see these things offered at a reasonable price 
to the community because I believe it helps 
keep families together, healthy, and involved 
in their communities


We love it there.  However, we just make 
excuses not to get there!  Need to get some 
motivation in our house!


We love our RecPlex experience. I use it 5-6 
days per week. I think maybe adding more 
‘social’ or ‘Community building’ events would 
be a great addition.


We love the childcare program just wish they 
would be a bit more communicative.  Also, 
need more children’s group programs after 
normal working hours!


we love the outside walking path but it could 
be widened to allow for passing easier.     it is 
nice that physical therapy is offered there thru 
the hospital system.    It takes too much effort 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


to park via the gate to work out for an hour,  I 
am not sure t


We love the Rec! My son  Scotty still believes in 
Santa due to Laura’s personal response to his 
letter! I love seeing the familiar faces that we 
have known for years. It makes my son feel safe 
knowing and seeing the familiar faces he has 
seen since 18 mos


We love the RecPlex


We love the recPlex and are very thankful 
that we have such a fabulous facility in our 
community.


We love the RecPlex. We are there all the time 
with summer camp, preschool, ice skating 
lesion and swiming lesion. All the workers at the 
RecPlex knows us and we love the welcome 
every time we walk in.


We love the swimming lessons for our 5 yr old.


We really enjoy coming to the Rec Plex and 
think it is a fantastic facility.  If more group fitness 
classes could be offered in the early morning 
(like 5:00 a.m.) that would be great!


We really enjoy coming to the Recplex. The 
equipment is well maintained and clean, the 
staff are nice, and we normally have a great 
time.


we really enjoy our time there in the winter with 
our Grandchildren ( non members) but I get up 
set if those who allow there kids to taint the pool 
and we have to cut our paid visit short. Maybe 
a refund could be put in place as a back up 
for lost time. A


We really enjoy the Recplex / IcePlex and have 
since the day it opened!


We really like the Recplex and appreciate the 
chance to give you our two cents here. We 
would like to have access to the Recplex even 
if there are special events such as triathalons.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







189 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


We spend quite a bit time at the facility.  In some 
sense attached to it.  In general our experience 
is great, but do not feel it is utilized enough.


We would like to know if there are any kinds of 
discounts for ‘multiples’.  We have triplet boys 
that would be signing up for the same things all 
at the same time so it gets pretty expensive.


Well run.  Need staff to check on machines to 
make sure they are working.  I turned in a non-
functioning machine, bicycle #6 and it was not 
fixed two days later and still in place.


What can you do to make membership more 
affordable?


when i was a member I never rec’d e-mail now 
that my membership has expired I get e-mail 
all the time .


When the staff sees someone coming in with a 
cane or other assistive device, it would be so 
nice if they would just open that gate instead of 
making us wait. We are self-conscious enough. 
Help us out a little, will ya?!


While ‘now’ would be a good time to give an 
opinion, words escape me.


While I appreciate the member’s only parking, 
especially during large events, it seems as if the 
back half of the parking lot is always empty.  
Why not give this part of the lot to visitors?  I am 
sure they are a bit frustrated not having parking 
except fo


Window stickers for the automatic gates should 
be able to be used on any vehicle I use. I have 
two cars.


With all the special events, tourneys, and 
concession sales, I do not think long-standing 
members should have any annual membership 
fees increased. All else is good.


WITH PRICE OF MEMBERSHIP THERE SHOULD BE 
NO FEES FOR MEMBER PARKING.


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


Woman in charge of swim program always 
pleasant and attentive - truly seems to care 
about members satisfaction. Always watching 
how instructors and guards are performing.


Women/Men training for a triathlon should 
be able to swim free during free swim.  Last 
year had friends come in from out of town to 
practice swim together and the young beach 
personnel were very rude and made uncalled 
for comments.  Hire more friendly peo


Would appreciate consideration for 
grandchildren for discounted youth classes 
& programs and free childcare.  I babysit for 
my grandchildren so would appreciation the 
above consideration for them as members.


would be nice to have a heated, whirlpool-
type bath available for my elderly dad


would like family exercise options....spinning 
with tweeners, bootcamp, TRX. My son can run 
7 miles and do 48 push-ups! I would love to work 
out with him. My daughter needs to see classes 
with pretty women that are also muscular. Her 
idea of beauty is not


Would like to see a reduction in price for 
residents of Kenosha county. I live 7 miles from 
the rec plex and have to pay non residency.


would like to see ice plex combining more 
fitness training classes to enhance the figure 
skating program- it is getting better - you have 
the facility, the kids need the proper training to 
become good skaters, let us use it.


would love to see more picnick areas around 
the lake with grills


Would love to see the fitness staff walking around 
and wiping down / cleaning all equipment 
through out the day as it is used.


Would the ability to be able to call some of the 
instructors of the programs you offer, outside 
of the class.  Provide phone numbers and/or 


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







190 ::  Village of Pleasant Prairie Recreation Master Plan 2012-2016


email addresses.  Contact information.  I was 
trying to contact the Karate instructor for my 
son to confirm his cla


you have out priced yourself and as a result 
many people have had to cancel their 
membership.


You have the best park district/health club 
facility around with so much to choose from 
for so many people with different needs and 
likes.  I like the instructors you have teaching 
classes.  At times, tho, the classrooms need to 
have better air flow/venti


You need to keep up appearances better. It 
is painfully obvious when the housekeeping 
staff either is not sufficient or is just doing a 
poor job. Sitting water, mold, smell, etc... Also 
the maintenance dept. ... loose handles, rails, 
peeling paint etc.


Your questions have touched on many of 
‘irritating factors’ related to my Rec Plex 
membership.  I like member parking, but I do 
not feel that I should have to pay ‘extra’ for it ... 
it is not worth $20 to me, so I park on the street 
and walk, even in winter


Your staff in the Kids Court area are wonderful! 
My children and I are always welcomed with a 
smile!  They deserve big praise!


Your staff it top notch.


Your staff should listen more to your customers


Your teachers are awesome and deserve 
high praise especially Mary (spin) and Debbie 
(Freemotion), John (kickboxing) etc.


Your week long shut for maintence is a joke 
all we do is come back to the same broken 
machines and the same cob webs, during this 
shut down all maintence concerns should be 
done instead of just giving employees time off


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•


•







Consider Zoning Text Amendments (Ord. #13-20) for the request of John Holborow of 


EVO Development to amend The Prairie Ridge West Commercial Development Planned Unit 


Development for signage modifications for the proposed 9,000 square foot multi-tenant 


building to be known as The Plaza at Prairie Ridge. 


 


Recommendation: 


On May 28, 2013 the Village Plan Commission held a public hearing and recommended that 


the Village Board approve the Zoning Text Amendment (Ord. #13-20) as presented. 


 







2 
 


VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF JUNE 3, 2013 


Consider Zoning Text Amendments (Ord. #13-20) for the request of John Holborow of 


EVO Development to amend The Prairie Ridge West Commercial Development Planned Unit 


Development for signage modifications for the proposed 9,000 square foot multi-tenant 


building to be known as The Plaza at Prairie Ridge. 


 


The petitioner is requesting approval of an amendment to The Prairie Ridge West 


Commercial Development PUD for the development of an approximate 9,000 square foot 


multi-tenant commercial building on a 1.42 acre property within the Prairie Ridge 


Commercial West Development (at the southeast corner of 104th Avenue and STH 50 


between Olive Garden and Cheddar’s Casual Café-under construction). 


The property is zoned B-2 (PUD), Community Business Zoning District with a Planned Unit 


Development Overlay Zoning District.  The B-2 District allows for the retail uses within a 


multi-tenant building. 


PRAIRIE RIDGE WEST COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT (PR WEST):  On August 20, 2012 


the Village Board conditionally approved a Conceptual Plan for the development of PR West 


and adopted the PR West PUD (Ord. #12-29) that specifically allows for shared cross access 


for the lots as well as specific signage requirements for monument signs for each individual 


lot and the for two (2) shared signs for Lots 1-3 within the PR West.    


The Conceptual Plan for PR West encompasses 9.2 acres located at the southeast corner of 


STH 50 and 104th Avenue within the Prairie Ridge Development.  The property was 


subdivided into four (4) lots for commercial development sites.   Cheddar’s Casual Café, as 


conditionally approved by the Plan Commission on November 12, 2012 is currently under 


construction on Lot 1 and The Plaza is proposed to be developed on Lot 2 within PR West.   


The primary site access provided to the PR West area is a right-in, right-out only access (at 


about the 7600 block) from 104th Avenue and a secondary access is through a private 


roadway extending from the lot to 77th Street.  Lots 1, 2 and 3 also have cross access 


easements as shown on the CSM to allow for access between the sites and to the east 


through the Olive Garden and Famous Dave’s parking lots which leads to another access 


connection to 77th Street.  There is no direct access permitted to STH 50 from any of the 


lots.   


On August 13, 2012 the Plan Commission approved Preliminary Site and Operational Plans 


to allow for the mass grading and installation of public and private infrastructure 


improvements for PR West.  On August 20, 2012 the Village Board approved the 


Development Agreement for the installation of the required public improvements for PR 


West.  


A Prairie Ridge West Commercial Development Owner’s Sub-Association to manage the 


shared maintenance responsibilities of all internal commonly owned improvements has been 


established for the four (4) lots within PR West and a Declaration of Covenants and 


Restrictions for the Prairie Ridge West Commercial Development has been recorded.  The 


lots within PR West shall conform to these restrictions (attached), in addition to the original 


Prairie Ridge Prairie Ridge Commercial Development Declaration of Development Standards 


and Protective Covenants, which may be amended from time to time.   


On May 28, 2013, the Plan Commission conditionally approved Site and Operational 


Plans for the proposed construction of a 9,000 square foot multi-tenant building to be 


known as The Plaza at Prairie Ridge generally located at the southeast corner of STH 50 and 


104th Avenue within the Prairie Ridge West Commercial Development. 







3 
 


ZONING TEXT AMENDMENT:  On August 20, 2012 the Village Board adopted Ord. #12-29 


to create the specific PUD requirements for the PR West which includes this property.   The 


petitioner is requesting to amend this ordinance related to the signs for Lot 2. 


A primary monument sign is proposed to be installed adjacent to STH 50 that is up to 


160 square feet and 16 feet high similar to the size of the primary monument sign for 


Prairie Ridge Commons development to the east.   


The amount of allowable commercial advertising signage allowed per tenant is 


proposed to be same as Prairie Ridge Commons.  The total aggregate permitted background 


commercial advertising sign area requirements would be amended as follows: 


 Sign Size:  50 square feet maximum per building facade per tenant/store space (as 


shown on the plans). 


 Sign Height:  Three (3) feet Maximum 


 Compliance with all requirements of Section 420-76 DD entitled Wall Sign as may be 


amended from time to time. 


Village staff recommends approval of the Zoning Text Amendment (#13-20) as presented. 


 







Page 1 


ORD. # 13-20 


 


ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE  


PRAIRIE RIDGE WEST COMMERCIAL DEVELOPMENT  


PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD) ORDINANCE #12-29 PURSUANT TO  


CHAPTER 420-137 OF THE VILLAGE ZONING ORDINANCE 


IN THE VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE, KENOSHA COUNTY, WISCONSIN 


 


BE IT ORDAINED by the Village Board of Trustees of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha 


County, Wisconsin, that the Prairie Ridge West Commercial Development Planned Unit 


Development (PUD) Ordinance#12-29 is hereby amended pursuant to Chapter 420-137 of the 


Village Zoning Ordinance to read as follows: 


 


1. Subsection d (vii) related to specific modification to Primary Monument Signs shall 


be amended to read as follows: 


(vii) Section 420-76 T. related to Primary Monument Signs shall be amended as follows: 


T. Primary Monument Signs 


(1) One sign is required for each property within the 


DEVELOPMENT.  


(2) A changeable copy sign, electronic changing message sign or 


electronic scrolling sign is permitted.  


(3)  Maximum area: 130 square feet per face, except for Lot 2 


which shall not exceed 160 square feet per face. 


(4) Maximum height: 10 feet for Lots 1 and 2 , 16 feet for Lot 2 


and six feet for Lots 3 and 4. 


(5) Minimum setback distance: 10 feet from any public street or 


highway right-of-way line and shall not be located within any 


easement wherein such sign is not expressly permitted. 


(6) Shall include the street address of the principal building on the 


property, including the street number(s) and the name of the 


street, but such address may be placed on the base of the 


sign (where they will not count toward the maximum area of 


the sign display).  


(7)  Landscaping shall extend a minimum of five feet in every 


direction from the base or other support structure of the sign.  


(8)  May be illuminated.  


(9)  Shall be placed on a solid-appearing decorative base which 


supports a minimum of 75% of the horizontal dimension of 


the sign display constructed or stone or brick to match the 


building.  


(10)  The base of the sign shall be two feet height and shall not 


extend to either side of the sign display by a distance 


exceeding 1/2 of the horizontal dimension of the sign display, 


or extend above the level of the top of the sign display by a 


distance exceeding 1/2 of the vertical dimension of the sign 


display.  


(11)  May be three-dimensional.  







Page 2 


2. Subsection d(x) related to specific modification to Aggregate Permitted Background 


Commercial Advertising Sign Area shall be created to read as follows: 


(x) Section 420-78 K related to Aggregate Permitted Background Commercial 


Advertising Sign Area shall be amended for Lot 2 only as follows: 


K. Aggregate permitted background commercial advertising sign area 


for all tenant spaces/stores on the retail building on Lot 2 of the 


DEVELOPMENT shall be limited to: 


(1)  Sign Size:  50 square feet maximum per building façade per 


tenant/store space. 


(2) Sign Height:  Three (3) feet Maximum 


(3) Compliance with all requirements of Section 420-76 DD 


entitled Wall Sign as may be amended from time to time. 


Adopted this 3rd day of June 2013. 


VILLAGE OF PLEASANT PRAIRIE 


 


 


 _____________________________ 


John P. Steinbrink 


Village President 


ATTEST: 


 


 


_________________________________ 


Jane M. Romanowski 


Village Clerk 


 


Posted: _____________ 


 
20-prairie ridge west pud amend.doc 























































 


9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.925.6721  FAX 262.694.4734 


Office of the Village Clerk 


Jane M. Romanowski  


 


MEMORANDUM 


 
 
 
TO:  Village Board of Trustees 
 
FROM: Jane M. Romanowski 
  Village Clerk 
 
RE:  2013-2014 Towing Licenses 
 
DATE: May 29, 2013 
 


 
The following companies have submitted applications to renew their respective towing licenses in 
the Village: 
 
 Glasman Towing, 8230 - 160th Avenue, Woodworth, WI 
 Jantz Towing, 3405 Washington Road, Kenosha, WI 
 Atlas Service Center Inc., 5150 60th Street, Kenosha, WI 
 Jensen & Jensen, 5410 – 50th Street, Kenosha, WI 
 J & M Towing, 6010 26th Avenue, Kenosha, WI 
 Firehouse Performance, 4502 22nd Avenue, Kenosha, WI 
 
All applications comply with Section 332 of the Municipal Code and the license fees have been paid.  
Chief Smetana has also indicated his approval of the applications listed above.  I recommend 
approval of the six applications for towing licenses effective July 1, 2013 - June 30, 2014 subject to 
the provisions of Chapter 332 of the Municipal Code. 
 


* * * * * 
 
 
 


 


 


 







 


9915 39th Avenue,  Pleasant Prairie, Wisconsin  53158-6504  262.925.6721  FAX 262.694.4734 


Office of the Village Clerk 


Jane M. Romanowski  


 


 MEMORANDUM 
 


 


TO:  Village Board of Trustees 


 


FROM: Jane M. Romanowski 


Village Clerk 


 


DATE: May 29, 2013 


 


RE: Keno Family Drive-In 


 9102 Sheridan Road 


 


 


The Village received a renewal application for the Keno Outdoor Theater.  A safe water test has been 


received and inspections by both the Inspection Department and Fire & Rescue Department have been 


completed and no violations exist. The license fee of $300 license is paid, and I recommend approval of 


this license for the period July 1, 2013- June 30, 2014 subject to the provisions of Chapter 326 of the 


Municipal Code. 


 


 * * * * * 
 







Consider the request of Deborah LeMay owner of the property at 3300 99th Street and the 


adjacent property (92-4-122-243-0145) with a detached garage for approval of the Lot 


Line Adjustment. 


 


Recommendation: 


On May 28, 2013, the Village Plan Commission recommended that the Village Board 


approve the Lot Line Adjustment subject to the comments and conditions of the June 3, 


2013 Village Staff Report. 







 


VILLAGE STAFF REPORT OF JUNE 3, 2013 


Consider the request of Deborah LeMay owner of the property at 3300 99th Street and the 


adjacent property (92-4-122-243-0145) with a detached garage for approval of the Lot 


Line Adjustment. 


 


The properties located at 3300 99th Street (92-4-122-243-0220) and the adjacent property 


(92-4-122-243-0145) with a detached garage located at the corner of 33rd Avenue and 99th 


Street are both owned by Deborah LeMay who is requesting to adjust the common property 


line.   


The rear approximately 46.25 feet of the property with the existing detached non-


conforming garage is proposed to be added to the property at 3300 99th Street.  The 


detached garage is non-conforming in that a home is not located on the property.  


Therefore, after the lot line adjustment the non-conforming garage will become a 


conforming use on the property at 3300 99th Street with the existing home. 


Both properties are zoned R-4, Urban Single Family Residential District which requires lots 


to be a minimum of 10,000 square feet and the detached garage is required to be 10 feet 


from the side and rear property lines.   


The proposed Lot Line Adjustment and all structures on the property after the lot line 


adjustment comply with the requirements set forth in the Village Zoning Ordinance and 


Land Division and Development Control Ordinance. 


The Village staff recommends approval of the Lot Line Adjustment subject to the 


petitioner recording the proper transfer documents with the Plat of Survey for the 


Lot Line Adjustment as an Exhibit with the Kenosha County Register of Deeds 


Office within 30 days of final Village approval. 



















 


CLERK'S CERTIFICATION OF 


 BARTENDER LICENSE APPLICATIONS 


    Period Ending: May 29, 2013 


 


 


I, Jane M. Romanowski, Village Clerk of the Village of Pleasant Prairie, Kenosha County, 


Wisconsin, do hereby certify the following persons have applied for bartender licenses and each 


applicant is in compliance with the guidelines set forth in Chapter 194 of the Municipal 


Code.  I recommend approval of the applications for each person as follows:  


 


NAME OF APPLICANT    LICENSE TERM 


 


1. Robert M. Dupin    thru June 30, 2015 


2. Ginny M. Labus    thru June 30, 2015 


3. Rachel A. Snyder    thru June 30, 2015 


       


  


      


 


 


 


 


Jane M. Romanowski 


Village Clerk     


 


 


 





		Agenda - June 3 2013

		Minutes - May 20 2013

		5A. Holiday Inn Express Liquor License Renewal

		8A. 2012-2016 Recreation Master Plan

		PPWI_Recreation_Plan_2013-01-17



		8B. Amend Prairie Ridge West PUD - Signage

		Ord #13-20

		Plaza PUD amed application

		Plans

		Ord #12-29 Prairire Ridge West Commercial PUD



		8C. 1) Towing License Renewals

		8C. 2) Keno Outdoor Theater License Renewal

		8C. 3) LeMay Lot Line Adjustment

		Request

		Lot Line Adjustment



		8C. 4) Operator Licenses Board Mtg 6-3-13




